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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 0330!
603-271-9544 1.800-S52-3345 Ext 9445

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

December 4, 2019

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to
amend an existing agreement with the vendor listed in bold below to provide substance use disorder
treatment and recovery support services statewide by increasing the total price limitation by $120,000
from $18,055,446 to $18,17.5,446 with no change to thfe contract completion date of September 30. 2020,
effective upon Goyemorand Executive Council approval. 100% Other Funds.

Vendor
Current

Budget
Increase/

. Decrease

Revised

Budget
G&C Approval

Dismas Home of New

Hampshire, Inc.
$258,750 $0 $258,750

0: 06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7
A2: 12/05/18 Item #23

A3: 6/19/19 Item #29E

FIT/NHNH, Inc. $2,123,396 $0 $2,123,396

O: 07/27/18 Item #7

A1: 12/05/2018 Item #2 j
A2: 6/19/19 Item #29E

Grafton County New
Hampshire - Department

of Corrections and

Alternative Sentencing

$493,000 $0 $493,000

O: 06/20/18 Late Iterii G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2: 6/19/19 Item #29E

Greater Nashua Council

on Alcoholism
$2,477,000 $0 $2,477,000

0: 07/27/18'Item #7

A1: 12/05/18 Item #23

A2: 6/19/19 Item #29E

A3: 9/18/19 Late Item E

Headrest $680,350 $120,000 $800,350

0: 06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2:12/05/18 Item #23

A3: 6/19/19 Item #29E

A4: 8/14/19 Item #13
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Manchester

Alcoholism

Rehabilitation Center

$5,547,750 $0 $5,547,750

0: 06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2; 12/05/18 Item #2

A3: 06/19/19 Item #29E 3

A4: 08/28/19 Item #11

Hope on Haven Hill $775,500 $0 $775,500

0: 07/27/18 Item #7

A1: 12/05/18 Item #23

A2; 06/19/19 Item #29E

North Country Health
Consortium

$1,506,000 $0 $1,506,000

0: 06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2: 12/05/18 Item #23

A3: 06/19/19 Item #29E

Phoenix Houses of

New England, Inc.
$2,088,750. $0 $2,088,750

0: 06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2: 12/05/18 Item #23

A3: 06/19/19 Item #29E

Seacoast Youth

Services
$73,200 $0 $73,200

0: 06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

Southeastern New

Hampshire Alcohol &
Drug Abuse Services

$1,992,250 $0 $1,992,250

0: 06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2: 12/05/18 Item #23

A3: 06/19/19 Item #29E

The Community
Council of Nashua,

N.H.

$23,000 $0 $23,000

0: 06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2: 06/19/19 Item #29E

West Central

Services, Inc.
$16,500 $0 $16,500

0: 06/20/1/ Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2: 06/19/19 Item #29E

Total $18,055,446 $120,000 $18,175,448

Funds are available in the following account(s) for State Fiscal Year (s) 2020 and 2021, with
authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal
Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

Please see attached financial details.
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EXPLANATION
\

The purpose of this request is to extend the agreement with the Contractor listed in bold above to
provide outpatient, intensive outpatient, and low intensity residential substance use disorder treatment
and recovery support services statewide.

Substance use disorders develop when the use of alcohol and/or drugs causes clinically and
functionally significant impairment, such as health problems, disability, and failure to meet major
responsibilities at work, school, or home. The existence of a substance use disorder is determined using
a clinical evaluation based on Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, Fifth Edition criteria.

This Agreement is part of the Department's overall strategy to respond to the opioid epidemic that
continues to negatively impact New Hampshire's individuals, families, and communities, as well as to
respond to other types of substance use disorders. The current contract price limitation was determined
utilizing the program's spending during a three (3) month period. It was later discovered that there were
some anomalies in the payer mix during that period, resulting in underfunding the program. Because of
this, the program has already expended the full contract amount with approximately seven (7) months
remaining in the contract period.

Headrest effectiveness in delivering services will be measured through monitoring of the following
performance measures:

Initiation: % of clients accessing services within fourteen (14) days of screening:

Engagement: % of clients receiving three (3) or more eligible services within thirty-four (34)

days;

Retention: % of clients receiving six (6) or more eligible services within sixty (60) days;

Clinically appropriate services: % of clients receiving ASAM level of care within thirty (30)

days;

Treatment completion: % of clients completing treatment; and

National Outcome Measures (NOMS) The % of clients out of all clients discharged meeting at

least three (3) out of five (5) NOMS outcome criteria:

o Reduction in /no change in the frequency of substance use at discharge compared to date
of first service.

o  Increase in/no change in number of individuals employed or in school at date of last
service compared to first service,

o Reduction in/no change in number of individuals arrested in past thirty (30) days from date
of first service to date of last service,

o  Increase in/no change in number of individuals that have stable housing at last service
compared to first service,

o  Increase in/no change in number of individuals participating in community support services
"at last service compared to first service.

Should the Governor and Executive Council determine to not authorize this Request, There will
be a decrease in the limited number of state-funded residential treatment beds, resulting in individuals
with substance use disorders not receiving needed treatment services, thus increasing the likelihood of
overdose and other adverse consequences of continued substance use.
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Area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Prevention,
Intervention and Treatment.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Steffrey A. Meyers

The Dcparlmenl of Heallh and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Financial Details

0$-95-92-920S10-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DfV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH. BUREAU
OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS. GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

Community Council
of Nashua-Gr

Nashua Comm

Mental Health Vendor Code: 154112-BOOi P01062082

State Fiscal Year Class/Account THJe Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$9,621 $9,621

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$3,209 $3,209

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$963 $963

Sub-total $13,793 $0 $13,793

Dismas Home of

NH Vendor Code: 290061-BOOi P01062978

State Fiscal Year

/

Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$47,435 $47,435

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$25,670 $25,670

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$6,417 $6,417

Sub-total $79,522 $0 $79,522

Easter Seals of NH

Manchester

Alcoholism Rehab

Ctr/Famum Vendor Code: 177204-8005 P01062980

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$337,288 $337,288

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$463,229 $483,229

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$120,968 $120,968

Sut>-totsl $941,485 $0 $941,485

FIT/NHNH Vendor Code: 157730-B001 P01063556

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$194,759 $194,759

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$251,712 $251,712

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$62,890 $62,890

Sub-total $509,361 $0 $509,361

Attachment A

Financial Detail
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Financial Details

Grafton County Vendor Code: 177397-B003 P01062977

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$74,492 $74,492

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$74,121 $74,121

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$18,610 $18,610

Subtotal $167,223 $0 $167,223

Greater Nashua

Council on

Alcoholism Vendor Code: 166574-B001 P01063242

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$188,372 $168,372

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$193,465 $193,485

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$48,772 $48,772

Sub-total $430,629 $0 $430,629

Headrest, Inc Vendor Code: 175226-B001 P01062979

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$44,635 $44,635

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$14,760 $100,000 $114,760

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$3,850 $20,000 $23,850

Sut>-total $63,245 $120,000 $183,245

Hope on Haven Hill Vendor Code: 27S119-B001 PO1063243

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$39,767 $39,767

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$31,445 $31,445

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$8,022 $8,022

Sub-total $79,234 $0 $79,234

Attachment A

Rnandal Detail
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Attachment A

Financial Details

North Country
Health Consortium Vendor Code: 158557-B001 PO1062986

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$86,676 $86,678

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$117,118 $117,118

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$29,199 $29,199

Subtotal $232,995 $0 $232,995

Phoenix Houses of

New England. Inc. Vendor Code: 177589-BOOi P01062985

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$70,246 $70,246

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
S101.395 $101,395

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$25,349 $25,349

Sub-total $196,990 $0 $196,990

Seacoast Youth

Services Vendor Code: 203944-B001 P01062984

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$22,076 $22,076

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$0 $0

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$0 $0

Sub-total $22,076 $0 $22,076

Southeastern NH

Alcohol and Dnjg
Services Vendor Code 155292-B001 PO10629e9

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$167,409 $167,409

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$120,647 $120,647

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$30,162 $30,162

Sub-total $318,218 $0 $318,218

Anachment A

financial Detail
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Attachment A

Financial Details

West Central

Services Vendor Code: 177654-BOOi P01062988

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
53,085 53.085

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
53.209 53,209

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
5802 5802

Sub-total 57.096 50 57,096

Total Gov. Comm 53.061.867 5120.000 53.181.867

05-95-82-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUllAAN SVCS OEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORtAL HEALTH, BUREAU
OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, CUNICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds, 34% General Funds FAIN 7101 (k)35 CFDA 93.959}

Community Council
of Nashua-Gr

Nashua Comm

Mental Health Vendor Code: 154112-BD01 P01062982

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
5379 5379

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
56,791 56,791

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
52,037 52.037

Sub-total 59,207 50 59.207

Dismas Home of

NH Vendor Code:29006l -BOd PO1062978

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
532,565 532,565

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
554,330 554,330

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
513,583 513,583

Sub-total 5100.478 50 5100.478

Attachment A

Rnancial Detail

Pate 4 of 11



Attachment A

Financial Details

Easter Seals of NH

Manchester

Alcoholism Rehab

Ctr/Famum Vendor Code: 177204-B005 P01062960

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$1,176,712 $1,176,712

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$1,022,771 $1,022,771

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$256,032 $256,032

Subtotal $2,457,515 $0 $2,457,515

FIT/NHNH Vendor Code; 157730-0001 P01063556

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$476,641 $476,641

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$532,756 $532,756

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$133,110 $133,110

Subtotal $1,144,709 $0 $1,144,709

Grafton County Vendor Code: 177397-8003 P01062977

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$129,506 $129,506

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$156,679 $156,679

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$39,390 $39,390

Sut>-total $325,777 $0 $325,777

Greater Nashua

Council on

Alcoholism Vendor Code: 166574-8001 PO1063242

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$436,628 $436,626

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$413,515 $413,515

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$103,226 $103,226

Subtotal $953,371 $0 $953,371

Headrest. Inc Vendor Code: 175226-BOOI P01062979

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$53,365 $53,365

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$31,240 $31,240

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$8,150 $6,150

Sub-total $92,755 $0 $92,755

Anachment A

Financial Detail
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Financial Details

Hope on Haven Hill Vendor Code: 275119-8001 P01063243

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$59,233 $59,233

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$66,555 $66,555

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$16,978 $16,978

Sub-total $142,766 $0 $142,766

North Country
Health Consortium Vendor Code: 158557-B001 901062986

State Fiscal Year. Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$281,322 $281,322

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$247,882 $247,882

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$61,801 $61,801

Sub-total $591,005 $0 $591,005

Phoenix Houses of

New England, inc. Vendor Code: 177589-8001 POI062985

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$246,754 $246,754

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$214,605 $214,605

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$53,651 . $53,651

Sub-total $515,010 $0 $515,010

Attachment A

Financial Detail
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Financial Details

Seacoast Youth

Services Vendor Code: 203844-B001 P0l0e2984

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$51,124 S51,124

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
SO SO

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
SO SO

Subtotal S51,124 SO S51.124

Southeastern NH

Alcohol and Drug
Services Vendor Code 155292-B001 P01062089

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-5W734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$208,591 S208.591

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$255,353 S255.353

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$63,838 $63,838

Sub-total $527,782 SO S527.782

West Central

Services Vendor Code: 177654-BOOl P01062968

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
S915 $915

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
S6.791 $6,791

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
S1.698 $1,698

Sub-total $9,404 SO $9,404

Total Clinical Svs 19.929.99? Sfi. ' 99.929.999

Anachment A

Financial Detail
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Financial Details

05.95.92.920510.70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU

OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS. STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% Federal Funds, FAIN H79TI081685 CFDA 93.788)

Community Council
of Nashua-Gr

Nashua Comm

Mental Health Vendor Code: 154112-6001

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
SO SO

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
so SO

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
so SO

Sub4otal so SO SO

Oismas Home of

NH Vendor Code:TBD

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
S15.000 $15,000

2020 .102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
S56.750 $56,750

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
S7,000 S7.000

Sub-total S78,750 SO $78,750

Easter Seals of NH

Manchester

Alcoholism Rehab

• Ctr/Famum Vendor Code: 177204-B005

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$784,000 $784,000

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$1,339,750 $1,339,750

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$25,000 $25,000

Sub-total $2,148,750 SO $2,148,750

Attachment A

Financial Detail
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Financial Details

FIT/NHNH Vendor Code; 157730-B001

State Fiacal Year Clait/Account Tttle Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modlfled

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$208,256 $206,256

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$261,070 $261,070

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
SO $0

Sub-total $469,326 SO $469,326

Grafton County Vendor Code: 177397-B003

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$0 $0

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
SO $0

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$0 $0

Sub-total $0 $0 $0

Greater Nastiua

Council on

Alcotiolism Vendor Code: 166574-6001

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$353,000 $353,000

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$593,000 $593,000

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$147,000 $147,000

Sut>-total $1,093,000 $0 $1,093,000

Headrest Inc Vendor Code: 175226-6001

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$150,600 $150,600

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$368,350 $368,350

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$5,400 $5,400

Sub-total $524,350 $0 $524,350

Attachment A

Financial Detail
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Financial Details

Hope on Haven Hill Vendor Code: 27S119-B001

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Dectaase)
Revised Modified

Budget

2010 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$176,000 $178,000

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
S352.500 $352,500

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$25,000 $25,000

Subtotal $553,500 $0 $553,500

North Country
Health Consortium Vendor Code: 158557-BOOt

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$217,000 $217,000

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$459,000 $459,000

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$6,000 $6,000

Sub-total $682,000 $0 $682,000

Phoenix Houses of

New England. Inc. Vendor Code: 177589-BOOI

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$438,000 $438,000

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$913,750 $913,750

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$25,000 $25,000

Sub-total $1,376,750 $0 $1,376,750

Seacoast Youth

Services Vendor Code: 203944-B001

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ (Decrease)
Revised Modlfled

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$0 $0

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$0 $0

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$0 $0

Sub-total $0 $0 $0

Attachment A

Financial Detail
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Attachment A

Financial Details

Southeastern NH

Alcohol and Drug
Services Vendor Code I552d2-B00l

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ Decrease
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$365,000 $365,000

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$756,250 $756,250

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$25,000 $25,000

Sub-total $1,146,250 $0 $1,148,250

West Central

Services Vendor Code: 177654-B001

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Title Budget Amount Increase/ Decrease
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$0 $0

2020 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$0 $0

2021 102-500734
Contracts for Prog

Svc
$0 $0

Sub-total $0 $0 $0

Total SOR Grant $8,072,676 $0 $8,072,676

Grand Total All $18,055,446 $120,000 $18,175,446

Attachment A

Rnandal Detail

Page 11 of 11



state of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #5 to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

This 5^ Amendment to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #5") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department
of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Headrest,
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 14 Church
Street, Lebanon, NH 03766.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 20, 2018 (Late Item G), as amended on July 27, 2018 (Item #7), as amended on December 5,
2018 (Item #23), as amended on June 19, 2019 (Item #29E), as amended on August 14, 2019 (Item #13)
the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the
Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #5 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$800,350.

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date

W
Name: Katja S. Fox
Title: Director

Da

Headrest

Name:

Title: bfrZ.^TXn.

Headrest

RFA-2019-BDAS-01-SUBST-05-A05

Amendment #5

Page 1 of 3



Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of 1^6^ . County of on ^ Vs//^ before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

IfA/VS^
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and Title of Notary or Justice oflne Peace

My Commission Expires: J. MoQATOY,^Moy

Headrest Amendment #5

RFA.2019-BDAS-01-SUBST-05-A05 Page 2 of 3



The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date Narafe: j

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Headrest Amendment #5

RFA-2019-BDAS^1-SUBST-05-A05 Page 3 of 3



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. Whiitxn M. OajYlner. Secr«tA/y of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby ccrtify'that HEADREST is a New

Hampshire Nonprofii Corporshon registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April 27, 1972.1 further certify thai all fees

and documents required by the Scoetary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as br as this office is

oonccmed.

Business LD; 61466

Ceitincaie Number; 0004502287

S

o

%
N

[N TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Sea) of the Stau of New Hampshire,

this 22nd day of April A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Slate



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

_Anclrew Daubenspeck, _.'do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency: cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of Headrest Inc. .
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Adencv duly held on 12/3/2019 :
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the Executive Director
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said, contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as'of

the 3rd day of December • 2019 .
(Date Contract Signed)

4 . Cameron Ford is the Executive Director of the Agency
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

(Signature of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of.

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this, . day of 20 I?

By
(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

olaryPublic/Justice of the Peace)

(NOTARY SEAL) ' 2ACHARV J. McQARRY, Notaiy Public
My Commb^ Expfan Jidy 10,2024

Commission Expires: .



HEADINC-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
LCLOOgH

OATC(Hlil«(VrVVV)

ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFIGATE HOLDER THIS
AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGAnVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURERfS) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. AUTHORIZED

ADDITIONAL INSURED. Ihe pollcy(ios) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provlslbns or be endorsed
J  WAIVED, sublect to the terms and conditions of the policy, ccrtain policies may require an endonemenL A statement onIhlt certiflcate does not confer rlphts to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

FROOUCCK

A. B. Glle, Inc.
POBox66
Henover, NH 037SS

fcrti: (603) 643-4540 M.t-(603) 643^382
XSS)(ksa-

F«"«eFI3I AFFOROWO coveiuGe

wsuRCfiArPhitadelohia Insurance Co.
Msuaeo

HeedresL Inc.

msuMRa T Eastern Alliance

INSmteRC;

IMSURSRD:

mSURFR H :

INSURER r ;

MSR

ilB

A

THE P0UCI6S OF INSURANCE USTED BELOW HAVE BEEN tSSUEO TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PCHiAn
NOTWrmSTANDING ANY REOUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

'SSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES OEWrTbEO^EREIN 1^^^^
EXauSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. UMfTS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDOC^BY PMD CUMmS^ SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

TYK OF aoUAANCe

COMMERCIAL OCMERAL LlAaiUTY

I QAim MAoe S OCCUR
Profossloncl Liabilt

AOORgQATE L»UT AfPLIgS PER:

'•o'jcvQjB rnioc
other:

AUTOttOeLE UABOJTY

AOOL
ma

SUM

ANY AUTO

OWHEO
AUTOS ONLY

ONLY

POUCY NUMBER

PHPK2011619

PHPK2011619

POUCYEFF
WMN>n/VWVS

7/15/2019

7/1S/2019

POUCY EJIP
WMfta/yVYvi

7/15/2020

7/15/2020

UMNS

JRREWCS

. w RSNTEO
PRENista/Pi.flnriCTnnii.
HeOEXPtAnTcn»D»natH

PERSONAL A AOVINJUay

GENERAL AQGREGATE

PROOUCT8.COMP>OPAOO

COMaiNEO SINGLE LBUT
Ifm trifVntI

BOOILY INJURY ff»,rp.r»on>

BOOILY l/uURYn»^.rN,»«N.

1.000.000

100,000

5,000

1,000,000

3.000,000

3,000,000

1.000.000

UKSRELLAUAD

EXCESSUA8

D€D

OCCUR

CLAIMSAWOE PHU868S870 7/1S/2019 7/1S/2020
EACH OCCURRENCE 3,000,000

RETENTIONI 10,000
AQGRgQATg 3.000.000

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMFLOYERT LlAftlUnr

ANY PROPRIETOR^ARnCR/EXECUTIVE^£22fiJW"°-"oeo7 ̂
« ree. dwertbe wPdw
0EscR»-ncN OF opgRA-no>«

128046 7/1S/2019

PHPK2011619 7/15«019

7/1S/2020
fdtum: M

E.L EACHACCOEWT 500,000

E.L.Ot&eA«P.RAeMPLOY6g 500,000

7/15/2020 Limit
E.L0l8gASP.PQ.gV.lUfT 500,000

55,000

OWR»T»N OF OFEMTIOM I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORO lOI, AMMoaM R.n»fk* SUiMylA b. MImM tt adk. M
Wofksf* Comptnsstion Cov«r*d SUtts- 3A Part Ono: NH. 3C Part Thrss: No covsraat ifferdod for othor

EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE

covsragt ifferdod for othor sutos. Excludod Offlcort: Board of DIroctors.

NH DHHS - BOAS

AKn: Linda J. Parker

105 Pleasant Street • Main 3rd Floor North
Concord. NH 03301

1

arrtpn

vnnvcLXMMun

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCWBEO POUCIEB BE CANCBLLEO BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE OEUVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS. i'cuycrwu

AUTHORBEO REPReSOfTATIVB

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



HEADREST INC. MISSION STATEMENT

"fVe are dedicated to assisting anyone currently dealing with a
substance use disorder, experiencing a crisis, or needing
support, by providing effective programs and treatment
regardless of ability to pay"
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Board of Directors

Headrest, Inc.
Lebanon, New Hampshire 03766

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Headrest, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization),which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2018
and 2017, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America: this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatement.

An audit includes performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

-1-
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to the above present fairly, In all material
respects, the financial position of Headrest, Inc. as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the
changes In its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended In accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements taken as a whole. The schedule of functional expenses on page 11 is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and Is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, Including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information Is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as
a whole.

Wheeler, Ring, Dolan & Dupuls, PC

H^fiuUr. 'Doian & 'Dupuis. 'PC

Manchester, N. H. 03104
November 15, 2018

-2-
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HEADREST. INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

Assets 2018 2017

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash $ 11,920 $ 54,696
Accounts Receivable 76,558 • 45,624
Prepaid expenses 4.078 5.456

Total current assets 92.556 105.776

Assets Limited as to Use 35,460 26,184

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land 19.010 19,010
Building and improvements 241,037 229,467
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 146.687 146.687

Total property and equipment 406.734 395,164
Less accumulated depreciation 316.003 '307.563

90.731 87.601

OTHER ASSETS, loan origination fee,
net of Amortization 2018 and 2017 627 754

TOTAL ASSETS S219 374 S22Q.315

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
-3-
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HEADREST. INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(continued)
JUNE 30. 2018 AND 2017

2018 2017

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABLITIES

Accounts Payable $ 3.074 $ 6.483
Notes payable and current portion of
Long-term debt 9,439 8,189

Line of Credit 60,000
Accrued payroll and related expenses 27.015 33.156

Total Current Liabilities 99,528 47,828

LONG-TERM DEBT, net of current portion 45.589 55.149

Total liabilities 145.117 102.977

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted net assets 74.257 117.338

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $219.374

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
-4-
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HEADREST, INC.

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

2018 2017

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

State contracts

Local government grants
Private foundations

United Way
Service fees

Contributions

Interest and dividend income

Total revenue and support

EXPENSES

Program Services:
Outpatient
CMRD

Total program services

Supporting Services:
General and administrative

Fundraising
Total supporting service

Total expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Unrestricted Net Assets

Unrestricted Net Assets, beginning of year
Unrestricted Net Assets, end of year

255,479
103,017

130,000
6,667

285,425

113,526
-  45

894.159

540,797
219.610

760.407

156,284
20.549

176.833

937.240

(43,081)

117.338

$ 283,344
100,684
35,000

10,602
191,395

126,707
M

747.816

468,991
192.731

661.722

138,586
16.939

155.525

817.247

(69,431)

186.769

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
-5-
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HEADREST, INC.

f

i

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

?018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase (Decrease) In Net Assets $(43,081) $(69,431)

Adjustments to reconcile excess of revenues
and support over expenses to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization

Changes in operating assets and iiabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in assets limited as to use
(Increase) Decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) Decrease in prepaid expenses
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (Decrease) in line of credit
Increase (Decrease) in accrued expenses

8,567

(9.276)
(30,934)

1,378
(3,409)
60,000
f6.141^

8,959

24,943
39,319

(  1.627)
3,869

10.702

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 122.896^ 16.734

—

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of capital assets (11.570) (1.651)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayments of long-term notes payable (8.310^ (Q.87^)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (42,776) " 6,212

Cash at Beginning of Year, unrestricted 54.696 48.484

Cash at End of Year, unrestricted $  11.920 S 54.696

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOW

INFORMATION

Cash paid during the years for:
Interest $  4.483 107

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
-6-
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HEADREST, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 AND 2017

!  NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ORGANIZATION

Headrest, Inc. ("Headrest") is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that
■  I provides information and referral, crisis intervention and other related services

through the use of a telephone hotline and office visitations. Headrest also
provides counseling and emergency shelter to transients, and information to the
community relating to drugs and alcohol.

__ NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The summary of significant accounting policies of Headrest is presented to assist
in understanding the Organization's financial statements. The financial

^  statements and notes are representations of Headrest's management who is
responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting policies conform
to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and have been consistently

—  applied in the preparation of the financial statements.

The financial statements of Headrest have been prepared on the accrual basis of
_  accounting. The significant accounting policies followed are described below.

Financial statement presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board in its Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 117, "Financial Statements of Not-for-profit Organizations". Under

~  SFAS No. 117. Headrest is required to report information regarding its financial
position and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net
assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets.

Unrestricted net assets are comprised of operating revenues and
expenses and contributions pledged which are not subject to any donor-
imposed restrictions. Headrest, Inc. currently has $74,257 and $117,338
unrestricted net assets as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Temporary restricted net assets are comprised of contributions and gifts
for which donor-imposed restrictions will be met either by the passage of
time or the actions of the Organization. Headrest, Inc. currently has no
temporarily restricted net assets as of June 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

-7-
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HEADREST, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Permanently restricted net assets Include those assets for which donor-imposed
restrictions stipulate that the asset be permanently maintained by the
Organization. Headrest, Inc. has no permanently restricted net assets as of
June 30, 2018 and 2017.

Use of estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting phncipies requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash equivalents - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, Headrest
considers all short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents. At June 30, 2018 and 2017 there were no cash
equivalents.

Assets limited as to use

Assets Limited as to Use represent board-designated assets for capital
expenditures and reserves amounting to $35,460 and $26,184 at June 30, 2018
and 2017. Assets limited to use consist of cash and cash .equivalents however
these amounts have not been included in cash and cash equivalents for cash
flow purposes.

Allowance for doubtful accounts - Headrest considers accounts receivable to be

fully collectible, accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts is required.

Depreciation and fixed assets - Property and equipment are stated at cost if
purchased and at fair market value on the date of the donations if donated.
Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of
cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as
restricted or temporarily restricted support. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets must be maintained, Headrest reports expirations
of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service
as instructed by the donor. Headrest reclassifies temporarily restricted net
assets to unrestricted net assets at that time. Depreciation is computed using
straight-line and accelerated methods based on the estimated useful life of each
asset. Estimated useful lives used for building and improvements are ten to
thirty- nine years and for furniture and fixtures three to seven years.

Public support and revenue - All contributions are considered to be available or

unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donor.

-8-
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HEADREST, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income taxes - The Organization is a not-for-profit organization that is exempt
from income taxes under Section 501 ®(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and
classified by the Internal Revenue Service as other than a private foundation.

The Organization adopted the recognition requirements for uncertain income tax
positions as required by generally accepted accounting principles, with no
cumulative effect adjustment required. Income tax benefits are recognized for
Income tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return, only when it is
detemnined that the income tax position will more -likely-than-not be sustained
upon examination by taxing authorities. The Organization has analyzed tax
positions taken for filing with the Internal Revenue Service arid the state
jurisdiction where It operates. The Organization believes that income tax filing
positions will be sustained upon examination and does not anticipate any
adjustments that would result in a material adverse affect on the Organization's
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. Accordingly, the
Organization has not recorded any reserves, or related accruals for interest and
penalties for uncertain income tax positions at June 30, 2018.

Donated services and materials - Donated supplies and equipment are reflected
as contributions in the accompanying financial statements at their estimated fair
market values.

Functional expenses - Functional and administrative expenses have been
allocated among program services based on an analysis of personnel time and
space utilized for the activities.

NOTE 3-LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $100,000 line of credit with a local bank through January
30, 2019, collateralized by all assets, with interest at Wall Street Joumal prime.
There were outstanding balance of $60,000 and $0 at June 30, 2018 or 2017.

NOTE 4 - NOTES PAYABLE AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Notes payable and long-term debt consisted of the June
following as of: 2018

Mortgage note payable with bank with interest
at 4.5% dated July 31, 2003 and due July 15, 2023 ,
with monthly installments of principal and interest
of $1,030, secured by all assets of the organization. S 55.028 S 63.338

Less current maturities • 9.439 8.189

Long-term debt, less current-maturity $ 45.589
-9-
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HEADREST, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 4 - NOTES PAYABLE AND LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Scheduled principal repayments on long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter follows:

Year Ending
June 30

2019 $ 9,439
2020 9,996
2021 10,586
2022 11,211
2023 11,873
Thereafter 1.923 ,

Total S 55 Q28

NOTE 5 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Employees of Headrest are entitled to paid personal days depending on length of
service and other factors. The accrued expense for compensated absences for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 were $13.077and $23,092 respectively. No
more than 240,180 and 120 hours for full time, % time and Yz time employees,
respectively, of personal leave may be carried over from the previous year's employment
calculated on a calendar year basis.

NOTE 6 - MAJOR GRANTORS

A Substantial portion of Headrest's revenue comes from the Department of Heath and
Human Services of the State of New Hampshire. For the years ended June 30, 2018
and 2017 revenue from the contract was approximately 23% and 30%, respectively of
total revenue.

NOTE 7 - EVALUATION OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through November 15, 2018, the
date which the financial statements were available to be issued.

-10-



Headrest -Board of Directors

Laurl Harding, President

Matt McKenney, Vice President

Andy Oaubenspeck, Secretary

Perry Eaton, Treasurer

John Creagh

John Ferney

Angle Leduc

David McGaw

Carol Olwert

John Vansant

Joan Vogal

Eileen Von Gal

Laura Cousineau



Cameron Ford

EDUCATION

B.S. degree. Organizational Management, Daniel Webster College, Nashua, NH
Certificate, Human Services, NH Technical College, Manchester, NH ^

PROFESSIONAJL EXPERIENCE

April 2017-Present
Executive Director, Headrest Inc.

Headrest is a non-profit community organization focusing on addiction and crisis »
assistance since 1971. Services include 24 hour Hotline, Outpatient Counseling, a
Transitional Living program, and Outreach and Community Education

I provide leadership and direction as the senior executive to the organization Responsible
for. monitoring the quality and effectiveness ofthe agency programs and services, and •
provide effective leadership in the operations ofthe organization. Serve as a liaison for the
agency within the community. Responsible for the overall financial health ofthe
organization Maintain oversight and compliance with state, federal and grantfunding.
Collaborate with other agencies to provide efficient services.
August 2015 to Present-
Founder, CEO Iron Heart Gateways to Success
Iron Heart is a non-profit dedicated to helping Veterans and peoplefacing barriers to
employmentfind and maintain living wage jobs with sustoinabilify opportunities. As co-
founder of this organization, I am committed to every individual that comes through the
door to help them make life changing choices regarding employment, financial literacy
and education.

February 2014 to June 2015-
Executive Director, Granite Pathways
Granite Pathujays is,o peer-support, self-help community that provides hope and dignity to adults
with mental illness. The mission of Granite Pathxoays is to empower and support adults with
mental illness to pursue their personal goals through education, employment, stable housing,
rewarding achievements, and meaning^l relationships. It does that by following the certification
standards of the International Center for Qubhouse Development (ICCD,), which define an
evidence-based model of rehabilitation that achieves superior employment and recovery outcomes.

•  Responsible for the overall management of the organization including staff development,
strategic planning, fiscal memagement, and growth.

• Maintain stakeholder relationships. Establish, developed, and maintained
collaborative relationships with foundations and funding sources



•  Increased membership at the clubhouse by 40%
•  Increased number ofemployed members by 60%
•  Completed training at an ICCD certified framing Center (Genesis, Worcester Mass.)

February 2004 to March 2013-
Executive Director, MY TURN Inc.
The MY TURN program provides services to approximately 800 students per year through
both in school and out ofschool programs. The programs provide educational
advancement opportunities, dropout prevention, and include services such as community
service learning, tutoring and study skills, employment skills training, mentoring college
preparation, leadership, and guidance and counseling. The majority of funding for the
organization is through WIA funds in partnership with local worlforce boards. My
position initially covered the NH region until I was promoted in 20J1 to manage the entire
organization.

•  Administered and oversaw the growth and fiscal management and operations ofthe
MYTVRN Organization in New Hampshire and Massachusetts. Responsibilities
included Board, Development, Strategic planning, fitndraising and program
development. Position reported to the CEO.
Established, developed, and maintained collaborative relationships with
foundations, workforce boards and funding sources, and high demaruJ labor market
industries.

Successfully expanded the marketing of the program to and created partnerships
with schools, community colleges. Chambers of Commerce, local civic
organizations, state vision teams and economic development groups.
Explored and developed sustainable avenues for funding, and for the growth and
continuous improvement of the MY TURN programs through financial
collaborations with schools and higher education entities, grant writing and
responding to RFP 's
Managed and motivated 18-20 staff throughout the region including all aspects of
human resources.

Responsible for Regional Board Development. Strategic planning, fundraising and
program development. Position reports to the CEO.

Oct J994-Apra 2004-
Work Opportunities Unlimited Inc., Director of Youth Development

• Oversaw the operation of the Youth Career Program for adjudicated youth that
included peer and family groups, career focusedjobs for youth, adventure-based
activities such as hikes, camping trips, deep-sea fishing, and experiential based
group activities. This program was. highly regarded in New England as an
alternative to placement for adjudicated youth. During my leadership, this program
averaged a 9% recidivism rate.

• Created and established new stale marketing to funding sources and industry,
development and implementation of the Youth Career Program that assisted



adjudicated and at risk youth in Worirforce Development arid youth development
activities. Trained new directors arid staff. Contributed to the strategic plan
process for growth ofthe youth programs within the organization and developed
strategiesfor expar\sion into new states. During my leadership, this program
received recognition as a Promising Effective Practices Program from the National
Youth Employment Coalition in fVashington DC

• Responsible for the management offive offices in N.H. and the supervision of as
many as J8 staff. Directly involved in hiring of staff, training and support, and
program growth. Developed and consistently exceeded yearly program recruiting,
operational and financial goals through a strategic planning process.

March 199J-OctJ994'

Work Opportunities Unlimited Inc. Concord N.H Employment Representative

• Responsible forjob development activitiesfor youth and adults with disabilities.
Worked with Counselors from Vocqiional Rehabilitation, Area Agencies and local
schools. Carried a caseload of 45 clients that included adults and youth from,
schools and the Youth Development Center. Maintained an 80% success rate for
placements.

yolunteer Associations-

• Co-Chdir, Manchester Continuum of Care
• Past Board Chair, Girls at Work, Non-Profit Organization that engages girls in

non-traditional work experiences, with emphasis on the construction field
• Queen City Rotary Club
• Board of Directors. Helping Hands, Manchester NH

Achievcments/Awards-

•  St. Anselm College Presidents'Community Partner Award
•  "EntrepreneurshipIOJAward" National Consortium for Entrepreneurship

Education

• National Youth Employment Coalition's New Leaders Academy Class of2000.
Certiflcations-
• National Foundation for Teaching Entrepreneurship
•  CESP, Nationally Certified Supported Employment Support Professional
•  Clubhouse Administrative Training Certification. 2015, Genesis, Worcester Mass.

References- Available upon request

^8
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M. KATHLEEN RUSSO BS, LADC, LCS

Substance Abuse Counseling

aintml Dlreetpr. Lebanon, NH; Supervision of Low-lnterxsfty R^entlal Treatment program,
Supervtston of Outpsbent services, Development of new licensed counselors, expanding Substance Abuse Services tn
tbe Upper Valley, August 2016 to present

Independent ContrBrtpf! September 2006 to present

•  Outpatient Therapist: RTT Associates, Concord, NH, Facilitating forendcs group, worldng wttb Federel
and State probation/parole dlents, case managem^ conducbrtg evaluations and outpatient substance
abuse counseling. Part-time. January 07 to February 2011.

•  New HampsWm Technical Institute! Adjunct Instructor, taught Group Counseling and
Psychophannscblogy,
Spring 2007

•  atnlcal Supenrtfior Keystone Hall Nashua, NH, 6-10 hours per week providing dinkal supervision to
counselors worldng toward Ucensure. Worldng In the crisis Intervention/ sobriety maintenance program.
Mentberoftreatmentteam and Daison with administration. Monitored for compliande wfth state ragulatfams.
June 2006 > Hard) 2007

•  Prtvate Practice! Natiiia location for five years, rart-time. WorklnQ with referrals from attomgy^ offices.

DWI counseling and aftercare. Department of Transportation, evaluations, consultation with femlDes to assist
with tnterventlons as well as group counseling. Tnton private pradice since July 2006, with similar clientele.
Managing business budget for five years. Closed Nashua ofTice In March 2008. Currently In nivats Practice
InTlton, NH.-

Director of ftehabtfitation Seivfces. Harmony Rrst, Bedforti, NH, October 2000 to September 2006
Developed and Implemented a successful Intensive Outpatient treatment program for Harmony Rrst. Bedford, NH.
Provided lOP serv^ group and Individual therapy. Assessed patients fbr placement In Outpatfent Detoodflatlon
services with medica) staff at this tocatton. Provid^ beabnent planning and case management to ad patfents.
F^ltated Family Education Groups to com^ment this progmm. Provided utinzatlon reviews with Insurance
companies, sharing' dlnlcal Information for reimbursement Responsible fbr fielding alsls Intervention calls fbr
placem^ Into detoodflcstion and treatment servloes. Provided ̂ mllles and loved ones with Intervention services and
referrals.

Qutoatient Tberaolst. 6lrchvvood Counseling; Nashua, NH October 1998 te O^ber 2001
Conducted group therapy, Individual therapy and evaluations. Wortod wQh Community Alcoht^ Information program
dlents and other referral agendes to as^ with DWI aftercare requirements, provided substance abuse servkxs for
referrals from Department of Child and Family Servloes.

aTnteal Suoctvteon Roode Avenue RehabdtBtlon Cerrter and Treatment Aflxmatives to Street Crimes, Cumberland
County Mental HeatthCenter;ar>dFayettev(Qe,NC-1996-1997 '
Provt^ dlnlcal supervision for In-pattent deUulflcdUui'i crtsb staUOzatlon center, provided citnlcal supervision to
Criminal Justice Intertsfve Out patient Treatment Program, Treatment Atternattves to Street Crimes, Cumberland
County Mental Hea(th,.FadtItated Clual Diagnosis outpatient treatment groups, provided consultation servloes to
Intensivie Probation and Parole, State of North Carolina. Provided Consultation services to Day Reporting Center,
Cumberland County, NC Lead Onlcal Substance Abuse Counselor fbr high- risk treatment cases, provided In-service
training and staff development training.

L



Qiemttal DeoendeniprOpungglttr. Lodced and Open Acute Psydilatrlc Units; Cape Fear Valley Medical Center,
Fayettevtlte,NCOctDber.l992-March (996.
Coordinated and prcMd^ Education and Consultation services for open and lodced inpattent psychiatric units. (
Provided ConsulMon services In a County Medical Center .to medical/surgical, ta.bor/deU^, orthopedics and 6YN -
patients for the hospital physidans. Provided Education end Consultation services to Adolescents In a Sexually
Troubled Youth Program, provided Substance abuse counsenng and case management services for a Residential
Treatment Program Inpaderrt psyddatil^acute care program. Responsible for management end discharge
planning of all patients In aS hosplbi pregrams.

Employee AsslstBhce Pronram.CouhffelQr Cape Fear Valley Medical Centv, Fayettevllle, NC
' Responsible for Identlflcatlon and asse^ent of performanoe based personnel, problems and chemical
dependency Issues as an Emptoyee As^noe Program Counselor.
ainlcalSuDefvfeor Cbpe Fear VaDey.Treatment Center, FayeOevUle, NC

' Developed and Implemented Quality tesurance Improvement program for an Intensive Outpatient
Treatment program. Supervised an outpatient treatment staff of providing direct patient care.
Coordlnatpr.' Pain Management, Inpatient Services, Cape Fear Valley Medial Center
Coordinator of services for an Inpati^ Pain Management Treatment Program
Facilitated multl^mlly, couples and women's groups, provided Individual therapy
Facilitated Altercara and Rdapse Prevention groups.

Chcmleal Dcpendencw Counsgrofr Tripter Army Medical Center, Department of Psychiatry, SchofteU Barracks, HI
(989-1992

Provided sodal work, psychologlcal treatmerrt and aortsultation services to Alcohol and Drug dependent; mlfitary,
cMIlan personnel and fomOy members (n rehabmtation. Cortducted ErrdMdual and group therapy.
Provided case management servloes for military personnel and ih^ ftmlly members while In beatmerit
Member of treatment planning team fbr inpatt^ end outpatient. U.S Army Drug and Alcohol program
Coordinated development and conduded psydio/sodal assessments In dlnlcal setting

ftgfiwpyfrer Supcnfbop An^on Red Ooss, sendee to Armed Forces and Veterans; Ft SOI, OK (986-1988 ^ /
Supervised and trained caseworteers for Servloes to the Armed Forces, American Red Cross. Provided rwdflatton v.
services to service members of family emergendcs and provided finandal assistance with Red Ooss guidelines.
Member of the Board of Directors for the Amerton Red Ooss. Recipient of the Qara Barton award for Votunteerlsm.

Program Pevetenment and ManaQemgnt

^ :DeveIc^ and Manag^, Intenslye Outpatient Treatment Program. Harmony Rrst, 2000 to 2006
« Developed Family Education Program to adjunct the Intensive Outpatient Pr^ram 2000 to 2006
♦ Developed group therapy program for DWI offenders In a prt^ practloe setting, 1998-2001
^ Developed, designed and Imptemented Intensive Outpatient Tieabnent Program, Treatment Alternatives to

areet Crtmes, Day Reporting Center, Cumbertand County Mental Health, Fayettevllle, NC 1996-1997
♦ Developed and Implemented Chemical Dependency Eduotion for irhpatlent Adolesoent Services, Cumberland

Hospital, Fayettevllle, NC-1994-1996
^ Developed and Impi^ented screening tools for acute In-patient psy^iiatrlc nursing fbr alcohol and drug

dependent patients
♦ * Designed and implemented Relapse Prevention Program fbr Inpatient Patn Management Mogram, cape Fear

Valley Medical Center, Fayettevllle, NC-1992-1996
<• Deigned and Implemented Alcohol and Drug Treatment Program fbr US. Army's Regional Confinement Fadfliy:

Ft SID, OK - February 1992- June 1992 '
♦ Designed and Implemented Intenave Outpatient Treatment Program fbr the US. Arm/s Alcohol and Drug Abuse

Prevention and Control Program, Stfiofleld Barradcs, HI 1989-1992
♦ Designed Alflohei and Drug Prevention Program fbr the American Red Cross; R sni, OK 1986-1988

Education

0' BS., Sodal Sdence Education: tnymouth State College, 1983
♦ 2-week VWtIng Professlo'nal Course; Trlpler Anny Medical Center, TKI-SARF; Honolulu, HI
♦ US. Army Alcohol and Drug Rehabilitation Training, R Sam Houston, IrxDvldua] course 14iiays; Group _

Course, M -days; Advance.CounseUng Course, 7 days i
«  1 year Internship program, US. Anny, Schofteld8arTacta^HII989



CcrtfReatloli

« New Hampshire, LADC 0445
^ New Hampshire LCS ^045
« Certlfled US. Departrnem of Transportation Substance Abuse Professional, Current
« US Anny, Health Services Command, 1989
« HawaB, Certified Substance Abuse Counselor; MSI -1990
^ North Carolina Cernned Substance Abuse Counselor P1096 • 1998

Prefesslonal AgsodaHons

NAADAC 1986-present
NHAOACA Secretary 2002-2004
NH Providers AssodaSon - Current

NHADACA- Current
Board member of the NH Board of Ucensirtg of Alcohol and other Drug Abuse Professional April 2016- Current
Co-ChaIr of Integrated SUD /lllS Wavter-current



Eric Harbeck

EXPERIENCE
He.drejt, Inc. Lebanon, NH
AulitoniDlriaof July J018-Present
Buslneu Monoger, HotUne/Resldenihl Counselor 2014-JuJy 2018
•  Connect, milntaln and supertflie relationships with inMrance agencies, claim submission and reimbursement and compliance.
•  Assist the Executive Director will any projects, grant funding requests and/or grant.
•  Manage applications, renewals or termination of bencHts for all employees.
•  Review and correct payroR for submission to payroll service, submit bills to payroll service.

Jakos Markot arsd Oell

Customer Service Assistant/Store Clerk ,

•  Assist csistomers with questions and concerns.

•  Maintain a dean and organlied wort environment.
•  Promptly distribute products upon delivery from vendors.
•  Work with store manager and vendors on how to Increase efficiency and productivity.

Webster House

Child Cere Worker

' • Write log reports at the end of every shift.
•  Meet one-on-one with selected residents discussing their progress.
•  Attend biweekly meetings with co-workers and adminlstritlon to discuss state of the house.
•  Supervise, orgardte and participate in activities with the residenu.

Warwick fMllts ^

Mix Technician

•  Check schedule for daily tasks.

.  • Check in with supervisor for various projects to complete outside of the department.
.  . • Troubteshooi Issues that would arise with equipment.

•  Record material usage into Inventory database.

Colby-Sawyer College Library Learning Center
In/ormothui Services Assfsfonr/Help Desk Assistant
2011

•  Check materials tn and Out, shelve materials and check sheMng accuracy.
•  Cover front desk and assist students and community members with library questions.
•  Interface with Archives and Inter-Llbrary loan system In addition to other offices on campus.
•  Professionally answer Help Desk support line and condu^ bask trouble-shooting.
•  Generate service requests and respond to voice mail In timely manner.

Andover/New Lorvdon/Lebanon, NH
September 2012 • Present

Manchester, NH
Feb. 2012-Aug. 2012

New Ipswich, NH
June 2011 - Jan. 2012

New London, NH

Sept. 2007-May

EDUCATION
Masters In Social Work

Unhrersity of New Harhpshlre-Maischester

Bachelor of A^ts in Psychology
Colby-Sawyer College

Certified Recovery Support Worker

Recovery Coach Academy-CCAR Mode

Manchester. NH

Aug 2017 - Present

New London, NH

Sept. 2007-May 2011

April, 2016-Present

June, 201S

Academic Highlights: Theories of Counseling. Child Psychotegy. Psychology of Personality, e'iologkal Ptycholo^. Cross-Cultural
PsyehologV. learning and Cognition. Directing and Stage Management, Jatz Dance



Lara Kristeo Quillia

Education

Hartford Hlgb School (HHS), Hartford, Vermont june 2007
Honore and Awards: The National Honor Society, (Secretary 2005-2007)
Service Above Self Award (for dedicatioo to the act of volunteering)
Outstanding Youth Award (for excellence in Scholarship, Sportsmanship, and Ciiirenship)
Univenity of Vermont (UVM), BurKngton. Vermont May 20ii
Bachelor of Science Degree in the College of Education and Social Services
Major: Social Work
Honore and Awards: University of Vermont Dean's List, The National Society,of CoDegiate Scholare and
Phi Alpha Honor Scxicty (for excellence in academic performance in social work)
Karl-Franzens Universltat Graz, Graz, Austria 2/2010 - 7/2010
Whilst attending UVM I spent a semester abroad focusing on cultural studies and leanung German at an
mlermediate level In addition to my studies 1 was able to fulfill an ambition of mine to expand my
hmwledge of the world and foreign cultures by extensively traveling throughout Europe and Northern
Afiica.

Social Work Eipcrience

State of Vermont Ecoooinlc Services (formerly PATH) 11/2003 -12/2006
For three years was the HHS chief coordinator and in-«rvice representative for the local community

=  Christmas Project, a program that connected over 50 children in need from the local community with boththe high school and middle school classrooms, sponsors, and donors. I was responsible for cost-effectively
handling the contributed fiinds/donaiions and providing the children with presents and/or winter cloihinfi
during the holiday season.
New Sudan Education Initiative (NESEI) 3/2009 - 4/2009
Created a new training manual for fiiture volunteers to help them leara about the NESEI organization; as
wcU as what their time in Africa would be like, how it mi^t feel to rctura to their home countries after their
expeneoce, and things they could do to prepare for their experience.
Career Connections 9/2010-5/2011
As part of my senior cumculum I worked as an employment counselor intern assisting adults with serious
and persistent mental illness in identifying and.accomplishing their education or employment goals.
Furdicnnore, I co-facilitated an eight-week group on stress management and ralming technique.

Work EipcHence

Headr^t - Lebanon, NH g/20l6 - Present
Residential Case Manager - In coUaboratton with other program staff and clients, ensure the safHy of
residents living at Headrest. Support residents in recovery from substance use disorder to complete their
treatment goals and achieve successful re-entry into the community.
Murphy's on the Green - Hanover, KH 5/2012-10/2016
Server/Banender — Implement efficient time management and organizational skills while engaging in inter
personal cosuDUtticatioo with diverse clientele. Assisting in the management of staff and coordination of
logistics during shift, monitoring of customers, and training and supervising new staff.
Market Table- Hanover, NH 9/2011 - 5/2012
ScrvCT - Anticipated and responded promptly to the desires of patrons, while contributing to the overall
efficiency and friendly atmosphere of the restaurant

Ref&csccs Avtilable Upoo Request



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary' % Paid from

this Contract
Amount Paid from

this Contract
Cameron Ford Executive Director $75,000 15% $11,250
Kathleen Russo Clinical Director $72,000 25% $18,000
Eric Harbeck Assistant Director $50,000 15% $7,500
Lara Ouillia Residential Coordinator $49,000 80% $39,200

$75,950
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Headrest Inc

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

, this Contract this Contract

Cameron Ford Executive Director $75,000 15% $11,250

Kathleen Russo Clinical Director $72,000 25% $18,000

Eric Harbeck Assistant Director $50,000 15% $7,500

Lara Quillia Residential Coordinator $49,000 80% $39,200

Chelsea Simpson Business Manager $45,000 15% $6,750

$82,700
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Jeffrey A. Meyers
ComroUsloDcr

Kalj* S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D/ViSfONFOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-27I-9S44 1-800-852-3345 ExL 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TOO Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

September 13, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing agreement with the vendor listed in bold below to provide substance use
disorder treatment and recovery support services, by increasing the price limitation by
$1,098,000 from $16,957,446 to $18,055,446 and extending the contract completion date from
October 31, 2019 to September 30. 2020. effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval. 72.44% Federal Funds, 9.86% General Funds and 17.70% Other Funds.

Vendor
Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Modified

Budget
G&C Approval

Oismas Home of New

Hampshire, Inc. $258,750 $0 ' $258,750

0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2: 12/05/18 Item #23

A3:6/19/19ltem #29E

A4: 8/14/19 Item #13

FIT/NHNH, Inc. $2,123,396 $0 $2,123,396

0: 07/27/18 Item #7

A1: 12/05/2018 Item #2

A2:6/19/19ltem #29E

A4: 8/14/19 Item #13
Grafton County New

Hampshire - Department
of Corrections and

Alternative Sentencing

$493,000 $0 $493,000
0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2:6/19/19ltem #29E

Greater Nashua Council

on Alcoholism $1,379,000 $1,098,000 $2,477,000

O: 07/27/18 Item #7

A1:12/05/18 Item #23

A2:6/19/19 Item #29E

Headrest $680,350 $0

t

$680,350

0:06/20/18 Late ItemG
A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2:'12/05/18ltem #23

A3:6/19/19 item #2gE

A4: 8/14/19 Item #13

Manchester Alcoholism

Rehabilitation Center $5,547,750 $0 $5,547,750

0:06/20/18 Late ItemG
A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2: 12/05/18 Item #2

A3:6/19/19ltem #29E 3

A4; 8/26/19 Item #11
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Hope on Haven Hill $775,500 $0 $775,500

O: 07/27/18 Item #7

A1: 12/05/18 Item #23

A2:6/19/19ltem #29E

A4: 8/14/19 Item #13

North Country Health
Consortium $1,506,000 $0 $1,506,000

0:06/20/18 Ute Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2: 12/05/18 Item #23

A3:6/19/19 Item #29E
A4: 8/14/19 Item #13

Phoenix Houses of New

England. Inc. $2,088,750 $0 $2,088,750

0:06/20/18 Late ItemG

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2:12/05/18 Item #23

A3;6/19/19ltem #29E

A4: 8/14/19 Item #13

Seacoast Youth Services $73,200 $0, $73,200
0:06/20/18 Late ItemG

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

Southeastem New

Hampshire Alcohol &
Drug Abuse Services

$1,992,250 $0 $1,992,250

0:06/20/18 Late ItemG

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2; 12/05/18 Item #23
A3:6/19/19ltem #29E

A4; 8/14/19 Item #13 •"

The Community Council
of Nashua. N.H. $23,000 $0 $23,000

0:06/20/18 Late Item G
A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2:6/19/19ltem#29E

West Central Services.
Inc. $16,500 $0 $16,500

0:06/20/18 Late item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2:6/19/19ltem #29E

Total $16,957,446 $1,096,000 $18,055,446

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for
State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 upon the availability and continued appropriation of fundsjn
the future operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

Please see attached financial details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is provide additional substance use disorder treatment and
recovery support services. These funds will be used to provide room and board payments in the
amount of $100 per day for Medicaid-covered individuals with Opioi'd Use Disorder (OUD) who
are in residential treatment. Approximately 75 individuals will receive residential substance use
disorder treatment services from October 2019 through September 2020. In addition,
approximately 660 days of room and board will be funded through this amendment. The
contractor will also continue to offer their existing array of treatment services, including individual
and group outpatient, intensive outpatient, partial hospitalization, transitional living, and high and
low intensity residential services.

This amendment is part of the State's recently approved plan under the State Opioid
Response (SOR) grant, which identified access to residential treatment as a funding priority. The
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Sen/ices Administration (SAMHSA) approved New
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Hampshire's proposal in September 2018. The Contractor will use these funds to ensure that
individuals with OUD receive the appropriate level of residential treatment and have continued
and/or expanded access to the necessary level of care, which increases their ability to achieve
and maintain recovery.

These services are part of the Department's overall strategy to respond to the opioid
epidemic, and other types of substance use disorders that continue to impact individuals,
families, and communities in New Hampshire. Currently there are twelve (12) contractors
delivering an array of treatment services, including individual and group outpatient, intensive
outpatient, partial hospitalization, transitional living, high and low intensity residential, and
ambulatory and residential withdrawal management services, as well as ancillary recovery
support services.

In 2018, there were 467 confirmed drug overdose deaths in NH with 6 cases still pending.
These contracts will support the State's efforts to continue to respond to the opioid epidemic and
substance misuse as a whole.

The Agreement includes requirements for the Contractor to submit ongoing financial
reports. Financial reports will include revenue and expense by cost and program category, a
Capital Expenditure Report, an Interim Balance Sheet, and a Profit and Loss statement. The
Department will continue to review these reports and discuss any concerns with the Contractor
on an ongoing basis, which is expected to lead to improved contract oversight and close
monitoring of fiscal integrity.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, residential
treatment programs may have to limit the availability of beds for individuals with OUD and who,
are on Medicaid, which would delay access to care for those individuals.

Area served: Greater Nashua Area

Source of Funds: 72.44% Federal Funds from the United States Department of Health
and Human Sen/ices, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, State
Opioid Response Grant, CFDA #93.788 and Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block
Grant, CFDA #93.959, 9.86% General Funds and 17.70% Other Funds from the Governor's
Commission on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Prevention, Intervention and Treatment.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

F^spectfully submitted.

Jerfrev A. ̂frey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Deporlmenl of Health and Human Seruices'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for cituens to ochieoe health and independence.
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AttKhmcnt A

FlnancUIOcuUs

Hw*w«.ine Vtnow CMr 17577MOOL

laMFlMMTMr Ck*afA*c*uM TWa BwPgat Aawunt Imraaaa/ (Dacreaaa) tavtaad MadOM Owdgai

20t« 103-100704
CoMnoa tar Preg

•vc
»44.«)9 944,0)9

1030 I03-S00704
C«ntraaa tar Preg

114.760 914,700

2001 IO^S007)4
Cwaracta tar Preg

••c
9).«30 93.090

tubiawi 90.349 90 16)349

Hop* «n Hairtn HI VanPor CeO*: 27511»«XI1 P0100)243

■ttt* n*««i tw OaaofAoaeynl TMa BuPgat AaiatBp Maraaaar (Otaraaaa) tai'itaad Matfnad Oudjiai

3C1« ^ lei-scoTw Camreoa tar Preg Ut.7g7 U0.717

3030 10Z-900704
CtfWpcn tar Preg

Sve
9)1,449 9)1.445

2031 ia3-M07» , Canncta tar Preg 90,023 90.022

■m6 WII 97g.2)4 90 tT».2)4

NarttC«Mry
HMPt C«nMr1k«T> VoiMtCeda: lS«M7-eOOl potooToeo

•uii n*«al Y«*r OoM/Aooeuni no* Duagai AmauM Inereaaar (Oaereaaa) ftrrtaad ModBlad Budgat

2011 102-900734 Coaaracu tar Preg
84«

w.e7« 960,070

3030 102400704
Camaa tar Preg

»re
9117.111 9117,116

2031 10240e704 Careraeu tar Preg
Ovc

Ot.lM 929,1M

OwMMil 92)2 OO) 90 9233.909

Pfmf* Hoiaaoaf
N*« Cndvid, Inc VtndvCedt: ins«0400l POie62«6)

•SMFlMairaor Claoa/AceowM TWa Bupgat Areaun) Incraaa*/ (Oaaraaaa) nudaad Madtftad Qudgw

2010 1Q3-S00704
Canmeu nr Preg 170.240 970.246

2030 103-9007)4
Cantrecu Mr Preg

•re
tiai.3H 9tOI.)69

2031 102-9007)4 CanaactataiPreg
•re

(29.)40 925.)40

tu04st*i 9100 060 90 9166.900

OaaoMd Youoi
■•rAo** Vondor C««*: 20)041 0001 PO1062964

OtMsPlKaiVn/ Oiaa/Aaoo*** TlOa Bxagai AawaM Inereaaai (Oacreaial Ita-rtaad MoBHad dpdt

201* 1024007)4 Canaacia tar Preg 923,070 922,076

2020 .1024007)4 Cootnos tof SO 90

2021 1034007)4
Careretia tar Preg

•re
90 90

•vMoM 923 070 90 923.076

B«Mr>**«t*m NH

AMeM and Drug
8*r<1c*t V*ntorC«(la 159203-0001 PO1062969

•MMFtMtlTMf C)*M/AMO«M no* BuPgM ArnaMrd Irwraaaar lOeereeeal . tarrlaad MatflWd Sydgal

2011 ia3-9oe7)4
Camraeu tar Preg

•re
9107.400 1167.400

2020 102-9007)4
CatMraet* Mr Preg

•re
9120,647 9130.647

2031 102-9007)4
Carwaet* tor Preg

•re
9)0.103 9)0.163

S«**atM U1A3I6 90 9)16216

WMC«mi
V*nMi C«d«: 177994-BOOI PO10B29e8

•MMFlM*iV**r CUaa/ApeouM no* . OuOgat Amaani InaraaaaJ (Dacraaiit Haalaid MatflHad Budgal

3010 102-9007)4
CanrectatarPreg

•re
U.OO) 93.069

3020 102-9007)4
Cararaet* Mr Preg

•re
UJOO U.209

2021 102-9007)4
Carareeti tar Preg

•re
9002 9003

■ubHotal 97.000 90 97 066

Total 0**. Cenm I10M.1M lin.792 UM1MT

fbMMdtitaul
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eMMa42M1841846606 H&ALTM AMD tOOAL KfMCU. >CALTM AND HUMAM tVCS OEFT OT. HH8: Onr FOfl BCHAVOfML lOALTK OUttAU

06 ORUO A ALCOHOL ■VC8.CUMCAAteAVlCa8|M«F*6Ml6un8*. 14% OwwH Fu*4a FAIN TKIOOWCFOA tl.N*)

Cerwee*)! Cewd
If fiMri« f)i
MMAuA Cemm
MinfHIIiHBi vinMfCaoi: t»4n}-eeei

tMnnMHVMr c%i»/<aif»»«t TAM ftjlgw Araaunt Maraaaaf <Oacraa8S| FMvtaaO McaeUa Oud^

mil m-Morx Cwweli Hf Anp
•»e

U7g U7«

sno lea-Morn
CennctI tor Pr«a

»•«
90.791 10.781

sat lai-aooTv
Cmtmu tar Pr«g

92.017 82.017

8we4ew 90 207 to 98 207

Otonwi Hmi flt
t*4 Mnder CMatoeei-aoot PO10B297t

•MinMalV«*r OMlfAlMwnl na MaraiiH (Oacnaaa)

1

1

2016 102-900714
ConMoa ar

Ooc
912.909 812.909

2020 102-900714 Canmcu tar
B*e

894410 894.110

20I 102-900714 , ConrM*arft«g
Iht

111.961 811401

tuMmi 1100 476 10 9100 470

EMw8aal*««NH
MmotuHf

AlMMwoAtfHb
C»tftm0n Vw«arC0«i: 177104-0009 P01062800

ttMi FHmi r«af 0«l«f>4«IW4l na* auOgat AnauM MaraaiarffiiiniiiH HawtaaO aa4Ba< OuOgat

2018 102-900714 Comet* ler Prog
8ve

91,178,712 81.178.712

2020 102-900714 CofWKU lor Pfog
Ow

t1.023.ni 81.022.771

2021 102-900714 CemcaarPieg
»>«

1290.012 1290.032

OwMeut 92.497.919 90 «.497,9t9

nrrNHNH VMorCoOi: 1977104001 P01061990

•MinMIITMf ca—fJWuMW Tiaa ftri|HAa»awa Mawiaar (Oitraaaal AavMa* HiHlaO {MOgai

Mtt 102-000714
Carwaca Mr Pi«g

Ok
8478,041 8471.841

2020 102-900714 Cemca Mr Prag 8912.798 8932.798

2021 102-900714 Corancu Mr Rag
Owe

IIU.110 9111.110

'  SuMMH 91 144 700 90 II 144.700

OnfWACouvr V«<«erC««i: 177167-0009 POIWTOn

•an fiMM YMf CtoM/AaMMM TOM Ow6gat AmaMW Mcraaaaf (DacraoM) AevMad Meomed eadg*

2016 102-900714 Cerwaeu Mr Piag 1128.900 9129.900

2020 102-900714 Ceraraot tar Prag
»««

1190.878 1190.078

2021 102-900714 Ceraram tar Prag
•>« 910480 830.180

hiMWil 1129 777 90 9129 777
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AtUtfiment A

HnanM MttUs

Sewewewm NH

AleCic' md Omg
V»ndcf Cod< IMJW-Beci

•SMFlMalYMr 0«»l»**WM TM* DirAf*4 AmauM Incroooof (Pterooii) N»«<oM MoAirtM BMgoi

201* 10340070*
Cmmcm M> Atm

1300^1 «300.aAI

2020 tos-iooro*
Cenmi Mr ̂ «g

S««
5Z5S.553 1359.253

2031 I02-S00734
CMMOCtl for Pi 01)

fr>e
IAI.BU *0>.A2A

»»37 702 $0 5527 TA2

•tM*no«*irMr CMstfAMOun no* Bm<0*1 MmuM *nr***>r (0*cr«M*) MrrMM M*AtfW< OmMqH

20lt ie3-9C07>*
CuiWU* Mr Pi«g

5*19 rais

2030 103400724
Cw>M Mr

Ove
tA.7A1 50.701

2031 10240072*
CoiMncn Mr Pi«g

II4AA 51.500

•mO-MUI ' n.404 M 50*0*

' ToM OMaal »«>• assajoi I2A0.23A IA.t20.M5

M-AMl-AtMlft-TMOeeee HCALm and •eCUL tenviccs, »«AITH and human tVCS OCPT Cf. HHS: {W FOR BCHAVQRUL HEALTH OUREALI

OA OAUO A ALCOHOL AVCt, ATATE OAK» RStAONSC OAAKT <100H FedwH FwM», AAM HnTWAIIAA CAOA W.m>

Cemrwrity COWCA

HMAuaCenon

VMM CM*: 154112-0001

itM* PtMH Y«Ar Ct*M/AMMMi no* BuOgM Amotira iB«r»***4<D»ot*>*«) l»>iM«a MlAHMa aMQW

3010 102-900724
Ctrtncn Mr Preg

5m
10 to

3030 103-900724
Connea Mr

5«C
50 to

3031 103-90072*
CaimeaMrPi«o

5v«
55 to

•mIMMI 50 to to

DiWIIMHeflWH

Ml VwMvC««»;TBO

5M«*n*«*IT*v CMaafAccatM IB* OuAgM Mkmm
lnir««**r (DacfMM) %iM*4 MtNTMA PMQM

2010 103-90072*
C«narKU Mr Prtg

5ve
519,000 519.000

2030 102-900724
CeiWMtiMrPreg

Ovc
595.790 990.790

3031 102-90072*
Caarao* Mr Prog

5m
57.000 97.000

5uO leMI 575 790 579.790

EMtW SMM of NH

AManoAwfi R*AM

CviAemufi V«M*tCM*: 17720*4005

iM*nM*)VMr 0*A*/A*M««l no* aetgil Araoiiira btcreaM* (Otcree**)

1

1

3015 103-90072*
Cararaai Mr ftog

Ore
t7»*.oeo 9754.CC0

3030 103-900724
C«rMr*eu Mr Pt«g

5m
11.239.790 11.925.790

3031 IB240072*
Cawacu Mr Preg

Sm
939.000 932.000

iMt IH«I 53.1*9.790 50 U. 145 790

V*n«erCM*; ISTTJOOOOl

OMFMsNYMr Cli«*»A**eyr«1 no* OuAgel AmeMra a*ree*e7(0e<»eee*) RaAeeA MeAWed OuAgW

3015 10340072*
Cerareca Mr Preg

5m
5305.295 1305.295

2030 103-90072*
Cer«ea* Mr Preg

8ve
9351.070 9351.070

2021 10340072*
Caareca Mr Preg

5M
90 90

tut HMI 9*50.235 90 •  9450.230

nawdMOaUi

7a*tM*
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AtlKhmenlA

nrundAl Octalh

AleeMia>MQM9
V^rArCod* ISam-WOI

•HMnMAirMr 0*M/AM«wfll Tut* IKdB«l Amount Moroooof OoorooM IWv»0< M>«n*3 OudQW

201* 182-3007)4
ConHMH lor Ai«g

' u«).oeo 3363.000

2<QQ 182-900D4
Corw> lor ̂ >00

ft>e
3730^ 3736.330

3C3t 103-3007)4
Con^oss for ̂ ^lOQ

333.000 333.000

»M» <B<»I 31 146 330 10 31 146.330

VtnderCMK ITTOMWOt

•tMO fbMl Y004 Oaaa/AcootM TlOa OuObi Amount Inoroaaor Oacroaao IWrlatattodOWDrapil

2013 102-0007)4
Conmcu lor IVog

6»c
-  30 30

3030 103-3007)4
Comcu Im Prog

•«*
30 30

3031 182-3007)4
Corwoea wr Png

•k
to 30

OuMoni 30 30 30

Total 60R OroM i7J2t.i7e 1340.600 33.eT2.t73

Omn« Total Ai uusim iioMoee iuesaitt.



Anxhmem A

FlnaoeUlOcitib

OnM Tent»»Vwtder 7»ia me mi BTirio •

AO VOTdan CMTara Maa LMrtan Curratd Artaa UmBadan Curranl Moa LMMdan

laUl

tmaaaaAaaraaaa laee Mae UmBadan

POIOUW

Cermnlf CewMd ef NMfiu*-
Ot NMfu* Com Mmhm HmWi

VandarCada:

taattJ-BOOi HOMO 110 000 uooo •0 173 000

AOlO«»n ChmMHamaMMH 7B00BI-MX11 mMO tlM7» •77 000 M •7M790

poicBJwe

Cmmt ftMb of NH MwdiMHr VandarCada:

177»»«0a 17 300 000 t3*aS7S0 •402 000 to •9Sd7 7»

poioMwe rrr/HHNH

VandarCada:

UTWO-BMl tBBl.UB I104JJ40 • IMOOO •0 U123 3BB

PO10««77 rvonmrou^

VandarCada:

imtr-Boos IJWMO mi 000 •MOOO (0 »4«C00

POIOU742

OrwMr Notfui CowMl en

wnftm

VandarCada;

ieesT4j»oi IBTfieDO 1401000 to • lOMOOO •7 477 000

POlO#W7»

VandarCada;

ITiJJB^COl uae aoo •414 >M •17 40O to teao3»

PO10MJ4) Hoea on lie wan MB

VandarCada:

arsiiwwoi tsTseoo •4WS00 »»000 to t77»M0

POia»MB

Nenh Ceuwy HaaOh VandarCada:

iSBSsr-eoQi IMS MO •074 000 ••7 000 •0 11 MA 000

Hauoat of Naa VandarCada:

inSBMMOl t7UM0 • l77e7SO 1104 000 •0 C70m790

PO10KM4 Baaeeatt Vauffi Banrfeat

VandarCada:

»»*44I00I tn.»o so •0 •0 •73 200

POlCe2M«

BowBiaesiim W AWwl md

Dnn BarAeai

VandarCada

l5S7#2-e001 JTai.OOO •1 1W.7S0 »11»000 •0 ii«n2$o

poiooon

VandarCada:

imsMiMi M.MO •10.000 •7 500 to • tOJOO

Total »7 1M.6M •8 7J0BM •107S00O •lOMOOO

MUdMM *
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Jeffrey A. Meyers
CommissioBer

Kj(JtS.Foi
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHLRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH. 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-652-3345 Ext 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

July 30. 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
ancJ the Honorable Council

State House

Coniord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health, to
amend existing agreements with the vendors listed in bold iDelow to provide substance use disorder
treatment and recovery support services, statewide, by increasing the total combined price limitation by
$55^.814 from $16,150,682 to $16,709,496 with no change to the contract completion date of September
30, 2020, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor
Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Budget
G&C Approval

Dismas Home of

New Hampshire,
Inc.

$253,000 $5,750 $258,750

0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2: 12/05/18 Item #23

A3:6/19/19ltem #29E

FIT/NHNH, Inc. $2,071,182 $52,214 $2,123,396

O: 07/27/18 Item #7

A1:12/05/2018 Item #2

A2:6/19/19 Item #29E

Grafton County
New Hampshire -
Department of
Corrections and

Alternative

Sentencing

$493,000 $0 $493,000
0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 ltem.#7

A2:6/19/19ltem #29E

Greater Nashua

Council on

•Alcoholism
$1,379,000 $0 $1,379,000

O: 07/27/18 Item #7

A1: 12/05/18 Item #23

A2:6/19/19ltemif29E-



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundl

Page,2of4

Headrest $611,000 . $69,350 $680,350

0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2:12/05/18 Item #23

A3:6/19/19ltem#29E

Manchester

Alcoholism

Rehabilitation

Center

$5,299,800 .$0 $5,299,800

0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2: 12/05/18 Item #2

A3:6/19/19ltem #29E 3

Hope on Haven
Hill $725,000 $50,500 $775,500

O: 07/27/18 Item #7

A1: 12/05/18 Item #23

A2:6/19/19ltem #29E

North Country
Health

Consortium
$1,419,000 $87,000 $1,506,000

0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2: 12/05/18 Item #23

A3;6/19/19 Item #29E

Phoenix Houses

of New England,
Inc.

$1,926,000 $162,750 $2,088,750

0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2:12/05/18 Item #23

A3:6/19/19 Item #29E

Seacoast Youth

Services $73,200 ■  $0.00 $73,200
0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

Southeastern

New Hampshire
Alcohol & Drug
Abuse Services

$1,861,000 $131,250 $1,992,250

0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2:12/05/18 Item #23

A3:6/19/19ltem#29E

The Community
Council of Nashua,

N.H.
$23,000 $0 $23,000

0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Iterfi #7

A2:6/19/19 Item #29E

West Central

Services, Inc. $16,500 '  $0 $16,500

0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

A2:6/19/19 Item #29E

Total $16,150,682 $558,814 $16,709,496

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State
Fiscal Year 2020 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds In the future operating budget,
with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal
Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.
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05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: BEHAVORIAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG &
ALCOHOL SVCS. STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% Federal Funds, FAIN
H79TI081685 CFDA 93.788)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

(Modified)
Budget

increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2020
102-

500731

Contracts for

Prog Svc
92057040 $16,150,682 $558,814 $16,709,496

Total $16,150,682 $558,814 $16,709,496

EXPLANATION

This purpose of this request is to increase the price limitation of the seven (7) agreements with
the Contractors listed in bold above to provide additional substance use disorder treatment and recovery
support services, statewide. These funds will be used to provide room and board payments in the amount
of $100 per day for Medlcaid-covered individuals with Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) who are in residential
treatment. Approximately 6,000 individuals viifiil receive residential substance use disorder treatment
services from July 2019 through September 2020. In addition, approximately 42,191 days of room and
board will be funded through this amendment. The vendors above will also continue to offer their existing
array of treatment services, including individual and group outpatient, intensive outpatient, partial
hospitalization, transitional living, high and low intensity residential services.

This amendment is part of the State's recently approved plan under the State Opioid Response
(SCR) grant, which identified access to residential treatment as a funding priority. The Substance Abuse
and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) approved New Hampshire's proposal In
September 2018. The contractors above will use these funds to ensure that individuals with OUD receive
the appropriate level of residential treatment and have continued and/or expanded access to the
necessary level of care, which Increases their ability to achieve and maintain recovery.

These agreements are part of the Department's overall strategy to respond to the opioid epidemic,
and other types of substance use disorders that continue to impact individuals, families, and communities
in New Hampshire. Under the current contracts, there are thirteen (13) vendors delivering an array of
treatment service.s, including individual and-group outpatient, intensive outpatient,-partial hospitalization,
transitional living, high and low intensity residential, and ambulatory and residential withdrawal
management services, as well as ancillary recovery support services. In 2018, there were 467 confirmed
drug overdose deaths in NH with six (6) cases still pending. This request, if approved, will provide
additional support for the Department's effort to continue to respond to the opioid epidemic and substance
misuse as a whole.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, residential treatment
programs may have to limit the availability of beds for individuals with OUD on Medicaid, which would
delay access to care for those individuals.

Area served: Statewide.
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Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the United States Department of Health and Human
Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration State Opioid Response Grant,
CFDA #93.788.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

R^pectfully submitted,

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services-

Amendment #4 to the Substance Use Disorder

Treatment and Recovery Support Services

This 4'*' Amendment to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #4") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department
of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Headrest
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 14 Church
Street, Lebanon, NH 03766. .

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 20, 2018 (Late Item G), as amended on July 27, 2018 (Item ̂ 7). as amended on December 5.

2018 (Item #23), as amended on June 19, 2019 (Item #29E). the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and In consideration
of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation to support continued delivery of these
services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #4 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follovirs;

1. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$680,350.

2. Exhibit 8. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 6. Subsection 6.2, to read:

6.2 With the exceptidh of room and board payments for transitional living, the Contractor shall
not bill the Department for Room and Board payments in excess of $524,350.

Headrest Amendment #4 Contractor Initials

RFA-2019-BDAS-01-SUBST-05-A04 PageloO Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive Council a[3proval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Name: Katja S. Fox
Title: Director

7/"^/
Date

Headrest

Name: -7.

Title: Ot^CcmCl

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of //v . County of (•rnaffdr\
:eT. p

on before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the^erson Identified directly abbv^, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

ignature of Notary Public or Skjsftce of the Peace

yC/fl ^Athet.lc^ Xj
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: ERIC 0. HARBECK JR.. Notary PubOc
Ctuli ijl Now I tampohlia

My Commistion Expim February 1,2022

•'."luJ

Headrest

RFA-2019-BOAS.01 -SUBST-OS-ACM

Amendment U4

Page 2 of 3

Contractor Initials



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date

Title; QjtforrxUi
I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title;

Headrest

RFA.2019.BDAS^1 -SUBST-05-A04

Amendment #4

Page 3 or3

Contractor Initials, CJF"

Dale 7/iU(T



JefTrrjr A. Mfyen
■ Cemnluloncr

K*tJi S. Foi
bircclor

K:-

i

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHLRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEAL TH

J29 PLEASANT STREET, concord! NH 03301
603-271^344 1-800-852-3345 ElL 9544

Fix: 603-27I-4332 TODAcceu; 1-800-735-2964 wYvw.dhhi.nh.gov

SCjs/

June 6, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House V .

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACnoi^

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to
exercise a renewal option and amend an existing contract to the twelve (12) vendors listed below in bold,
to provide substance use disorder treatment and recovery support services, statewide, by increasing the
total combined price limitation by $7,fl7i2,584 from. $8,278,098 to an amount not to exceed $16,150,682
and extend the completion date from June 30, 2019 to September 30. 2020 effective upon the date of
Govemor and Executive Council approval. 70.76% Federal. 10.56% Genera), and 18.69% Other Funds'.

Cohtrary to ail other vendors listed below in bold. Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism will
expire on October 31. 2019.

Funds are anticipated to be available in SFY 2020 and SPY 2021, upon the ayaiiablllty and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, vfllh authority to adjust amounts within
the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office.
Summary of contracted amounts by Vendor:

Vendor Current

Amount
Increase/

Decrease
Revised

Budget
G&C Approval

DIsmas Home of New

Hampshire, inc. -
$243,400 $9,600 $253,000

0:08/20/18 Late Item G
A1: 07/27/18 Item IfT
A2:12/05/16 item 023

FIT/NHNH, Inc.,

$854,031 $1,217,161
$2,071,182

0:07/27/18 ttem 07,

A:12/OS/201Stt6m 023

Grafton County New Hampshire
- Department of Corrections and
Alternative Sentencing $247,000 $246,000 $493,000

0:06/20/18 Late Item G
A1: 07/27/18 Item 07

Greater Nashua Council on

Alcoholism.
$1,514,899 ($135,899)

$1,379,000

0; 07/27/18 Item 07

A1:12/0^18 Item 023

Headrest

• s $228,599 $382,401 $611,000

0:06/20/18 LiBte Item G
Ai: 07/27/18 ttem 07
A2:12/05/18 (tern 023

Manchester Alcoholism

Rehabilitation Center •

j

$2,210,171 $3,089,629
$^299,800

0:06/20/18 Late ltemG\

AI: 07/27/18 Item 07

A2:12/05/16 Item 023

Z

/N
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Hope on Haven Hill

$497,041 $227,959
$725,000

0: 07/27/18 Item «7

A1:12/05/18 Item 023

North Country Health
Consortium

$401,606 $1,017,394
$1,419,000

0:06/20/18 Late Item G
A1:.O7/27/18ltem07

A2:12/05/18 Item 023
Phoenix Houses of New
England, Inc.

$817,521 $1,108,479
$1,926,000

0:06/20/18 Late Item G
A1: 07/27/18 Item 07
A2: 12/05/16 Item 023

Seacoast Youth.Services
$73,200 $0.00

$73,200
0:06/20/18 Late Item G
A1: 07/27/18 Item #7

Southeastern New Hampshire
Alcohol & Drug Abuse Services

$969,140 $891,860
$1,861,000

0:06/20/18 Late ttemG
A.1: 07/27/18 Item 07

A2:12/05/16 item 023
The Community Council of
Nashua, N.H. $162,000 ($139,000) $23,000

0:06/20/18 Late Item G

A1: 07/27/18 Item 07

West Central Services, Inc.
$59,490 ($42,990)

$16,500
0:06/20/18 Late Item G
A1: 07/27/18 Item 07

Total
$8,278,098 $7.872;584 $16,150,682

05-95-92-920S10-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVORIAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS GOVERNOR
COMMISSION FUNDS (109% Other Funds)

05-95-92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVORIAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, CLINICAL
SERVICES (66% Federal Funds, 34% General Funds FAIN TI010035 CFDA 93.959)

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVORIAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS STATE'
OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% Federal Funds, FAIN H79TI081685 CFDA 93.788)

Please see attached financial details.

EXPLANATION

This purpose of this request is. to extend the agreements with the Contractors listed above to
provide substance use disorder treatment and recovery support services, statewide.
These funds will be used to provide $100 room and board payments for Medicaid-covered Individuals
with -oploid use disorder in residential treatment. Funds in this amendment will assist with serving the
Medicaid population challenge of different reimbursement rates between Medicaid and Commercial
payers. The vendors above will also continue to offer their existing array of treatment services, including
individual and group outpatient, intensive outpatient, partial hospitallzation. transitional living" high and
low intensity residential services. ♦ .

This amendment is part of the "State's recently approved plan under the State Opioid Response
(SOR) grant, which identified access to residential treatment'as a funding priority, the Substance Abuse
and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) approved NH's proposal In September 2018. The
veridors above will use these funds to ensure that individuals with OUD receiving the appropriate level of
residential treatment have continued and/or expanded access to the necessary level of care, which
inaeases their ability to achieve arid maintain recovery.
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'"dividuals will receive substance use disorder treatment services from July
2019 through September 2020. In addition, approximately 40.184 days of room and board will be funded.

The onginal agreement. included language in Exhibit C-1, that allows the Department to renew
the contract for up to two (2) years, subject to the continued availability of funding, satisfactory
^rformanw of service, parties' written authorization and approval from the Governor and Executive
council. The Department is in agreement with renewing services for one (1) and three (3) months of the
two (2) years at this time.

,  Substance use disorders develop when the use of alcohol and/or drugs causes clinically andfunctionally significant impairment, such as health problems.- disability, and failure to meet major
responsibilities at work, school, or home. The existence of a substance use disorder is determined usino
a clinical evaluation based on Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders. Fifth Edition criteria

iL . Agreements are part of the Department's overall strategy to respond to the opioid epidemichat continues to negatively impact New Hampshire's individuals, families, and communities as well as
to respond to other types of substance use disorders. Under the current iteration of these contracts 13
vendors are delivenng an array of treatment services. Including individual and group outpatient, intensive
outpatient, partial hospitalization. transitional jiving, high and low intensity residential and ambulatory
and residential withdrawal management service's as well as ancillary recovery support services In 2018
there were 467 confirmed drug overdose deaths in NH with 6 cases still pending. These contracts will
support the State's efforts to continue to respond to the opioid epidemic and-substance misuse as a
whole.

_ Should the Governor and Executive Council determine to not authorize this Request the vendors
would not have sufficient resources to promote and provide the array of services necessary to orovide
individuals with substance use disorders the necessary tools to achieve, enhance and sustain recovery.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 70.76% Federal Funds from the United States Department of.Health and
Human Servi^s. Substance Abuse/and Mental Health Services Administration. Substance Abuse
Prewntion and Treatment Block Grant. CFDA #93.959. Federal Award Identification Number TI010035-

Services Administration State Opioid Response Grant, CFDA
General Funds and 18.69% Other Funds from the Governor's Commission on

Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Prevention, intervention and"Treatment.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner

Tf»09p»rtm«n{otHainfi and Human S^fvins'MitsJonlttojoin communRios and fomSiu In ptwiding opportwAha lOfaViens to hoaiih and Indapandanea
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New Hampshire pepartmenl of Health and Human Services
SubtUnce Um Ditordar Trtat/nont and Aocovery Suppon Sarvlcea d

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

-Amendment <^3 to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and
Recovery Support Services Contract

This 3"" AfT*endment to the Substance Use Disorder Treatmenl and Recovery Suppo.n Services contract
(hereinafter referred to as *Amendmem #3) is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department
of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Headrest,,
(hereinafter referred to as "Ihe Contractor), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 14,Church
Street. Lebanon, NH 03766.

WHEREAS.-pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 20. 2018 (Late Mem G) and amended on July 27, 2018 (Item 7) and December 5. 2018 (Item
#23). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in
the Contract as amended and In consideration of cehaln sums specified: and

WHER^S, the Stale and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to Ihe'scope of work, completion
date, price limitation and payment schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 3 the Slate may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of the
coritract upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council-
and

WHEREAS. Ihe parties agree to modify the contract completion date and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #3 remain In full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and cor>ditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:-

Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Dale, to read:

September 30. 2020.

Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.6. Price Limitation, to read:

$611,000.

Delete Exhibit A. Amendment #2. Scope of Service In Its entirety and replace with Exhibit A.
Amendment #3. Scope of Services.

t,

Delete Exhibit 8, Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment in its entirety
and replace with Exhibit B. Amendment #3 Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

Headrest A/nendmen #3
RPA.2019-80AS-01-SU8ST.05-A03 ' P«ge 10< 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Subitanc* Ut« Oltertf«r Trtatmtnt •nd'Rtcevary Support Sarvlcat

This amenCmeni shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands'as of the date written below.

Slate of New-Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Katja S. Fox
Director

mt
Date

Headrest

Name:

Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

Slate of ■ County of/zWfcz on (j;>IS// ? before the
undersigned orficer, personally appeareifthei^erson identified diredtly ̂ bove, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is^lgned above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capaci^ Indicated above.

U

ignature of Notary ubiic Jus

vurt

of the Peace

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: m^BECK jr., Notary PuMc
SUiUr ui n«w hampantre

My Cooimbalon Explrw Fotwuary 1,2022

Headrest
RP A201 »-e0AS41 .SU8ST-0S-A03

Amoflamont S3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Dttordsr Trtaimeni and Recovery Support ServicM

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved, as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

C/5lze\^
Date Name: /•x

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title; ' " • ' ""

Headrest AmendmenidS
RFA-201»4DAS-01-SUSST^A03 Page 3 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment 03

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
«

1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire
General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, .the State Agency has the right to modify..Service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.2. For the purposes of this Contract, the Department has identified the Contractor as a
Subreciplent in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200 et seq.

■1.3. The Contractor, shall provide Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support
Services to any eligible client, regardless of where the client lives or'works in New
Hampshire.

1.4. Standard Compliance

1.4.1. The Contractor shall meet all information security and privacy r^uirements as set
by the Department.

1.4.2. State Opiold Response (SOR) Grant Standards

1.4.2.1. The Contractor shall establish formal Informallon sharing and referral
agreements with the. Regional Hubs for Substance Use Services,
compliant with all applicable confidentiality lav/s, including 4'2 CFR Part
2 In order to receive payments for services funded with SOR resources.

1.4.2.2. The Department shall be able to verify that client referrals to the
Regional Hub for Substance Use Services have been completed by
Contractor prior to accepting invoices for services provided through
SOR funded initiatives.

1.4.2.3. The Contractor shall only provide Medication Assisted Treatment
(MAT) with FDA-approved MAT for Opioid Use Disorder (OUD). FDA-
approved MAT for OUD includes;

1.4.2.3.1. Methadone.

1.4.2.3.2. Buprenorphine products, Including:
1.4.2.3.2.1. Single-entity buprenorphine products.
1.4.2.3.2.2. Guprenorphine/naloxone tablets,

1.4.2.3.2.3. Buprenorphine/naloxone films.

1.4.2.3.2.4. Buprenorphine/naloxone buccal

ExNblt A. Amcfidmeftl M Conirwiof InlMi >-
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit A, Afhendment 03

preparations.

1.4.2.3.3. Long-acting injectable buprenorphine products.

1.4.2.3.4. Buprenorphine implants.

1.4.2.3.5. Injectable extended-release naltrexone.

1.4.2.4. The Contractor shall not provide medical withdrawal management
services to any individual supported by SOR Funds, unless the
withdrawal management service Is accompanied by the use of
injectable extended-release naltrexone. as clinically appropriate.

1.4.2.5. The Contractor shall ensure that clients receiving financial aid for
recovery housing utilizirtg SOR funds shall only be in a recovery
housing facility that is aligned with the National Alliance for Recovery
Residences standards and registered with the State of New Hampshire,
Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services in accordance with current NH
Administrative Rules.

1.4.2.6. The Contractor shall assist clients with enrolling in public or private
' health insurance, if the client is determined eligible for such coverage.

1.4.2.7. The Contractor shall accept clients on MAT and facilitate access to
MAT on-site or through referral for all clients supported with SOR Grant
funds, as clinically appropriate.

1.4.2.8. The Contractor shall coordinate with the NH Ryan White HIV/AIDs
program, for clients identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS.

1.4.2.9. The Contractor shall ensure that all clients are regularly screened for
tobacco use. treatment needs arxf referral lo the OuitLirie as part of
treatment planning.

1.4.3. The Contractor shall submit a plan for Department approval no later than 30 days
from the date of Governor & Executive Council approval that specifies actions to
be taken in the event that the Contractor ceases to provide services. The
Contractor shall ensure the plan includes, but is not limited to:

1.4.3.1. A transition action plan thai ensures clients seamlessly transition to
alternative providers with no gap in services.

1.4.3.2. Where and how client records will be transferred to ensure no gaps and
services, ensuring the Department is not Identified as the entity
reisponsible for client records; and

1.4.3.3. Client notification processes and procedures for 1.5.3.1 and 1.5.3.2.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. Covered Populations

2.1.1. The Contractor shall provide services to eligible individuals vrho:

Heidiwi ExWbOA,AnwndmemW ComractorinlUal*
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #3
s

2.1.1.1. Are age 12 or older or under age 12. with required consent from a
parent or legal guardian to receive treatment, and.

2.1.1.2. Have income below 400% Federal Poverty Level, and

2.1.1.3. Are residents of New Hampshire or homeless in New Hampshire, and

2.1.1.4. Are determined positive for substance use disorder.

2.2. Resiliency and Recovery Oriented Systems of Care -

*2.2.1. The Contractor shall provide substance use disorder treatment services that
support the Resiliency and Recovery Oriented Systems of Care (RROSC)
by operationalizing the Continuum of Care Model
(http://www.dhhs.nh.90v/dcbcs/bdas/continuum-of-care.htm).

2.2.2. RROSC supports person-centered and self-directed approaches to care
that build on the strengths and resilience of individuals, families and
communities to take responsibility for their sustained health, wellness and
recovery from alcohol and drug problems. At a minimum, the Contractor
shall:

2.2.2.1. Inform the Integrated Delivery Network(s) (IDNs) of services available
in order to align'this work with ION projects that may be similar-or impact
the same populations.

2.2.2.2. Inform the Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN) of services
available in order to align this work with other RPHN projects that may
be similar or impact the same populations.

2.2.2.3. Coordinate client services with other comniunity service providers
involved in the client's care and the client's support network

2.2.2.4. Coordinate client services with the Department's Doorway contractors
including, but not limited to:

2.2.2.4.T. Ensuring timely admission of clients to services

2.2.2.4.2. Referring any client receiving room and.board payment to
the Doorway;

2.2.2.4.3. Coordinating all room and board client data and services
with the clients' preferred Doorway to ensure that each
room and board client served has a GPRA intenriew

completed at intake, three (3) months, six (6) months, and
discharge.

2.2.2.4.4. Referring clients to Doorway services wher) the Contractor
cannot admit a client for services within forty-eight (46)
hours; and

2.2.2.4.5. Referring clients to Doorway services at the time of
discharge when a client is in need of Hub services

2.2.2.5. Be sensitive and relevant to the diversity of the clients being served.
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2.2.2.6. 8e trauma informed; i.e. designed to acknowtedge the impact of
violence and trauma on people's lives and the importance of
addressing trauma in treatment.

2.3. Substance tJse Disorder Treatment Sen/ices

2.3.1. The Contractor shall provide one or more of the follovwng substance use disorder
treatment services;

2.3.1.1. Individual Outpatient Treatment as defined as American
Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) Criteria. Level 1.
Outpatient Treatment services assist an individual to achieve
treatment objectives through the exploration of substance use
disorders and their ramifications, including an examination of
altitudes and feelings, and consideration of alternative

solutions and decision making with regard to alcohol and other
. dnjg related problems;

2.3.1.2. Group Outpatient Treatment as defined as ASAM Criteria,
Level 1. Outpatient Treatment services assist a group of
individuals to achieve treatment objectives through the
exploration of substance use disorders and their ramiftcalions.
including an examination of attitudes and feelings, and
consideration of alternative solutions and decision making with
regard to alcohol and other drug related .problems.

2.3.1.3. Intensive Outpatient Treatment as defined as ASAM Criteria,
Level 2.1. Intensive Outpatient Treatment services provide

.  ( intensive and structured individual and group alcohol and/or
other drug treatment senrlces and activities that are provided
according to an individualized treatment plan that includes a
range of outpatient treatment services and other ancillary
alcohol and/or other drug services. Services for adults are
provided at least 9 hours a week. Services for adolescents are
provided at least 6 hours a week. .

2.3.1.4. Low-intensity Residential Treatment as defined as ASAM Criteria.
Level 3.1 for adults. Low-Intensity Residential Treatment services,
provide residential substance use disorder treatment senrices designed
to support individuals that need this residential service. The goal of low-
intensity residential Irealment is to prepare clionts to become self-
sufficient in the community. Adult residents typically work in the
community and may pay a portion of their room and board.

2.4. Reserved

2.5. Enrolling Clients for Services
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2.5.1. The Contractor shall determine eligibility for services in accordance with Section
2.1 above and with Sections 2.5.2 through 2.5.4 below:

2.5.2. The Contractor shall complete Intake screenings as follows:

2.5.2.1. Have direct contact (lace to face communication by meeting In person,
or electronically, or by telephone conversation) with an Individual
(defined as anyone or a provider) within two (2) business days from the
' date that individual contacts the Coritractor for Substance Use Disorder
Treatment and Recovery Support Services. All attempts at contact
shall be documented inthe client record or call log.

2.5.2.2. Complete an initial Intake Screening within two (2) business days from
the date of the first direct contact with the individual, using the eligibDity
module in Web Information Technology System (WITS) to determine
probability of being eligible for services under this contract and for
probability of having a substance use disorder. Alt attempts at contact
shall be documenled in the client record or call log.

2.5.2.3. Assess clients' income prior to admission using, the WITS fee
determination model and

2.5.2.3.1. Assure that clients' income information is updated as
needed over the course of treatment by asking clients
about any changes in income no less frequently than every
4 weeks. Inquiries about changes in income shall be
documented in the client record

2.5.3. The Contractor shall complete an ASAM Level of Care Assessment for all services
in Sections 2.3.1.1 through 2.3.1.2 within two (2) days of the initial Intake
Screening in Section 2.5.2 above using the AS! Lite m'odute, in Web Information
Technology System (WITS) or other method approved by the Department when
the individual is determined probable of being eligible for services.

2.5.3.1. The Contractor shall make available to the Department, upon request,
the data from the ASAM Level of Care Assessment in Section 2.5.3 in
a format approved by the Department.

2.5.4. The Contractor shall use the clinical evaluations completed by a Licensed or
unlicensed Counselor from a referring agency.

2.5.5. If the client, does not present with an evaluation completed by a licensed or
unlicensed counselor, the Contractor shall, for all services provided, complete a
clinical evaluation utilizing CONTINUUM or an altemative method approved by the
Department that includes DSM 5 diagnostic information and a recommendation for
8 level of care based on the ASAM Criteria, published in Octotser, 2013. The
Contractor shall complete a clinical evaluation, for each client:

2.5.5.1,. Prior to admission as a part of ir^terim services or within three (3)
business days following admission.

2.5.5.2. During treatment only when determined by a Licensed Counselor.
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2.5.6. The Contractor shall either complete clinical evafuations in Section 2.5.4.above
before admission or Level of Care Assessments in Section 2.5.3. above before
admission along with a clinical evaluation in Section 2.5.4, above after admission.

2.5.7. The Contractor ishall provide eligible clients the substance use disorder treatment
services in Section. 2.3 determined by the client's clinical evaluation in Section
2.5.4 unless:

2.5.7.1. The client choses to receive a service vviih a lower Intensity ASAM
Level of Care; or ^ •

2.5.7.2. The service vvilh the needed ASAM level of care is unavailable at the
time the level of care is determined in Section 2.5.Z. in which case the
client may. choose:

2.5.7.2.1. A service with a lower Intensity ASAM Level of Care;

2.5.7.2.2. A service with the next available higher intensity ASAm
Level of Care;

2.5.7.2.3. Be placed on the waitlist until their service with the
assessed ASAM level of care becomes available as in
Section 2.5.3; or

2.5.7.2.4. Be referred to another agency In the client's service area
that provides the service with the needed ASAM Level of

•  Care.

2.5.8. TKe Contractor shall enroll eligible clients for services in order of the priority
described below:

2.5.8.1. Pregnant women and women with dependent children, even if the
children are not b their custody, as long as parental rights have not
been terminated, Including the provision of Interim services within the"
required 48-hour time frame. If the Contractor is unable to admit a
pregnant woman for the needed level of care within 24 hours, the
Contractor shall:

2.5.8.1.1. Contact the Doorway of the client's choice to connect the
client with substance use disorder treatment services; or

2.5.8.1.2. If the client refuses referral in 2.5.8.1.1., assist the pregnant
woman with identifying alternative providers and with
accessir^ services with these providers. This assistance
shall-include actively reaching out to identify providers on
the behalf of the client; and

2.5.8.1.3. Provide interim services until the appropriate level of care
becomes available at either the Contractor agency or an
alternative provider. Interim services shall irKlude:

2.5.8.1.3.1. At least one 60-minute individual or group
outpatient session per week;
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2.5.8.1.3.2. Recovery support services as needed by the
client;

2.5.8.1.3.3. Daily calls to the dieni to assess and respond
to any emergent needs.

2.5.8.2. Individuals who have beeri administered naloxone to reverse the
effects of an opioid overdose either In the 14 days prior to screening or
in the period between screening and admission.io the program.

2.5.8.3. Individuals with a history of injection drug use including the provision of
interim services within 14 days.

2.5.8.4. individuals with substance use and co-occurring mental health
disorders.

2.5.8.5. Individuals with Opioid Use Disorders.

2.5.8.6. Veterans with substance use disorders

2.5.8.7. Individuals with, substance use disorders who are involved wilh the

criminal justice and/or child protection system.

2.5.8.8. Individuals who require priority admission at the request of the
Department;

2.5.9. The Contractor shall obtain consent in accordance with 42 CFR Part 2 for
treatment from the> client prior to receiving services for individuals whose age is
12 years and older.

2.5.10. The Contractor shall obtain consent in accordance with 42 CFR Part 2 for
treatment from the parent or legal guardian when the client Is under the age of
twelve (12) prior to receiving services.

2.5.11. The Contractor shall include in the consent forms language for client consent to
share information with other social service agencies Involved in (he client's care,
including but not limited to;

2.5.11.1. The Department's Division of Children. Youth and Families (DCYF)

2.5.11.2. Probation and parole

2.5.11.3. Doorways

2.5.12. The Contractor shall not prohibit clients from receiving services under this
contract when a dient does not consent to Information sharing in Section 2.5.11
above except thai dients who refuse to consent to information sharing with the
Doorways shall not receive services utilizing State Opioid Response (SCR)
funding.

2.5.13. The Contractor shall notify the clients whose consent to information sharing in
Section 2.5.11 above that they have the ability to resdnd the corisent at any time
without any impact on services provided under this contract except that clients
who resdnd consent to information sharing wilh the Regional Hub shall not
receive any additional services utilizing State Opioid Response (SOR) funding.
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2.5.14. The Contractor shall not deny services to an adolescent due to:

2.5.14.V The parent's inability and/or unwillingness to pay the fee;
2.5.14.2.The adolescents decision to receive confKJential services pursuant to

RSA3l8-0.12-a.

2.5.15. The Contractor shall provide services to eligible clients who:
2.5.15.1. Receive Medication Assisted Treatment services from other providers

such as a client's primary care provider;

,  2.5.15.2. Have co-occurring mental health disorders; and/or

2.5.15.3. Are on medications and are taking those medications as prescribed
regardless of the class of medication.

2.5.16. The Contractor shall provide substance use disorder treatment services
separately for adolescent and adults, unless otherwise' approved by the
Department; The Contractor agrees that adolescents and adults do not share the
same residency space, however, the communal pace such as kitchens, group
rooms, and recreation may be shared but at separate limes.

2.6. Waitlists

2.6.1. The Contractor shall maintain a waiUist for all clients and all substance use
disorder treatment services Including the eligible clients being served under this
contract and clients being served under another payer source.

2.6.2. The Contractor shall track the wait time for the clients to receive services, from
the date of initial contact in Section 2.5.2.1 above lo the date clients first received
substance use disorder treatment services in Sections 2.3 and 2.4 above other
than Evaluation In Section 2.5.4

2.6.3. The Contractor shall report to the Department monthly;
2.6.3.1. The average wait time for all clienls. by the type of service and payer

source for all the services.

2.6.3.2. The average wait time for priority clients in Section 2.5.8 above by the
type of service and payer source for the services.

2.7. Assistance with Enrolling In Insurance Programs

2.7.1. The Contractor shall assist clients and/or- their parents or legal guardians, who
are unable to secure financial resources necessary for Initial entry Into the
program, with obtaining other potential sources for payment, such as;

2.7.1.1. Enrollment in public.or private insurance, including but not limited to
New Hampshire Medicaid programs within fourteen (14) davs after
intake. '

2.7.1.2. Assistant with securing financial resources or the clients" refusal of
such assistar>ce shall be clearly documented in the client record

2.8. Service Delivery Activities and Requirements
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2.8.1. The Contractor shall assess all clients for risk of self-harm at all phases of
treatment, such as at initial contact, during screening, intake, admission, on
going treatment services and at discharge.

2.8.2. The Contractor shall assess all clients for withdrawal risk based on ASAM (2013)
Standards at all phases.of treatment, such as at initial contact, during.screenlrkg.
intake, admission, on-going treatment services and stabilize all clients based on
ASAM (2013) guidance and shall:

2.8.2.1. Prowde stabilization services when a client's level of risk Indicates a
seArice with an ASAM Level of Care that'can be provided under this
Contract; If a client's risk level indicates a service with an ASAM Level
of Care that can be provided under this contract, then the Contractor
shall integrate withdrawal management into the client's treatment plan
and provide on-going assessment of withdrawal risk to ensure that
.withdrawal is managed safely.

2.8.2.2. Refer clients to a facility where the services cari be provided when a
client's risk indicates a service with an ASAM Level of Care that is
higher than can be provided under this Contract; Coordinate with the
withdrawal management services provider to admit the diem to an
appropriate service once the dienl's withdrawal risk has reached a level
that can be provided under this contract, and

2.8.3. The Contractor shall complete individualized treatment plans for all clients based
on clinical evaluation data vrithin three (3) days or three (3) sessions, whichever
18 longer of the clinical evaluation In Section 2.5.4 above, that address problems
in all ASAM (2013) domains which justified the dienl's admittance to a given
level of care, that are In accordance the requirements in Exhibit A-1 and that:

2.8.3.1. Include in alt Individualized treatment plan goals, objectives, and
interventions written in terms that are:

2.8.3.1.1. Specific, dearly defining what shall be done.

2.8.3.1.2. Measurable, including clear criteria for progress and
completion.

2.8.3.1.3. Attainable, within the individual's ability to achieve.

2.8.3.1.4. Realistic, the resources are available to the individual.

2.8.3.1.5. Timely, something that needs to be completed within a
stated period for completion that is reasonable.

2.8.3.2. Include the dienlls Involvement in identifying, developing, and
prioritizing goals, objectives, and interventions.

2.8.3.3. Are update based on any changes in any American Sodety of Addiction
Medicine Crilerig (ASAM) domain and no less frequently than every 4
sessions or avery 4 weeks, whichever Is less frequent. Treatment plan
updates shall Include:
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2.8.3.3.1. Oocumenlalion of Ihe degree to which the" client is meeting
treatment plan goals and objectives;

2.6.3.3.2.. Modification of existing goals or addition of new goals
based on changes in the clients functioning relative to
ASAM domains and treatment goals end objectives.

2.8.3.3.3. The counselor s assessment of whether or not the client
needs to move to a different level of cere based on changes
in functioning In any ASAM domain and documentation of
the reasons for this assessment.

2.8.3.3.4. The signature of the client and the counselor agreeing to
the updated treatment plan, or if applicable, documentation
of the client's refusal to sign the treatment plan.

2.8.3.4. Track the client's progress relative to the specific goals,
objectives, and interventions in the client's treatment'plan by
completing encounter notes in WITS.

2.8.4. The Contractor shall refer clients to artd coordinate a client's care with other
providers.

2.8.4.1. The Contractor shall obtain In advance If appropriate, consents from
the client, including 42 CFR Part 2 consent, if applicable, and In
compliance with state, federal laws and state and federal rules,
induding but not limited to:

2.8.4.1.1. Primary care provider and If the client does not have a
primary care provider, the Contractor shall make an
appropriate referral to one and coordtnaie care with (hat
provider if appropriate consents from the client, including
42 CFR Part 2 consent, if applicable, are obtained In
advance in compliance with state, federal laws and state
and federal rules.

2.8.4.1.2. Behavioral health care provider when serving clients with
co*occurrlng substance use and mental health disorders,
and if (he client does not have a mental health care
provider, then the Contractor shall make an appropriate
referral to one and coordinate care with that provider If
appropriate consents from the client, including 42 CFR Part
2 consent. .If applicable, are obtained in advance in
compliance with state, federal laws and state and federal
rules.

'  2.8.4.1.3. Medication assisted treatment provider.

2.8.4.1.4. Peer recovery support provider, and if the client does not
have 8 peer recovery support provider, the Contractor shall
make an appropriate referral (o one and coordinate care
with (hat provider' if appropriate consents from the client.
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■  including 42 CFR Part 2 consent, if applicable, are obtained
In advance in compliance wilh state, federal laws and state
and federal rules. -

2.8.4.1.5. Coordinate with local recovery community organizations
(where 8vail.able),to bring peer recovery support providers
into the treatment settir>g. to meet w'ith clients to describe
availat>le services and to engage clients in peer recovery
support services as applicable.

2.8.4.1.6. Coordinate wilh case management services offered by the
dientls managed care organization, Coorway, third party
insurance or other provider. If applicable. If appropriate
consents from the client, including 42 CFR Part 2 consent,
if applicable, are obtained in advance in compliance with
state, federal laws and state and federal rules. '

. 2.8.4.2. Coordinate wilh other social service agencies engaged with the client,
including but not limited to the Department's Division of Children, Youth
and Families (DCYF). probation/parole, and the Doorways as
applicable and allowable with consent provided pursuant to 42 CFR
Part 2. The Contractor shall clearly document in the client's file if the
dienl refuses any of the referrals or care coordination in Section 2.8.4.
above.

2.8.5. The Contractor, shaH corripiete continuing care, transfer, and discharge plans for
all Services In Section 2.3", except for Transitional Living, in Section 2.3.1.1. that
address all ASAM (2013) domains, that are In accordance wilh the regulremenls
in Exhibit A-1 and that:

2.6 5.1. Include the process of transfer/discharge planning at the time of the
client's intake to the program.

2.8.5.2. Indude at least one (1) of the three (3) criteria for continuing services
when addressing continuing care as follows:

2.8.5.2.1. Continuing Service Criteria. A: The patient Is making
progress, but has not yet achieved the goals articulated In
the Individualized treatment plan. Continued treatment at
the present level of care is assessed as necessary to permit

.  the patient to continue to work toward his or her treatment
goals; or

2.8.5.2.2. Continuing Service Criteria B: The patient is not yet making
progress, but has the capadty to resolve his or her
problems. He/she Is actively working toward the goals
articulated in the individualized treatment plan. Continued
treatment at thp present level of care Is assessed as
necessary to permit the patient to continue to work toward
higher treatment.goals; and /or
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2.8.5.2.3. Continuing Service Criteria C: New problems have been
identified (hat are appropriately treated at the present level
of care. The new problem or priority requires services, the
frequency and intensity of which can only safely be
delivered by continued stay in the current level of care. The

.  . level of care which the patient is receiving treatment is
therefore the least intensive level at whlcTi the patient's
problems can be addressed effectively

2.8.5.3. Include at least one (1) of the four (4) criteria for transfer/discharge,
when addressing transfer/discharge that include:

2.8.5.3.1. Transfer/Discharge Criteria A: The Patient has achieved (he
goals articulated in the individualized treatment plan, thus
resolving the problem(s) that justified admission to the
present level of care. Continuing the chronic disease
management of the patient's condition at a less- intensive
level of care Is Indicated; or

2.8.5.3.2. Transfer/Discharge Criteria 6: The patient has been unable
to resolve the problem(s) that justified the admission to the
present level of care, despite amendments to the treatment
plan. The patient is determined to have achieved the
maximum possible benefil from engagement in services at
the current level of care. Treatment at another level of care

(more or less intensive) in the same type of services, or
discharge from treatment. Is therefore indicated; or

2.8.5.3.3. Transfer/Discharge Criteria C: The patient has
demonstrated a lack of capacity due to diagnostic or co-
occurring cor>di(ions that limit his or her ability to-resolve his
or her profalem(s). Treatment at a qualitatively different level
of care or type of service, or discharge from treatment, is
therefore indicated; or

2.8.5.3.4. Transfer/Discharge Criteria 0; The patient has experienced
an intensification of his or her problem(s), or has developed
a new problem(s). and can be treated effectively at a more
intensive level of care.

2.8.6. The Contractor shall deliver all services in this Agreement using evidence based
. practices as demonstrated by meeting one of the following criteria:

2.6.6.1. The service shall be included as an evidence-based mental health and

substance abuse Intervention on the SAf^HSA Evidence-Based
Practices Resource Center https://www.samhsa.gov/ebp-resource-
center

2.6.6.2. The services shall be published in a peer-reviewed journal and found
to have ppsitive effects; or
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2.6.6.3. The service Is based on a theoretical perspective that has validated
research.

2.6.7. The Contractor shall deliver services in this Contract in accordance with:

2.8.7.1. The ASAM Criteria (2013). The ASAM Criteria (2013) can be
purchased online through the ASAM website at:
http;//www.asamcriteria.org/

2.8.7.2. The Substance Abuse Mental Health Services Administration

(SAMHSA). Treatment Improvement Protocols (TiPs) available at
http://slore.samhsa.gov/list/series?name=TIP-Series-Treatment-
Improvement-Prolocols-TIPS-

2.6.7.3. The SAMHSA Technical Assistance Publications (TAPs) available at
http;//store;samhsd.gov/list/seri6S?ndmeBTechnlcal-A$sistance-
Publications-TAPs-&pageNumber=1.

2.6.7.4. The Requirements in Exhibit A-1.

'2.9. Client Education /

2.9.1. the Contractor shall offer to all eligible clients receiving services under this
contract, individual or group education on prevention, treatment, and nature of:

2.9.1.1. Hepatitis C Virus (HCV).

2.9.1.2. Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV).

2.9.1.3. Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STD).

2.9.1.4. Tobacco Treatment Tools that include:

2.9.1.4.1. Assessing clients for motivation in stopping the use of
tobacco products;

2.9.1.4.2. Offering resources such as but not limited to the
Department's Tobacco Prevention & Control Program
(TPCP) and the certified tobacco cessation counselors
available through the OuitLine.

2.10. Tobacco Free Environment

2.10.1. The Contractor shall ensure a tobacco-free environment by having policies and
procedures that at a minimum:

2.10.1.1. Include the smoking of any tobacco product, the use of oral tobacco
products or "spit" tobacco, and the use of electronic devices;

2.10.1.2. Apply to employees, clients and employee or client visitors;

2.10.1.3. Prohibit the use of tobacco products within the Contractor's facilities at
any time.

2.10.1.4. Prohibit the use of tobacco in any Contractor owned vehicle.
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2.10.1.5. Include whether or not use of tobacco products is prohibited outside of
the facility oh the grounds.

2.10.1.6. Inctude the following If use of tobacco products is allowed outside of
the facility on the grounds:

2.10.1.6.1. A designated smoking area(s) which is located at least
twenty (20) feet from the main entrance.

2.10.1.6.2. All materials used for smoking in this area, including
cigarette butts and matches, shall be extinguished and
disposed of in appropriate containers.

2.10.1.6.3. Ensure periodic cleanup of the designated smoking area.

2.10.1.6.4. If the designated smoking area is not properly maintained, it
can be eliminated at the discretion of the Contractor.

2.10.1.7. Prohibit tobacco" use in any company vehicle.

2.10.1.8. Prohibit tobacco use in personal vehicles when transporting people on
authorized business.

2.10.2. The Contractor shall post the tobacco free environment policy in the
Contractor's fadlities and vehicles and Included in employee, client, and visitor
orientation.

2.10.3. The Contractor shall not use tobacco use, in and of itself, as grounds for
discharging clients from services being provided under this contract.

3. Staffing

3.1. The Contractor shall meet the minimum slaffing requirements to provide the scope of
work in this contract as follows:

'3.1.1.' At least one licensed supervisor, defined as:

3.1.1.1. Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLAOC);

3.1.1.2. Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor {t_AOC) who also holds the
Licensed Clinical Supervisor (LCS) credential; or

3.1.1.3. Licensed mental health provider.

3.1.2. Sufficient staffing levels that are appropriate for the services provided and the
number of ciients served including but not limited to:

3.1.2.1. Licensed counselors defined as MLADCS, LAOCs and individuals
licensed by the Board of Mental Health Practice or Board of
Psychology. Licensed counselors may deliver any clinical or recovery
support services within their scope of practice.

3.1.2.2. Unlicensed counselors defined as individuals who have completed the
required coursework for licensure by the Board of Alcohol and Other
Drug Use Providers, Board of Mental Health Practice or Board of
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Psychology and are working to accumulate the vrork experience
required for licensure.' Unlicensed counselors may deliver any clinical
or recovery support services within their scope of knowledge provided
that they are under the direct supervision of a licensed supervisor.

3.1.2.3. Certified Recovery Support workers ".(C?RSWs) who may deliver
Intensive case management and otKer recovery support services
within their scope of practice provided that they are under the direct
supervision of e licensed supervisor.

3.1.2.4. Uncertified recovery support workers defined as individuals who are
working to accumulate the work experience required for certiricalion
as a CRSW svho may deliver intensive case management and other
recovery support services within their scope of knowledge provided
that they are under the direct supervision of a licensed supervisor.

3.1.3. No licensed supervisor shall supervise more than twelve staff unless the
Department has approved an alternative supervision plan (See Exhibit A-1
Section 8.1.2).

3.1.4. Provide ongoing clinical supervision that occurs at regular intervals in
accordance with the Operational Requirements in Exhibit A-1. and evidence
based practices, at a minimum:

3.1.4.1. Weekly discussion of cases with suggestions for resources or
therapeutic approaches, co-therapy, and periodic assessment of
progress;

3.1.4.2. Group supervision to help optimize the learning experience, when
enough candidates are under supervision;

3.2. The Contractor shall provide training to staff on:

3.2.1. Knowledge, skills, values, and ethics with specific application to the practice
issues faced by the supervisee;

3.2.2. The 12 core functions;

3.2.3. The Addiction Counseling Competencies; The Knowledge. Skills, and Attitudes
of Professional Practice, available at http://slore.samhsa.gov/producl/TAP-21-
Addiction-Counseling*Competencies/SMA15^17l and

3.2.4. The standards of practice and ethical conduct, with particular emphasis given
to the counselor's role and appropriate responsibilities, professional
boundaries, and power dynamics and appropriate information security and
confidentiality practices for handling protected health Information (PHI) and
substance use disorder treatment records as safeguarded by 42 CFR Part 2.

3.3. The Contractor shall notify the Department, in.writing of changes in key personnel and
provide, within five (5) working days to the Department, updated resumes that clearly
indicate the staff member is employed by the Contractor. Key personnel are those staff
for whom at least 10% of their work time is spent providing substance use disorder
treatment and/or recovery support services.

ExhWl A. Am«ndmcn( 1*3 ConlrBclOf Inlltts
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3.4. The Contractor shall notify the Oepartmenl in writing within one month of hire when a new
adrhinistrator or coordinator or any staff person essential to carrying out this scope of
services Is hired to worit in the program. The Conlraclor shall provide a copy of Ihe
resume of Ihe employee..which clearly Indicates the staff member is employed by the
Contractor, with the notification.

3.5. The Contractor shall notify the Department in writing within 14 calendar days, when there
is not sufficient staffing to perform all required 'senrices for more than one month.

3.6. The Contractor shall have policies and procedures related to student interns to address
. minimum coursework. experience and core competencies for those Interns having direct
contact with individuals served by Ihls contract. Additionally. The Contractor shall have
student interns complete an approved ethics course and an approved course on the 12
core functions and the Addiction Counseling Competencies: The Knowledge, Skills, and
Attitudes of Professional Practice-in Section 3.2.2, and appropriate Information security
and confidentiality practices for handling protected health information (PHI) and
substance use disorder treatment records as safeguarded by 42 CFR Part 2 prior to
beginning their internship.

3.7. The Contractor shall have unlicensed staff complete an approved ethics course and an
approved course on the 12 core functions and the Addiction Counseling Competencies:
The Knowledge. Skills, and Attitudes of Professional Practice in Section 3.2.2. and
information security and confidentially practices for handling protecled health Infomiatlon
(PHI) and substance use disorder treatment records as safeguarded by 42 CFR Part 2
within 6 months of hire.

3.8. The Contractor shall ensure staff receives continuous education in the ever changing field
of substance use disorders, and slate and federal taws, and rules relating to
confidentiality.

3.9. The Contractor shall provide in-service training to all staff involved in dient care within 15
days of the contract effective date or the staff person's start date, if after the contract
effective date, and atleast annually thereafter onihe following: '
3.9.1. the contract requirements.

3.9.2. All other relevant policies and procedures provided by the Department.
3.10. The Contractor shall provide in-sen/ice training or ensure attendance at an approved

training by the Department to clinical staff on hepatitis C (HCV) human
immunodeficiency virus (HIV), tuberculosis (TB) and sexually transmitted diseases
(STOs) annually. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a list of trained staff.

4. Facilities License

■ 4.1. The Contractor shall be licensed for all residential services provided with the
Department's Health Fadlilies Administration.

4.2, The Contractor shall comply with the,additional licensing requirements for medically
monitored; residential withdrawal rriahagemenl services by the Department's Bureau of
Health-Facilities Administration to meet higher facilities licensure standards.
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4.3. The Contractor is responsible for ensuring that the facilities .where services are provided
meet all the applicable laws, rules, policies, and slandards.-

5. Web Information Technology
5.1. The Contractor shall use the Web Information Technology System (WITS) or an

aiternalive electronic health record approved by the Department to record all client activity
and client contact within (3) days following the activity or contact as directed by the
Department.

5.2. The Contractor shall, before providing services, obtain written Informed consent from the
client on the consent form provided by the Department.

5.2.1. Any client refusing to sign the informed consent In 5.2:

5.2.1.1. Shall not bo entered into the WITS systerh; and

5.2.1.2. Shall not receive services under this contract.

5.2.1.2.1. Any client who cannot receive services under
this contract pursuant to Section 5.2.4.'shall be

assisted -in finding alternative payers for the
required services.

5.3. The Contractor agrees to the lnformatlon Security Requirements Exhibit K.^

5.4. The W.iTS system shall only-be used for clients who are in a program that is funded by or
under the oversight pf the Department.

6, Reporting

6.1. The Contractor shall report on the following:

■6.1.1. National Outcome Measures (NOMs) data in WITS for;
6.1.1.1.- 100% of all clients at admission

6.1.1.2. 100% of all dienls who are discharged because they have completed
treatment or transferred to another program

6.1.1.3. 50% of all clients who are discharged for reasons other than those
specified above in Section 6.1.1.2.

6.1.1.4. The above NOMs In Section 6.1.1.1 through 6.1.1.3 are minimum
requirements and the Contractor shall "attempt to achieve greater
reporting results when possible.

6.1.2. Monthly and quarterfy contract compliance reporting no later than the 10th day
of the month following the reporting month or quarter;

6.1.3. All critical Incidents to the bureau In writing as soon as possible and no more
than 24 hours following the incident. The Contractor agrees that:

Exhibit A. Am«ftdmont #3 Conty»cto» InHtals CJ"C^
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6.1.3.1. "Critical incident" means any actual or alleged event or situation (hat
creates a significant risk of substantial or serious harm to physical or
mental health, safety, or well- being, including but not limited to:

6.1.3.1.1. Abuse;

6.1.3.1.2. Neglect;

6.1.3.1.3. Exploitation;

6.1.3.1.4. Rights violation;

6.1.3.1.5. Missing person;

6.1.3.1.6: Medical emergency;

6.1.3.1.7. Restraint; or

6.1.3.1.8. Medical error.

6.1.4. All contact with law enforcement to the bureau in writing as soon as possible
and no more than 24 hours following the incident;

6.1.5. All Media contacts to the bureau in writing as soon as possible and no more
than 24 hours following the incident;

6.1.6. Sentinel events to the Department as follows:

6.1.6.1. Sentinel events shall be reported when they involve any individual who
Is receiving services under this contract;

6.1.6.2. Upon discovering (he event, the Contractor shall provide Immediate
verbal nolrftcation of the event to the bureau, vk^hich shall include:

6.1.6.2.1. The reporting individual's name, phone number, and
agency/organization;

6.1.6.2.2. Name and date of birth (DOB) of the indivjdual(5)
involved in the event;

6.1.6.2.3. Location, date, and time of the event;

6.1.6.2.4. Description of the event, including what. when, where,
how the event happened, and other relevant infoimation,
as well as the identification of any other individuals
involved;

6.1.6.2.5. Whether Ihe police were involved due to a crime or
suspected crime; and

'  6.1.6.2.6. The identification of any media that had reported the
event;

6.1.6.3. Within 72 hours of the sentinel event, the Contractor shall submit a
completed 'Sentinel Event Reporting Form' (February 2017).
available at https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbcs/documents/r6porting-
form.pdf to the bureau
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6.1.6.4. Additional informati.on on the event that is discovered after filing the
form In Section 6.1.6.3. above shall be reported to the Department, in
writing, as it becomes available or uport request of the Department;
and

6.1.6.5. Submit additional information regarding Sections 6.1.6.1 through
6.1.6.4 above If required by the department: and

6.1.6.6. Report the event in Sections 6.1.6.1. through 6.1.6.4 above, as
applicable, to other agencies as required by law.

6.2. For roorrt and board payments associated with Medicaid clients with OUD, the Contractor
shall coordinate client data and services with the Doorways to ensure that each client
served has a Government Performance and Results Modernization Act (GPRA) ihtervlew
completed at intake, three (3) rhonths, six (6) months, and discharge.

6.3. The Contractor shall coordinate all services delivered to Medicaid clients with OUD for

whom the contractor is receiving room and board payments for with the Doorways
including, but not limited to accepting referrals and clinical evaluation results for level of
care placement directly from the Doorways.

7. Quality Improvement

7.1. The Contractor shall participate In all quality improvement activities to ensure'.the
standard of care for clients, as requested by the Department, such as. but not limited to;

7.1.1. Participation In electronic and in-person client record reviews

7.1.2. Participation In site visits

7.1.3. Participation in training and technical assistance activities as. directed by the
Department.

7.2. The Contractor shall monitor and manage the utilization levels of'care and servi^ array
to ensure services are offered through the term of the contract to:

7.2.1. Maintain'a consistent service capacity for Substance Use Disorder Treatment
and Recovery Support Services statewide by:

7.2.1.1. Monitoring the capacity such as staffing and other resources to
consistently and evenly deliver these services; and

7.2.1.2. Monitoring no less than monthly the percentage of the contract funding
expended relative to the percentage of the contract period that has
elapsed. If there is a difference of more than 10% between expended
funding and elapsed time on-the .contract the Contractor shall notify
.the Department within 5 days and submit a plan for correcting the
discrepancy within 10 days of notifying the Department.

8. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity

' 8.1. In order to enable OHHS to. evaluate the Qontractor's fiscal integrity, the Contractor
agrees to submit to DMHS monthly, the Balance Sheet. Profit and Loss Statement, and

He®dmal 6«hlbU a. Am«rtdm«m 03 Conwoof inlUaJa ^ ) i "

RFA-2019-BDAS-OI-SUBST-05-A03 P»g# 19 ol 23 Oat*



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment 03

Cash Flow Statement for ihe Contractor. The Profit and Loss Statement shall Include a
budget column allowing .foF budget to actual analysis. Statements shall .be submitted
within thirty (30) calendar days after each month end. The Contractor shall be evaluated
on the following:

8.1..1. Days of Cash on Hand:

6.1.1.1. Oerinition; The days of operating expenses that can be covered by
the unrestricted cash on hand.

8.1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short term investments divided
by total operating expenditures, less depreciation/amortization and in-
kind plus principal payments.on debt divided by days in the reporting
period. The short-term investments as used above shall mature within
three (3) months arid should not Include common stock.

8.1.1.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall have enough cash and
cash equivaienis lo cover expenditures for a minimum of thirty (30)
calendar days with no variance allowed.

8.1.2. CurrenI Ratio:

8.1.2.1. Definition: A measure of the Contractor's total current assets
evailable to cover the cost of current liabilities.

8.1.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total current liabilities.

8.1.2.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum
current ratio of 1.5:1 with 10% variance allowed.

8.1.3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio:

8.1.3.1. Rationale: This ralio illustrates the Contractor's ability to cover the
cost of its current portion of Its long-term debt.

6.1.3.2. . Definition: The ratio of Net Income to the year to.dale debt service.

8.1.3.3. Formula: Net Income plus Depreciation/Amortization Expense plus
' Interest Expense divided by year to date debt service (principal and
interest) over the next twelve (12) months.

8.1.3.4.y Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial Statements
Identifying current portion of long-term debt payments (principal and
Interest).

8.1.3.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum
standard of 1.2:1 with no variance.allov^d.

8.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets:

8.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is an indication of the Contractor's ability to
cover its liabilities.

8.1.4.2. Definition: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total assets.
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8.1.4.3. Formula; Net assets (total assets less total liabilrties) divided by total
assets.

8.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial Statements.

8.1.4.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum
ratio of .30:1, with a 20% variance allowed.

8.2. In order to enable OHHS to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal Iniefgrity. the Contractor
agrees to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss statement for
Ihe month and year-to-date for the agency and the Profit and Loss statement for the
month and year-to-date for the program being funded with this contract.

8.3. In the event that the Contractor does not meet either:

8.3.1. The standard regarding Days of Cash on Hand and the standard regarding
Current Ratio for two (2) consecutive months; or

8.3.2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity standards for
three (3) consecutive months, then

8.3.3. The Depaftment may require that the Contractor meet with Department staff to
explain the reasons that the Contractor has not met the standards.

8.3.4. The Department may require the Contractor to submit a comprehensive
corrective action plan within thirty (30) calendar days of notification that 8.2.1
and/or 8.2.2 have not been met.

8.3.4.1. The Contractor shall update the corrective action plan at least every
thirty (30) calendar days until compliance Is achieved.

8.3.4.2. The Contractor shall provide additional information to assure
continued access to services as requested by the Department. The
Contractor shall provide requested information In a llmeframe agreed
upon by both parties.

8.4. The Contractor shall Inform the Department by phone and by email within twenty-four
(24) hours of when any key Contractor staff learn of any actual or likely litigation.
Investigation, complaint, dalm. or transaction that may reasonably be consldered to have
a material financial Impact on and/or materially impact or Impair the ability of the
Contractor to perform under this Agreement with the Department.

8.5. The monthly Balance Sheet. Profit & Loss Statement. Cash Flow Statement, and all other
financial reports shall be based on the accnjal method of accounting and include the
Coritractor's total revenues and expenditures whether or not generated by or resulting
from funds provided pursuant to this Agreement. These reports are due within thirty (30)
calendar days after the end of each month.'

9. Performance Measures

The following performance measures are required for client services rendered from SOR
funding only.
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9.1. The Contractor shall ensure that lOOVo of clients receiving room and board payments
under this contract that enter care directly through the Contractor who consent to
information sharing with the Doorways receive a Hub referral for ongoing care
coordination.

9.2. The Contractor shall ensure that 100% of clients referred to them by the Doorways who
shall be covered by room and board payments under this contract have proper consents
in place for transfer of information for the purposes of-data collection between the
Doorways and the Contractor.

The following performance measures are required for client services rendered from all
sources of funds.

9.3. The Contractor's contract performance shall be measured as in Section 9.5 below to
evaluate that services are mitigating negative impacts of substance misuse, including but
not limited to the opioid epidemic and associated overdoses.

9.4. For the first year of the contract only, the data, as collected in WITS, shall be used to
assisf the Department In determining the benchmark for each measure below. The
Contractor agrees to report data in WITS used in the following measures:

9.4.1. Inlilation: % of clients accessing services within 14 days of screening;

9.4.2. Engagement: % of clients receiving 3 or more eligible services within 34 days;
9.4.3. Retention: % of clients receiving 6 or more eligible services wilhin 60 days;

9.4.4. Clinically appropriate services: % of clients receiving ASAM level of care within
30 days;

9.4.5. Treatment completion: % of clients completing treatment; and

9.4.6. National Outcome Measures (NOMS) The % of clients out of all clients
discharged meeting at least 3 out of 5 NQMS outcome criteria:

9.4.6.1. Reduction in /no change in the frequency of substance use at
discharge compared to date of first service

9.4.6.2. Increase in/no change in number of individuals.empioyed or in school
at date of last service compared to.first service.

9.4.6.3. Reduction in/no change In number of Individuals arrested in past 30
days from date of first service to dale of last service

9.4.6.4. Irjcrease In/no change in nurnber of individuals that have stable
housing at last service compared to first service

9.4.6.5. Increase ir^/no change in number of iridlviduals participating In
community support services at last service compared to first senrice

10. Contract Compliance Audits
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10.1. In the event that the Contractor undergoes an audii by the Department, the Contractor
agrees to provide a corrective action plan to the Department within thirty (30) days from
the date of the final findings which addresses any and all findings.

10.2. The Contractor shall ensure the corrective action plan shall include:
10.2.1. The aclion(s) that shall be taken to correct each deficiency;
10.2.2. The actlon(s) that shall be taken to prevent the reoccurrence of each deficiency:
10.2.3. The specific steps and lime line for Implementing the actions above;
10.2.4. The plan for monitoring to ensure that the actions above are effective;.and
10.2.5. How and .when the vendor shall report to the Department on progress on

implementation and effectiveness.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State .'shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price LIrnliation. Block 1.8,
of the General Provisions, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A.
,Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded by:

2.1. New Hampshire General Funds;

2.2. Govemor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug AtHJse Prevention, Treatment, and"
Recovery Funds;

2.3. Federal Funds from the tJnited States Department of Health and Human Services, the
Substance Abuse and Mental Heallh Services Administration, Substance Abuse
Prevention and Treatment Block Grant (CFDA #93.959);

2.4. Federal funds from the United States Department of Health and Human Services.-
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration State Opioid Response
Grant (CFDA #93.788} and

2.5. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope , of Services .in
compliance with the federal funding requirements.

3. Non Reimbursement for Services

3.1. The State shall not reimburse the Contractor for services provided through this contract
when a client has or may have an alternative payer for services described the Exhibit A,
Scope of Work, such as but not limited to:

3.1.1. Services covered by any New Hampshire Medicaid programs for clients
who are eligible for New Hamp^ire Medicaid

3.1.2. Services covered by Medicare for clients who are eligible for Medicare

3.1.3. Services covered by the client's private Insurer(s) at a rate greater than the
Contract Rale in Exhibit B-1 Amendment #2. Service Fee set by the Department.

3.2. Nolwithslanding Section 3.1 above, the Contractor may seek reimbursement from the
State for services provided under this contract when a client needs a service that Is not
covered by Ihe payers listed in Section 3.1.

3.3. Payments may be withheld until the Contractor submits accurate required monthly
and quarterly reporting.

3.4. Notwithstanding Section 3.1 above, when payment of the deductible or copay would
constitute a financial hardship for the client, the Contractor must seek reimbursement
from the State for that deductible based on the sliding fee scale, not to exceed $4,000
per client per treatment episode.
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3.4.1. For the purposes of this section, financial hardship is defined as the
client's monthly household income being less than the deductible
plus the Federally-defined monthly cost of living (COL).

3.4.1.1. If the individual owns a vehicle:

Monthly COL

Family Size

1 2 3 4 5+

$ 3,1-19.90 % 3,964.90 $ 4.252.10 $ 4i798.80 $ 4,643.90

3.4.1.2. If the individual does not own a vehicle:

Family Size

1' 2 3 4 5

Monthly COL $ 2,570.90 $ 3.415.90 $ 3,703.10 S 4.249,80 S 4,643.90

4. The Contractor shall bill and seek reimbursenienl for actual services delivered by fee for
services In Exhibit B-l, Amendment 02 Service Fee Table, unless otherwise stated. The
Contractor agrees:

4.1. The fees for services, excluding'Clinical Evaluation, are all-inclusive contract rates to
deliver the services and are the maximum allowable charge in calculating the amount td-
charge the Department for services delivered as part of this Agreement (See Section 5
below).

4.2. To bit! for Clinical Evaluation services separately from all other per day units of services.

4.3. Payments may be withheld until the Contractor submits accurate required monthty and
quarterly reporting.

5. Calculating the Amount to Charge the Department Applicable to All Services in Exhibit B-1.
Amendment 02 Service Fee Table.

5.1. The Contractor shall:

5.1.1. Directly bill and receive payment for services and/or transportation provided
.  under this contract from public and private insurance plans, the dients, and

the Department

5.1.2. Assure a billing and payment systern that enables expedited processing to the
greatest degree possible in order to not delay a client's admittance into the
program and to immediately refund any overpayments.

5.1.3. Maintain an accurate accounting and records for all services billed, payments
received and overpayments (If any) refunded.
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5.2. The Ccnlractof shall determine and charge accordingly for services provided to an eligible
client under this contract, as follows:

5.2.1. First: Charge the client's private-insurance up to Ihe Contract Rate, in Exhibit 8-
1. Ameridment 02 when the Insurers' rates meet or are lower than the Contract
Rate In Exhibit 8-1 Amendment 02.

5.2.2. Second: Charge the client according to Exhibit 8. Amendment 03. Section 9.
Sliding Fee Scale, when the Contractor determines or anticipates that the
private insurer shall not remit payment for the full amount of the Contrart Rate
in Exhibit 8-1, Amendment 02.

5.2.3. Third: If. any portion of the Contract Rate in Exhibit B-1 Amendment 02 remains
unpaid, after the Contractor charges the client's insurer, if applicable, and the
client then the Contractor shall charge the Department the balance, which is the
Contract Rate in Exhibit 8-1 Amendment 02. Service Fee Table less the amount
paid by private Insurer and the amount paid by the client, unless the client's
copay or deductible is charged to the Department in accordance with 3.3 above.

5.3. The Conira^or agrees the amount charged to the client shall not exceed the Contract
Rate in Exhibit 8-1, Amendment #2 Service Fee Table multiplied by the corresponding
percentage stated In Exhibit 8. Amendment 03. Section 9 Sliding Fed Scale for the client's
applicable income level.

5.4. The Contractor shall assist clients who are unable to secure financial resources
necessary for initial entry into the program by developing payment plans.

5.5. The Contractor shall not deny, delay or discontinue services for enrolled clients who do
not pay their fees in Section 5.2.2 above, until after working with the client as in Section
5.4 above, and only when the client fails to pay their fees within thirty (30) days after being
informed in writing and counseled regarding financial responsibility and possible
sanctions Including discharge from treatment.

5.6. The Contractor shall provide to clients, upon request, copies of their financial accounts.

5.7. The Contractor shall not charge the combination of the public or private insurer, the client
and the Oepartmenfan amount greater than the Contract Rate in Exhibit 8-1. Amendment
02 except for:

5.7.1. Low-Intensity Residential Treatment as defined as ASAM Criteria. Level 3.1.
See Section 7 below.

5.8. In the event of an overpayment, wherein the combination of all payments received by the
Contractor for a given service (except In Exhibit B. Amendment 03. Section 5.7.1 and
5.7.2) exceeds the Contract Rate stated in Exhibit 8-1 Amendment 02. Service Fee
Table, the Contractor shall refund the parties in the reverse order, unless the
overpayment was due to insurer, client or Departmental error.

5.9. In instances of payer error, the Contractor shall refund the party who erred, and adjust
the charges to the other parties, according to a correct application of the Sliding Fee •
Schedule.

Hesdr«W Vtndot tnMau ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and f^ocovory Support Services

Exhibit B, Amendment 03

5.10. In the event of overpayment as a result of billing the Department under this contract
when e third parly payer would have covered the service, the Contractor must repay the
state In an amount and \mthin a tlmeframe agreed upon between the Contractor and the
Department upon identifying the error.

6. Additional Billing information for; Room and Board for Medicaid clients with Opioid Use
Disorder (OUO) in residential (eve! of care.

6.1. The Contractor shall invoice the Department for Room and Board .payments up to
$100/day for Medicaid clients with OUD in residential level of care.

6.2. With the exception of room and board payments for transitional living, the Contractor shall
not bill the Department for Room and Board payments in excess of $455,000.

6.3. The Contractor shall'maintain documentation of the following:

6.3.1. Medicaid ID of the Client;

6.3.2. WITS ID of the Client (if applicable)

6.3.3. Period for which room and board payments cover;

6.3.4. Level of Care for which the client received services for the date

range identified In 6.3.3

•  6.3.5. Amount being billed to the Department for the service

6.4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice by the twentieth (20lh) day of each month, which
identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses Incurred for room and
board In the prior month. The Slate shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty
(30) days of receipt of each Invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this
Agreerheni. Invoices must be submitted in a Department approved manner.

6.5. The Contractor, shall ensure that clients receiving services rendered froni SOR funds
have a documented history of/or current diagnoses of Opidid Use Disorder.

6.6. The Contractor shall coordinate ongoing client care for all clients with documented history
of/or current diagnoses of Opioid Use Disorder, receiving services rendered from SOR
funds, with Doorv^ys In accordance with 42 CFR Part 2.

7. Charging the Client for Room and Board for Low Intensity Residenllal Services

7.1. The Contractor may charge the client fees for room and board, in addition to:

7.1.1. The client's portion of the Contract Rate in Exhibit B-1. Amendment 02 using the
Sliding fee scale

7.1.2. The charges to the Department

7.2. The Contractor may charge the client for Room and Board, inclusive of lodging and meals
offered by the program according to (he Table A below;

Table A

Haadmst EiMbiia. Amtndmeni 93 V«iv)cf Wllali C,X^

RFA-»lfraOAS-01-SUBST-05-A03 Pagfl 4 o( 7 Oaio



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Olsordor Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit 6, Amendment 03

.If the percentage of Client's Intfome of the
Federal Poverty Level (FPL) Is:

Then the Contractor may charge the
client up to the following amount
for room and board per week:

0%-138% $0

'  - 139%-149% S8

150% - 199% $12

200% - 249% $25

. 250% - 299%
s

•  , /;:$40

300% - 349% $57

350% - 399% > $77

7.3. The Contractor shall hold 50% of the amount charged to the client that shall be returned
to*the client at the lime of discharge.

7.4. The Contractor shall maintain records to account for the client's contribution to room and
board.

Sliding Fee Scale

8.1. The Contractor shall apply the sliding fee scale inaccordance'with Exhibit B. Amendment
#3, Section 5. above.

8.2. The Contractor shall adhere to the sliding fee scale as follows:

. Percentage of Client's Income of the Federal
Poverty Level (FPL)

Percentage of Contract
Rate in Exhibit B<1 to

Charge the Client

0%-13a% 0%

139%-149% 8%

150% - 199% 12%

200%-249% 25%

250% 299% 40%

300% 349% 57%

350% - 399% 77%

8.3. The ̂ntractor shall not deny a child under the age of 18 services because of the parent's
unwillingness to pay the fee or the minor child's decision to receive confidential services
pursuant to RSA 318-B;12ra.

HMdresi
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New Hampshire Oopartmont of Health and Human Services
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit 6, Amendment 03

9. Submitting Charges for Paynrient

9.1. The Contractor shall submit billing through the Website Information Technology System
(WITS) for services listed in Exhibit B-1. Amendment #2 Service Fee Table. The
Contractor shall:

9.1.1. Enter encounter note(s) Into WITS no later than three (3) days after the
date the service was provided to the client

9.1.2. Review the encounter notes no later than twenty (20) days following the
,  last day of the billing month,, and notify the Department that encounter notes are
ready for review.

9.1.3. Correct errors, If any. in the encounter notes as. identified by the
Department no later than seven (7) days after being notified of the errors and notify
the Department the notes have been corrected and are reedy for review.

9.1.4. Batch and transmit the encounter notes upon Department apprdval for the
billing month.

9.1.5. Submit separate batches for each billing month.
9.2. The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review after sixty (60) days of the last day

of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

9.3. To the extent possible, the Contractor shall bill for services provided under this contract
through WITS. For any services that are unable to be billed through WITS, the contractor
shall wofit with the Department to develop an alternative process for submitting invoices.

9.4. The Contractor shall only bill room and board for SUO clients with Opioid Use Disorder
that are Medicaid coded for both residential and transitional living services.

10. Funds in this contract may not be used to replace funding for a program already funded from
another source.

11. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities, related to Department-funded
programs and services.

12. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with any
Federal or Slate law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services or products'have not been salisfactorily.complisted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of this agreement.

13. The Contractor Shalt submit finar invoices to the Department no later than forty-five (45) days
after the contract completion date.

14. The Contractor shall ensure any adjustments to a prior invoices are submitted with the original
invoice, adjusted invoice and supporting documentation to justiify the adjustment.

Hcadfwl Eihibit 8. AmendmenJ W V«ndoc IniUsis C
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human iservlces
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit B, Amendment 03

15. Limitations and restrictions of federal Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment (SAPT)
Block Grant funds

15.1. The Contractor agrees to use the SAPT funds as the payment of last resort.
15.2. The Contractor agrees to the following funding restrictions on SAPT Block Grant

expenditures to:

15.2.1. Make, cash payments to intended recipients of substance abuse services.

15.2.2. Expend more than the amount of Block Grant funds expended in Federal
Fiscal Year 1991 for treatment services provided in penal or correctional
Institutions of the State.

15.2.3. Use any federal funds provided under this contract for the purpose of
conducting testing for the etiologic agent for Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)
unless such testing is accompanied by appropriate pre and post-test counseling.

15.2.4. Use any federal funds provided under this contract for "the purpose of
conducting any form of needle e;xchang.e. free.needle programs or the distribution
of bleach for the deaning of needles for intravenous drug abusers.

15.3. The Contractor agrees to the Charitable Choice federal statutory provisions as
follows: . . .

Federal Charitable Choice statutory provisions ensure that religious
organizations are able to equally compete for Federal substance
abuse funding administered by SAMHSA, without impairing the
religious character of such organizations and without diminishing the
religious freedom of SAMHSA beneficiaries (see 42 USC 300x-65
and 42 CFR Part 54 and Part 54a. 45 CFR Part 96. Charitable Choice
Provisions and Regulations). Charitable Choice statutory provisions
of the Public Health Service Act enacted by Congress in 2000 are
applicable to the SAPT Block Grant program. No funds provided
directly from SAMHSA or the relevant State or local government to
organizations participating in applicable programs may be expended
for inherently religious activities, such as worship, religious
instruction, or proselylization. If en organization conducts such
activities. It must offer them separately, in lime or location, from the
programs or services for which it receives funds directly from
SAMHSA or the relevant State or local government under any
applicable program, and participation must be voluntary for the
program beneficiaries.

HtsdrMl Eid>ibli B. Amendmeni Vendor inUeb C J
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHCRE

'Department of health and human services
DIVISION FOR BEHA VtORAL HEALTH

BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES

105 PLEASAfTT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603.27U.II0 1.6OO.0SZ.334Seic673S

Fee 603.27UI05 TDD Acccsi: 1.000.735.2964
«rww.<lbh*.nh.|e»

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Stet^ House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

November 14. 2018

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Heallh.and Human Services. Bureau of Drug and Alcohol
Services, lo. enter into a sole source amendment to eight (8) of (he thirteen (13) vendors listed
below m boW. to provide substance use disorder trealmeni and recovery support services
slalewide. by increasing the total combined price limitalion by $3,362,900 from $4 915 198 to
an arnouni not to exceed $6,278,098 with no change in the completion date of June 3o! 2019.
effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval. 69 35% Federal 13 SO'A
General, and 1,7.15% Other Funds. . . .

Summary of contracted amounts by Vendor;
Vendor Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease.

Revised

Budget
G&C Approval

DIsmaa Home of New Hampshire,
Inc.

$240,000 $3,400 . $243,400 0:06/20/18 Late
Item G

A: 07/27/10 ttem
87

FIT/NHNH. Inc. $854,031 $0.00

>

$654,031 0:07/27/16 Item
#7

A. 11/14/18 Item
.•814 ■

Cirafton County New Hampshire -
Oepartmenl of Corrections and
Atternaifve Sentencing

$247,000 $0.00 $247,000 0.06/20/18 Ule
Item G

A 07/27/18.licm
87

Greater Nashua Council on
Alcoholism

$624,599 $890,300 $1,514,899 0: 07/27/16 Item

87

Headrest $147,999 $80,600 $228,599 O;(^20/1BUte
ItemO
A: 07/27/18 Item
87

Manchester Alcoholism
Rehabilitation Center

$1,118,371 $1,091,800 $2,210,171 0:08/20/18 Late
Item G

A; 07/27/18 Item
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Hope on Haven Hill $278,641 $218,400 $497,041
07

0:07/27/18 Item

07

North Country Health Consortium $287,406 $114,200 $401,606 0:06/20/18 Lato

IternG.
A: 07/27/18 Item

07
.Phoenix Houses of New England,
Inc.

$232,921 $584,600 $817,621 0:06/20/16 Loto
Item G

A: 07/27/18 Item

07
Seacoast Youth Services $73,200 SO.OD $73,200 0:06/20/18 LOle

Item G

A: 07/27/18 Item
07

Southeastern New. Hampshire
Alcohol & Drug Abuse Services

$589,640 $379,600 $969,140 0:06/20/18 Late

ItemG

A: 07/27/18 Item

07
The Community Cour^ctl of Nashua
N.H. .

I

$162,000 $0.00 $162,000 0:08/20/te late
Item G

A: 07/27/18 Item
07

West Central Services. Inc. SS9,490 $0.00, $59,490 0:06/20/16 Ute
Item G

A 07/27/18 Item
07

Total 1 $4,915,198 $3,362,900 $8,278,098

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG &
ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other FundS)

05-95-92-920510-3384000D HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG &
ALCOHOL. SVCS, CLINICAL SERVICES (80% Federal Funds, 20% General Funds FAIN
TI01003SCFOA 93.959)

0^95-92.920510-7040bDOO HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG &
ALCOHOL SVCS, STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% Federal Funds FAIN
H79Tia8168SCFpA 93.788)

Please see attached financial details.

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the increase to the price limitation for eight (8)
vendor exceeds ten (tO) percent of the total contract value.

Substance um disorders develop when the use of alcohol and/or drugs causes dtnically
and functionaDy signlficartt impairment, such as health problems, disability, and failure to meet
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^'"slence of a substance use disorder is

o'

«nH the abovc eight (8) vendors listed above in bold to continue
w P®*®"*'®! y access lo residential treatment services provided to Medicaid-coveredmdrviduals wlh opmid use disorder (OUD). Funds In this amendment wilt be used to cover $100

i  payments for Medicaid benericiaries with OUD in low arid high intensityresidential treatment services. These funds wrill support existing residential proarams to
rontjnue serving the Medicaid population, which has been cited as a challenge by treatment

°  K reimbursement between Medicaid and Commercialpayers. The vondors above will also continue to offer their existing array of treatment services
transi.ionai

KrSr'r"and Menial Heallti Services Admlnistralion (SAMHSA) approved NH's
me mwrnrinmi^nr^; i" services for communities withinthe ttvrd month of grant award. The eight (8) vendors at)ove will use those funds to ensure that

e«MndedT)e«"i° 'o« '"'sPsi'V residential treatment have continued andfor
Sain rec^ry level of cere, which increases their ebillty lo achieve and
ihro.mh'^mriS"''' H ® to monitor the performance of the Vendorsthrough monthly and quarterly repcrls, conducting site visits, reviewing dient records and
engaging in activihes Identified in the corilraa monitoring and quality improvement'wor1<
referenced above. Contractor financial health is also being monitored monthly.

Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request residential '

MeSrt '''® evailabiiity of beds for individuals wilh OUD onMedicaid. which would delay access to cere for those individuals.
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Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 69.35% Federal Funds from the United States Department of Health
and Human Services. Substance Abuse and Mentpl Health Services Administration Substance
Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant. CFDA #93.959, Federal Award Identification
Number 11010035-14, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration State
Opiord Response Grant. CFOA #93.788. and 13.50% General Funds and 17.15% Other Funds
from the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Prevention Intervention
and Treatment.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no lor>ger available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Katja S. Fox

Director

'

Approved by: / '
Jeffrey A. Meyers

■ Commissioner

rhe Oopert/rmn sno kOislon is id foln eomtujiMss a/tf ItordlM
In pt9^nQ CfiportunHitt Iqr cilbpns to teNovo tmoSft $nd i^perdana.



AtUchment A

Hrunclil OelJils

Cowvrwrfty'CpmK

^tfws COTvn
MMDHwith

1

VondorCotfa: 1S41l7-eoOi

•  f

8uu fiic«i Y«»f Ctaaa/ikcowni Tnia Budgai Amowit inc/aaia7 0oc/«ooî
 Pa^MdUodlflad

Ki9 I03-S00704 Concmeu Iw Prog
8ve S4fl.es7 ' 90 948.997

CMamaa Honwol N'* VM0M C«0»:TeD

i

to 948.957

Sum fit««i rtm Claa/Accovnt Ttda lAcraaaa/ Otcnaai
. Ravtaad ModlfWd

2019 -

8wb4eui

102400781
S«c 972,381 90 . 972.381

Catlir S«iti of NH
U«nch««tr

AteeMTam Rthab
Cu/Ftfnun

• Hi

Vantfor Coda: irrTtM-AQOl

'

172.381 '  90 -  972.311

8ut*ftoc«i r«af Ciaoa^Aceowni . . TtUa tncra«ia/6acracs« RavlaadMedlftad

2019 t0?-900784 Contmcu far Prog
9337.2U to 9337^

fnA<MNM VandorCeda: l9772O>BO0l

9337.288 90 9337.288

Suta Fia<ai Yaar Claaa/Accovnt
•

Till* inetaiW Oacraaia Raidaad MediOad

7019 1024007)4
S«« 9104.739 ' 90 91K759

Or«AanC«va«y Vandor Coda: 177397Jt001

90 9194.750

Btaia Flacal Taa# Claaa/Jtecouftt ntta (ncmaia/ Oa^aaa* Ra«4aad Medlflad

7019

' Subtotal

1024007)4 ConvaeutorPrag
Svc 974.492 to 974.402

Qraaiar Natfw

CowvO on.

AtgphoBam - Vtndor Cada: IM)74.B001

974.492 90 974.492

'  * ■ • iOy

tuta FiaeaiVM' Citaa/AccowRi . nua Ravttcd ModlOad

2019 102<M7)4
Svc 9198.372 90 ltU.372

Haadroii IX VandwCeda: l7&29fl.aQOi

9*88.372 90 9188372

tuia Fiseaf Vaor ' CiftWAacouiw Tlila Owdgai Amount 'ncraaaW 0*cfaaaa Ra«(aad Modtftad

2019 ■  *024007)4 Contracu (w Piog
Svc 944.635

944.633 90

844.635

944 835

AnMiM^di*

f^AtncidOftaO



AliKhment A ■

Fintnclil OeiaUs

Mop< Oft Kmft KO Vtnaor Codt: 7^51 iMOOl

ftuttfiiui ytu Cliaa/Acceuni TtUa Budgal A/naunl (rtcraaai/Oacraai
^  Rftlaad Madinad

2019 103-900734 Convacia for Prog
8«c t«4.039 SO t54.039

NorOi CoM/y
IImAA Cen««Dum VanAor Cetfa: 1ftA9S7.e00l

S04.039 SO j  564.039

'6ut» FUul Vmt CiaaalAccovni Tlila ewdgai (Wnovnt 'ncaaaal Dacrtaaa Rt%4aadMadlOad

3019 103 900734 Contracu Cor Prop
S<« 596.979

' 559.978

f^wnh Houmi el
Hem Ensiind. Inc. Var«ei Coda; l77S9ft«aoi

SO 1  559.979

Suu f local Taar Ctaaa/Accouni TiUa 6ud0«i Amouni tncraaaa/0«enaaa Raidaad MadtOad

3019 . t03<900734 Contracta (or ̂ og
S«« 570.249

570.749

Bwcenl VouCh
■ . BenkeSr- Var^or Coda: 203«44.a00l

SO 870.246

• SUta Fiacal Yaar Claaa/Aecowni TlUa fiudgal Amownt Ine/aaaW Oacrtaaa Rawiaad ModiOa'd

2019

8ub-toial

103-900734
S»c 122.079 to 577.079

Southcf atom NH
AleoMondOvg

S«A4en VanOor Coda 199392-8001

to S7307B

8uta Flaeal Yaar CUaa/Accouni TlOa incraaaal Oacrtaaa Raviaad MadiOad

3019

'SubJoial

103-900734 Cenkracta fwPiog
■ $»<
'

5177,799 so 5177.700

WatiCoMral'

S*r>Aca« >'tnderCoda: 1779508001

50 5177 700

Stata Flacal Yaar Claaa/Acceoiu Tlila Bvdgai Amauni ncraaaa/Oocraaaa
Ra«(aad MadtOad

3019

8uO-iotal "

102-900734 Coniracu (» Prcc
S«c 517.042 '

517.042

lL4lt.990

to

SO

10

517.042

S17.B42

lf.419.M0

Cemnwifiy C«i^
O'Nilfu.O

ta*>MC«nm

UCM«IHMVk

Su(i

7019

SuMetal

AllMhawttA

ri'M'xi^OMtU

vwdofCediaM 111-eoo 1

ClMt/AMount

I02.9007>«

mil

ContTKU lor Prog
8^

Budflvl Amouni

Si 13.143

Si 13,143

IrKrtOM/OtcroaM

to

To"

R*«4m9 Modlfktf

tltXI43

1113.143



Atttchmcni A

Fininclil Oeilili

Ovnti Horn* of NH VtrtdorCodO.TaO

Stilt PiteilVior C(ait/A«eo«nt/f>'- TlUt Dudgtl Amevnt (ncrtitt/Oterttti
Rtvlttd Med'Otd

20tt

Sub^out

'102-9007Jt- "• '■ Conu^it if Pioo
8«c S 107.619 SO 91^7.619

Etilf StBitef NN
UmhtMr

AtcoheOim Rahtb
Cb/Firtxm Vtndof Codt; 17720*4009

90

f

1167.619

Stilt fitcil Vtf dttt/AMowni TItJt IntrtitW Ott/tttt Ati4ttdUtdintd.

Mis lD24007>t Centmcu (Of P(og
Sve 6701.009 60 ' $761,083

Frr/MHNH Vtndv Cedt; 1977304001

<0 $761063

Stttt Fltcit rttr ClitWAceouni Ylllt incrtuWOtcrtrat Rt«4itdMetf>ntd

20t» 102-900734 Cenmcia (or Preg
Sic 9491.016 $0 $491,016

C<«fton CMity Vtndor C«Ot: 1773974003

SO 9451.016'

SlittFlicil Vtir Cltlt/Accouni TlUt Incrtati/Otcrtttt Rtvlitd Uedlfttd

»19

6ub-{«l|l

102-900734
Svc 9172.906 io $172,508

OtolirKathui '
Ccuncllon
AlcohollMn VtnOerCedt; 1669744001

90 9172.508

SuttFttcH Ytir Cltti/Aeceuni TItIt Budgtl AiMtml InertttW Dttrtttt' Pt<4ttdMedintd

2019 102-500734 . Cerlrteta lorPreg
S« 94J6.277 to 9436.227

HMdrttt. he VtnoerCeOt: 17522S400I

90 $438,227 -

SUItFllcil Yttr CtttJ/Accewnt Tllit Bwdfltl AmoMnl Incrtitt/Oacrtttt Rtntttd yodUltd

2019

SW&>l9lll

102400734 ContACU lerProg
S«« $103,364 90 9103.364

Hop* on Hi««n KD VtntfwCfldt: 2751194001

90 9103.364

Situ Flaet) vtar CitttMccowni TlUt GwOgtt Amevni IncrttttfOtcrtttt Rrdtid ModlOtd

2019

9ub>loiil 1

102-900734
S«c 9194.606 10 9194.606

-  NonAC«^n/y
Httltti Cwieitiwn Vandw Cedt: iS&5974aoi

SO 9194.608

Suit Fiacil Yttr ClMl/Ac^ewni Tint nertttt/Oteftttt Rttfttd Medintd

2019

SuMtttI

10^-900734 CemrtCU (or Pros
Sk 9300.726

9200.726

10

90

9200.726

fUwitisiOiul



Atiachmenl A

FiAincia) Deiails

PhMnbi hovMi o(

Vardox Coda: 1775094001

$iitaFUcaiY«»f' Cliaa/Aceeunt •niia 6ude«l Amount Incraaaaf Docroaio
Ravtaad Medined

30(1 ■ 1024007)4
Contracu forfreg

S««
1192.075 to 1162.975

Sub-ieui •  1102,975 to 1192.575

SmcmuVouUi
ftarHcaa

/  .

Vandox Coda: 20W44400I
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Aiiachment A

Finandil Details

•  2019 1  I02-5007M 1 CorunculorProQ
Sv« 1 S1.091400 91.091.800

1  Sul^tMal 1 1 1  »o Sl.09t.800 91.091.900 <

fir/KHNH - Vendor Cede; lSr7)O«00l

6uta9iatai Taar Claaa/AccowAi TtUe Sudgtl Amouni inereaief Decreaae
PawtaadMadinad

2019 1024007)4 Conl/ecit lor PrOQ
9209.298 SO 9209.298

Subtotal 9209.298 SO 9209.298

Granon County Vandor'Code; tT7)97-eO03

SUto^lacat Vaar Oaaa/Accbufii TlUa Bwdgal A^newni irtcreaaW Oacreaaa
. RasHaad Modlftad

90<9 t03.9007>« Contnctt lor Prog
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10 to ' 90

Subtotal - SO SO 90

GfMiof Kashua
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■■ '
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' Dudoai
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SO 9890.300 9890.300
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8ute Flical Year Ctaea/Acceuni Title Budgal Amawni IrKrtaaef Oacreaaa
Rttdead Modlflad .
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S»c
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S«c SO ■9114.200 tii4.200
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ftute Flacal Year Cieaa/Aeeouru TlUa Budgal Amounl Incraaie/ Oecraaae Readied Metfifled
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AltKhment A

Financljl Del ails

9019

8w64eu)

102-5007)4 COA(/«CU Iv 9i9t
Svc

SO so so.

to 10 .••;..se

Sewthwitem KH

AkohoianOOMo
S«fv4ea» VcndoiCotfa i5SM}-eOOi
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Sve
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SO 6379.600 6379.000

WtiiCMfW
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ReHaedModtned '
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8ve
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0
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0
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Subalancc Ugo DIftOfdof Treatmont and Rocovofy Support Sorviccfl

State of. New Hampshire
^  Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment 02 to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and
Recovery Support Services Contract

This 2* Amendment to the Substance Use Disorder Treatment arid Recovery Support Services contract
(hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment #2*) dated this 30tKday of August. 2018. Is by and between the
State of Now Hampshire, Department of Health and HOi^n Services (hereinafter referred to as the"
"State" or "Departmem") end Headrest., (hereinafter referred to es "the Contractor'), e nonprofit
corporation with a place of business at U Church Street. Lebanon, NH 03766.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an egreemeni (the 'Coniract") approved by the Govemor and Executive Council
on June 20. 2018 (Lete Item G) and amerxled on July 27. 2018 (Item #7) the Contractor agreed to
perforrn certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as emended and
in consideration of certain sums specified: and •

WHEREAS, the State aiKJ the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of worlt.
completion date, price limitation and payment schedules ar>d terms and conditiorts of the contract; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P.37, General Provisions. Paragreph 18. the State may modify the scope
of work and the payment schedule of the contrect upon written agreement of the parties end approval
from the Governor and Executive Council: and

WHEREAS, the pahies agree to modify the scope of services and Increase the price limllalion to support
continued delivery oMhese services;

NOW THEREFORE, in coosideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants arnJ conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. General Provisions, .Block 1.8. Price-Umltallon. to read:

1228.599.

2. Form p.37. Gener^ Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Nathan D. While, Director.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.10. Stale Agency Telephone.Number. toread:
603.271-9831.

f

4. ^lete and Replace Exhibit A. Scope of Services with Exhibit A, Amendment 02. Scope of
Services.

5. Delete and Replace Exhibit B, Methods end Conditions Precedent to Payment with Exhibit B
Amendment 02. Methods and Conditions Preccdeni to Payment.

6. ^lele and Replace Exhibit B-l, Service Fee TaWe. with Exhibit B-1, Amendment 02 Service
Fee Table.

k-* AmndmonsffZ
RpA-soteeoAseisuasT-os po9«ieis



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
SubfttorKO Uto DIflordof Tfoatmont gnd Recovcfy Support Servieoa

This amendment shall be effective upon the dale of Covernor and Executive Council approval. '*
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire

Oepartmeni of Health dr>d Human Services

Date Katja S. Fox

Director

Contractor Name

///■///^ ^
Name: s7.
Title.

Acknowtedgenitent of Contractor's Signature:

Slate of ilini .County of on . before the
undersigned omcef, personalty eppearea merperson identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document In the
capadtyJndicated above.

Signatureof Notary Putrfi^erdijsiice of the Peace

Name and Title of Notary oir Justice of the Peace

•  • • '/.♦My Commission Expires: foir wAimgrir jp Mrt^fypij^nr
Ststt o> Now KempiHr*

llyCommtBionCiipb«»F«bn^ 1.2002 ^ v '.

.  r r ^
*  •<

Hoedresl A/ngndm«t 0}
RrA-20ia>B0ASor<au8STos ^09* 2 a 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
SubtUnce Uso Oteofdcf Tfoatmcnt and Recovofy Siippoft Servlco

The preceding Amendmenl. having been reviewed by this office, is epproyed as to form substance end
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Dele Name; ^

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was opproved by the Governor and Execulive Council of
the Stale of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (eate of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Name:

Title:

RFA-»1»eOASei-SU8ST<C9 P»st 3 or)



Now Hampshiro Dopartmont of Hoalth and Human Sorvtcaa
Subatanco Uao Olaordor Treatment and Recovery Support Servlcea

Exhibit A, Amendment 02

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The ConlfBctor will submit e delelted descflplion of the language assistance

services they will provide to persons with limited English proridency to ensure
meeningfut eccess to their programs end/or services within ten (10) deys of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees thai, to the extent future tegisJetlve action by the New
Hempshlre Generel Couh or federal or state court orders may have en Impact on
the Services described herein, the Slate Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so es to achieve
compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this Contract, the Department has Identified the Contractor as a
SubrecipienI in accordance with (he provisions of 2 CFR 200 et seq.

1.4.. The Contractor will provide Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery
Support Services to any eligible client, regardless of where the dlent lives or worlts
In New Hampshire.

1.5. Startdard Compliance

1.5.1. The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy requirements as
set by (he Department.

1.5.2. Slate Optqid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

.  1.5.2.1. The Contractor must establish formal information sharing and referral
agreements with the Regional Hubs for Substance Use Services,
compliant with all applicable confldentidlity laws, including 42 CFR
Part 2 In order to receive payments for services funded with SOR
resources.

1.5.2.2. The Department must be able to verify thai dieni referrals to the
Regior\8l Hub for Substance Use Services have been completed by
Contractor prior to accepting invoices for services provided through
SOR funded initiatives.

1.5.2.3. The Contractor shaD only provide Medication Assisted Treatment
(MAT) with FDA-approved MAT for Opioid Use Disorder (OUD). FDA-
epproved MAT for OUD indudes:

1.5.2.3.1. Methadone.

1.5.2.3.2. Buprenorphine products, induding:

1.5.2.3.2.1. Single-eni|ty buprenorphine products.

Hudresi ExNba A AnwnWncni n Corcnaor WUati
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N«w Hampshlro Dopartment of Health and Human Servlcea
Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Eahlbit A, Amendtfient 02

1.5.2.3.2.2. euprenorphirte/natoxone tablets,

1.5.2.3.2.3. Buprenorphlne/naloxone films.

1.5.2.3.2.4. Buprenorphine/naloxone buccal
preparations.

1.5.2.3.3. Long.acting injectable buprenorphlrvo products.

1.5.2.3.4. Buprenorphine implants.

1.5.2.3.5. Injectable extended-release neltrexone.

1.5.2.4. The Contractor shall rwl provide medical withdrawal management
services to any Individual supported by SOR Funds, unless Ihe
withdrawal management service Is accompanied by the use of
injectable exter>ded-rel6dse neltrexone. es cJInlcally appropriate.

1.5.2.5. The Contractor shall ensure that clients recelvirtg financial aid for
recovery, housing utilizing SOR funds 8^11 only be in a recovery
housing facility that 1$ aligned with the N^nal Alliance for Recovery
Residences standards and registered with the State of New
Hampshire. Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services in accordarKo wilh
current NH Administrative Rules.

1.5.2.6. The Contractor must assist clients with enrolling In public or privaie
health Insurance, if the client is determined eligible for such coverage.

1.5.2.7. The Contrecior shall accept clients on MAT and facilitate access to
MAT cn-site qr through referral for all clients supported wilh SOR
Grant funds, ais cfinlcaily appropriate.

1.5.2.8. For clients Identified es at risk ol or wilh HIV/AIDS, the Contractor
shall coordinate with the NH Ryan While HIV/AIOs program.

1.5.2.9. The Contractor shall ensure that ell clients are regularly screened for
tobacco use. treatment needs and referral to the QuIlUne as part of

.  treatment plannirig.

2. Scope of Services
2.1. Covered Populations

2.1.1. The Contractor will provide services to eligible individuals who;

2.1.1.1. Are age 12 or older or under age 12, with required consent
from a parent or legal guardian to receive treatment, and

2.1.1.2. ' Have Income below 400% Federal Poverty Level, and

2.1.1.3. Are resldenis of New Hampshire or homeless In New
Hampshire, and

2.1.1.4. Are deiermined positive for substance use disorder.

2.2. Resiliency and Recovery Oriented Systems of Care

CortrKtzjr WltaJj ̂ 2.)
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Now H«mpthlrd pdp8rtm«nt of Health and Human Sorvlcee
Sutatanco Use Disorder Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit A. Amendn^ont P7

2.2.1. The Contractor must provide subslarKe use disorder treatment services
that support the .Resiliency and Recovery Orienlod Systems of Care
(RROSC) by operaHonalizirtg the Continuum' of Care Model
(httpy/www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbcs/bdas/continuum-of-care.htin).

2.2.2. RROSC supports person-centered and self-directed approaches to care
that build on the alrongihs and resilience- of Individuals, families and
communities to take responsibility for their sustained health, wellness end
recovery from eicohol and drug problems. At a minimum, the Contractor
must:

.2.2.2.1. Inform the integrated Delivery Networ1((9) (IDNs) of services
available in order to align this work with IDN projects that may
be similar or (mpact the same populations.

2.2.2.2. Inform the Regional Public Health Networks (RPHNs) of
servicaa evailable in order to align this work with other RPHN
projects that may t>6 similar or impact the same populations.

\  , ■

2.2.2.3. Coordinate client services with other community service
providers involved in the dienfs care and the client's support
network

2.2.2.4. Coordinate dlqnl services with. the Department's Hub
conlractofs including, but not limited to:

2.2.2.4.1. Ensuring timely admission of dienis to services;

2.2.2.4.2. Referririg any dieni receiving room & board
payment to the Hub;

2.2.2.4.3. RefefTir>g dients to Hub services when the
Contractor cannot admit a dient for services
within forty-eight (48) hours; and

2.2.2.4.4. Referring dienis to Hub services at the time of
discharge when a client is In need of Hub
services.

2.2.2.5. Be sensliive and relevant to the diversity of the dients being
served.

2.2.2.6. Be trauma Informed; I.e. designed to acXrK>wl8dge.the Impact
of violenca and trauma on people's lives and the Importance
of addressing trauma in Ireaiment.

2.3. Substance Use Disorder Treatment Services

2.3.1. The Contractor must provide one or more of iho following substance use
disordertrealmenl services:

I

RFA-MlWDASOl-SuaSTOS Pooi3rfM 0«w



Now Hampstilre Oopsrtmoni of Health 0h<t Human Sorvlcea
Subatance Use Oleorder Treatment end Recovery Support Servleoe

EKhlbH A, Amendnnnt 02

2.3.1.1. Individual Outpatient Trcatntenl as defined as American
Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) Criteria, Level 1.
Outpaiiont Treatment services assist an indlvWuai, to achieve
treatment obtectives through the exploration of substance use
disorders end their ramificdtions, Indudir^ an examination of
attitudes and feelings, and consideration of aiiemalive
solutions and decision making with regard to alcohol and
other drug related problems.

2.3.1.2. Group Outpatient Treatment as defined es ASAM Criteria,
Level 1. Outpatient Treatment services assist a group of
individuals lo achieve treatment objectives . through the
exploration of substance use disorders and their
ramificalions. including an examination of attitudes and
fealings, and consideration of alternative solutions and
decision making with regard to alcohol and other drug related
problems.

2.3.1.3. Intensive Outpatient Treatment as defined as ASAM Criteria.
Level 2.1. Iniensrva Outpatient Trcat/nent services provide
intensive and structured Individual and group alcohol and/or
other drug treatment services and activities that are provided
according to an individualized treatment plan lhat includes a
range of outpatient treatment servicea and other ancillary
alcohol , end/or other drug services. Sorvlcea for adults are
provided at taasi 9 hours a week. Services for adolescents
are provided al least 6 hours a week.

2.3.1.4. Low-Intensity Residential Treatment as defined as ASAM
Criteria, Level 3.1 for adults. Low-Intensity Residential

^  Treatmeni services provide residential substwco use
disorder treatment services designed to support individuals
that need this residential sarvice. The goal of low-lntanslty
^®sldeniial treatment is to prepare dienia to become self-
sufficient in the community. Adult residents typically work In
the community and may pay a portion of their room and
board.

2.4. Reserved

2.5. Enrolling Clients for Services

2.5.1. The Contractor will determine eligibility for services In accordence with
Section 2.1 above and wfith Sections 2.5.2 through 2.5.4 below:

2.5.2. The Contractor must complete intake screenings es follows:

ErfVW A. Amondmoni fJ
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New HampsKiro Oopartmont of Health and Human Sorvlcos
Substance Use Olaofdor Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment 02

• j.-

2.5.2.1. Have direcl contact (face to face communication by meeting
.  in person, or electronically or by tetephone conversation) with
an Indivldijal (denned as anyone or a provider) within two (2)
business days from the date that Individual contacts the
Contractor for Substance Use Disorder Treatment and
Recovery Support Services. All attempts at contact must be
documented in the client record or a call log.

2.5.2.2. Compleie an initial Intake Screening within two (2) business
deys from the dale of the first direct contact with the
Individual, using the eligibility .module in Web Information
Techrx>logy System (WITS) to determine probability of being
eligible for services under this contract and for probability of
having a substance use disorder. All attempts at contact must
be documented in the client record or a call log.

2.5.2.3. Assess clients' Income prior to admission using the WITS fee
determlnallon model and

2.5.2.3.1. Assure that dienls' income information Is

updated as needed over the course of

treatment by asking clients about any changes
In income no less frequently than every 4
weeks. Inquiries et>ou1 changes in income must

be documented in the client record.

2.5.3. The Contractor shall complete an ASAM Level of Care Assessment for all
services in Sections 2.3.1.1 through 2.3.1.4 within two (2) days of the Initial
Intake Screening in Section 2.5.2 above using the AS! Lite module, in Web
Information Technology System (WITS) or other method approved by the
Department when the Individual is determined probaWe of being eliglbte for
services.

2.5.3.1. The Contractor shall make'available to the Department, upon
request, the data from the ASAM Level of Care Assessment
in Section 2.5.3 in a format approved by the Department.

2.5.4. The Contractor shall, for all services provided, complete a clinical
evaluation utilizing Continuum or en eltematlve method approved by the
Department that include OSM 5 diagnostic Information end a
recommendation for a level of care based on the-ASAM Criteria, published
in October, 2013. The Contractor must complete a cfinical evaluation, tor
eech client;
t

2.5.4.1. Prior to admlssioo as a part of Interim services or within 3
business days foOowIng edmission.

He»dx«$| ^ §2 ContmctsrMniti
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Now Hampshtro Oeparlmont of Health and Human Sorvleea
Substance Uao Oloordor Treatment and Recovery Support Services

Exhibit A. Amendment P2

2.S.4.2. During treatment only when determined by a Licensed
Counselor.

2.5.5. The Contractor must use. the dinical evaluations completed by a Licensed
Counselor from a referring agency.

2.5.6. The Contractor will either complete clinicai evaluations In Section 2.5.4
above before admission ££ Level of Care Assessmertls. In Section 2.5.3

above before admission along with a dinicel eveluatien in Section 2.5.4
8t>ov6.after admisslort.

2.5.7. The Contractor shall provide eligible dients the substance use disorder

treatment services in Section 2.3 determined by the dienl's clir>ica1
evaluation In Section 2.5.4 unless:

2.5.7.1. The drent choses to receive a service with a lower ASAM

Level of Care; or

2.5.7.2. The service with the needed ASAf^ level of care Is
unavailable at the time the level of care is determined In

,  Section 2.5.4, ir> which case the dient may chose:

2.5.7.2.1. A service with a lower ASAM Level of Care;

2.5.7.2.2. , A service with the next available higher ASAM
Level of Care;

2.5.7.2.3. Be placed on the walUist until their service with

the assessed ASAM level of care becomes

available as In Section 2.5.4; or

2.5.7.2.4. Be referred to another agency in the dient's
service area that provides the service with the

'  needed ASAM Level of Care.

2.5.8. The Contractor shall enroll eligible dients for services in order of the
priority described below:

2.5.6.1. Pregnant women and women with dependent children, even if
the children ere not In their custody, as long as parantal rights
have not been terminated, induding the provision of Interim
services within the required 48 hour lime frame. If the '
Contractor is unable to admit a pregnant woman for the
needed level of care within 24 hours, the Contractor shall:

2.5.6.1.1. Contact the Regional Hub in the dient's area to
connect the dient with substance use disorder

treatment servtcas.

2.5.8.1.2. ' Assist the pregnanl woman with Identifying
allernative providers and with accessing

Headrest Eidifcli a. « Confractor WtUU YfC
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services with these providers. This assistance

must inchide actively reaching out to identify
providers on the behalf of the client.

.2.5.6.1.3. Provide interim services until the appropriate
level of care becomes available at either the
Contractor a^rtcy or an alternative provider.
Interim services shall include:

2.5.8.1.3.1. Arieasi one 60 minute Individual

or group outpatierU sessior^ per

. week;

2.5.6.1.3.2. Recovery support services as

needed by the dierit;

2.5.8.1.3.3. Daily calls to the diant to assess
and respond to any emergent'
needs.

2.5.8.2. Individuals who have been admlnlsiered naloxone to reverse
the effeds of en opioid overdose either In the 14 days prior to
screening or in (he period belvreen screening and admission
to (he program.

2.5.8.3. individuals with a history of injodlon drug use Including the
provision of Interim services within 14 days.

2.5.8.4. individuals >vith substance use and ooccuning mental
health disorders.

2.5.6.5. Individuals vMlh Opioid Use Disorders.

2.5.8.6. Veterans with eubsiance use disorders

2.5.6.7. . Individuals with eubstance use disorders who are Involved
with the criminal justice and/or cbi|.d protection system.

2.5.8.8. Individuals who require priority admission at the request of
the Department.

2.5.9. The Contractor must obtain consent in accordance with 42 CFR Part 2 lor
treatment from the dient prior to receiving services for individuals whose
age Is 12 years and older.

2.5.10. The Contractor must obtain consent in accordance with 42 CFR Pati 2 for
treatment from the parent or legal guardian when the dieni Is under the
age of twefve (12) prior to receiving services.
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2.5.11. The Contractor must tndudo In the consent forms language for diont
consent to share information with other social service agencies involved in
the dient's care. Induding but not limited to:

2.5.11.1. The Department's Drviston of Children. Youth andfamilies
(DCYF)

2.5.11.2. Probation and perde

2.5.11.3. Regional Hub(6)

2.5.12. The Contractor shall not prohibit clients from receiving services under this
conirect when a dient does not consent to infofmation sharing in Sedion
2.5.11 above except that dients who refuse to consent to information
sharing with the Regional Hub(s) shall rwt receive services utilizing State
Opioid Response (SOR) funding.

-2.6.13. The Contractor shall notify the clients whose consent to Information
sharing in Section 2.5.11 above that they have the ability to rescind the
consent at any lime without any impact on services provided under this
contrad except that dients who resdnd consent to Information sharing
with the Regional h!ub(s) shall not receive any additional services utilizing
State Opioid Response (SOR) fundir)g.

\

2.5.14. The Contractor shall not deny services to an adolescent due to:

2.5.14.1. The parent's Inability and/or unwillingness to pay the fee;

2.5.14.2. The adolescent's decision to receive confidential services
pursuant to RSA 316-6:12*a.

2.5.15. The Contractor must provide services to eligible dients who:

2.5.15.1. -Recervc Medication Assisted Treatment services from other
providers such as a dient's prirnary care provider;

2.5.15.2. Have co-occurring mental health disorders; and/or

2.5.15.3. Are on medications end are taking those medications as
prescribed regardless of the dass of medication.

2.5.16. The Contractor miisl provide substance use disorder treatment services
separately for adolescent and adults, unless otherwise approved by the
Department. The Contractor agrees that adolescents and adults do not
share the same residency space, however, the communal pace euch as
kitchens, group rooms, and recreation may be shared but at separate .
times.

2.6. Waitlists

Hasrirett emwA.
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2.6.1. Thd Contractor will maintain a waitlist for all clients and all substance use
disorder treatment services Including the eligible clients being served
under this contract ertd dients being served under another payer source.

2.6.2. The Contractor wiil track the wail time for the dients to receive services,
from the date of initlel obntect In Section 2.5.2.1 above, to the date dients
firsi received substance use disorder treatment services In Sections 2.3
end 2.4 atwve. other than Evaluation In Section 2.5.4

2.6.3. The Contractor wlll report to the Department monthly:

2.6.3.1. The overego welt time for elt clients, by the typo of service
and payer source for all the services.

•2.6.3.2. The average wait lime for priorliy dients in Section 2.5.8
above by the type of service and payer source for the
services.

2.7. Assistance with Enrolling In Insurartce Programs '

2.7.1. The Contractor must assist clients and/or their parents or legal guardians,
who are unable to secure financial resources necessary for Initial entry into
the program, with obtaining other potential sources for payment, such as;

2.7.1.1. Enrollmeni in public or private Insurance. Induding but not
timltcd to New Hampshire Medicald programs within fourteen
(14) days efter intake.

2.7.1.2. Assistance with securing financial resources Of the dients'
refusal of such assistance must be dearly documented In the
dient record.

2.6. Service Delivery Activities end Reouirements

2.8.1. The Contractor shall assess all clients for risk of self-harm at all phases of
treatment, such as at initial contact, during saeenlng. Intake, admission,
on-going treatment services and at discharge.

2.8.2. The Contractor shall assess aO dients for wiihdrBwal risk based on ASAM
(2013) standards al all phases of treatment, such as at initial contact,
during screening. Intake, admission, ongoing treatment services and

stabtlize al) dients based on ASAM (2013) guidance and Shan;

2.8.2.1. Provide stabilization services when a dient's level of risk
Indicates e service with an ASAM Level of Care that can be
provided under this Contracl; If a client s risk level Indicates a
service with an ASAM Level of Care that can be provided
under this contract, then the Conirector shall Integrate
withdrawal management Into the dient's treatment plen and
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2.8.3.

2.8.2.2.

provide on-going assessment of wUhdrevtral risk to ensure that
withdrawal is managed safety.

Refer dienis to a facility where the senrices can be provided
when a dieni's risk indicates a service with an ASAM Level of
Care that is higher than can be provided under this Contract;
Coordinate with the withdrawal management services
provider to admit the client to an appropriate service once the
dienfe withdrawal risk has reached a level that can be
provided under this conirecl.

The Contractor must complete individualized treatment plans for all diehis
based on dinicai evaluation data within three (3) days or three (3)
sessions, whrchever Is tonger of the dinicai evaluation (In Sedion 2.5.4
above), that address problems in ell ASAM (2013) domains which juslified
the dient's admittance to a given level of care, that are in accordance the
requirements In ExhlWI A-1 and that;

2.8.3.1. Indude In all individualized treatment plan goals, objectives,
and intervenilons written In terms (hat are: '

2.8.3.1.1.

2.8.3.1.2.

2.8.3.1.3.

2.8.3.1.4.

2.8.3.1.5.

2.8.3.2.

2.6.3.3.

specific, (clearly defining what wiD be done)

measurable (Induding dear criteria for progress
and completion)

attainable (within the. individual's ability to
achieve)

realistic (the resources are available to the
individual), and

timely (this Is something that needs to be done
and there is a stated time frame for completion
that is reasonable).

Indude the client's involvement In identifying, developing, and
prioritizing goals, objeclives, and interventions.

Are update based on any changes In any American Society of
Addiction MadidnB Criteria (ASAM) domain and no less
frequently than every 4 sessions or every 4 weeks, whichever
Is less frequent. Treatment plan updates must Indude:

2.8.3.3.1. Oocumentalion of the degree to which the client
is meeting treatment plan goats and objectives;

2.8.3.3.2. Modiftcatipn of existing goals or addition of new
goals based on changes in the dients
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functlonir^ relative to ASAM domains and
treatment goals and objectives.

2.8.3.3.3. The counselor's assessment of whether or not
the client needs to move to ,a different level of
care based on changes in functioning In any
ASam domain and documantetion of the

reasons for this assessment.

2.8.3.3.4. The signature of the client and the counselor
agreeing to the updated treatment plan, or if
applicable, documentation of the client's refusal
to.sign the treatmerit plan.

2.8.3.4. Track the dienl's progress relative to the specific goals.
objectives, and Intenrenlions in the dient's tfetiiment plan by
complfiiing encounter notes in WITS.

2.6.4. The Contractor ahal) refer clients to and codrdinate a dient's care swith
other providers.

2.8.4.1. The Contractor shall obtain In advance If appropriate.
consents from the dient. Including 42 CFR Pan 2 consent. If
applicable, and In compliance with state, federal laws and
state and federal rules, ihdudlng but not limited to:

2.8.4.1.1. ~ Primary care provider and if the client does not
have a primary care provider, the Contractor
will make an appropriate referral to one end
coordinate care with that provider if appropriate
consents from the dient. Including 42 CFR Pan
2 conseni, If applicable, are obtained In
advance In compliance with slate, federal lews
and state and federal rules.

2.8.4.1.2. Behavioral health care provider y^en serving
dients with co-occurring substance use and
mental health disorders, and rf the client does
not have a mental health care provider, then the
Contractor will make an appropriate referrel to
one end coordinate care with that provider rf
appropriate consents from the dient. Including
42 CFR Pan 2 consent, if applicable, are
obtained in advance in compliance with state,
federal laws and state and federal rules.

2.8.4.1.3. Medication assisted treatment provider.

ei«>flA.Am#nOrwn)#2 ConwawWlltfi
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2.0.4.1.4. Peer recovery support provider, artd If ihe dlcnt
(Joes not have e peer recovery support

■.provider, the Contraclof will make en
appropriate referral to one and coordinate care
with that provider If eppropriate consents from
the client, including 42 CFR Pert 2 wnsent. rf
applicable, ere obtained in advance in
compliance- with slate, federal lav^ and state
end federal rules.

2.8.4.1.5. Coordinate with local recovery community
organizations (where available) to bring peer
recovery support providers into the treatment
setting, to meet, with dients to describe
available services and to engage dients in peer
recovery support services es applicable!

2.8.4.1.6. Coordinate with case management services
offered by the dienl's managed- care
organization or third party insurance, if
applicable. If appropriate consents from the
dienl. Induding 42 CFR Part 2 consent, if
applicable. ' ere obtained in advarKo in
compliance, with state, federal laws and state
end federal, rutes.

2.8:4.1.7. Coordinate vrfth other social service agencies
engaged with the dient, including but not limited
to the Department's Division of Chitdren. Youth
and FamDies (OCYF). probation/parole, and the*
Regional Hub(s) as applicable and allowable
with consent provided pursuant to 42 CFR Pert
2.

2.8.4.2. .The Contractor must dearly document In the dlenfs file If Ihe
client refuses any of the referrals or care coordinalion in
Section 2.6.4 above.

2.8.5. The Contractor must complete continuing care, transfer, and discharge
plans for all Services in Section 2.3 that address all ASAM (2013)
domains, that are In accordance with the requirements In Exhibit A-1 and
that:

2.0.5.1. Indudo the process of transfer/discharge planning at Ihe time
of the client's intake to the program.
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2.6.5.2. Indude alleast one (1) of the three (3) criteria for contlnuirtg
services whi9n addressing continuing care as follows:

2.8.5.2.1. Continuing Service Criteria A: The patient is
making progress, but has not yet achieved the
goals articulated in the individualized treatment
plan. Continued treatment at the present level
of care is asse^ed as necessary to permit the
petient to continue to work toward his or her

treaiment goals; or

2.8.5.2.2. Continuing Service Criteria B: The,patient Is not
yet mdkir>g progress, but has the capacity to
resolve his or her problems. He/she Is ectlvety
working toward the' goals articulated In the
lr>dividualized treatment plan. Continued
treatment at the pM'esent level of care is

assessed as necessary to permit the patient to
continue to work toward his/her treatment
goals; and /or

2.8.5.2.3. Continuing Service Criteria C: New problems
have been Identified thai are appropriately
treated at the present fevel of care. The new

problem or priority requires services, the
frequency and Intanslty of which can only safely /
be delivered by continued stay in the current
level of care. The level of care which the

patient Is receiving treatment is therefore the

least Intensive level at which the patient's
problems can be addressed effectively

2.6.5.3. Include at least one (1)'of the four (4) criteria for
transfer/discharge, when addressing transfer/discharge that
Include:

2.8.5.3.1. Transfer/Discharge Criteria A; The Patient has
achieved the goals articulated in the

Individualized treatment plan, thus resoMng thq
probtem(s) that justified admission to the

present level of care. Continuing the chronic
disease management of the patienfe condition
at a less Intensive level of care Is Indicated; or

2.8.5.3.2. Transfer/Discharge Criteria B: The patient has
been unable to resolve the problem(s) that
justified the admission to the present level of
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care, despite amendments to the treatment

plan. The patient Is determined to have
achieved the makimum possible benefit from
engagement in services at the current level of
care. Treatment at another level of care (more
or less intensive) In (he same type of services,
or discharge from treatment, is therefore

indicated; or

2.8.5.3.3. Transfer/Discharge Criteria Q: The patient has
demonstrated - e lack of capacity due to
diagnostic or co-occurring conditions that limit
his or her ability to resolve his or her

problem(8). Treatment at a qualitatively
different level of care or type of service, or
discharge from treatment. Is therefore Indicated;
Of

2.8.5.3.4. Transfer/Discharge Criteria D: The patient has
experienced an inienslficatjon of his or her

problem(s). or has developed a new
problem(s). end can be treated effectively at a
more intensive level.of cere.

2.8.6. The Conirector shall deliver all services In this Agreement using evidence
based practices as demonstrated by meeting one of the following crltefia;

2.8.6.1. The service shall be included as an evidence-based mental
health end substance abuse intervention on (he SAMHSA
Evidence-Based Practices Resource Center

https://www.samhsa.gov/ebp-resource-ccntef

2.6.8.2. The services shall be published in a peer-reviewed journal
and found to have positive effects; or

2.8.6.3. The substance use disorder treatment service prpvider shall
be able to document the services' effectiveness based on the
following;'

2.6.6.3.1. The service is based on a theoretical
perspective that has validated research; or

2.8.6.3.2. The service is supported by a documehted
body of knowledge generated from similar or
related services that indicate effectiveness.

2.0.7. The Contractor shall deliver services in this Contract. In accordance wtth:
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2.8.7.1. The ASAM Criteria (2013). The ASAM Criteria (2013) cart be
purchased online through the ASAM website at:
http:/\vww.asamcrileria.org/

2.6.7.2. The Substance Abuse Mental Health Services Administration
(SAMHSA) Treatment Improvement Protocols (TIPs)

{  availeble el • http://$tore.semhse.gov/list/seri6s?name=TIP'
Serie$-Tr6atment*lmprovement-Protocol8>TIPS*

2.8.7.3. The SAMHSA Technical Assistance PuWicelions (TAPs)
'  available at

htip://store.semhs8.gov/ll8t/serle9?name=Technjcal-
Asslstdnce-Publicdtlons>TAPs-8p3geNumber=1

2.8.7.4. The Requirements in Exhibit A-1.

2.9. Client Educalion

•  2.9.1. The Contractor shall offer to all eligible clients receiving services under this
contract, individual or group education on prevention, treatment, and
nature of:

2.9.1.1. Hepatitis C Wats (HCV)

2.9.1.2. Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

2.9.1.3. Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STO)

2.9.1.4. Tobacco Treatment Tools that include:

2.9.1.4.1. Assessing clients for motivation In stopping the
use of tobacco products;

2.9.1.4.2. Offering resources such as but not limited to the
Department's Tobaooo Prevention & Control
Program (TPCP) and the certified tobacco
cessation counselors availeble .through the
QuitUne;.and

2.10. Tobacco Free Environment

2.10.1. The Contractor must ienwre a tobacco-free environment by having policies
end procedures that at a minimum:

2.10.1.1. include (he smoking of any tobacco product, the use of orat
tobacco products or *splt* tobacco. er>d the use of electronic
devices:

2.10.1.2. Apply to employees, dients and employee ordient vtsitors;

2.10.1.3. Prohibit the use of tobacco products within the Contractor's
fadlities at any time.
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2.10.1.4. PfOhiblllhe use of tobacco In any Contracior owned vfihtalo.

2.10.1.5. Include whciher or not use of lobacco products is prohiWIed
outside of the facility on the grourtds.

2.10.1.6. Include the foltowlng if use of lobacco products Is allowed
outside of the fadllty on the grounds;

2.10.1.6.1. A designated smoking areo(s) which Is located
el least twenty (20) feet from the main entrance.

2.10.1.6.2. All materials used for smoking in this area.
Including cigarette butts end matches, will be
extinguished and disposed of in appropriate
containers.

2.10.1.6.3. Ensure periodic cleanup of the designated
smoking area.

2.10.1.6.4. If the designated smoking area Is not property
maintained, It can be eliminated et the
discretion of the Contractor.

2.10.1.7. Prohibit lobacoo use in any company vehicle.

2.10.1.B. Prohibit tobacco use in personal vehicles when Uansporting
people on authorized business.

2.10.2. The Contractor must post the tobacco free environment policy in the
Contractor's facllilies and vehicles end included In employee, client, end
visitor orientation.

2.10.3. The contractor shall no! use tobacco use. In end of itsetf. as grounds for
discharging dients from services being provided under this contract.

3. Staffing
3.1. The Contractor shall meet the fnintmum staffing requirofrients to provide the scope

of work In (his RFA as follows:

3.1.1. At least one licensed supervisor, defined as.

3.1.1.1. Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLAOC); or
3.1.1.2. Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADC) who also holifs

the Licensed ainical Supervisor (LOS) credential; or

3.1.. 1.3. Licensed mental health provider

3.1.2. Sufficient staffing levels that are appropriate for the services provided and
the nurnberof dients served. Including, but not limited to:
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3.1.2.1. Licensed counselors defined as MLADGs, LAOCs. and
individuals licensed by the Board of Mental Heallh FVactice or
the Board of psychology. Licensed counselors may delivor
any dlnical or recovery support services wtthrn their scope of
practice.

3.1.2.2. Unlicensed counselors defined as individuals who have
completed the required oourseworit for lioensure by the Board
of Alcohol and Other Drug Use Providers. Board of Mental
Health PrecUce or Board of Psychology end ere working to
flccu'T^uleie the work experience required for licensure.
Unlicensed counselors may deliver eny dinical or recovery
support services within their scope of knowtedge provided
that they are urtder the direct supervision of e licensed
supervisor.

3.1.2.3. Certified Recovery Support workers (CRSWs) who may
deliver intensive case manegemenl end other recovery
support services within their scope of practice provided that
they are under the direct supervision of a licensed supervisor.

3.1.2.4. Uncertified recovery support workers defined as individuals
who are working to accumulate the work experience required
for certification as a CRSW who may deliver intensive case
rhartagement and other recovery support services within their
scope of knowlodge provided ihat they are under the direct
supervision of e licensed supervisor.

3.1.3. No licerised supervisor shell supcrvrse more than twelve, staff unless the

Department has approved an allemailve supervision plan (See Exhibit A-1
Section 6.1.2).

.3.1.4. Provide ongoing dinical supennslon that occurs at regular intervals in
accordance with the Operatjona! Requirements In Exhibit A-1. end
evidence based practices, at a minimum:

3.1.4.1. WeeWy disojssion of cases with suggestions for resources or
therapeutic approaches, (^therapy, and periodic assessment
of progress;

3'.1.4.2. (^up supervision to help optimize the learning experience,
whan enough carididates ara under supervision;

3.2.' The Contractor shall provide training to staff on:

3.2.1. Knowledge, skills, values, and ethics with specific application to the
prectioe issues faced by the supervisee;

3.2.2. The 12 core furtctions;

Headrest EjWbi A x/wwnmi«

RfA-2oiaBaAs.ei.su8stes i? oi 2e oii»



Now Hampshire Department of Health end Human Services
Subetaneo Use DIoordor Treatment end Recovery Support Sorvlces

Exhibit A, Amendment 02

3.2.3. The Addiction Couftseling Competencies; The Knowledge. Skills, end
Attitudes of Professlonel Prectice, available at
http7/store.samhs8.gov/produci/TAP-21-A<ldlcttor^-Counseling.
Competencjes/SMA15-4171; and

..4-'

3.2.d. The standards of practice and ethical conduct, with particular emphasis
given to the counselor s role and eppropriale responsibflities. professional
boundaries, and power dynamics and appropriate information seiMrlly end

.confidentiality practices for handling protected health informaUon (PmI) end
8ut)stance use disorder treatment records es safeguarded by A2 CFR Part
2.

3.3. The Contractor shall notify the Department, In writing of changes In key per^nnel
and provide, within five (5) working days to the Department, updated resumes that '
dearty indicale the staff member is employed by the Contractor. Key perMnnel are
those staff for whom at least 10% of their work time Is spent providing substance
use disorder treatment and/or recovery support services.

3.4. The Contractor shall notify the Department In writing within one month of hire when
a new admlnistraiof or coordinator or any staff, person essential to carrying out this
scope of services is hired to work in the program. The Contractor shall provide a
copy of the resume of the employee, which dearly Indicates' the staff member Is
employed by the Contractor, with the notification.

3.5. The Conlractof shall notify the Department in writing within 14 calendar days, when
there Is r*ot suffident staffing to perform aD required services for more than one
month.

3.6. The Contredor shall have policies and procedures related to studehi interns to
address minimum coursework. experience and core oompetencies for those Interns
having, direct contact with Individuals served by this contract Additionally, The
Conlrador must have student interns complete an approved ethics course and an
approved course on the 12 core functions and the Addiction Counseling
Competencies: The Knowledge. Skills, and Attitudes of Professional Practice In
Section 3.2.2, and appropriate Information security arnJ conridentlalily practices for
handling protected health Information (PHI) and substance use disorder treatment
records es safeguarded by 42 CFR Pert 2 prior to beginning their (nternship.'

3.7. The Contractor shall have unlicensed staff complete an approved elhits course and
en approved course on the 12 core functions and the Addiction Counseling
Competendos: The Knowledge. SkiUs, and Attitudes of Professional Practice in
Section 3.2.2. end information security and. confidentially practices for handling
protected health InformaUon (PHI) and substance.use disorder Ire.etrnent records as
safeguarded by 42 CFR Part 2 within 6 months of hire;' ,

I  • .. .
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3.6. The Contractor shall ensure staff receives continuous education in the ever
changing Tjetd of substance use disorders, and state and federal taws, and rules
relating to confidentiality

3.9. The Contractqr shall provide In-service training to all staff involved In dienl care
within 15 days of the contract effective date or the staff person's start date, if after
the contract effective date, and at least every 90 days thereafter on the following:

3.9.1. The contract requirements.

3.0.2. All other relevant policies arxf procedures provided by the Department.

3.10. The Contrectcr shall provide In-service training or ensure attendance at en
approved training by the Department to dinical staff on hepaiitis C (HCV). human
Immunodericiency virus (HIV). tut>erculosis (TB) arid sexually transmitted diseases
(STOs) annually. The Contractor shall provide the Department with a list of (rained
staff.

t

4. Facilities License
4.1. The Contrador shall t>e licensed for all residential services provided with the

Department's Health fadlitles AdminisiraUon.

4.2. The Contractor, shall comply wlih the additional licensing requirements for medically
monitored, residential withdrawal management services by the Department's
Bureau of Health Facilities Administration to meet higher facilities iicensure
standards.

4.3. The Contreictor is responsible for ensuring that the facilities where services are
provided meet all the applicable laws, rules; policies; and.:6lari^rds.

5.'Web Information Technology
5.1. - The Contractor shall use the Web information Technology System (WITS) to record

all dient activity and dient contact within (3) days following the activity or contact as
directed by (he Department.

5.2. The Contrador shall, before providing services, obtain written informed consent
from the client slating that the dient understands that:

5.2.1.. The WITS system is administered by the State of New Hampshire;

5.2.2. State emptoyees have access to all Informallon that is entered into the
WITS system;

5.2.3. Any Information entered Into (he WITS system becomes (he property of the
-  State of New Hampshire.

5.3. The Contractor shall have any dient whose information is entered into the WITS
system complete a WITS consent to the Department.
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I  5.3.1. Any dten! refusing to sign the Informed consent In 5.2 and/or consent in
'  5.3:

5.3.1.1. Shall not be entered Into the WITS system; and

5.3.1.2. Shall not receive services under this contract.

5.3.1.2.1. Any dient who cannot receive services under
this contract pursuant to Section 5.3.1.2 shall
be assisted in finding ellematrve payers for the
required services.

■ 5.4. The Contractor agrees to the Information Security Requlremenis Exhibit K.

5.5. The WITS system shall only be used for dients who are in a program that Is funded by
or under the oversight of the Department.

6. Reporting
6.1. The Contrectof Shall report oh the following:

6.1.1. National Outcome Measures (NOMs) date in WITS for:

6.1.1.1. 100% ofall dients at admission

6.1.1.2. 100% of all dients who are discharged because (hey have
completed treatment or transferred to another program

6.1.1:3. 50% of all dients who are discharged for reasons other than
those specified above in Section 6.1.1.2.

6.1.1.4. The above NOMs In Section 6.1.1.1 through 6.1.1.3 ere
minimum requirements and the Contractor shall attempt to
achieve greater reporting results when ̂ ssible.

6.1.2. Monthly end quarterly web based contract compliance reports no later than

the 10th day of the month following the reporting month Of quarter;
6.1.3. All chiical Incidents to the bureau In writing as soon as possible and no

more than 24 hours following the Incident. The Contractor agrees that:.

6.1.3.1. Critical Incident" means any actual or alleged event or-
situation that aeales a signtficant risk of substantial or
serious herm to physical or mental health, safety, or well*
beirtg, ir>cludir>9 but not limited to:

6.1.3.1.1. Abuse;

6.1.3.1.2. Neglect;

6.1.3.1.3. Exploitation;

6.1.3.1.4. Rights violalion;

6.1.3.1.5. Missing person;

Heodreil E.e>iba a. Am«ndm«M 02
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6.1.3.1.6. Medical emergency;

6.1.3.1.7. Restraint; or

6.1.3.1.6. Medical error.

6.1.4. All contact u/lth law enlofcament to the bureau in writirtg as soon as
possible and no more than 24 hours following the incident;

6.1.5. All Media contacts to the bureau in writing as soort as possible and no
more than 24 hours following the incident:

6.1.6. Sentinel events to the Department as follows:

6.1.6.1. Senllnel events shall be reported when they Involve any
individual who Is receiving services under this coniract;

•  6.1.6.2. . Upon discovering the event. Ihe Contractor shall provide

immediate verbal notrfication of the event to the bureau,

which shall include:

6.1.6.2.1. The reportir>g individuars name, phone number,

and agency/organization;

6.1.6.2.2. Name and date of birth (DOB) of the
indlvidual(s) involved in the event;

6.1.6.2.3. Location, date, and llrrte of the event;

6.1.6.2.4. Description of the event, indudir^g what. when,
where, how the event happened, end other

relevant Information, as well as the identification

of any other Individuals Involved;

6.1.6.2.5. Whether the police were involved due to a

chme or ̂ spectad chme; artd

6.1.6.2.6. The identification of any media that had
reported the event;

6.1.6.3. Within 72 hours of the sentinel event, the Contr^or shall
submit a completed 'Sentinel Event Reporting Form*
(February 2017), available at

https7Miww.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbcs/documents/reporting-form.pdf
to the bureau -

6.1.6.4. Addltior>al information on the event that is discovered after

filing the form In Section 6.1.6.3. above shall t>e reported to
the Oepanment, in writing, as It becomes available or upon
request of the Oeparlmeht; and

Hutfrni
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6.1.6.5. Submit additional irifomiaiion regardirtg Sactions 6.1.6.1
through 6.1.6.4 above if required by the department; end

6.1.6.6. Report the event in Sections 6.1.6.1 through 6.1.6.4 above,
as applicable, to other agencies as required by law.

7. Quality Improvement
7.1. The Contractor shall participate in all quality Improvement activities to ensure the

standard of core for clients, as requested by the Department, such as but no!
limited to:

7.1.1. Participation in electronic end in-person diont record reviews

7.1.2. Participation in site visits

7.1.3. Participation in training end technical assistance activities as directed by
the Depa/tment.

7.2. The Contractor shall monlior and manage the utilization levels of care and service
array to ensure services are offered through the term of the contract to:

7.2.1. Maintain a consistent service capacity for Substance Use Disorder
Treatment and Recovery Support Services statewide by:
7.2.1.1. Moniloring the capacity such as staffing and other resources

io consistently and evenly deliver these services; and
7.2.1.2. Monitoring no less than monthly the percentage of the

contract funding expended relallye to the percentage of the
contract period that has elapsed. If there Is e difference of
more than 10% between expended funding and elapsed time
on the contract the Contractor shall notify the Department
within S^ays and submii a plan for cofrecling the discrepancy
within 10 days of noirfying the Department.

8. .Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity
8.1. In order to enable DHHS to evaluate the Gontractor's fiscal integrity, the Contractor

agrees to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet. Profit and Loss Statement,
end Cash Flow Statement for the Contractor. The Profii and Loss Statement shall
Indude a budget column allowirig for budget to actual analysis. Statements shall be
submitted within thirty (30) calendar days after each month end. The Contractor will

.  be evaluated on the following:

8.1.1. Days of'Cash on Hand:

8.1.1.1. Dermit'wn: The days of operabrig expenses that can be
covered by the unrestricted cash on hand.

8.1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents arid short term investments
divided by total operBting expenditures. (ess
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depfeciaiion/emortization and in-kirtd plus prtnci^i payments
on debl divided by days In the reporting period. The short-
term investments as used above must mature within three (3)
•months and should not Include common stock.

8.1.1.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall have enough
cash and cash equivalents to cover expenditures for a
minimum ol thirty (30) calendar days with no variance
allowed.

8.1.2. Current Ratio:

8.1.2.1. Ocfinition: A measure of the Contractor's total current assets
available to cover the cost of current liabllJlies.

8.1.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total current
liabilities.

6.1.2.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a
minimum current ratio of 1.5:1 with 10% variance allowed.

6.1.3; Debt Service Coverage Ratio:

8.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio illustrates the Contractor's ability to
cover the cost of its current portion of Its long-term debt.

8.1.3.2. Definition; The ratio of Net Income to the year to date debt
service.

8.1.3.3. Formula: Net Income plus Depreciation/Amortization
Expense plus Interest Exportse divided by year to date debt
servico (principal and interest) over the next twelve (12)
months.

8.1.3.4. Source of Data: The Contractors Monthty Financial
Statements idontrfying current portion of lor>g-term debt

. peyrrtents (principal and interest).

8.1.3.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a
mhlmum standard of 1.2:1 wliH no variance allowed.

8.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets:

8.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is en indication of the Contractor's abflity
to cover Its liabilities.

8.1.4.2. OBflnltlon: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total
assets.

8.1.4.3. Formula: Net assets (total assets less total liabllitias) divided
by total assats.
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8.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Coniractor's Monthly Financial
Statements.

8.1.4.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a
minimum ratio of .30;1.,-wjlh a 20% variance allowed.

8.2. In the event that the Contractor does not meet either;

8.2.1 The standard regarding Days of Cash on Hand and the standard regarding
Current Ratio for two (2) consecutive months: or

8.2.2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintenance of Fiscal Inl^rity standards
for three (3) consecutive months, then

8.2.3. The Department may require that the Contractor meet with Department
staff to explain the reasons that the Contractor has not mat the standards.

8.2.4. The Department may require the Contractor lo submit a comprehensive
corrective action plan within thirty (30) calendar days of notincallon that
8.2.1 and/or 6.2.2 have not been met.

8.2.4.1. The Contractor shall update the corrective action plan at least
every thirty (30) calendar days until compliance Is achieved.'

'8.2.4.2. The Contractor shad provide additional information to assure
continued access to services as requested by the
Department. The Contractor shall provide requested
Information In a timaframe agreed upon by both parties.

8.3. The Contractor shall Inform the Department by phone and by email wllhin twenty-
four (24) hours of when any key Contractor staff loam of any actual or likely
liligalion, investigation, complaint, claim, or transaction that may reasonabty be
considered to have a material ftnandal impact on and/or materially impact or impair
the obllify of the Contractor to perform under this Agreement with the Department.

8:4.. The monthly Balance Sheet. ProHt & Loss Statement. Cash Flow Statement, and all
other ftnanciel reports shall be based on the accrual method of accounting and
include the Contractor's total revenues arvJ expenditures whether or not generated
by or resulting from funds provided pursuant to this Agreement. These reports are
duo wllhin thirty (30) calendar days after the end of each month.

9. Performance Measures
The following performance measures are required for client services rendered from'SOR
funding only.

9.1. The Contractor must ensure that 100% of clients in residential level of care 3.1 covered
by room and board payments urwJer this contract that enter care directly through the
Contractor who consent to information sharing with the R^ional Hub for SUD Services

.  receive a Hub referral for ortgoing care coofdir\atron.
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9.2. The ConiTBClor must ensure that 100% of clients referred to them by the Regional Hub
for SLID Services for residential service level of care 3.1 who will be covered by room
and board payments under this contract have proper consents in place, for transfer of
Informallon for the purposes of data collecUon between the Hub and the Contractor.

The following per1onn8r>ce measures are required for client services rendered from all
sources of funds.

9.3. The Conlrector'a contract performar^ce shall be measured as In Section 9.4 below to
evaluate that services are miUgailng negative impacts of substance' misuse, Ir^uding
^t..noi limited to the opioid epidemic and associated overdoses.

9.4. For the first year of the contract only, the data, as collected In WITS, will be used to
assist the Oepartrnent in determining the benchmark,for each measure below. The
Contractor agrees to report data in WITS used In the following measures:

9.4.1. Initiation: % of clients accessing services within 14 daysof screentrtg;

9.4.2. Engagement: % of clients receiving 3 or more eligible services within 34
days;

9.4.3. Retention: % of clients receiving 6 or more eligible services within 60 days;

9.4.4. Clinically appropriate services: % of cljenls receiving ASAM level of cere
within 30 days;

9.4.5. Treatment completion: % of clients completing treatment; and National
Outcome Measures (NOMS) The % of clients out.of all clients discharged
meeting at least 3 out of 5 NOMS outcome criteria:

9;4.5.1. Reduction in Mo change In the frequency of substance use at
discharge compared to date-of first service

9.4.5.2. indrease in/no change in number of individuals employed or
in school al date of last service compared to first service

9.4.5.3. ■ ' Reduction in/no change In number of Individuals arrested in
past 30 days from date of firsi service to date of last service

9.4.5.4. Increase in/no change in number of Individuats that have

stable housing at last service compared to first service..

9.4.5.5. Increase IrVno change in number of individuals participating in
community support services at last service compared to first

.  service.

10. Contract Compliance Audits
10.1. In the event that the Contractor undergoes an audit by the Department, the Contractor

agrees to provide a corrective action plan to the Oepertment within thirty (30) days
from the dale of the final findings which addresses any ar>d all findings.
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10.2.. . Tho Coniraclor shall ensure the corrective action plan Ehall include:

10.2.1. The action(s) that will be taken to correct each deficiency:

10.2.2. The artion{8) that will be taken to prevent the reoccurrence of each
deficiency;

10.2.3. The specific steps end time line for implementing thc actions above;

10.2.4. The plan for monitoring to ensure that the ectlons above are eHoctive; and

10.2.5. How end when the vendor will report to the Department on progress on
implementation at>d effectiveness.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to e)iceed the Price Limitation. Blodt
1.0. of the General Provisions, for the services provided by the Contractor pur^ant to
Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement Is funded by;
2.1. New Hempshire General Funds;

2.2. Governors Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention. Treatment,
end Recovery Funds;

2.3. Federal Funds from the United Slates Department of Health a/>d Human
Services, the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration.
Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant (CFDA #93'.959)

2.4. Federal Funds from the United Stales Department of Health and Human
.  Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Hdallh Services Administration State

Opioid Response Grant (CFOA #93.760); and

2.5. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A; Scope of Services
in compliance with the federal funding requirements.

3. Non Reimbursement for Services

3.1. The State will not reimburse the Contractor for services provided through this
contract wheri a dient has or may have an altemallve payer for services
described the Exhibit A. Scope of Work, such as but r>ot limited to:

3.1.1. Services covered by any New Hampshire Medicaid programs for
clients who are eligible for New Hampshire Medicaid

3.1.2. Senrlces avered by Medicare for dients who ere eligible for
Medicare

3.1.3. . Services covered by the dient's private insurerfs) at e rate greater
then the Contract Rate in Exhibit B-1. Amendment #2 Service Fee
Table set by the Department.

3.2. Notwithstanding Section 3,1 atx}ve, the Contractor may seek reimbursement
from the State for services provided under this conlrect when e dient needs 8
service that Is not covered by Ihe payers listed In Section 3. f.

3.3. Notwithstanding Section 3.1 sbove. ihe Contractor must seek reimbursement
from the State for services provided under this contract when a dient needs a
service that Is covered by Ihe payers listed In Section 3.1. but payment of the .
deductible or copay would constitute a financial hardship for the client.
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3.4. The Coniractor shall provide a final budget for Slate Fiscal^ Year 2021 no later
than March 31, 2020 for Department approval, which shall be submitted for
Governor and Executive Council approval no later than June 30. 2020.

4. The Contractof shall bill and seek reimbursement for actual services delivered by fee for
services in Exhibit 0-1. Amendment 02 Service Fee Table, unless otherwlse stated
4.1. The Coniractor agrees the fees for services ere alWndusive contract rates to

deliver the services (except tor Clinical Evaluation which is an activity that Is
billed for separately) and ere the maximum allowable charge In calculating the
amount to charge the DepartmerM lor services delivered as port of this
Agreemeni (See Sectipn 5 bdow).

5. Calculating the Amount to Charge the Department Applicable to All Services In Exhibit
B-1, Amendment #2, Service Fee Table.
5.1. . The Contractor shall;

5.1.1. Directly bill and receive payment for services end/or Iransportaiton
provided under this contract from public and private Insurance
plans, the dlents, and the Department

5.1.2. Assure a billing and payment system that enables expedited
processing to the greatest degree possible in order to not delay a
client's admittance Into the program and to immediately refund any
overpayments.

5.1.3. Maintain an accurate accounting and records for all services billed.
payments received and overpayments (if any) refunded.

5.2. The Contractor shall determine and charge accordingly for services provided
to en eligible dicnt under this contract, as follows;

5.2.1. Charge the dienfs private insurance up to the Contract Rate.
in Exhibit 8-1. Amendment 02, when the Insurers' rates meat or era

.  lower than the Contract Rate In Exhibit B-1. Amendment 02. Except
when the client's deductible or copay creates a financial hardship as
defined In section 3.3.

5.2.2. Second:.Charge the dient according to Exhibit 8. Amendment 02.
SectJOT 7. Sliding Fee Scale, when the Contractor determines or
anbcipaies that the private insurer will not remit payment for the full
amount of the Contract Rate In Exhibit BH. Amendment 02.

5.2.3. Third: If. any portion of the Contract Rate in Exhibit B-1. Amendmertt
^  02 remains unpaid, after the Contractor chargas the client's Insurer

(If applicable) and the dient. the Contractor shall charge the
Department the balance (the Contract Rate In Exhibit B-1 Exhibit B-
1. Amendment 02. Service Fee Table less the amount paid by
private insurer and the amount paid by the client).
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5.3. . The Coniractor agrees the amount charged to the dient shall not exceed the
Contract Rate in Exhibit B-1. Amendment #2. Service Fee Table multiplied by
the corresponding percentage stated in Exhibit B. Amendment #2. Section 7
Sliding Fee Scale for the dlenfs applicable income level.

5.4. The Contractor will assist dients who are unable to secure financial resources
. necessary for Initial entry Into the program by developing payment plans.

5.5. The. Contractor shall not deny, delay or discontinue services for enrolled
dienis who do not pay their fees In Section 5.2.2 above, until after working
with the client as In Section 5.4 above, and only when the dient faits to pay
their fees within thirty (30) days after beirtg informed In writing and counseled
regarding financial responsilrflily and possible sanctions Induding discharge
from treatment.

5.6. The Coniractor will provide to clients, upon request, copies of their financial
accounts.

5.7. The Contractor shall not charge the ojmblnaiion of the public or private
Insurer, the dient and the Department an amount greater than the Contract

,  Rote in Exhibit 8-1 Exhibit 8-1. Amendment 02, except for;

5.7.1. Low-Intensity Residential Treatment as defined as ASAM Criteria.
Level 3.1 (See Section 6 below).

5.6. In the event of an overpayment wherein the combination of all payments
received by the Contractor tor a given service (except in Exhibit 8. Section
5.7.1) exceeds the Contract Rate stated in Exhibit B-1. Exhibit 8-1.
Amendment #2 Service Fee Table, the Cpntractor shall refund the parties In
the reverse order, unless the overpayment was due to insurer, dienl or
Departmental error.

5.9. In instances of payer error, the Coniractor shall refund the party who erred,
and adjust the charges to the other parties, according to a correct epplication
of the Slidir>g Fee Schedule.

5.10. In the event of overpayment as e resull of billirig the Department ur>der this
contract when- a third party payer, would have covered the service, the
Contractor must repay the stale In an amount and within a timefrai^ agreed
upon between the Conlnactor and the Department upon idenlitylf^ the error.

6. Additional Silting informeiioo for: Room and Board for Medicaid dients with Opioid Use
Disorder (OUD) In residential level of care 3.1
6.1. The Coniractor shall lnvolce the Department lor Room and Board payments

up to $100/day for Medicaid clients with OUD In residential level of care 3.1
s

6.2. The Contractor shall maintain documentation of the following:

6.2.1. Medicaid ID pr the OlerU;
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6.2.2. WITS ID of the Oieni (If applicable}

6.2.3. Period for which room and board payments cover;

6.2.4. Level of Care for which the dlanl received services for the date range
identined in 6.2.3

6.2.5. Amount being billed to the Oepartmer^t for the service

6.3. The Conlractor will eubmll an Invoice by the twenlieih (20th) day of each
month. wtMch Identiries and requests relmbursemant for authorized expenses
Incurred for room and board In the prior month. The State shetl make
payment to the Conlractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each Invoice for
Conlractor services provided pursuani lo this Agreement. Invoices must be
submitted in e Oepartmant approved manner.

The Conlractor shall er^ure that dients receiving services rendered from SOR
funds have a documented histwy of/or current diagnoses, of Opiold Use
Disorder.

6.4.

6.5. The Conlractor shall coordinate ongoing client care for ell clients with
documented hislory of/or current diagnoses of Opioid Use Disorder, receiving
services rendered frorn SOR funds, with regional HUB (s) for Substance Use
Disorder services in accordance with 42 CFR Part 2.

7. Charging the Client for Room and Board for Low-Intensity Residential Treatment

7.1,

7.2.

The Contractor may charge the diem fees for room and board. In addition lo:

7.1.1. The dient's portion of the Contract Rate in Exhibit 8-1 Exhibit B-1.
Amendment 02 using the sliding fee scale

7.1.2.. The charges to the Oepartrnem

The Contractor may charge the dient for Room and Board, Indirsive of lodging
end meals offered by the program eccording to the Table A below:

Table A

If the percentage of Client'e
income of the Federal
Poverty Level (FPL) Is;

Then the Contractor
may charge the dieni.
up to the following

amount for room and
board per week:

0%-t38% SO
139%-149% S6
150%' 199% $12
200% • 249% $25
250% • 299% $40
300%'349% $57

350%-399% $77
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7.3.

7.4.

The Conlractof shell hold 50% of the emounl charged to the client that will.be
returned to the client at the time of discharge.

The Contractor shall mainlaln records to account for the dienfs contribution to
room and board.

Sliding Fee Scale
0.1. The Contractor shall apply the sliding fee scale In accordance with Exhibit 0

Amendment02. Section S above.

6.2. The Contractor ehalledhero 10 the sliding foe scale as follows:

Percentage of Client's
income of the Federal
Poverty Level fFPL)

Percentage of
Contract Rate In •

Exhibit B>1 to Charge
the Client

0%*136% 0%
139%'149% 8%
150%-199% 12%
200% - 249% 25%
250% - 299% 40%
300% • 349% 57%
350% - 399% 77%

6.3.

9.

The Contractor shall not deny a minor child (under the age of 18) services
because of the parent's unwillingness to pay the fee or the minor child's
decision to receive confidential services pursuant to RSA 318-B:12'a.

Submitting Charges for Payment
9.1. • The ConUactOf shall submit bluing through the Web Information Technology

System (WITS) for services listed In Exhibii B-1. Amendment 02 Service Fee
Table. The Contractor shall:

Enter encounter nole(6) into WITS no later than three (3) days after
the date the service was provided to the cfleni

Review the encounter notes no later than twenty (20) days foftowlng
the last day of the billing month, and notify the Deparlmeni that
encounter notes ere ready for review.

Correct errors, if any, in the encounter notes as identified by the
Dcpartmen! no later than seven (7) days after being notified of the
errors and notify the Department the notes have been coiTocled and
are ready for review.

Batch and transmit the encounter notes upon Department approval
for the billing month.

Submit separate belches for each billing month.

9.1.1.

9.1.2.

9.1.3.

9.1.4.

9.1.5.

Headrest ■

rvA>2oi»eoAsei-suasT<os

DMA 6. NiWAOnenl n

Pee«$e(r

Vendor Intieb C*

- D«. /y/Zv/Zt^



10.

11.

12.
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Exhibit 6. Amondmont M

9.2. agrees that Wiling submltied for review, after sixty (60) days of
the lesl day of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

9.3. To the extent possible, the Contractor shall bill for services provided under this
contract through WITS.* For any services that are unable to be billed through
WITS, the contractor shall worV with the Department to develop an alternative
process for submitting invoices.

from erlothe?SS'^ ®
The Contractor will keep detailed records of their activities related to Department funded
programs and services. .

■  ..., .0^ ^ ̂ 'Ontractor agrees that fundingi^er ihjs agrwment may be withhold. In whole or in part, in the event of non-
Federal or Stale lew. hrle or regulation applicable to the services

i! .t s«^ces or products have, not been satisfactorily completed Inaccordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

(^5) days from the end of the contract period to submit to

® invoices for payment. Any adjustments made to a prior Invoice willneed to be accompanjed by supporiing documentailon.

14.1. The Contractor agrees to use the SAPT funds as the payment of last resorl.
14.2. The Contredor agrees lo the following furwJIng restrictions on SAPT Block

Grant expenditures to:

14.2; 1. Make cash payments to intended recipients of substance abuse
services.

14.2.2. Expend more than the amount of Block Grant funds expended In
Federal Fiscal Year 1991 for Ireatmenl services provided In penal or
correctiona! institutions of (he Slate.

14.2.3. Use any federal funds provided under this contract for the purpose
of conducting testing for the eliologic agent for Human
Immunodoriciency Virus (HIV) unless such tesUr>g Is^accompanled
by appropriate pre and posi-les! counseling.

14.2.4. Use any federal funds provided under this contract for the purpose
of conducllr>g any form of needle exchange, free needle programs
or the distribution of bleach for the cleaning of needles for
intravenous drug abusers.

The Contractor agrees to the Charitable Choice federal slBtulory provisions as
follows:

14.3.

VwdOf fr<l3tl f"'

RFA.2«.M0AM,«fflST« a,.
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Federal Chariiable Choice statutory provisions ensure that religious
organizations are able to equally compete for Federal substance
abuse funding administered by SAMHSA. without impairing the
rellgtous character of such organizations and without diminishing the
religious freedom of SAMHSA beneficiaries (see 42 USC 300x-65
end 42 CFR Part 54 and Part 54a, 45 CFR Pan 96. Charitablo
Choice Provisions and Regulations). Charilabte Choice statutory
provisions of the Public Health Service Act enacted by Congress in
2000 are applicable to the SAPT BlocK Grant program. No funds
provided directly from SAMHSA or the retevanl Slate or local
government to organizations participating in applicable progrems
may be expended for Inherently religious activities, such as worship,
religious instruction, or-proselytization. If an organization conducts
such activities, it must offer them separately; in tlnie or location,
from the progrerns or services for which It receives funds directly
from SAMHSA or the relevant State or local government under any
epplicable program, and participation must be voluntary for the
program benerdaries. i

Keadrmt

RF A-20 \ eeOASOl -SUBSTeS

EetiM B. AAandmen) #2

PlO»7ol7

VandBrtnflhti

.  Oil,
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^  EshlbU 6>1 ..Amendment 02

Service Fee Table

1. The ContTBCt Rales in ihe Table A are Ihe maximum allowable charge used In the Methods
for Charging for Services under Ihis Contract In Exhibit B.

Table A

Service

Contract Reto;
Maximum Allowable

Charae Unit
1.1

ClinlcarEvaluation $275.00 Per evaluation
1.2

Individual Outpatient $22.00. ISmIn
1.3

Group Outpatient $6.60 15 min
1.4

Intensive Outpatient $104.00

Par day: only on those
days when the dient
attends individual and/or
group counseling
assodated with the
prooram.

1.S
Lowilntofisity Residential for
Adults only for clinical services
and room and board $119.00 Perdav

■  1.6 Low-Intensity Residential for
Medicaid clients with OUO-
Enhanced Room and Board $100.00 Per dav

Keedret)

RFA-201040AS41-5U8ST4S
EjMU e>t. Amsndnen] t7

P<0t t et 1
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state OF NEW UAMPSUmE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND H.VMAN SraVICES

DIVlStON FOR BEHA VJORAL RBAl TR

BUREAU OF DRUG AND AlCOROL SERVICES

105 PLGASAm-STUffT, CONCORD, NH OOJOl
MM7I<5II0 l-taottl^MSEiLOTSa

rti;5a-»MlOS TDO Acecn: l-nO-TIMtM

Juty 10, 2018
HIo ExceOency. Covemor Christopher T. Simunu
and the Hononsble Coundl

Sietei House

Concph), New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Action 01) AutboHM the Oeparlment of HeaJih and Human Services, Bureau of Drug and Afcohol
Services, to enter into retroacttve Agreements with three (3) of the ihlrtecn (13) Vendors listed betow
In bold, to provide aubstancs use disorder treatment and recovery suppon services'stetewlde bv
bCTwsing the oomblned price CmilalJon by $1,549,015, from $3,157,927, to en-amount not to exceed
W.708,942 effertve retroactive to July 1.2018. upon approval of the Governor and Executive Councfl
through June 30.2019.55.87% Federal. 13.97% General, and 30.16% Other Funds.

^on 02) Authortro the Department of Health end Human Services, Bureau of Drug arid AteoW
Scn^s, to amend contracts ten (10) of the thirteen (13) vendors not fisted In bold, to modify the
provtston of substance use disorder treatment and recovery support servloes wfth no dange to the
price Bmllalion or. completton date, effective upon the dale of Governor end ExecutivB Councfl
eppro^l. These ten (10) contrecta were approved by the Governor and ExecutNe Councfl on June 20
2018 (late item G). . '

Summary of contracted amounts by Vendor:

7. /

Vendor Current *

AmounI
Increase/

Decrease
Revised

Budget
Oismaa Home of New Hampshtro. Inc. S240.000. $0 $240,000
FrTfNHNM. Inc, $0 $845,775 $845,775
Graflon County New Hampshire - Department of
Corrections and Alternative Sentencing $247,000 $0 , $247,000
Grcoter Naahue Councll;^on Afccholiem $0 $624,699 $624,590
Headrest $147,999 $0 $147,999
Manchester Alcoholism RehabtlltoUon Center $1,118,371 $0 $1,116,371

Hope on Haven Hill $0 $278,641 $278,641
North Country Health Consortium $287,408 $0 $287,406
Phoenix Houses of f^ England, inc. $232,921 $0 $232,921
Seacoast Youth Servfces $73:200 so $73,200
Soulhaaaiem New Hampshire Alcohol A Drug Abuse
Services $589,540 $589,540
The Community Councfl pf fteshua. N.H. $18.2,000 $0 $162,000
West Central Services. Inc. $59,490 $0 $59,490

Total SFY19 $3,157,927 $1,549,015 $4,706,942



Hl9 Eifitfenqr. Go««mor ChrUtopher T. Sununu
ondthd-Hoflorttbte Councfl

Popo 2 of 4

Funds to support Ihis request are available In State Rscai Year 2019 in the following accounts
with the authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office
without approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed' and Justified.

05-95-92-920S10-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEFT OF, HHS; OIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG a ALCOHOL SVCS
GOVERNOR COfMMI^tON FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

.05-95-92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUftflAN SVCS
DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG A ALCOHOL SVCS.
CLINICAL SERVICES (80* Federal Funde, 20% General Funda FAIN *0010035 CFDA 93.959)

Please eee attached financial details.

EXPLANATIOM

Action <M)

Requested Action #1 Is rotroactlve because the Department and FIT/NHNH, (no. were
• continuing to worfc on the scope w work and therefore, the contract was not completed In lime to place
the Item on the agenda for the June 20, 2018 Governor end Executive Council meeting The cor^trad
with Greater hteshua,Council on Alcoholism and Hope On Haven Hfll are being submitted after the
releese of audit reports to ejlow for Council review prior to entering into an Agreement, and to add
oontrect monitoring language to address (he audit findings. If these actions were not taken
retroactlvety, the result would have been a gap in critical substance use disorder" treatment and
recover support services in the Slate's two largest cities.

The Department requests approval of three" (3). agreements. Ten (10) agreements were
previously appmved by Governor and Executive Council on June 20. 2018 Lale Hem G. These
Jreements wlO allow the Vendors Dated to provide an array of Substance Use Disorder Treatment and
Recovery Support Services statewide to children and adults with substance use disorders, who have
Income bebw 400% of the Federal Poverty level end are resWenis of New Hampshire or ere homeless
In ^w Hampshire. Substance use disorders occur when the use of alcohol and/or drugs "causes

. cfinically and fvmcllonally significant Impairment, such es health problems, dlsablflty, and failure to rrwet
rnajor. responsibQities at work, school, or home. The existence of a substance use disorder Is
determined using a dirtical evalualion based on Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders
Fifth Edillon crHeria.

I  • . •

These Agreements are part of the OepartmehTs overall strategy to respond to the opioid
epidemic that continues to negatNely impact New Hampshire's irKliyiduals. families, and communities
as well as to respond to other typcs of substance usd disorders. Under the current Iteration of these
contracts, fifteen (15) vendors, are ddh^ring an array .of treatment sei^lces. including IndMdual and
group outpatienL Intensive outpa.llem, partial hosplializaUon. transitional living, high and tow Intensity
residential, end ambutatory and residential withdrawal management services as well as anclDary
rwve.ry support seryfces. While the array of services offered by each vendor varies sOghtly, together
^y enrolled 2994 indrvtduals In service groups covered by the contract between May 1.2017 and April
30. 2018. In 2016 there were 485 drug overdose deaths In New HampsWre with the death loll for 2017
at 428 as of April 20, 2018: however, the 2017 etatisUcs are expected to increase slightly as cases are
rtui pending analysis. This reduction bi deaths Indicates that the overall strategy Including preventton
Intervenljon, ireatment, and recovery support services may be having a positive impact

The Departmertt published a Request for Applicattons ior Substance Use Disorder Treatment
and Recovery Support Services (RFA.2019-8DAS^bl.SUBST) on the Department of HMllh end
Humans Services website April 20. 2018 through May 10. 2016. The Department received surteen (16)
epplfcatiorts. These proposals were reviewed and scored by a team of indivkfuals with program spedfic
knowledge. The Dewrtment selected-fourteen epplications (two (2) submWed by Graflon County were
combined into one contract) to provide these services (See attached Summary Score Sheet).
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Some of the Vendors' applications scored lower than anticipated: however; (his was largely due
to the Vendors providing a limited array of services and not to their experience andTor capacity to
provide those servioes. in addition the Suraau of Oivg end Alcohol Services is worVIng with the Bureau
of Imprevement and Integrity to tmprova the contmct monitoring end quality Improvement process as
well as taking steps to reposition staff to asstsi with (Ms. ^

The Contract Includes language to a'sslsl pregnant and parenting women by providing Interim
services If they are on a waitlist; to ensure clients contribute to the cost of services ̂  assessing client
income et tnlake er^f on a monthly basis; and to ensure care coordination for the clients by assisting
Ihem wHh eccesslrig services or worWng with a dieni's existing provider for physical health, behavlorel
health, medication assisted'treatment and peer recovery support services.

The Department will monitor the performance of the Vendors through monthly end quarterly
reports, conducting site visits, reviewing dient records, and engaging In activities Identified In the
contract monitoring and quality improvem^l work referenced above. In addition, the Department Is
collecting basetlna data on access, engagement, clinical appropriateness, retention, completion, and
outcomes that will be used to create performance Irnprovement goats In future contracts. Rnelly,
contractor finandal health Is also being monitored monthly.

All thirteen (13) contracts indude language that reserves the right to renew each contrect for up
to twg (2) additiorul years, subject to the continued avall^Qty of funds, satisfactory performance of
contracted services and Gb^mor and Executive Council approval.

$hould the Goyemor'ar«).£xecutive Councli determine to not authorize (his Requested Action
#1, the vendors would not.have sufRdent resources to promote and provide the array of services
necessary to provide individuals with substance u^ disortfers the necessary tools to achlave. enhance
and sustain recovery. - . •

AcUofitf2)

Requested Action tt2 seaks approval to amend ten (10) of the thirteen (13) agreements for the
provision of substance use disorder treatment and recovery support services by modifyirtg the acope to
reduce the burden on ,the \rendors In meetirrg contract requirements.

The Ranges to the contracts indude rerrioval of the requirement to continue proykJtng servtoes
after the contract price limitation Is reached, allowlrrg for assistance to clients ervx)Uir)g Iri Insurance
through the use of referrals to trained ccmmunily providers. 6rt6 an easing of supervfslon requirements
that Is not expected to negatively Impact dtent care. Corrective action for compliance audits was also
included. The changes were also made to the three (3) contracts being put forth In Action #1. These
changes are being made as a part of tire Department's response to provider's concerns over
reimbursement rates with the goal of redudrig the gap between the cost of providing servioes and the
rate paid by the Oepariment by reducing the administrative burden assodated with service deQvery
without compromising dient care.

These contracts were ortglr^any competitively bid.

Should the Governor and Executive Cqundl determine to not authorize this Request Action d2.
the gap betvreen the cost of care and ̂ mbufsemeht rates will remain the same, which venbore have
Ir^icaled may result In having to limit services provWed under this contract. In eddiUon, there would
not be e requiremenl of a oorrective actions plan should there t>e an audit which does rret eOow for a
system to assist with improvement In services provided.
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Area serv^: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 55.67% Federal Funds from the United States Department of Health and
Human Services. SutJStance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. Sut^tance Abuse
Prevention and Treatment Blodt Grant, CFDA «d3.6S9. Federal Award Identification Number
TI010035-14, and 13.07% Oeneral Funds and 30.16% Other Funds from the Governors Commission
on AJoohol end Other Drug Abuse Prevention. Intervention and Treatment

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support thb program.

Respectfully submitted,

.Katia S. Fox
• Director

Approved by:
^reyA. Meyers

• Commissioner

TTwOepeftmenfo/Hea/mendNumsn Sen*«s'i6itionlieDjbrneevTw»r*<M«idtoflVlei
opportanttM Iv-efleortf « acMtM A»«0t eitf
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
8u6>tsncjj^e Disorder .Treetindnt and R^ovcry Support Servlcos

State ofNew Hampshire
Department of Health end Human Services

Amer>dment #1 to the Subetance Use Disorder Treatment and
P  Recovery Support Services Contrset
1 ̂ endmeni (o the Substance Use Disorder Treatment and Rooovery Suppon Services oonlmct

c.!I® 26th day of June. 2016. is by and between the
If; ^ Human Services (hereinafter referred to es the
Ik" Headrest, (hereinafter referred to es the Contractor-), a nonprofitoorporatJon with a place of buslneea at 14 Church Street, Lebanon, NH 03766.

on June 20, 2018 (Late Item 6). the Contractor agreed fo perform certain eervtcea based upon the terms
and condtlana apedfied In the Centred as amended and in coraideration of certain sums speclfiod; and

'^^® changes to the scop© of work, paymentschedules end terms and oondlltons of the contract; and

to Form P-37. ̂ nerol Provisions. Paragraph 18. the Strata may modify the scope "
paymem schedule of the conlrBcl upon wrfllen agreement of the parties and ■approval

from the Governor and Executive Council; and . m ohh.vmi

^® "®'*® *** *0 «"PP0rt Continued deOvery of theseservices with no ̂ snge to the prtce limitation or compietiofl dale;

r"^; - o* »!• "xeflo'nB and the mutual covenants and condAlonsoontainad In the Coraad and sat forth heraln, tha parties heieto agree to amend as foOows:

^  of Services. SiecUon 2, Scope of Services, Subsection 2.7, AssistanceWith Enrolling in Insurance Programs. In Its entirely, and replace with the foDowing:
2i7. Assistance with EnroHing In Insurenoe Programs

2.7.1. The Contractor must assist clients and/or their parents or legal guardians who are
unawe to s^re nnandaf resources necessary for initial entry into ihe pfogrBm. with
plaining other potential sources for paymerji. either direcUy or through a dosed-looo
referral to a community provider. Other potential sources for payment. Incfude. but
are not limited to: '

. 2.7.1.1. Enrollment In public or private insurance Including; but.not Dmited to New
Hampshire Medicald programs within fourteen (14) days after Inteke.

Subsection 3.9, In Ue entirety, end

baining to en etoff Involved in dient raie within
^'''® ""b** bate or the staff person'6 elan date, if elter thecontrad effective dale, on the following;

3.9.1. The contract regulremenls.
3.9.2. All other relevanl policies end procedures provided by Ihe Department. ■

3. Add Exhibit A. Soope of Services. Section 10. Contract CompllBnce Audits, as foltows:
10. Contract Compliance Audits

10.1 In the event that the Corttractor undergoes an audli by the Oepartmenl tfw-
? ̂ °^® ® ficlton plan to the Oepartrnem within thl^(30) days from the date of the final findings which addresses any and all flndlnfls.

SSSlVtoASei-SUBST-OT '



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

10.2 The correclNre action plan shall Include:

10.2.1 The edlon(B) that will be taken to correct each dendency;
10.2.2 The ectlon(8) that wrtll be taken to prevent the reoccu/renoe oJ each

deOclency;

10.2.3 The spedTic steps and time line for implementing the acttons above:
10.2.4 The plan for moniiortng to ensure thai the ecilbns.ebove are effective: end
10.2.6 end vrtien the vendor wtll report to the Department on proorees on

imptementalion and efrectiveness.

Oelete Exhitril A-1. Operattonal Requirements, Section 8. Clinical Supervblon, Subsection 8.1,
Paragraph 6.1.3, In Its entirety, artd replace as follows: . . '
8.1.3. Unlicensed counselors shall receive et least one (1) hour of supervision for every forty

(40) hours of direct dtent contact:

5. Oelete Exhibit B, Methods and Corvdltlorts Precedent to Payment, Section 9. in Its entirety.

The red of this page /eft in/en«onefly biank.

/

eFA^iseoAaot<8UB5r<os p«8*2ri4



New Hampshire Oepartmtint of Health and Human Services
SubttaiKO Ubq Dteofdof^fgatment end RgcovyyjupgortSefvlcoft
This ernendmeni ahall be effecUvo upon ehe date of Governor and Executive Councfl approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire

Oepartment of Heatth end Humen Services

Date Ketja S. Fox

Director

Heedrest

Name: gr

^rcvnvcr

Admcwtedoement of Conirector's sigruture:

' /Lt County of {^ra/h
;ned officer, personaily eppearedthepe

State <ANht>*k^ift County of Un,/U before thei^ral^ appeared tSpel^n kJentifled^sctij^o^^tisfactortly proven to
8'*'^cdged that aftie executed this documerrt H the

capacity indlcaled above

Ignature of Notary Publicw^ustice of tho>Peace

/w/" A<h,iJr Miof/
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Ei^lres: BSC C. HAA88CK JR« Notvy PUbte

idlf OomrrtMlon febnory t, 2022

HMectt

iVA>2oiseoASoieu&sr«
Amcndmcnei



New Hampshire Department of Health end Human Services
end Recovery Support SotvIcw

Tl>^fK^ Amondment, having been levlewed by mis olfloe, Is approved as loform. subslance, and

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

7/V/r
Name;

irw 5iate or New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (jiate of meeling)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

^ . Name;
Title:

SSSseoASer^uasre, .



Chastafaecr

luiiiir*!
OUtftor

STATE OF NEW HAMTSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF UEaLTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

pfyiSIO/^FOHBEBAyjOMALHSALTB
BURBA V OF J>R UCAND AL COBOL SBR MCES

iM PLCAsvrr mcrr. oonoord. nb ©mi
0Q)<J7i4UO Bat 67M

' Fttj M3<rl7J41© TOO Acecn: l^^7}S>1964'
»^bvah,tov

Juno 19. 2016

His Excoii8ncy.;GovBmw Otrtstophir T. Sununu
and Iho HonoraWo CbuhcD " . "

Stete Houso * . ■ "
Concord, New HampsWre 03301

REQUteSTEDACTinn

J*' SoMc«i, Bureau of D/ub and Afcotol
^  Vendtena.- Jislad below, to provldo sulutanca usa

eRectfue Jiitu i onia ' atatawlde, In an amount not to exceed $3 157B27
-i?®®"*®" Oovetnor and Executive Council apofoval wWc^^ tahJJuna 30, 201.9. SS.dT^ Federal, 13.07* Genaral, pnd 3ai6*Otf<^R?^8. ' ^

Summa7 of oon^cted amounto by Vendor

Vendor
Budgeted Amountptemaa Home of New Hflmpahire'. irte.

S240.000
- Pepartment of Corrfecttone and AttemaBvq

24>.0(A>Keadmst
147^89ManchestB/AicohoOam Rehahtiftonfln Center

S287.4Qfl
North Qruntrv Health Cpnaomu
•Phoenb

m

i Houses or New Enafand
Seecoast Youtfi Servt^ $232.921

Soymcastem NewHamoshlm AJcobo) ft Dmq Abi'jM st^nAr^
TT^e Commurthy Gouncfl of Nashua. N.H. $689.640

$162.000West Central Senteea. Ine
T IS9.49Dotal 8FY1S

157

Please eee attached finami© details.

EXPLAMATIOW

^ oubatanoe use.diserdero,u*©

ssxSSi"-™ i"ssr.rfta5s::,sttfftflca^palrma^ such as health probtomft, dieablDly, endto mael rna(of reaponsWIfltes at wortt. echool. or home. The ototenca of a .sctStSw^.^JZ^'



Mil EJie«(fBncy. O^wnor CMstop6«r T. Sunurtu
end (he'Kanonbb Ccund)

PeBOloTd

delermfried uslnfl a dlnteal eveluallon based on Dbgnosllc end Statistical Manual of Mental DiBonlert
Rflh Etften crfterta. Tlhrao (3) n>o>e agreementi wlO be aubirtited by the Department at a futum
Govemof end ExecutlvaCouncQmeeting. ' .

These Agreements are part of the Departrnenfe oyereli etTetegy to respond to the opiold
epMemIc that conOnues to negadvefy tmpect New Kampshlrele tndlvWaale. femnies. and oommurttlea
as w«ii as to respond to other types of substance use dtsordera. Under the current tloetlon of these
contracto, nitoen (16) venders are deltvaring an array of treatment services. Including IndMduel and
grow outpatient. Intensive oulpptteht partial hospitallatton. IranslUbnal Uvfng. high and low tatorolly

.  raj^tial and amtoda^ and residenttel wtthdrowal management earvtces as well as andllary viA-
recovery npporl eendcas. While the array of aervteas offered by each vendor varies aflghtly, together • .
sells'}? ^ groups covered by the cionlract betv^ May 1.2017 and April20j6-thera,v^r6 466 drug mrerdosa deaths. In MampshJre wlth the d^th toil for 2017
al ̂ M of Aprfl20.2018; howiaver, the 2017 statfstica araoj^eclied to Increase efightly as cases a'rb
sbU.penang analysts. This reduction In deaths Indicates thai the overall otreta^ Irwludlno preyenllpn.
Wen^Uon. trealmeht and rew^iy support 6er\4w fa having a posftlvo Impact

.  ThaDepartnent published a Request for Appllcattens^for Subsianoo Use Olaorder treatmentand Reooyary Support Sefvfoa8. (RFA.2Q19^0AS^1-SUBSTj on the Department W Health bid '
^^rB^r^wahslttf April 20.20180irough May 10;;20ia The Department received ebrteen (16) '
qp^tfoni. These proposels were reviewed and scored by a tbbn of Individuals with progrem epedfic
•Knowtedga The Oepprtment ealected fourteen dpplicatens (two (2) aufamltted by Grafton Courily were '
. comWrwd bito one ooritract) to provWe these eeryloes attached Summdry tora.Sheet).:

Vendpra* eppll&atlorts eoored ̂ r than anticipated: however, this was largely due
telM ven^re-proyWlng a limited array of aenribes and not to their experlenoe end/or cepadty to
pfd^e those eenrioea. In addition the Bureau of Drug end Aloohoisbvl«8.l8wor1tlng with the Bureau •of improi^nffent and Integrity to tmproye the oontrect monbortng end quall^ Improvemant prooess as *
weB as taking steps to re^lUon staff to assist' with this.

CohjrBd includes language to assist pregnant and pbeniing women by.provldlnd Intertm'
.services If they ere on a wattnsb to ensure clterrts oontrtbuts to the oost of services by tra^Bstng cOeht'
Inoomp at Intaka ehd on a monthly basis; and. to. ensure care .coordination for the clients by.asslsttog
them with ecoesatng aenrioes or vrtrttng with a dtenfe aaisting provtder for physical heatt^ bchavtoral
health, medication assisted treatment and peer'rebovery support servtoes.

The OepaftmemwOl monltof the performanoa of the Vendors through monthly and quarterly -reports, oohducdng s&e vtslte. revlawing client recdrds. end engaging In activities identified In the
aplW monitoring and quality improvement work referviced above. In addition, the Department b •

^ ficoess-.-engafl^ent. dlnlcal appropriateness, retendcn, completion, endcut^es that wD) be used to ereete perfonnance Improvement goals In future contracts. RnaQv '
contractor ftrtonc&I health to also being monitored monthV-

.  Tto conlrad Includes language that reserves the right' to renew each contract for up to two (2)
eddlttona| yew, subject to the continued availablilty of fxinds, eatbtedory performance of contracted
servtoes and Gowior and ExecuUveCourdlappfoval.

\  * '

Should the Governor end Executlvo Council dotemtlno to not aulfwrlio this Request iho
vewre .would not .have sulllcleni rasources to promote and provide the array of aervtoes necessary to
provide todhriduals with eubstance use dieprders the necessary tools to acWeve. enhance, end snstatn
reooiory.'



HbEtttflBney.OovcmerCMftophcrT.eununu .
end Utt Honorebia Council

Pc^e3ef3 V

Area served; Statewide.

'J""'""' Stales Department ol HealUi andSendees, Sebslanoe Abuso.and Mental Health Servloes Admlnlstrattoa Substonoo Abuse
tdentreatlon Number

H12.^ . ^neri^unds.and 30.16* Other Funds from the Qovemor's Oommlsslcn
on Alcflhol end Other Drug Abuse Prevention, InlervBntten and Treatment

become no longer aveneble. Qenerel Funds wni not be
requested to support this proeram,

•  • RespectfuOy submitted,

Ka S. Fox
dor

SW*'

Appreved by

'AlMeyere
Comffllssloner '
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^  FORM NUMBER P«37.(vtfiJoDV8/IS)
gya^PWyM Pl«ttf«lTff«gnnf Rwav^v Hutoon Servicq fRFA.201».BDAR^|.SUaST.M1

Thii tpctiTKDt tfld ftll of in atttcfaocoti ihiU become public upoo.tuhffiluipo to Oovemo; eid
Bieeuttro Couocil for epp'rovtl. Afly lnf(^in»tioo that b private; eapfideatiil or pnipritiiiy mwt
be.clta/ly ideariflcd to Che ifeocjr uri ifreed lo In wri^ pripr to (ha oea&nei.

ACREBMChrr
The Stats of Neo; Henpshi/e and the Cooinctor hextby ogiiaally egtte as (toDowa:

OENEBAL PROVISIONS

I- PfefmPICATlON. •
i.l State Aceoey Nasie

■Nb DeptrtMi of Health nd Nwoao Scrvlcu

U ConCtecCorName
Ucadnat ^

1.2 State A^nsy Addreu
mpieuaai Sttwt
CoDeofd.NH02MMI57

1.4 Oootnctor Aidfta '
i 4 Quocb'Street
Lcbaaoa NH 03766

I.S CootractarPboae
NonibeT.

603-448-4173 aIOZ

I.S Cctotreetias.OSpoforSta(eA(toey
C. Maria Relofoaso, Baq. '
Director of Cotttracii lad Pro^uitmcn}

1.6 Acoouol Nooba

O3-93-93-9203IP-3382-I62-
3007)4; 03-93-92.920310-
3)84-lCa-300734 .. .

1.7 Coopletibo Date

June 30,2019

1.8 Price Umicatieo

1147.999 ■ .

1.10 State AgebcyTdq^^iooeNui^ber
603-271.9330

1.11 Cofliitc Sinaturc

T.I) ActoowIc4fcemait^iatyf.tt^;Pty8//*.0^ At^hr*

1.12 NameecdTitladfCoetracttrSipBiory.

<be»6ntgDcd olBee/, poaooaDy appeared (ha peraoo idmUfied ia Modt l.lT.-or utb&storih
prwtobl5^pbraoo wtoeoaroebaifocdinWoek I.II.todacknoMadstd(toarticexctuCBdthlidocuneal(n0*apoeftyMkttedlabtockl.ll. .
1.13.1 SisoatmofNotiry'PubUeorlufitoe'oftb^PeBce

ERC 6 KMBECX AABb
OetBofNowKmpoMre

fSeallWyCpnBittBtenBiareoFabwpl.aiga
1.13.2 NasK aod TitJa of Notary or Justice of the Peace

^rit. ^vbex:^ Jr^/1/gfary z^bl^c
1.14 Stata AfenOy Si'inatm

Date

I.IS Name Bpdlttla of Scare AscR^Siloatery

fPerro^sfi1.10 Ap^icrvaJ by tbeNil. Dcpartnnt ofAdreiBUtraHoA DlvUieo.flfPerictorffyryptohid

®y' Direetor.Oe;

17 Approval by the Attorney Cesoal (Ford, SubatuM aod Executioo) Ofa^pUcQbk}

I.IB Approval by (be Oovemor aod Baccutiwc OovDcU flfw/leeNd

By • ■ ■ ' oa

.  °°^ . , .
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2. bmpLoymektopcoktractor/serviccsto
PERFORMED. tTie SWc of New-Ktmpthire, octinp

Ok fitencytestified (o block l.lC^u"Kensi|Ci
eootmtv Idodfkd b Uodi I j (Xoimo04o pcif^
ftod Ok Costrtaonbill pcf&no. fto «<cA or »4lc of foods, v
boOutiertfled ad (oerc psnicuUfljrdcKribed io Ok ooaetied
SOOBrr A vhrcb li locorporttcd hcitlo by ftfcreooc
CS®*fctO*

X BmCTTVtDATB/COMPLCnONOF SERVICES.
3.1 NoMdthfiiadlagftriypio>4iionc|ribl] Afneoentto ikt
eeotwy, ad uibjcct le th« ippjvv&l of (he Oovcmr tad
EiearttvcCouaeUofthD Stftie ofNolvXeDpibii^ if
ipptkab(e» (hb Afreeotcu. sidil) ebUpxIoM of (be perda
bcitwdo-. dtfU beceac cflbcOve oa the diu die Co««n«f
ead.EKcutiwe CMacfl pprovc tMt AgTrasai as iodiutcd to
blocb.l.ia, enloi oo lueb appibvol b (c^uired, In wtdch ecu
(he AcrsnM ibsll bceenu eltbeliiit oo (be data the

Qie.Siate Afmey ei ihowD In block

3J (fthe Cosnctor oommaeei (be Scrvtca prior lo (he
Bffbcdve Date, elt Servieci peribrm^ by the CooBicttr prior

- (atbcEfleetfvc DateihsnbeptKanBedelOKSOleri^oftfae
CofltnciDi, end to (be evtoi this Aprsreott dees oot
beeotoe.efrectitc, the Sute iholl ha«e oo UabUiiy lo (he
Coohietw, iiicledtaf wiihaji liadtotiotv toy ehliption to psy
(heOojKpctor for ay cosu lanmod or Scrvicu peiftreial
Catmtn onut oooi^le tU SeMeo by (he Conploioa Date

'  apodSedlohbdi'l.T

4. CONDrnONAthfATVRSOF AGREEMENT,
Notwtihsnodlni my provlsioo orthli AfrecriKot to the
eooRwy. iD obUpiiao of the State bemuvler. ladudtoi,

Uolttb^ tbc ooadausAce ofpayiaeRti hemiadcr. i tt'
pojUttfna vpOQ dw ewlbbniiy end eoetlmted eppropritilee
of fttoda. ead io bo evcst shall (he Sut( be Uebb fbr eay
ptOfiROn bemader to new ofcueb anlUble ipprtyrteted
hodt- In (he cveorofe le^ctiofl or ten&tutleo of
ep^mrriitcd hioda, the have'the rî i to whbbeld

- eaymoiuoftlsteh ten* b«8meevaOible,lfcvcr,Md shell
have the rifhi to tenitlDeto (his Afnaoeot iBuacdietely upon
drim (ho Cotmaoprootice ofttrt tcfwImiUqn. Tho-Sate
(tun oot be nqidred (o tnaslcr Aindl ftofo ay other aceousi
to lbs Aficoopt idendfled In block 14 lo (he evcotfuada b thai
Aeceau tn reduced or tmavtiUbk.

X coffnucr PRICE/PIUCE UMfTATION/
PAyMENT.
3.17^ cdabiei priee, modnd ofpeymrei, esd lauu of
poytDCni are Idemlficd aad odto pankuUriy dcKribcd In
,BXK1S(T B vbleh Is beorporsted hods by rcfcrcoca.
J J Tbo psyttttiby tbs Sboe erihe coetraei price iball be (he
OAiy pad Ibe conploe cdnbunohcoi to ihe Cootnebr for all

eipoQcs, of Ktetevcr ni^ Incurred (he Coatracter b the
pcrfbnnaoce botoi ipd ihaU be tbo ba^ tod (be eootpleie
osapestiioa to Ibe Odoaactor (br the Scrvico. Tbe Sou
thai) have oo liabdhy to (he Coetractor etho.tbeo (be cootnct
price.

' S3 Tbe Stole iticrves (be riQht to oQkd from say aiBoocti
otherwise paytUab (he Contractor uoderitds Affccnea
(hose Uquliited aaouou required or permincd by Nif. RSA
10:7 ihtoujbRSA t0:7'e or asy other prevUao of lav,
M NotvlihsbodlAf'ay pconsion In dUi AfreeoKot to the
ooofmy, end ootvlthcaQ^nf ooexpecacd ctrcumsinoe% (o
oocwit thall (be totalof eO payoDcsts sulboriaa^ or ectuaUy
(sade hercuoder, coetd Ihe Price Umltadoo tei fmOi io bock
l.X

X COMPLIANCE BY COfmUCTOR VklTK LAWS
AND RBCULATlONSf EQUAL BMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.
d.l loeoueaiea wtik ihepcrtbrnuocaorihcSerriceiitie"
CoflSncter than ooply wiib ell miutoa, laws, reeoladoQA '
Bad orden of fedoB^ atato, county or nnrq^dpifauthoridet
which iroposp asy ohUfatlw or duty'o^.ihc Cbitfrodor,
bctudinf, bur. not Urelted (d, civO li^ta asd.eqtul oppgitunliy
bwv. Tbf bay Inchida tie leqelfrmed lo urilbe iuafliary
rids and aaviecs (o ctuort (hat persons witb coiBaiBl^'oe
disibnhiei, iodudup visiho, bearing ad ipoocl^ gn
comfflunieata with, rbcdve bfbrnDtlen fro®, arri eawcy
brotaatiootottoCotowtar. (o additioo, tbe Cbcitrtctor ■
(hell comply with ell appKceble copyriflb bwA
d.2 Ddrinf be tcno of t^ Afretracni, the Consractor atoll
not dicrrimlflia 'spiral cn^toyva 9; ipplicuts (br
en^teyom beouse of Nee. color. religlaB. oeed tge, tea..
haodkap, aexol odeaadon. or crifb and vflJ lath
afllrHadve aeiion ta preumi AltrKi^wiriwi*

■ 613 If (hb Afjccroeai b fhndtd fat eoyjartby inoplB*of|bt
Uoiled Sutci, the Cootrtctor shall conply viib all (be
pivvisiofd of EoeuiNe Order No. 11346 fE^
Cnvloymeet Opporhisli/> as iuppUmatted by the
itptodoru of the VoUod Stotea D^artmau of Labor (41
C^il. PartdOJ. and with ay roles, rcfoldiaa and gaWdtM*
as Iba Stis of New Kampxhire or (he Stata to
hoptoraeai these irfulatlooi. the Ceoitetar ftottor «|rcct to
pernih ibe Sods or Uolted States to any of(he
Coetrtctor'a bookie iccordi nd aoaandi br the purpete of
eKoUttini eqrBpluace vtih all rubs, rrgulntku eod orders
and the cuvamu. icrrra end conditlora-of this ApeemcnL

7. PeRSONNEL.

7.1 The Coetrtctof shall at io ewo eipaue provide eD
pdrtonnelCBeeisary loperftomdioServioei^GeozTectBi -
wBimu (tot tJI pcnoRotl copfBd to (be Servkcs shad be
qualified to pmrrn (he Servloca. cad atoll be pepcriy •
Uecasod tod otherwise abtbor^ to do a cnder tU'epptiobt
iawr

T2 Unlus odxrvice authorised (a wvhfai^ da/inf the term of
thb Apceoni. asd (br a prtod of ito.(6) Doahi iftor (he
Conpletbo Date io Modi 1.7, the Coetractor ahaliobifafax

, artdshall oDtpoToii nyAihcontrtetoror o(bprpenca.finpor
ceiporidoo wttb whom It Is ertppd in a atsbtoed effbt (0
perbnn tha Servtoes to bin, any pcnoo who b.a State
ci^ptoyee orofliclaL wfao is (oateritlly (nvotved teiba
procvTOoaU, adcDtabnadoa or perfomiaoo of(Mi

Pege 2 ofd
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AgRemei TbUpBOfiriroibi11fui>1veicnBlio$io8oflbi$

U Va OosmexlAa Office/ cpecl/lcd is biodc i .9. or hU or
bcrnoceuor.ihillbsifaDSatD'sreprocaritiM. lachecves)
efaoydii^ceocemlfls the iuopittitioo of ibb Agimncro.
the Comrtctios Offiee'i dedsioa ihiO be flai) for ihe Sule.

а. EVZHT OV DEFAULT/HEMEBIU
8.1 Asyeoa.or oMro ofthe CsUefnag wu Of Ofntukau ofthe
CeeeederiltilidBdMe Be event of debuh hotunde/
C*Bvaa erOcftair}:
б.1.1 frUurecopof^Ute S^ecj tetisihtettyoroii
ffteduH
MJ IXIhue to stibndi eny report teqtocd hoau*r, iBd/ori.lj fiuluntbpcrfi3nDBn)rothercovenioi,tRiaoroondiibn

' ofihii Acreeotfiii.
8 J Upon the cecgnnce ortny event ofOcbuti, the Stole

toks toy one, or nerc, ei itl. of tbe-ToUowiss cedooc
92.1 siw the Cosnctor'o wrtnea ooiice ipcciiyin^ the Bveiti
ofDcMl tad rofulrini h to be mnedlcd whhln.'la the
tbscrpo of0 irw or Icner fpcetfiadon of Hat, tfttr^ OO)
diya fton the dete of(he oodce; ad if (bo Eieot of DebuJi b
net limeJy rcnedted, ttnofaute (hit AercqMst. ei^cUve n»o
(2) dfjfs ote gMas (he Cootnctor Mdee of temfsatbo:'. 8.9.2 (ho Coahoetor o Mrttius ooticc ipccil^hf (he Evui
of oqd cu«peadto0 III psyrnems to be oudfi uflda (hit

• Afreateat qid orderlsf Itni (he porticB of ibe coanei prtoe«blcb would othenAse-Becnie to (ho Contrector doHsc ̂  '
period from (be datc of lueh ootin uatfl neb lime u Ibe Stole
doermiAei (he? the Contnetor has cored the Evcoi of OeAuU

' sh«n Qcvo bo paid to ihaCoometor, _ '
8.X3 act offipbst toy e(bo cblijBdoai (be Stole oay owe to'
fte Coobracor toy dum^ tbe Stole nffbi by Ruoo ofay
Ewcio ofOoflpih; end^or
84.d(icaj (be A|retmd esbroehed ndpmue toy of((s
ruiuGei ti to« or b e^uhy, or both.

9. DATA/AOCESS/COKPlAEKTlALrrY/
PfiESCRVATlOH.
9.1 As uiqdb chb Afnanent. the word *dita"absll mean aO
hUbmtadoa and (hiflp dcwlopcd erobeilntd doriag ihc
poiftmnbeo oX or eoqu^ or dovcbped by itiMfl of, (hliA9«eo)pa, hcbtdtafi. bot not Uadtod to^ til itodtca, rcpoAa,
Ola, fiirtoula, urveys, ospa, ebtots, mad reoadiap. vld^
lOEoidiRp, ptarial rcpradudtesa, drewtnp. tnalyio.
trephje.Jtptttontiriocs, coaipiser prejpim, coopuier

net, Idtoi^ ocoobadt, papoi, and docomenta^
tU tdiAbcr bfdibcd or tmTiaiiM.
M.AU date aad B^ pnpeity wblcb has beo- received ten
(be StotoofparotBsediriih&iads provided fbr.tbBtpiapose
Bodq (his A^oetDest, tfitii be (he property of (he Staa. and
ibillbr rtttuud to (he Sttto upon dtortaad or upoe-
tngnlnuirw of this Aptuiuujt Cor toy rcatore
94 CoofidetoiaUry of data ftaU bt govcreed by RH. ftSA
clapar9l-AweteraittiB|tow. Dicelqstncofdau
(OQobo.ptfpr wrifla approval of (be Sttto

Pogo 3

lO.TEJUlflNATIOM In (hectmn ofafietriy tomuBBtbnof '
(his Aptement (br any reenn otho (haniheoempietlea of (be
Servico, ihc Coatnciof iball ddivcr to (bo CostttcUos
Officer, oot liter (ban &ftecd.(l}]dtyttfi» Ik date of -teteiaaboa, a report rTtnnjudoa Report'^ doerCbiag la.
detail ell Sc/vleea perfonned. tnd the eoidrist price caned, (e
Bad iacluding (he ^te orternUoilioa. The fortiv lobfaa
(oaOer, oonleai, tnd aumber of teplea of (be TenniDatjoa
Report shall be (douieat to (hm efBny Rssl 8^rt
described In (be Bitochcd EXHIBrT A.

.U.COifTTUCTOR'SAnjiTlONTOTRBSTATE. le
te pcrbaasoce of this Apieeaait the Coonwer'b in &U
rcipeeii an todcpcndmi costector, tod ti ndlbcr in tfcoi nor
encmpioyacoftheState. NdchadttCoaSictoroortnyofiti
oQiccn,,OBpl0yeca, tgeaie or meaibm ibBll bffvo luthoriiy (0
bind the SiBte or receive toy bcacfitA wortoi'cooipenaden
or.other ctnoiuineTils provided by (he State 10 Ui qnptoyyt

UL ASSTGNME^rT/DEl£GA^O^ffilffiCO^rTRACTS.
The Cootiteter sbal] not tsiigD, or olherwisc bmsftr any
iatorest la (htj Agreement wiihoui the prior wrlttan notice tad
coaseoi of the Stoitk Nooe offhe Servlees ihaD bo
mbcoRtraftod by the Ooarraetar wlthosKha priv wriitea

. ootkc tad coQscBt of the St|te. ■
\  •••

1$. DfDEMXlFlCATiOK The Ceareetof itoll dtfti4 '
iadcmnify cod hold baimibs (k tti officm eal
Roploycei. (lore end Bgalaii say tad lU totsei txiffered by (bd
State, 1(1 oflkcra tad cmployca. tad any end tO cbl^

. UabHUa or penaldea tasotcd tgiiasi ihe Suit, lli officcn
ead ciaployta, by or on behalfofany peraea, oo accouni of,
baad cr.rauiiftQ teov iriilnd out efCpr wbkh laiy bt
claimed to arise omoi) ibe.-tiM oromlnioruoftha
Coabsebr. Hetwiihstondhistbe.fbretaiaEoetbasgbtfeia
cootoli^ ihaU be deemed.to eonfliBte a wafvei of iba
comnelgD bnnnmlly of the Stttc, whldi immuotiy U htriby
reserved lolheSUtAThUcovtrunitoparagrtpb Dihali

- carviro (be termtaaHob oftUi Apccnem.

■ 14. mSORANCB.
U. I The Cohtaetor ihiU, tt.lii cole opeiue, obtain tnd
rtBiatolA in foftt, tod aball requiio any lubcoonctor or
aulgaee to obtain and oalaiaio b (bree. the ftUoving

14.I.I com{ecben3ivecBO0il liabUi|ytm««nc<tcBi&sl4U
cbbtts ofbodily ht^uty, dcaih or property b tamtato
of Boi leu ihxfl SI,000,OOQpe(^acaBTa» ood 12,000.000
Q^pit: tnd
14. iJapcpfal etude often eovcnge (bro oovcitafi cO
qoperty cubjea eo Hbpir«Byapb $4 boda, la aq tmouot ao(
leis this 80H of Ibe whole rcplktcBeRt vthis of the propety.
l44Thc poUclei describod Innbpamgqph 14.1 htidacbqir
be 00 pobcy Ibnai tad cadorsaaeato fhr use b (he

-  Sttto ofNow Hampshire by tteN.K.'Ofptnaeto of
lacumce, and ttmd by Inroren Kcijanl (n ihe Sate of Mew
Han^shlrt.
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14.) The Cofitrtctor ftaU Aubtsh to tbe Costnctiss Officer
Idonlficd fa) block 15, or hit or her niereiior, t o^fbAte^i)
efiTuurucetfarftDb&noccrequdndiaderthiiAsreemtnL -
OratnetbritaU ttoferdifa to the Cwfrtctfag Officer
Ideodfifld In bbck 15, or hli or ber cucccxsoi) ccrdficoie^i) of
buuuuo fiir eO ruei^i) of 'replied under thte
Apuneot oo Uto (hu tUny (30) dsyi prior to lha upUtUoo
detcofeicboflhelQsinacepcUdei Theeoti((eate<i)of
Umoeo ood ooy.resewsb (hereof choil be cauhed aad ire
lacorpwitcd htrdo by refeeoee. Eocb ecrtlficilc(a) of
hfxoaeee shell eeaiain e cUiuc requiring the humei le .
provide (be;Caa&iodaoOfBcald(&riAcd in block 1.9. ̂ hb
or btf luceeuer. no less IfaM thirty (3 dsyLprier wriote
(Mfe* of coMOtftdoe Of medlSeotioo of iho policy.,

15. WOftXBRS* OOMFGNSATTON.
1S.1 By rignbg lUi anecreeot. (he Conffo^ter egrees.

. oertitotAdwimstKheitbeCootrutorUlncomplieece.wUh
or eienpt fron. the reqidRmoBU of Nit. RSA chepier 211 •A
f Bfa/tery' Coe^pcneariae*/
iSJ To (be citcni (be Conbsetor b suttjeci to the
raqvyono^ ofN.a RSA dtipio 2tl«A. Ooafrtctor stall
mtfaituix end require eay sebcoBtrteior or esifpteo to secure
and rmlnfitn. peyoesi of Workm' Coaprouiios io
maoeqrioo wbb eeiMtia «bieh the pcrpaa pwn>f«fft to
Ipidaliko pvPMiai to thb A^oemest. Coainctoriba)!.
iWsh lh« Coanctma OfGwr IdeoiUed (b block 1.9. or bii
v.bCT<ueca«er»pioefof Workers* CorDpenaHoo In the
rasBner.ducrib^ uiNJL RSA cfasptcr lei^A ad ay
cppUctblp oBoerwiifs) ibcrtoCwhleh shall attubed sad are
iMorporVfid bptip ̂  rcferqocc. TheStaioiluOQaibe
R^osrible forpayool of aay Wo'ifcm' Coayc^ofi
preoJvms or Ibr «rty oihaclsln) or bentAi fbt Centreetor, or
>oy s^ooaorKtor or enployce of OoBSUtor. which mlgbt
Mse und^applkabU Stale ofNewNenpibire Worircn'
Comp^opadod la coartccttoo w{ib Cbe per&imaacc of thC
Seryieey qedcr (Ml Agrcemcn}.

16. WAfVBR 0F6R&ACB. No fiulureby (he Slatt to
caffaree aay p^liiaai beredfaltBr any fi«col of De&oli cbali
be deemed a wahrer of {(a flsfat* wiib Rgard (0 thai Event of
Deftuh, or aay fabcequei]! Event of Oeftatt. No oprtu
fidkire to enforce toy Ewi of De&ali ihall be deemed o
walKTof.cbi fidtt of the Sate (D enforce c*b aal sU of ibe
ptovbias hereofopon any ffarihtr or other Event of Oelkult
OQ the pan efthe CoosiODr.

IT. by opsty hereto to the otter party
thai) be.deensod to ,bavo bcca duly delivered or gives ii the
Qnx of QklUng by eertifScd mail, postage ptepaULlo a Uolted
States Po0 Office odtteqmd to tba partis a) tte edditisea '
gKta [fl biocfcs IJ aod 1.4, hcztlA.

J& AMEhfDMDfT. TNi Apeeroent stay be emeada^
waived or dbttargpd only by aa lasiruiaeat In wiitisg al|pi«d
by (he partfo bctpU) and only afia approval offitch
imqadqtcB^ weiyer or dieeharge by (ha Oevemor end
ExaQfljveCqdtaOoriheSBleofbfewKttTTifaiin BBtenoo

such appnivil b icquircd oader (be cUasnflancts pumaai to
Si^a law, rub or p^cy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF ACRBBMBNT AND^TQtMS.
Thb Agroamcst thall be coaiotied io aecontaacc wtib ita
towi ofths-Stitt ofNew Uippifafre» and b tpon trd
ioures b (h« benefit of (he partia and tklr respective
fiteeeaiori aod esrigns. The wording urtdb (Ma Agttsmeot
U (Ka wording chocu by the partfes to o^rtss tbcb RBtfual
btcBt, and ae'rub of mitnietioQ itaU be applied agilBit or
la ttvor of ley party.'

10. THIRD PARTOES. The pardca bereio do on tnuod b'
bewfli eey third pentee end this Agmeaesi stall net be
' canstroedieccDfereoysuchbcacfiL'

21. READINGS. The headiogeiludirghoiiithe Agrtcmcro
ero-for rtfuenee purposes dnly. end (he words comafated
tbcrtio shall ID 00 woy-be held b modify, atqpiuy or
aid (o (be btopretad^ cpsstneto or monl^ ofthe

- prevbim of (his AcrtemcsL

22. SPECIAL PROVISJONH Addidoaal provfalOBS set
forth to the iciaefaed E)Qf IBIT C ere tneorporated hndfi by
fefatacc

SBVERABILfTY. Inltaetmiuiayoflbepioviiloasof
ihb Agrteocn am held by a court ofcooipclett jurbdiciion b
be oooiraortoaoy naie or fkdatl bw.ihcrainafarios
provbloos of (hb Affcematt trill renuda In llill foroeaDd
affect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. Thb Agrecmem, «ti|,eb may
be executed b a "Bum^ of counterparts, each ofwffid) shaft
be decnvd an original, confilnda eanVc Agrraoeot and
undflstBodlng befweca the pttniea, lid lupeiRdti elJ-prtor '
Agrecmerrts and undcrtuadls^ misting hereto.
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Now ttompahlre. Oepsfimem of HooKh and Human Scrvlcos
Substflftcb Um Dlsordof TroBtmenl end Rocovcry 8uppo/1 Sorvleos

ExhibHA'

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. Tha Contnartor wU) Submit a detoned dwoiptlon of Ih© tonouase escblance

oervlcoa. lhay wQ] provide to persona %v{|h rimlted English proficiency to ensuro
moantngW acces© to their progmm# end/or cervices wtthin -tan (10) days o( tho
contract efFecUvo date.

i.i. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legJctaUve actbn by tho Now
Hampshire GencfaJ Court or fodoraJ or s^te court orders may have on Impact on
the Servlcos described herein, the Sl^ Agency haa the right to modify Servfco
priorities end expenditure requirements under this Agreerrient so es to achieve
oompUanoe Iherewlih.

1.3. purposes of ihteConlraa,the Department hps Wentlfiadthe-ConlfBctor as 0
Subrodptent In eccofdanoe with the provisions of 2 CFR 200 etaq. ' '

1.4.' The Coniracta wtQ provWo Substance Use Dlsonter Treatment and Recove7
•  Support Servteea to any eUglbte client, regardless of where the cllenl Cves or works
•  cn New Kampsltfre.'

2. Scope of Scirvlces
2.1. . Covered Populations

•2.1.1. The CortfreciorvXll provide services to eligible Individuals who: •

2.1.1.1. .Areege 12orclderof undarega 12, wfthraquIrBdcortscnt
from g parent Of lagaf guardia nto receive treatment, and

2.1.1.2. Have Income below 400% Federal Poverty Levd,^.
.2.1.1.3. . Are. residents of New Hampshire or homeless In .New
.  - Hampshire, arrd

2.1.1.4. Are determined pQsItf^ for substance use disorder.

.  2.2. .ResDsncy and Recovery Oriented Systems of Care

2.2.1. The Cordractof must provldo substance use disorder treetmenl eervlcea
that support tho Resiliency artd Rezcwy Oriented Systeme of Care
(RAOSC) by opereUonallzing- the Continuum of Care Model
{htlp:/hvww.dhhd.nh.gov/dcbc8Adaa/aojU)nuumsif-carehtm).

. ,^2.Z2. RROSC Gupporta peraon-cenlered and aeiPdtrected approaches to care
thai build on the strengths and resilience of IndMduab, families and
coThmuniaes to take recporislhinty for their sustained health, weflnos end
iBcovery from alcohol end drug probtema At a rnihimum, the Contractor
must
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2.ZZ1. fnform the Integrelcd Denver Nctworfc(8) (lONs) of servtoes
Bvallaliio In order to afign this work v^^lh'lDN prcjects that may
be etmOar or Impact the same popu^ttona.

Z222. (nfomi the RoQlonel PuWIc Health Networks (ft#>HN) of
aervlcce ovBltable Iri order to eDgn thia work .wdh ether RPHN
projects that rnay bo elmSar or tmpact'tho same populabone.- ■

2.2.13. Coortlneie dlenl eefvioee wfth cihor 'commurdty eervfco
provldere Irwdved In the cflenfa care and the dlent'e eupport
network

2.12.4. Coofdinate..^t servloea wtth the Departmenro Regloral
Accaa.a ■ .Pwitt contractor -(RAP) thai provfdes aervloes
-tncfudlhg, but not limited tb:

21.2.4.1. Enaurtng tffoely admiastOA of cQentfi to eer^cos

2.2.14.2. ■ Referrtng cdants to RAP ecrvfcea y^^'lha
Contractor canrtot admit a client for eer^oca
within forty-elflhi (46) hours

1114.3. Referring diarda tp HAP-GCiylcea at'the tJrno of
dhcharge whert'a ciicnt^ij^'ln nebd of RAP
eervtces. and

-112.6. Be seneltfvo and relevant to the dNerslly of the dlertS peing
served.

21.16. Be treuma (nformod; i.o. dedgned to acknowtedga the Impect
vbler^ce end trauma on people's Cves end tt« Importance

of addressing trauma In Ireatment

13. Subatanoe Use Disorder Treatment Servtces

13.1. The Contrsetor must pnMde one or more of the following substance use
disorder treatment eervlcas:

13.1.1. Individual Outpattent Troatmeni as deflnad as A/nertcen
Sodety of Addiction Madldne (ASAM) Crllc/te, Level 1.

Outpatient Treatmsnt eervtoee aestsl en tndMdual to adiiaye
treatment objectlvee through the exptoreHon of substance use
dtordera end (heb ramlflcattorts. including an exsrrUnaUon of
BttUudes end feeitnga. artd consUeratidn of ettemaOve
solutions and dedsion making wnh regard to ekshof end
other drug related pmblems.

13.11 Group Outpatient Treabneni as defined ee ASAM Crlterta»
Level ,1. Outpatient Treabnent eervtces assist s group of
indlviduete to edileve treatment objectfves through (he

Keenest
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ej^fsilon of substance use disorders end their
romlficetlDns, Indudlno en exemtnallon of ettAudes and
feelings, end cortsJdefaiion of alternative aslutlone and
d^slon mahtng with regard to alcohol end d'hor dh>g retsted
problems. ' ̂ •

2.3.1.3. Intenstve Outpetlert Treatment as defined as ASAM Crlterfo,,
Level 2.1. tntenslve Outpatient Treatmertt servf^ provide
Interulve end etrinnured Individual and group aloohol ervS/or'
other drug treatment services and activities that ere provided
eccordbig to en tndlvldualiied bBebnent plan that (nctudes e
'sioc outpatldnt treatment servlcas and other ancQI^
aloohol end/or other drug eervloes. Services for adults aro
P^^dd et teest 9 hours a week. Services for edofesoents
are provided si best 6 hours e week.

Z3.1.4. Low-Intensity Residential Treatment as defined as ASAM
CAefla, Level 3.1 tor adults. Low'tntenslty Residential
Treatmeni services prtMdo resld^tial' substance use
dborder treabnent eervtees deslgried to support hdl^uab.

need this residenllal service. The goal of .low-lntenslly .
*  resldentle] treetmeni is to prepare oDents to heconte' eell>

sufRdent In the cornmuntty. AduU residents typleaOy work Iri
the community and may pay a poflton of theb room end
boisrd.

■  2.4. Reserved

2.6. . EnretOngCCents for Services

ZS.1. The Contredor win delermlna eDgtoDty tor eer^Hces In. accordance wllh
Section Z1 abt^ end with Sections Z6.2 through 2.6.4 bekw.

2.6.Z The Contrector must comptste InteJie screenings as foHows;

Z5.Z1. Have dlred oontBct (face to toco communication by moeBng
to person, or electronically, or by telephone conversation) with
en IndividuBl (deToicd as anyone or a provider) within tvw (2)
business days from the data thai individual contacts the
Contractor for Substance Use pbonder Traatmenl end
Recovery Support Services.

26Z.Z Complete en tnltlal Intake Screening within two (2) business
days from the date of Ihe Rrst direct contact with the
Indlvidusl, using the eOgfbiEty modulo In Web Information

. Techndogy System (WfTS) to determine probabdty. of being
eligible tor servlcea under this oontrBcl end for pro^ICty of
htortng a sutatehca use disorder.

eeeoA oonweiwwwi.d:e_
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26.2.3. Assess clients' (noome prtor lo admission using the WITS fee
determlnsUon moidel end

26.2.3.1. Assure -that clients' fnoome (nfbrmelion Is

upMed as needed over the course qf
t/tatmenl by asking clients about eny changes
in (nceme no less rreguenify then every .4
weeks.

2.6.3. The Contrector sttaU complete en A5AM Level of Care Assessment for oU
.  eervtecs In Sections 2.3;i .1 through 23.1.4 wtmtn two (2) days of the InlUsI

Intake Scre^ng In Section 2.6.2 above using the ASI Ute module; In Web
Information Technology System (WITS) or other method approved by the
Department.wtien the indMdual Is detarrnlned probable pf being ellglbte tar
services.

2.6.3.1. The Cor^trector shaO make evallabte to the Departmwtt upon
request, the data from the ASAM Level of Cane .Assessment
In Section 2.63 In 8 format approved by the departmeni

2.64. The Contractor shatl, for all servf^ provtded. indude a method to obtain
dinlcal evaluations (hat Indude DSM 5 (fiagnoatic Infomiatton and a'
reoommendaUon for'a levd of care based on (he AS/WI Criteria, published
tn October, 2013. The Contractor must oomplete a ctlnlcal evaluellort, tor
each dlent

. 2;5.4.1. ■ Prior to admission aa a part of Irrtertm servtces or wllhin 3
business dsys following admtsslon.

2.5.4.2. During trealment only when detcrml/wd by a Licensed
Counselor. .

2^.6. The Contractor rrrusl use (he clinical evetuatforis completed by a Ucensbd
Counselor from a referrtng agency.

2.6.6. The Contractor wfll either complete dinlcal evaluations In Section 2JS.4
above before admission ̂  Level of. Care Assessments (n Section 26.3
ebow trefore otor^ilon along v/th a dtnlcel evaluation In Section 26.4
above after edmls^.

»

2.5.7. The Contractor sheD provide eOglble dlents the substance use* disorder
.IreatmerU Sendees tn Section 2.3 determined by the dlent'e cfirilcal
evatusUonln SecHon 2.64 unless:

2.5.7.1. The dlent choses to receive a service wtth a lower ASAM
Level of Care; or

HeeOfO GMOA • Ca*ecttrti«A_M^2„
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lAJX Tha eervtce wfth (he needed ASAM Isvel -of ca/e'ls
unavailable at the lirm the (aval of cere ts datemtlned In

r;-*' Section 2.5.4, In whic^ case the cGeni mey chose:

2.6.7^.1. A aervlce with a lower ̂ \SAM Level of Care;

2:6.7.2.2. A aervtee wlih ihe next svaUaMa higher ASAM
level of Care;

2.5.7.2:3. Be placed on the walUiBl untD their obrvloo with

the asses^ A$AM (evef of care beaxnee
^  evaliable ss In Sectfen 2.6.4; or

2-5.7.2.4. ■ Be referred to another agoncy In the cUenfe
.  seMce area ihel provideB (he service wfth (he

rteeded ASAM Level of Cere.

2.6.6. The Contre^r ehsO ervoD eOglble cUenia for eervlces In order, of (he
priority desofbed betosr

.Z5.ai. PregnarM women end women with dependent chWren, even If
(he chOdran are not tn (heir custody, as long as perental rights
hew rtot been termlnaled, (nd.uding (he provision of Intorim
servleee within the required 48 hour time frame If the
Contractor Is unable to admit a pregnant woman for (he
needed level of care withtn 24 hours, the Contredor sKaD;

2.6.&1.1, Contact (he Regional Access Point eervlee
provider In the cCent'e area to connect (he cOent
with Bubstance lae disorder treatmenlaerMoes.

2.5.6.1.2. Asdst (ha pregnant woman w&h Identifying
aJtemabve providers end -v^th ' aooesslno
servioes with these- providers. TTils easlslsnoe
must Indude actively reaching out (d Identtfy
providers on tha behdf of the dient

2.5.8.1.3. Provfde Irterfm services untS the approprlato
lew! of care becomes available el efther (he

ConiTBCtof agency or an eitGjnaUve provider.
Interim eenrlods Shan Inchfde:

2.5.6.1.3.1. At least one 60 minute tndlylduaJ
or grpup outpatient session par
weelq

2.5.6.1.3.2. Recovery wppod servfoes as
needed by (he cOenl;

MmAbi! 6«MA CoiWtorMba.,^^^
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2.6.B.1.3.3. Ofidy calt$ to the dienl to asseso
erttf respond to eny emofBsnt
needs.

2.6.6.2. Indlvlduels viho heve been edmlnlstered naloxone to reverse,
the effects of en opIoM overdose eBher In the 14 days prior to
screening or in the period between screenfng end admission,
to the program.

2.5.8.3. tndMduds wlih s history of IrVecUon drug use tnduding the
prodslon of htertm services within 14 days.

2.5.8.4. IndMduale with' substance um end oo^ccurring rnqrtal
health disordered

2.5.8.5. Individuals %Ulh Optofd Use Olsordera.

28..6.8. Veterans with aubstanoo use disordera.

2.6.8.7. Individuals wtth substance use disorders who ere Involved
wBh the cflmtnai lustJoe ahd/cf chOd protection system.

2.6.8.6. .IndMdoab viho fequl/e priorlly admission at the request of
the OepaitmenL " .

2.5.9. The Contractor must obtain consent tn eaonlanoe with 42 CFR Part 2 for
treatmem from (he cBent prior to receiving scrvioes (or IndMduals whose
ege Is 12 years and dder.

2.6.10. The Contrador must oMaln consent In aooordanoe with 42 CFR Pert 2 for
treatment frem the parent or legal guanllsn when (ho cUent Is under the

■  ege of twelve (12) prior to receiving services.

2.5.11. The Contractdr must Ineb/de (n tha cortsent forms language for dkm
oonsef)! to share WormaUoh v4th otfier social sorvtob egonctes involved (n
the cflent's cero. fndudlrtg but not limned (p:

ZS.11.1. The Department's Division of Children. Youth end Famines
(DCTF)

Z6.11Z. Probation end parole

2.S..1Z The Contractor shall nd prohibit clients flom reoelvlrtg services under Ihls
eonlract when e dlenl does not consert lo .tnfennollon shartng In Se^on
ZS.1l above.

Z5.13. The Cortrador shall notify the cGenta whose oonsent to Information
sbartng In Section ZS-fl -above'that foey heve the ebOlty to mscind the
oonsent et any erne wtihout eny Imped on service provided under this
centracL

. Z5.14. Tlie Contrador shall not 'deny services to an adolescent due to: ■

VMDi>eiMs«i.eussTos p«flteofjB
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2.6.14.1.' The parenfe i^Dity end/or unwOilngness to pay the fee;

2.5.14.2. The edolescent'e dcdabn to rv<;8tvD oonfidentlel seMoes
pursuent to RSA 318-B:.12-e.

2.5.15. TheContracformustpfovldBsorvteesloellslbiecnentswho:

ZS.151. Reoelve Madlcetton Assteted Treeiment services hem ot/w

provtdero 6uch as a dlenfe primary care p/Dvlder.
2.6.15.2. Have co-occurrfng mentaJ health disorders; and/br

2:5.16.3.' Are on medMone and are taUrtg those medlcat/ons as
presofbed regardless of (he dass of medlcatran.

2.6.16, The Cootraclor must provlda aufostartto use dteprdcr treatment aervtoea
eeparataly for edoleaoent and adults, unless otherwfse approved by (ha
Department. The Contractor agrees that addascents end aduUs do not
share the aam.e residency spatt, hoMver,.the oommunal paM such as
Ulchena. group rooms, ertd recreation may be shared but at separata
limes.

2.6/ wsnilsts

2.6.1. ' The Contrector wIO maintain 8 eralUistfor'alldienb.and allsubstance^jso
.disorder treafrnent serrloes Irtctutflng the eligible dlents. being served
under this contract and die/its being ean>ed under another payer source.

ZB.Z The-Contrador win trade the wall tbno for the dlents to (eoetve eervlces,
from the date of initial corrtect In Secdon 2.5.2.1 above to the dale cOants
Itrtt ropehred subsiartce use disorder treatment eervices in Sections Z3
and 2.4 above, other than Evaluation in Sectitf) 2.5.4

2.6.3. The Contractor wOl report to the Oepaiimont monthly;

. 2.6.3.1. The average wall Hme for sQ dlents, by the type of servloe
and payer source for en the services.

Z6.3.2. The average .welt time for prtorlly dlents In Section 2.5.6
above bjf the type of sendee end payer source fbr the
services.

2.7. - Asslptsnce wQh EnrdOng In Insurance ProgrsfTQ

2.7.1. 1 The Cordnsctor must assist clients and/or thetr parents or legal guanSans.
who are unabia to aecure financial rasouroea necessary for InlllaJ entry Into
the progrem. \Mth obtaining other potential sources for payment, such es;

^7.1.1. Enrollmeht In pubBc or private tnauranee, tndudlng b\4,not
flmiied.lo New Hampshbe MadlcaJd prograrrts wWirt fourleen
(14) days after Intake.

NfetflcU EtftoA
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2.6. .SfiiMceOdnvQryActtvttiesandRedulrefflents

Z8.1. TTieGonlractDf shall aaseuaUdlenta for risk of self'hafm at fiO phases
Ueatmant. such as at (niUal contact, durtno screening. Intake, admission,
on-gbing treatment servtoes and at discharge..

Z6.2. The Contractor shall assess aO cftents for wtthdrewal risk based on A8AM

(2013) atandards at ell phases' of treatment, auch aa at trtftial eorttact
durtng screening, intake, admbalon. orvgoino treatment servtoes end
atabOize all cDbnta based on A&AM (2013) guMan^ and shall:

. Z6.2.1. FYovlda stabQtzatlon aetvtces whan o dient'a taye) of risk

Indicates a servtoe wBh an ASAM La^l of Care that can be

provided under Ihb Ccnlmct; If a cHant's risk level Indicates a

service with en A&AM Level of Care that can be provided

under thb contract, .then the Contractor ehaO tntegrate
wlthdrav^l management tfito the-cOent'e treatment pian-and
provide on-going assassment of wilhdrw^ risk to ensure that
Nvlthdrswel b mar^agad aafely.

.  .. Z6.2.Z Refer cflents to a fecOity where the services can be prodded
when a cUenfs risk Indicates a service.^ an ASAM Level of
Cere that Is higher than can be provided under this ContmcL
Coordtnato w*h the wlihdrawal management aeiyloes

' provider to admit the client to ari eppiopriSlb aervtce once (he.
cDenVa wtthdrawel risk has reached-a level thai can be

provtdod imdb thb oonlrect and

Z6.S; . The Contractor must complete tndkrUudtced treatment ̂ ns for aOdlents
based on cflnice} evaluation data within three (3) daye of the-dZnIca]
evaluaibn (In Section 2:6.4 above), that address problems In aD ASAM
(2013) domains v^lch {usiiRed the cQent'a admittance to a given level of
care, that ere In acoordente the requirements In Exhibit A-l end that:

Z6.3.1. Include tri ellindivlduattzed treatment plan goats, objectives,
and (nterventlons written (n terms (hat are:

2A3.1..1. specific, (deaity defining what wQl be done)

Z8.3. t .Z measurable (Including clear criteria for progress

and oompletlfin)

2.6.3.1.3. eltatnabte (wtthtn the Indivtduars abOlty to
achieve)

2.6.3.1.4. realbtlc (the resources ere' available to the

(ndMdue)). end

EtfOOA CefWitierb«Ui_^CflC
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2.6.3.1.5.' timely (this Is eomethlnQ that rweds to be done
end there is a stated time frame for comptation
tfiat Is reasonable).

2.8.3.2. Ir^ude the dSent's Involvement In klentlfyino. developtnQ, and ■
pdoillixtrto oruis, objecth/os. and rntervontlohs.

Z8.3.3. Are update bosed on any ohenges In any Amerleen Society of
Addlollon Medldne Cilterte (ASAM) domeb end no leoe
heouently than every 4 sessions or every 4' weeks, whichever

is less fre<tiJent Treatment plan updates much tridude:

2.8.3.3.1.. Docu.mentatlon of the degree to which the dlent
la meetirtg treatment plan goals end objedNes;

' 2.8.3.3.2. Mo(£ficBtlon of extstb^ goals or addition of new .
goals based on changes In the diants
functlortir^ relative to ASAM domains and

traabhant goats end cbjectlvea.

2S.3.3.3. The. counselor's assessment of whether or not

■ the client needs to move to a different tavel of

care'.ba^ on chan^ th functioning In any
ASAM domain and documsntaton of Ihe

reasons for Ihts easessmanL

2<6.3.3'4. The signature of the cflant end the rvuneeldr
agreeing to the updated trealmeni ploh. or If

appOcaUe. documentation of the cflenTe refusal

to sign the treatment plan.

ZS3.4. Track the disnt's progress relative to the specfflc goals.
objectlvea, end Intefventlona In the cCent'e treatnwil plan by
compteBng encounter notes In WIT&

2.8^. ' The ContrectDf ehaO refer clients to and coordinate e dienrs care wtih
other provfcJere. ^

Zd.4.1. The Ccr>trBdor shaQ-obtain In advance -.if approprtata,
consents from Ihe client. Indudlng 42 CFR Part 2 consent. If
eppHcatde, and In compllanoe wUh state, federal laws and
state and federal rules, indudng but not Hrrdted to:

2.6.4:1.1. Prfrriary care, provider and If the client doea not
have e primary caie provldar, the Contractor
wtO make an appropriate rcfenBl to one and
coordinate care wtlh that provider if approprtate
consents from the client, Inchidlnp 42 CFR Part

Kc8«ai • EeASA •
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i oonsoni. If eppRcabla, ere obtained In
advance in' compliance with etate, federal tawe
eruj etate and federal rules.

*

2.6.4.1.2 Behavioral health cere pro'^er when earvlno
dbnts with co>occuntng eubstanoe use and
mer\tal health dteorders. and If the cflen! does
not have, a mental haalih care provider, then the
Contractor wDJ make en appropriate rarofrel to
one and coofdiwte care wfth thai provider tf
eppTDprtate oonsenta fhsm the cDent Inctudlng
42 CFR Part 2 cofBdnt, 1/ applicable, ore
obtained In advance in compUarica wKh atata,
federal Iswe and state and federal rules.

2.8.4.1.3. MedlcaUon assisted treabnenl provider.

2.8.4.1.4. Peer recovery Buppoft provider, and 1/the cficnl
doe.s not have a peer recovery support
provider, the Gontradtor wQ} make an
appropriate referral to one and coordrnate.para
i^h thai provfdar if appropriate oonsenta flofn
' Ae client Including 42 CFR Part. 2 consent; if
eppllcable. era obtained tn . advance (n '
oomptlance with atste, federal lawe and gtate
end federal rules.

2.6.4.1.5. CoonDnalo wtih tocal recovery community
organbatldns (wtiere available) to brtng peer
(oooveiy support provider Into the troatmenl

settir^, to meet with clients to descrfire
evaltabie services and to engage dlenls tn peer
recovery support secvfbes es applicable.

Z6.4.1.6. Coordtnate wHh cese management earvtoes
offered * by the dlent^ managed- care
organiaaSon or third. party tneursnoe, tf
applicable. If appmprlale consents Horn the
client, Indudlng 42 CFR Part 2 consent tf
appOcable, ere obtained tn advance In
compQanpe with state, fbderal laws, and state
and federal rules.

2.6.4.1.7. Coordinate with other eoclal eervtoe agendae
engaged wfth (he cCent. tndu(£ng but not OmRed
to the Departnenfa OMsion of ChOdren. Youth
end PamlOes (DCYF), probaUon/parola, as

GM0A
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appDcabie end eOowable wHh consent provided
pursuant (0 42 CFH Part 2.

2.8.4.2. The Contreetor .musl dearly document (n the client's fJsff (he
dieni refuses arty of the rBferrala or care coordtnaUcm tn
Section 2.8.4 above.

' 2.6.6. The Contreclor must coirnpleto oorttinulng care, treftsfer, and dbcharge
plans for ell SeMees In Action 2.3 (hat address eO ASAM <2013).-
domains, that are In eeoordanoe w(th the requlremants In &ddbll A-1 and

that:

2.8.6.1. Include the procesa of transferfdischarge planning at the time
of the dient'e intake tb the program.

2.6.&2. jndude at leaal one (1) of the three (3) crttafta for conttnutng
earvfces when addreaslrtg corttinutng care ea fotlowa:

2.6.6.2.1. . Continuing Service Crita/le A: The patleflt ts
. meUng progresa. but has not yet achieved the
goah articulated In the IndMduaDxed treatment
plan. Contlmjed treatment at the present tav^
of care Is esseas^ as necessary tp peimR the
patient to eonUnue to work toward hb or her

treatment goats; or

2.8.5.Z2. Contlruitng Service Crtlerta B: The paflerrt ts not
.  yet making progreaa, but hae Bte capadty to

resolve his or .har problems. He/Sh6 Is actlvety
working toward the goals ertleutated In the
indlvtdualtzed treatrnent plan. ' 'Corrtimied
traatment at the present level of cam- Is

assessed as necessary to permit the patlenl to
continue tp work toward his/her treatment

goala: and/or

2.8.6JL3. ConUnulr>g Service Crflerta C; New problems
have been (dcntlfied Ihst are eppfoprtately
treated ill the present level of cam. The new
problam or priodty require services, the
frequency and IntansfTy of which can only safely

.  be delivered by continued stay In the. current
level of care. The level of care , which the

patient ts reoelvln'g tneatment (a therefore the
least tnlerolve level at which the paOenfa

problems can be edsfressed effectNefy

Headmfl euma . Qcftnaar)ftsm '
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2.8.6.3. Include 0! lesst one (1) of U» foirr (4) anofa for
tramfEr/dlBcharBe, when eddresslng Irensferfdlschafge (hat
(nciude:

2.8.6.3.1. TrBnaterfDhdio/fle Crtterto A; T>io PallenI hes
echleved the goals ertlculsted tn (he

In^vlduallzed treatment plan, thus resoMng the
piDbtemfe) (hot Justing edmlselen to (ho
present level of cere. ContInulr>g (he chronic
(lisease management of (he patenre coffidrlton
at a less tntenslve le^ of cans b tndlcsted; or

2.8.^.3.2. Transfer/Obcharge Crllerta B: The paUerd has
been unable to re&ptve (he problem(8) (hat
justtflad (he edmbslon to the present of
care,' despite amendments to the treatment
plan. The patent Is dMerntesd (O' have
echleved the rraximum possibie benefit from
sngegement in service's at the current level of
cere. Treatmerrt ei.enother levelof care (more
Of loss Intensive) In the dame type of dervloas.
Of dlsdiaroe from' treatment, b therefore
Indicated; or

2.6.6.3.3. .. Transfar/blscharga Crltefla C; The pattern hu
a  lack of- capadty duo to

-  ' ̂dlagni® or bp-occurrlna oondittons that Cmfi
his or her ability to resolve hb or .har
pTob}em(s). Treatment at e guafitathdy
different level of care or. type of eervloei or

• discharge from treatment, b therefore Irrdlcoted;
or •

2.8.&3.4. Trwttfcf/Dlschargo Crtterta D; Tfm patlerit has
experienced en trrtensirtCBUon of hb or hctr
probl8m(8). or hiaa developed a new*
probfemts^ and can be treated effectfvely at a
more Intansfve level of care.

2.8.6. The Contractor stuH dsUv^ all servtoea In tWs Agreement uslr« evidanoe '
based praclloes as demonstreted by meeting one of the foDowIng crttes)&*
2.8.8.1. The s^ce shall be Induded as en evUehoe-based mental

heallh and substance abuse tnterventton on (he SAMHSA
EvWenco^sed PtbcUccs Resource • Center
htlps://wmmr.oemh9a.gov/ebp-rasouro»«enter

Nosdlval EtfOllA COlVdBrWaOi
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2.6.6^. The fiorvfdes shall be published In a peer^ovtewed Jouma)
end found to have'paslllve efTeds; or

2.6.6.3. The substance use disorder treatment aervlce provider shell
be able to document (he eervtoee* effedivenese based on the
foUowtng:

.2.6.0.3.1. The eervlce (s based on a (heeretteal
perspective thel hae vaitdeled research; or

(  2.6.6.3.Z 2. The sendee Is supported by a documented
body of knowledge generated frem similar or

related'sen^ces (hat Indicate efTectiveness.

2.8.7. The Conl/BC^ shall ddlver services in this Contrad in accordance vdth:

Z8.7.t. The ASAM Cdierla (2013). The-ASAM Crtlerta (2013) con be
purdiaaed online through the ASAM website at
http:/)www.8samcfllerl8.orgf

Z6.7J. The Substance Abuse Mental Health Services Admlnhtrotton
(SAMHSA) Treatment Improvement Protocols '(TIPe)
ova Cable at httpc/^tore.samhsa.gov/ltst/sertasTnamecTIP- *'

Sert&8>Tre8tmerit<lmprbvemenl>ProtoGDl»>TlPS>

Zfl.7.3. . The SAMH^ Technical Assistance PiibOcatlons. (TAPa)
eveOabla at

■  http7/8tore.samh8&gov^ist/eerte8?nflme=TechnleB)-
Asslstance^bCceUons-TAPe-8ipagehiumber>1

2.6.7.4. TheRequtrementslnExhlWlA-l. ,

23. CDeht Education

Z0.1. The Cofttrsdor ahaO offer to eO ellgibie cOenta recehftng oervtoes under this
contraeti (ndhrtdua) or group'educatiori on prevention, treatment, and
nature of;

2.9.1.1. Hepatitis C Virus (HCV)

2.6.1.2. Human Immunodeftdency Virus (HIV)

Ze.1.3. SeaiaDyTransminedOtseaseatSTO)

2.8.1.4. Tobacco Education Tooh that tnc^e:

2.6.1.4.1. Assea cQerda for motivation In stopping the use
of tobacco producta:

2.9.1.4.2. Offer resources such aa but not limited to the
Department's Tobeoco Prevention & Control

Program (TPCP) and Ihe ceitlfled tobacco

EtrfiOA Caemtrflifi

RFA^M0A50l^ST-» Pi9«UrfO Be.
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cessalbn counselors-available through the
QuHLtne; and

2.8.1.4.3. Shaft not use tobacco usa, tn and of itsalf. as

orounds' fer discharging ctlenle from servtcaa
being provldad under this oontracl

2.10. Tohscco Free Erwlronmenl

-.•2.10.1. The Oontractor must ensx/re a tobecohfree envtfonment by hevtng poOdes
^  er>d prooadurea (hat el e mhtmum:

Z10.1.1. Irtdude the ampWng of any tobacco product, the use of oral
tobacco products W 'epir -bbaooo. and the usa of electronic

■ devtoes:

Z10.1.2. Apply to employees, dienb and ernploye'e or dtontvidtorB;

Z10.1.3. Prohfbll the use of bbacce products v^ln the ContrBClohs

fedlltfas at any time.

Z10.1.4.. Pnshbtt the use of tobacco In any Contracbr owned vahida.

2.10.1.6. Irtdude whether or not use of tobacco products b prdhbtted
outside of the'recflity on the grounds.

Z10.1.6. Include the foOowtng if use of tobacco products Is eDo^d
outslda of the lacfllty on the grounds:

2.10.1.6.1. A deslgnsted smoMng srea(D) which ts located
et least twenty (20) feet from the main entranoa

Z10.1.6.2. AO mstarlals ueed for smoking b this area,
-Inctuding cfgaretta .butts and matches. wfD ba
extinguished end disposed of In epproprte'b

. contatnars.

2.10.1.6.3. Ensure periodic deanup cf the daalgnaled
smoUng area.

ZtO.1.8.4. If be deslgnabd smotdng area Is not property
mathblnaf, ft can be ettmlnatad at the

discretion of the Contractor.

Z10.1.7. Prohibit bbaora use In any company vehide

Z10.1.6. Prohlbll tobacco use tn personal vehldes when transporting
people on euthodzed business.

2.10.2. Tho ContTBdor must posf the tobacco free en^gnmerd pol^ b the
CcntmcCor'e fedlltles and vehldes and Induded In employee, client, and
vtslttr orlerrtdtlon.

Hssdwt etfbUA eBiw«a«ifea^
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3. Staffing
3.1. Th© Contrectof shall meet the minimum stsfflng requlrementa to provide the scope

of wort In Ihto RFA ss fodovvs:

3.1.1. A| least one:

3.1.1.1. . Raters Uteneed Alcohol end Drug Counselor (MLAOC); or
3.1.1.2. Licenud Alcohol end Drug Ccunsefor (lADC) who el&o holds

•  the Licensed CDrticsl Supervisee (LCS) credential:

3.1.Z Suflicl^l faffing levds that ere epproprtste for (he services provided end
the rtumber d dients serv^.

3.1.3. All unlicensed staff providing treatmerrt, educstlor> end/or recovery support
services Shan he under the direct supervision o1 a Ooensed supetvisor.'

3.1.4. No licensed wpcndsor shall supervise more than twelve unlicensed staff
urdese the Department has approved en efiematlve supervision plan (Sm

.. ExhIhB A-1 Section 6.1.2).

3.1.6.. Al least one Cerltfisd Recovery Support Wcrtcer (CRSW) (or ©very 50
dlonte or portion thereof.

3.1.6. Provide ongoing dlnlcs) supervision thai occurs at regular Intervols \n
■accordance with the OperaUonal Requirements In Exhibit A-1. -and
evidence based prscttoee, at a minimum:

3.1.6.1. WeeWy.dlscusebn of cases with euggieetlons for resources or
therapeutic epproeches, oo-ihefspy. end pertodk assessment
of progress:

3.1.6.2. Group eupervtslon to hetp optirruze the (eemlng expatence.
when enoi^h candldales are under supervision; '

3.2. The Contractor shall provide (raining to staff on:
•  I . . *32.1. Krtqwtedge, skDls. valuee. artd ethica with speclHc application b the

.  practloe Issues faced by ttie supervisee;
32.2. The 12. core lUncdani as. described In Addiction Counseling

Compeiandes; The Knm*1edgei» SWDs, and Attitudes of Profesalonal
Practice, avaBable et http://sbre.8Bfflhs8.sov^roduct/TAP*21«Addlctl(m-
CounseDng-Competaricles/SMAIMiri end

3.2.3. The staiKtarda of practice end ethical conduct, with particular emphasis
gVen to the counseloTe role end eppropriate responslbDiUes, professional
boundertes, and power dynamics and apprcfprlate Irrformalion eeoirlty er)d
oonfldentlaQly pracDoes for handling protected health InformaHon (PHI) ena
substance use disorder treatment records as eafeguftded by 42 CFR Part
2.

Kssdm) EtfiaitA
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3.3. The Contr^r ahaD notify the Department. In witting of changas tn key pef«onn«l
and provide, wfthln five (5) wortdng days to the Department, updated reaumes thai
dearly tndlcata the slefT member b emplojred by the Contractor. Key pereonneJ era
those staff tor whom at least 10% of thetr worft time b spent providing substance
uao dbortler treatmentend/or reoove^ support aervfcee.

3.4. The ConlTBCtor ahall notify the Department In wrtUng wlihln oine month of hire when
e new edmlnbtrator or coordlnetof or" any staff person eeeentisl to cenytng eul Ihb
scope of aervtcBs b hired to v«rk In (he progroni. The Contractor shall provide a
00^ of the resume of. the emptoyeo. which dearly Indlcalea the staff member b
employed by the Conlractof. wlih the noWcailon.

3.6. The Contractor shell notify the Department In wrtllng within 14 celender days, when
there Is not eufftdcni staffing to perform an required aervtees for more than or®
month

3.8. The Contractor ahall hM policies end procedures related to etudent Interns to
eddroM ml/iimum courscworh, eiqpertenoe and core competoncbs.fbr those Interra
haying dbect contact with Indivlduab served by this ■ ccrtract AddlltonaJIy, The
Ccntracior must have student Jnta'mj compfete an approved ethics course and an
approved cwrse on the 12 core (unctions as dcscrfbcd In Addiction Counseling
Competencies: The Knowlodge, Skills, and AWlydes of Prof^lonsJ Practice In

■Section 3.2.4 and sppraprtate [nformabon seourfty and oonfidenUality practittS for
handOng protected heallh Information (PHI) end eubstance use disorder treatment
records as safeguarded by 42 CFR Pert 2 prior to beginning their Infemshlp.

3.7. The Cortractor ahaO haw unlicensed staff jcomplaiB an approved ethics course and
an fl^roved course on the 12 core functions es described In Addbtion Cdunselliy
Competencies: The Knowiadge. SkUle. and AWtudee of Profosstanal PlacUce In

' Section 3.2.2, arid mfqrmollon security end oonfidentteDy. practices fv har^dlbg
proiaded health tnfbrmaWn (PHI) and substanoa use disorder treaimeni records tts
safeguarded by 42 CFR Part 2 wHto 6 months of hire.

3.8. The Contractor shaD ensure staff rccefves conUnuous cducallon In the evpr
changing flett of subRanoe use dtscrdcrs. and state and federal lews, end rules
rebting to oonfidentbllly

3.B. The Contractor ehalt provide In-servloe trelntng to all staff Involved In cfienl care
s»4IWn 15 days of tha.contrart effectlw date or the Biaff parson's atari date. B after
(he contract eftecthra date, end at less! every 80 days thereafter on the ftitowtng:
3.8.1. The contract requirements.
3.0.2." AO other rdcvani pollctes and procedures provided by the DaperbnanL

3.10. The Contractor shall pnwlde iH'servtoe training or erisure aitendanoe el an
appfowd training by (he Department to cCntal staff on hepaUUs C (HCV), human
ImmunodeSctency vlnja (HIV), tubeiailosb (TB) and sexuaUy transmitted diseases

CirCOA CorC^totrfBH. .
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•  • (STOs) snnuafiy. The Contractor shaQ pfovtde (he Department wflh a Qst of trstrted
deff.

4. Facilities License
4.1. , The Contractor ohaD be l(cer\sed for eD residentts) services provided with the

Depertrrterrfe Health FecDlUea Admtniareaon.

. 4.2. The Contracicr ehaO oomply with (he additional lioensJng requirements for m^oahy
rnordtorod. residential withdrowel managemtNit services by the .Oepeitment's
Bureau of Health Faclililes Admlntstretion to meet higher facilities Dcensure
standards.

4.3. The Cont/Bctor Is responsible for ensuring that (he'f^dlilles when servtcas era
-  prodded meet all the applicable laws, rules, polides, and starvlards.

5. Web Informajtlon Technology
6.1. The Contractof shal) use (he Web Intwrnatlon Technology Syetem (WITS) to record

^ cQent sctMly end dlent contact within (3) days foRowIng (he actMty or contad as
dlipcted by the Department.

■6.2. The Contrsdof shall, before prthndlng aervtces, obtain written Infonned cortsent
frern the cOent stating that (he diem understands that
5.2.1. The WTTS system Is admtnlstered by the Stale of New Hampshlre;
6.2.2. State employees hove access to all Information that Is entered Into the

yvits system;
6i>.3. Any tnformaUonentorad Into die WITS system becomes the property of the

State of New Hampshire.
5.3. The Contractor shafl have any dlenl whose Information Is entered inio the WITS '

eystem cDmptete a WITS consent to (he Department
6.3.1. Any dlenl refusing to sign the Infbrmed consent In 5.2 end/or consent tn

S.3:

&3.1.1. ShaD not be entered into the WITS system; end
5.3.1.2. Shalt not rccdve eervtces under (hb oontrsci

6.3.1.2.1. Any dlent who cannot receive services under
thb contract pursuant to Section 13.1.2 shaQ
be assisted tn finding allemetNe payers for the
required services.

6.4. The Contractor agrees to the (nformeOon Security Requirements ExhlbD K.

HWdrOt CiHUA ConVaeftirfcCOi

(WA.»isfiOA»oiou8ST« p^iroru



Ntw Hampshire Oepartment of M«m> end Human Servlcee
Subotanco Uoe Dlsorter Tmtment and Roeovery Support Servteef

EihlbitA

6iY<eporttng .
6.1. The Contractor ehdil report on (ha folMng:

6.1.V NaUonal Outcome Measures (NOMs) data In wrrs far

6.1.1.1, 100% of ellcfienie et admlsalon-

O.l.U. 100% of eSi cUenia wt» em discharged because they have
comptotod treatment or transferred to another progrsni

6.1.1.3. SC^ of oO cQenla who ore discharged for reasbna other than
those epedfied above tn Seeiion6.l.1.2.

6.1.1.4. The above NOMs (n Section 6.1.1.1 through 6.1.1.3 are
mlntmum reqi/lremenls and the Cordrsctar ahail attempi to
achieve greater reporting results when possDila

6.1.2. Mcrtthly quarterly web b^d cont/Bct cornpllartoe reports no later than
the lOthday of the month fcf!to«Mng the reporting RtOTth or quarter;

•6.1.3. All critical (nddonts to the bureau .in tsriBng ee eoon es poastbte and no
more than 24 houre follqwfng the tncldent The Conlraciof agrees that;
6.1.3.1-. 'Crttleal tncMent* means arry ectual or efleged evertt or

altuaUon that creates e .afgnllteant risk of cubelantlal or
seriqus hafm to physical or mental health, aafaly. or weO-
being. Including but not limited to;

6.1.3.1.1. Abuse;

6.13.1Z Weglect

6.1.3.1.3. Explollatjon;

6.1.3.1.4. Rights vtolallo^

6.1.3.1.5. Mhslng person;

6.1.3.1.16. Medical emergency:
6.1.3.1.7. Restrelnl^of

6.1.3.1.6. Medical error.

6.1.4. AD contact with taw onfofcemeni loathe bureau In wrfllng as soon as
possible and no more than 24 hcura fOOowlng the incident:

6.1.6. AS Media contacta to the bureau m wriUng as soon ea posa&ile and rw
mora than 24 hours following the Incident;

6.1.6. Senttnol events to the Department aa fcOows:

6.1.6.1. Sentinel events shall be reported when they tnwolve any
IndMdUBf who Is receMng seMcos under this oontrad;

VVfDUJoS EirOftA . CataaarbJC^rjy^
ar^seiseoAMi-eusaros PigtiSBra D«U.
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6.1.GZ Upon ^cotortng (he even), the Contmctor shsO provide
Immediate veita) notifsaeon of the event to the bureau,
which ahaD tndude;

6.1.6.Z1. The reporting tndMduara name, phone number.,
and eoencyforoenUstton;

6.1.6.2.2. Name and dale of btrth (008) of the
tndMduat(8) involved tn the event: ■

6.1.6.13'. Locetbn, date, and time of the event;
6.1.6,2.4. Description of the et«nt. Including v^tal. when,

where, how the evieni happened, and other
relevant Informal, as wed ea the Identfflcallon

.  of enyoiherindMduali involved;

iB.i.6.2.S. Whether the polloe were involved due to a
crtme or suspected crtrne; ar^

6.1.6.2.6. The idenliftcetion of arry media that had
reported the everd;

6.1.6.3. Within 72 hours of the unPne) event, the Contractor ahaO
submit, a oompteiod 'Sentinel Reporting FomT
(Fetjruary 2017)^' available . ai
httpsy/www.dhhajih.oovfdcbcs/documents/rep0rtlng-form.pd}
to the bureau

6.1.6.4. AddittonaJ Information on the event that Is. diaoovered after
fUVig the form tn Section 6.-1.63. above ehall bo reported to
the Department, In writing..as R becomes. aveRable or upon
request of the Department; end

&1.63. SubmR eddltlonai Informatlori regarding SecUons 6.1.6.1
-  1hr.ough6.1.6.4above/fr6qu}redbyihedepQrtmenband

6.1.6,6. Raporl the event In Secttona 6.1.6.1 through 6.1.6.4 above,
as appQcable, to other agendes as required by taw.

7. Quality Improvement
7.1. The Contractor ahaU participate In ef) quality ̂ rovemenl actlvldes to erisuro the

standard of care for cOerris. ea requested by the Oepertment, such as. but not
(Imtted to:

7.1.1. Rartfctpatlon In dedronic and irvpereon dent record revtewB

7.13. ' PeiUdpation In siie vbltB

Kestfts eertft A
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7JL

' M.3. PartUpmlon tn t/elrUng and teehniea} assistance actMUaa as dlreetad by
lf>e Oepaitmanl.

The Cortredor ̂ cdl mdnllor and'manage the uQtxaton loveta of care* end earvtce
array to ensure servtees are oirered ih/ough the (arm of ihe contract to:

7^.1. MetrUetn e eonslstent eeMoe capacfty for Sutet^co Uee Olsonler,
Trealmeni and Raoovery Support Sendees statewide by:

7.2.1.2.

Monitor the capecity eudt es etafTing end'other resources to
- conslstantfy and evenly delh^r these services; end

Monitor no less than monthly the percerttage of the contract
funding eipended.relative to the percentage of the contract
period that has elapsed If there Is a difTarenco of more Ourn

10% between ej9ended funding end elapsad time on the
cQptmct the Contractor shall notify the Obparlment wtthin 5
days end submit a plan for corr^ng tho discrepancy wllhtn
10 days of notlfytng the Oepartnent.

8. Maintenance bf Fiscal Integrity
8.1. In oc:der to enatrfo DHHS to evaluale tho Contractor's fiscal tntogrlty, thd ContrBctor

agraas to eubmll to DHHS monthly, tho Balance Sheet f^t end Loss StaMment
and Cash Flwe Statement ftjr (he Contrtictor. The ProfU end Lose Statement shaD
Include a budget column ellowtng for budget lOBctualanal^ls. Staterf^ents shall be
eubml^ within thirty (30) calendar days after each month end. The CuntraUur wOl
be evsduatod on the fOOowhg:

6.1. Days of Cesh on Hand:
•s

8.1.1.1. OoHnlUon: The days of operating enpensas that can be
covered by (he unrestricted cash on hand.

8.1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equlvalenta and ehort (erm (nvestmertte
dMded . by . totet operating expenditures. ' less
deprecfetfonfsmorttrotlon and in*kM ptue prtndpal'payments
on debt divided by days (n the reporting pertod. The ehorV
term tm^stmsnts es us^ ebo^ra must mature wUhtn three p)
months e^ should rut hdude common stock.

Pdrformance'Standard: The Contredor shaO have enough *
cash end cash equivalents to cover expertdKures for e
minimum of thirty pO) calendar'days with no variance
ellOMed.

&1.2. Current Ratio:

8.1i1. Oeftnltion; A measure of the Cantrector'e total current assets
avallabfe to cover tfu cost of currenl QablDUes.
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EahlPltA

8.1^^. Fomiuia: Total cuirenl aaseta dMdad by total cu/rent
OabHIUaa.

8.U.3.. Perfomianoo Stendard: The Contfector afmO melnlaln o-

minimum cunent ratio of 1.6:1 wtth-IOKvartaftoosflowod. •
6.1.8. Debt Service Cbvoraoo Ratio:

RattonoJo: Thb ratio (Ihtfiretea the Contractn^e ebtliiy to
cover the cos) of lte cunertf porflon of Its long-term debt.

.  6.1.8.Z Dcflfttlon: The ratio of Net (noome to the year to date debt
service.

6.1.3.3. Formuta: .Net Income plus DeprectaBon/Amiatftatian.
Expertse plus Intereet Expense divided by year to date debt
aanrloe (prtnclpal and Intereil) over the next twelve (i2)
months.

6.1.3.4, Sotiroe of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Rn^ciaJ
Statements dentifyfng currerd portion of lon^erm jdebl
payments (princlpa) and biterest).

.6.1<3'6. Performenbe Standard: The Ccntractor. shall malntalrv a

minimum standard of 1Z:1 wUh no varlanoe allowed.

8.1.4. Net Assets to Total AeseiK

6.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is an Indication of (he ConbBctor'e abSity
to cover Its Uabiniiefi.

6.1.4Z. Oeflnltfon: The ratio of the Contractor's net essdts to total
assets. ' '

6.1.4.3. Formuta: Nd assets (total assets lees total UabOitiae) dhttded
by (otaf essets.

6.1.4.4. Source of Data; Yhe Coniractor'a Monthly Financial
Statements. '

6.1.4.6. • Performanoe Standard: The Cordractbr shall matntaln a

minimum ratb of .30:1, vdlh e 20% varlar^ aDpwad. .
BZ . In the event that the Contrador does not mset either-

8Z1. ■ The standard regarding Osys of Cash on Hand and the stahdaM regarding
Current Ratio for two (2) consecutive months; or

^Z2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintananoe of Rscal Integrtty standards
for OvBo (3) cttisecuUve months, then

6Z.3. The Oepsrtmant may redutro thst the Contractor rrwei with Department
Btaff to explain the reasons thai the Contractor has not met the etandards.

Heedrtsi , c«hma
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Now Mempthlfo D^paitmenl of Ho«lu» ond Human SorvUae
Subitonca Uio Dlaortor Treatment and Nacovary Support Sorvleoa

EihtbliA

B.2A. Tha Oopartmcnl may requtre the Conlrector to'submit a compreharBhw
ccffectNe «ilon p!an wlWn thirty <30) calanda; days of rwUficaflon ttel

-  8.2.1 and/or B2.7 have not been met.

8.2.4.1 Tha Contractor shall update the ccfracllve action plan ai least
every thirty (30) calendar daya unto oompOanoe b adileved.

8.2.4.2. The Contractor aheJI provide addiljonaJ Infornietlcm to assure
oorrtlrued eeoess to' servtoes as requested by t>D
Department The ConiractDf shaD • provide requested
Infomiathin In a Wmcfreme agreed upon by both parties.

The Contractor shall tnlonn (he Department by phone and by emafl within twenty-
tour (24) hours of when any key Contractor staff leam of any actual or likely
miQation, (nwestlgaUon. complaint claim, o; trensaclton that may reasonably be
oonstdered to have a material finandat Impaci on endtor matertaOy trnpad or bnpalr
the ebllliy of the Contractor to perfbrm under thh Agmemenl wHh the Department ■

6A. The monthly Balance Sheet Profil & Loss Sletemeni, Cash Ftow Stat^ent and aQ
other rinancteJ reports shall be based on the eceruaJ tnethod of eocounDng qnd
Inctude the Comrartor*8 total revenues and e^endltures whether or not oepereted
by er.r^ting from funds pro^4ded pursuant to mis Aareemefit These, reports are •
due wflhh thirty (30) calendar days after the end of each month.

6.3.

9. Performance Measures
9.1. The Contractor's oontrad performance shall be measured es In Section 0.2 betow

to evaluate that services ore mitigating nesatfve (mpa^ of substance misuse.
InchidZng but not (tmKed to the opldd epidemic and assodated overdoses.

9.2. For (he firai yrar of the ccntrod only, (he data, es coDedod In WITS, wd be used to
assist (he O^artment In determlnlno the benchmark for each measure below.. The
ContfBCtd agrees to report data In WFTS used In the foOowIno measures:
9.2.1. Access to Service?: % of dients accepting services reoefve any

servloe, other than eyaluatJoo, wfthin 10 days of screening.
5.2.2.' Engagerfient % of dients receMng any services, other than avaluatlvi. on

at (east 2 seperate days wRhIn 14 days of screening

02.3. COnlcally Apprbprfate Seivtcao: % c/lentB receKIng ASAM Olierta
Identified 8UD services (as Menlifled.by Initial or subsequent ASAM LoC
Criteria deterrnlrtatlon) within 30 days of screening.

9.2.4( Cflent Ralerrtion: % of currently enfoHedcOents receiving any type of SUO
eervlcas. other than evahiation. on at least 4 separete days wtl^ 45 days
of Initial screening.

0.2.6. Treatment Comptellon: Total U of dtechaiged (dls-enroQsd) dients
compdeUng treatment

eawA
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ExWbllA

'9^.6. National Outcome Measures (NOMS) The % of dlenia out of aS cfianta
' discharged meeting at least 3 out of 5 NOMS outcome crltarta:

0^.6.1. Reduction tn Mo change In (he fretmency of eubstance use at
discharge compared to data of flrelservlca

8^.6.2^ Increase Irtfno change In number of Indlvtduah empbyed or
tn acNool at date of last service compared to fiml service

6 J.6.3. Reduction Infno change In number of Individuals armated. In
pasi 30 days ITom date of fust eervtoe to date of last service

8.2.6.4. Increase tn/no change In number of tndMduaie that have
■  stable housing el last servloe compared to first service

fi.2.6.5. Increase (rtfrra change In number of IndMduals parOdpatlng tn
community support servtoea at last servtce copipared to first
servloe • • • T

Hudicd Ed^A .
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N«w HampfiWre Departmenl of Hosllh and Human Servtcos
Substance use Disorder Treatment and Rscovcry Support Services
RFA4018-aDAS<01^US$T •

EahlbU A>1 OpordUonal Requlremonta

The Contrador shall comply wflh the foUowfng requirements:

. 1. Roqulrements for OTgartzaUonal or Program Changes.
.  1.1. The Contractor ehell provide the departnenl with written notice at least 30 devs orlor to

changes In any pi the foltowlno:
1.1.1. Ovwrershtp;
1.1.2. Fhyelcal (ocaUon;
1.1.3. Name.

1.2. When there Is a new edmlnJstrBtor, the foHewtng ohafl apply:
1.2.1. 'The ContrBClor shaD provide Che departmefU with Immediate notice whan on

Bdmintstratof posIHon beoomes ̂ ant;
1.2.2. The Contractor shall notify the department in writing as eoon as possible prior Co

a cttange (n admlnlstralor, end Imma^tely upon the ledCof an admlntstretor
and provide the dcpartmont with the fonowing:-

1.2.Z1. The written closure of.the new edrnmistralDr requbBd In Section 1.2
•eb^:

"1-^2^. A resume IdenUfyIng the rtame and qualincationa df the new edminiatretor!
and

t.2.Z3. Copies of appOcatte Ilcersei for the now edmlnistratpr: ■
.1.ZZ ^en there is a change In the name, Ihe Contractor shaO aidvnll to the

department a copy of the certmcate of amendment from the New Hampahtre.
Socretary of Slate. If appncabla, and the effective date of the name change.1.2.4. When a Contractor dlsconllrvjes a oontraded program, U ahan submit to the
dapartment

12.4.1. A plen to transfer, discharge or refer oD cDerite being eerved In the
coolracted program: and

1Z42. .A ptan for the security and trartsfer of the cDenfa raoorts t>dng served In
.  Ihe contracted program as required by Sections 126-1Z10 below and

wldi (he consent of the dlent.
2. Inspections.'
2t For the purpose of detemilnlng'compliance with iha conbad, the Conuactor ahal] admit

and enow any department fepfesenta6ve at any time to (nsped the following:
21.1. The fbcfilty premises;
212. AD programs and services provided under the contract; end
212. Any records requtrad ̂  the oonUaa

22. A nedce of deftiendn shdl be tasudl when, as a result of any Inspection, Ihe
department determines that the Contractor Is In violation of any. of the oontraci
requlremanta. . ■ ■ *

22. If the noUce tdendfies deftcfencies to be comeciod, the Contracxor shaU submit a plan of

3 AdrrtS?aS!o.ROTSlB'*** wo'Ung days ol raoeMng Ihe Inspection (Indtr^s.
3.1..The department ahalf Impose edmlntstratlve remedies for vfoiattons of contract

requiramenta, Including: .
3.1.1. • Requtrbig a Ccnlrector to submit a plan of correction (PCX);

• d.T2. Imposing a dtrectad POC upon a Contractor;
3.12. Suspend of a contract or
21.4. Revocation of a contract.

Vendor Name



New HampsWre Depertmenl of Keahh and Human Services
Substance use DIsorKfar Treatment and Recovery Supoorl Services
RFA-201S«OAS-0i-8UBST

Exhibit A>1 OperaUonal ReouirementB

3.2. When adrnMblraUve remofies are bnpoaod. the departmeni shall provide a written
rtoUce, as appileable, which:
3.2.1. IdentiHes each deficiency;
12i UenHfles the flpedfte remedy(e) that has been proposed: end
32.3. Provtdes the Contractor with information regarding the right to a haartna In

accofd8nco,vrithRSA641^andKoC200.
3.3. A POC shall be devobped and enfbroed in the foQowtng manrvr

3.3.1. .Upon racelpl of a notbe of deficiencies, the Contractor shall submit e written
POC wtthtn 21 days of the date on the rv)tlce describing:

3.3.1.1; How the Contractor Interxls to oofT^ each defldbncy;
assures tvfil be put In place, or wf>al system changes wriH be made

'  to^ensure that the deficiency does not recur; and
32.1.3. The date by which each defldeney shall be obrrected which shaO be no later

then 80 days from the date of submlssbn of the POC;
3.3.2. The department shall review and accept each POC thai:

3.32.1. Achieves compflanee with contract requirements;
32.22, Addresses all defidendes and deftdent practices as died In the Inspection

report
3223.. Prevents a new vioiatlon of contract requirements as s result- of

.  Implemenlation of the POC; end
322.4. Spedflas the data upon which the deftdendaa vriO be corrected;

3.4. If the POC is eoceptable, the department shdl brevWe wrillen rwilflcatlon of acceptance
of the POC: •

3.6. If the POC Is not acceptable, the departnenl shall notify the Contractor In wrttinD of the
reason-for refecting the POC;

3.6. The Contrectoc shall devdop end submit a revised POC wtihin 21 days of the date of
the written noUfreaiion In 3.5 above;

3.7. The revtced POC shall compfy with 3.3.1 atmve and be reviewed tn aooonianoe with
3.32 above;

3.8. If the rmrtsed POC Is nol acoeptable to the departmenC or b not aubmitted wUWn 21
days of the date of the written nourcallon tn 3.6 above, the Corttrector chaO be subbci
to a diredad POC In accordance with 3.12 bebw;

3.0. The dapartmenl shall verify the Implemsntetion of any POC thai has been submlBed
.  end accepted by;

3.6.1. Ravtewt^ materials submitted by the ContrBctor
3.92 .ConductlngefoQow-upinspectlon;or
3.02. Reviewtngoompfbnoe during the next Scheduled Inspectkm;

3.10. Verfflcatten of tha Implementation of any POC shaO only occur after the date of
oompiellon apedRed.iry the Contractor tn the plan; and

3.11. If (he POC or rovlsad POC has not been implemented by the comptetton date, tha
Conbedor sh^ be Issued e directed POC tn accordance with 3.12 bdowi.

3.12. The dopartment shall develop and Impose a directed POC thai specif conecOve
actions for the Contractor to Implamen] when;

3.121: ̂ ^a result of an hspecttarv deflctendea ware benlffted that require ImmedWe.
corredlw actbn to proted the twafth and safety of die dients or personnel;'

3.122 A revised POC is not submitted wtthin 21 days of the written nolfllcstion from the
- department; or

VendorNsme
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3.12.3. A revised POC submitted hea nol been Qcoepted.
4. Outlos and RespensI&OIilei of All Contrsctore.

4.1. The Controefor ehafl comply with aO federal, etate, and local laws, mles, codes,
oftflnanoee, lieehses, pemutfi, snd opprovals, and rules piomulpalBd thereunder, as
appttoeble.

4.2. Tho Contractor shall monhor, essess, ond Impniye. as necessary, (he quaOty of are
and aervlce provtded to cUenis on en orpotr^ basis.

4.3. The Contractor shall provide for the nsce»»ry quaHfled personnel. CacDitia. equipment,
artd suppQee for the safety, rrtatntenanca end operation of the Contractor..

4.4. The Contractor s^ develop and tmptsment written poTtcles end prooeduras oovemlng
Ofi operaUoh endeU'stfylces provided.

4.6. All poOdes artd prooeduras shaD be revlavi«J. rovteed. ar*d trained on per Contractor
PoCcy.

4.6. The Contractor shall:
4.6.^ Emptoy" en admlnbtrator responsible for the day-today bpcrelton of the

Contractor; . •
4.6.2. • Maintain a currard job description and minimum quaDftcations for the

Bdmlnlstrator, Including the edmlnlstratoT's author^ end duties; and
4.6.3, Establish. In writing, a chain of command that sets forth the Urw of authority for

the opcretion of ihe Ccniractof the staff po9Klon(s) to be delegated the authority
and responslbnuy to act In the edminlstretor's behalf when the edmlntetrator b
absent

4.7. The CoAtrsctof ShaD post Ihe follovdr^ documente In a putriic area:
4.7.1. A copy of the Contraclor'a poOclas artd procedures rcfstlve to the Implementation

of dient fighte and mponslbStles, Including dlenl conndenUallly per 42 Cf^
. Parl 2; end

4.7.2. The Cofltnaciof's plan for fire safety, evacuation and emcmandcs Wenttfytno the
.  . location of. .and access to aOnre exits.
4A The Contractor or any employee shaD noi falsify any documentation or provide false or

mtoleadtng Information to the departmsnt.'
4.9. The Contrsctor ehaU compty with eO corrdidons of warnings and admbibtrBtive remedtes

bsued try Ihe.departmant. and all court orders.
4.10. The Contractor 6haD admit and allow any deparlmanl represematlve to Inspect the

ccftlfled premises and all programs end sendees iha ere befng provided at any lime
fcrlhq purpose of determining oompQanoe wllh the oontract.

4.11. The Cwtractor ehaD:
4.11.1. Report aO crfUttI tnddenta and senltrtel events to the deportment In eecerdartte

with Etdilbri A, SecUon 20.Z3;
4.111. Submit oddlUonalWoTTnallon If required by the department; end '
4.11.3. Report the to other agencies as required by law.

4.12.- The Conlractor sheO Implement pbCdes and procedures for repoftbrg:
4.12.1. Suspeeled child abuse, negled or exploitation, In acoordanoe with RSA 169-

C:29-3Q;end
4.112. Suspected abuse, negleci.or o^toilailon of Mutts. In aooordance with RSA 14S-

F;40.

Vendor Nwno
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4.13. The ContrectDf ehafl report aD posttive tu6erculo&b test results for personnel to the
ofneo of disease control In eceordanoo with RSA 14VC:7. K«-P 301.02 end Ho-P
301.03'

4.14' • For resldanUal progrems. d the Contractor accepts a cDeni who Is kiwwn to hove e
diaeaee ropcrtable under Hiyp 301 or an tntecttdus disease, wt^h b eny disease
caused by the growth of mlerooroenlsms In Ihe body wWch might or might not be

j contagious, the Cont/ector shaO fofbw the required procedures for the care of .the
ctienb. as aped^d by the United States Centers for Disease Contra) and Prevention
2007 QuldeUne Jor Isdatlon Precautions.' Preventing' Transmission of Infectious
Agents in Healthcare SeQIngs, June 2007.

4.16' Cwtredora shall Imitiemenl state end federal regulations on client confldentialtty
tndudlng provisions outHned In 42 CFR 2,13, RSA 172:8-e. end RSA 31S:e;12;

•4.16. A Contra^r shaQ, upon requesi. provide a clbnt or the cOent's guardian or agent, ff
any. wtlh b copy of hie Of her cOent record wHWn the oonnnos for 42 CFR Pert 2.4,17. The ContrBaof ahaH develop poQdea and procedures regarding the release Of

\_ Wormation conlatned In ctient rooo/ds, In aceordanoe with 42 CFR Part 2. the HeaJlh
Insurance Portability end Accbuniabffiiy Ad (HIPAAX end RSA 316.8:10.4.ia AD records required by the contract shall be legible, current, accurate and avatlabb to
the department during an Inspection or Investigation conducted In aceordanoe vdlh
thte contract.

4-19. Any Contradof thai malnleins electronic recdrde shall devetpp written pdldes ari'd
designed to protad the privacy of cllenls and perscn/tel thai, at a

miftlmtw, Irtdude: ' ̂ •
4.19.1. Pfocedum for badiing up files to prevent loss Of data:
4.19.2. Safeguards for maintaining the confidentiality of Information pertaintng to dbnls

and staff; and
4.19J. Systams to prevent tampering wllh Information pertaining to cflenls and staff.

■  4.20. The Contractor'a eervtce dlte(s) shall: *
4.20.1. Be accessible to a person wfth a dlaabBify using ADA eccesclblDly and barrier

free guUeOnee per 42 U.S.C. 12131 at seq;
4.20.2.- Have e reception area separate from living end treatmcnl areas;
4.20.^. Have pftvete space for personal oorttullation. charting, treatment and

-  acltyttlas. as at^Qcsble;
4.20.4. Have secure aiorage of active end doaedcoftfldemialcllent records; and

• 4.20.6. Have separata and secure storage of lojdc substances.
^Conbedor shall establish and monllpr a code of cihlce tor the Cortirector and fta
SOT, ea «rali as a meehantem for reporting u/reihica) conduct4.22. The Contractor shall.malrttalnspedfle policies on (he foUowtng:

potidesandprocodures;
422Z Progressive dbdpQne, leading to admfnbtrativetfscharge:
4.22.3. Rapqrthg end appealing staff grievances;
422.4. Policies on cOent etoohol and other drug use whflo fn treatment
4.226. ̂ Udas on dicnt and employee smoking that ere In compnahce with Erdilbit A

Section 2.11;
4.22A D^ree wortplaoe pcHcy end procedures. Indudlng a requfremsnt for tte filhg

, of written reports of adlorb taken in (he event of etatf mbuse of alciM or other
drugs;

Vendor'Name'
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A32.1. Poddes end procedufos for hoUIno a eflanfopossesalons;
4^6. Secure etomse of staff medlcoltons;
4.22.9. A cllerrt madlcaUon pdlcy;
4.22.10.Udnd spedmen ooOedion, es opplleabie. thai:

422.10,1, Ensure thai coflection Is ccnduded In a manner that presarvee dleni
privacy es much as poselbte; imd.

4.22.10.2. MInlmttt faislflMUon;
4.22.11. Safety and emefBoncy procedures on IheToOowfno:

4.22.11.1. Medical emergendee;
422.112. Infection control end universal precauttons, Indudlng the use of protecUve

• clothing and devices;-.
.  4.22.11.3. l^portinfl amplqyaelniuflcs;

4.22.11.4. Rre monllbrfng, warning, evacuation, end eafety drfll poOcy end
procedurea;

4.22.'11.6. Em^gency doslnga;
4.22.11.6. Posting of the above safety and emergent procedures.

422.-i2Procedures for protection of cQsnl recdrds t^at govern use of records, etoraga,
fcnioval, oondliiorts for release of informaUon, and compiianca with 42CFR. Pail
2^ the Health Insurance portebDily and Accountadllly Act (HIPAA); and

^•22-^3.Procedure3rBlalad loquaHlyassurfinceandqiialllylmpyovemenL
6.. CoOecUcn of Foes. i / r- .

6.1. The Contractor shali maintain proceduree regarding cdlacUone from dtent (eea, private
or piADctnsufance. end other payers responsible for the dlenrs finances'and ■•  62. ̂  the Umoot screening end admission the ContractoT ahaO provide the dlont. end the

B guardian, agent or peraonal repmscntatlve, with e listing of ail hnawn eppDcable
charges end IdenbTy what cere and servloes are tnduded (n the diarne

6. CCenlSicreeninsandOenlaicfServtces.
6.1. ContractofB ehall maintain a record of ell dient acraanings, Indudlng:

6.1.1. The dIent name ahd/or unique cfiem (dentlfler; >
6.12. The dIent referral source;
6.1.3. The date of iniSal contact from the client or referring agency;
6.1.4. Thedeleofseraening:
6.1.6. The rasidl of the saeenlng. including the reason for denial of servloos tf

BPP'lcable;
6.1.6. For any client who b plaoed on a waitUst record of referrals to and ooonllnaUon

with regional acoees polr»l end Interim services or reason that such a faferral
was not made;

6:1.7. Record of bD cflant contacts between screening and removal ftom the walUbt
end

Et.E OdlocHont was removed from the waltSst end the reason for removel
62. Fa any dW who is denied eervlces. (ha Contrector fs responsibld far

6.2.1. informtngihedlenioflhereasonfardenlai;

^  h Identl^g and accessing appropriate avaHabie treatment
•7?? Comrador ahaO not deny eervlces to a cOent solely because the dlent6.3.1. Prevtouslylefttrealmenteoalnsttheadvlceofelflff:

■  622i Retepsed from en eMIer traetnent;

VertdorNsmo
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6.3.3. (e on eny clese of mcdlcaUons, Including but not. Rmtied to opiates or
benaodlaapines; or .

..S3.4. Hee been dJagncsod wtih e mentel healib disorder.
BA. The Contractor ehdl report on 6.1 and B.2 above et (he request of the deDartmeni

7. Personnel Requlremenls. •
7.1. T^Ccnirtctof shall develop a current Job descrlpUon for eo «8ff. Inchiding contracted

etatf. VDbjrrteera, and student Interns, which shall tndudo:
7.1.1. Job title;
7.1.2. Physical raquiremants of the position; .
7.1.3. Education end experience requirements of the position;
7.1.4. Duties of the posfilon;

. 7.1.5. Rbslttenssupervised;and-
7.1.6. 'Tide of immediate suparvbor.

7.2. TheCtontrertof shall devetop and implement policies regarding criminal background
checKs of pfDspecUye employees, which shall, at 8 minimum, (TKlude:7.2.1. f^utrtng a p^ospect^6 employee to sign e risleese to eOow the Contractor to

obtein he or bar criminBl record:
7.2.2. Requirtng (he etonlnbUBtor or hb or her deslgnea to obtain and review e

.  cftmtnal records check, from iha New Hampshire department of safely fy each
- prospective employee:

.  7.2.3.. Criminal background alandardi regarding the foUowtng. beyond which shall be
reason to not hire a prospective employee In order to ensure the hea&h safety
or well-being of dier^la: '

7.24.1, FetonyconvictJohslnthboranyotherstbte;
7-4.34. Convtctofts for sexual assault, other violent crime, assault, fraud, abuse.

naglaci or exploiiaOon; and '
74.3.3. Findings bythe department or any admWstrailve agency In thb or any other

... fwjigleciofejqitollaliohof8nypareon;.8nd74.4. Waiver of 7.2.3 above for good cause shown.
7.3. All staff, Including cordmcted steff, shaB;

7.3.1. Meat (he educational, ei^erterdtal. end physical quaGficatlona of the posIUon as
Ibted In their Job descrtptton;

7.34, Not" exceed the criminal backgrc^ standards established by 74.3 abo^,
tmless waived for good cause shown. In eccordance with policy estabn^ed 'ln

. 74.4 above: '
•7.3.3.- Be licensed, registered or certified as required by stale etatute and as

eppliable: . •
7.3.4. Rec<^ an ortantatlon tvlthin (he fbsl 3 days of work or prior to direct ooniaei

with eUerrts, vmich Indudes'.
74.4.1. The Contracicr's code of.ethics. Including ethical conduct and the reportlra

of unprofeastohal conduct
74.4.2. The Conrtcior'e poto on client rights end reapor^slbailles and comptatnt

procedures;
7.3.44. ConftoenfiaCtyraquiremenb as required by Actions 4.16 and 4.10.2 above

end Section 17 below;
7.3.4.4. Grimace prooeduraa for boto dlents and staff as required In Section

4.22.1 end 442.3 above and-Sectlon'ie below.
Vendor Name
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7.3.4.5. The duto. and resl(»n»IMitie. and the poJIdee, proceduree, end gidddlnes''
Of ihoposWonthoy wore hired tor. • B«wojfic5

T  odminlsimUye end perBorwcl manuals;7.3^.7. The Conlrectoj'o (nfecUon prevemion progrem-
oma/Qoncy plans which outflne

» * 41 ft 'WpoAsWIhles of persormol In en emergercy; end7 J.4.9. reporting rerjulrertj^nta for abuse or. neglect such as those found
In R3A 1€;1.F end RSA 16W::29; end "

■  ' lhat they hwe taken part In en crtentalion asdescribed In 7.3.4 above;
7.3.6. C^plete a TOrvJrfory annuQl In-servfce education, which (ndudes a revtew of

aO elerrienis described In 7.3.4 a^. . «w c ruYww or
7.4. f^tor to^vtag «"tect «fth clients, erriployees and.coritracted employees shalt

■  ■ P^' 0' a Physical examlnaildn or a heelth screeningwn^ted not rjw than 12 months pilorto employment which shall include ale
minimum the fonowing:

7.4.1.1. T?ie n9me of (he examinee;
7.4.1.2. The-dete of the examination;

.  7.4.1.3. Wh^ of notiheefflmtrBWhas e coniagi^
•9A*A a*®®'^®®'®"'^6e'8.eb!lily to perform their Job dudes7.4.1.4. Results of a 2-6top tuberculosis (7B) test. Mantoui method ctf other method '

approved by the Centers for Disease Conlro) (CDC); end
• o signature of the licensed health'pfBctlttaner7>».2. Be b work mt wefllng (or the resuHs of Ihe eecond step of the TB test

-  ***®a(horesuttsoflheflr«!fltopafen8gativofofTB:flr*d7.4.3. Cornply^m (he require merits of theCentere for Disease Control Guidelines for
^venting the Transmbslonof Tuberoilosb In Health Fedlltfes Sefdngs 2006
If ̂ e pereon has either a positive TB test, or has had dlrecl contad or potanlbi
br occu^Sonal eobo^re to Myoobactartum tubercutosls Ihrouoh shared air
apace with persona v4(h Infediova luberciJash.

votunleefB end tndependrmt Contracrora who have
direct contad with cCenla who have a histiy of TB or a poslOve sWn lest shaf! have a

.  symptomatology screen of a TB test we wniesi snaii nave a
Sh^alnt^ end store In a secure and oonftdential manner, a current •

^  aa®** effpteyeo. dudent. vohrnteef. ahd contracted staff A personnelfile shan.lndudd. el a mWrnun, the Wlowing: promnoj
rS'^ a'" a ̂ asume, induding:7.6.2, Identfficatlon data; and

v'f"?' P*® a^"®^ and ejtpertcnce of the employee;
tdMliflw^th? description or agreemenl. signed by the WMdual. that

- 7.6.4.1. FNttftionillla;
•7.6.4.2. Qualifications end experionoe; ond
7.6.4.3. Outfes required by thopoallton;

Iho pemon meets the Contradorie quasntaitons for (ha
dascriptkm. avch as school transoripta. cartmcatlons end licenses as

Vendor Name
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Exhibit A-1 Operational Roqulremcrtts

7.6.6.. A tigrted and doled record of odenlatlon as required by 7S A above'
7.8.7. A e^y of current. New Hamp^ire license, regbtretion or c^caUon In

health cpre field and CPR ceitlficsUon, If apptlcdbte;
J a'a ^ weening for commtftlcable diseases results required In 7.4 above-7.8.9. ^pfflbale for each year of emptoymeni Indudira

oeacilption of any cerreetlv© ecUons. supervision, or (reining determined by the
peraonaeuperytsor lo be necessary;

']?■ annual Irvservlce education as required by 7.3.6 above*7.6.11. jjrorm^ion as to the general content and length of aO antlnulho eduction or
aducstlonal programs attended;7.6.1i ^J0«d atotenwtt admoMrladglng the receipt of .the Contrector'a policy aking •
forth Ihe client's ftghta and responalbHItJea, Including cohndahttolily

•  and acijnowlodging training and tmplemenlaUon of the poOcy.
7.e;13. A atatement. which shatl ba signed at the time the Initial offer of employment Is

made and then annuaDy thereaHer, atattog that he or she;
7.6.13.1. Does no,t have e felony oonvtelton In thb or any other dtaie;7.6.l3J.Ha6 not been comdded of b sexual e^ult. other videni crtme, assaull

fmud. abuse; ncglad or explollation or pose a threat to the heallK safety or
welrtclngotadleni; and '.  7.e.13.a H8S not had a finding by the department or any edmWstratlve agency'ln
Ihs or any other aleto for assault, fraud, abuse, neglect or ejmtoitatlon of
eny pereon; end

"•» T bocumenlaticn of the criminal f^rda check end any walvere per 7J2 above.'7.7. ̂  tndlvldi^nwd nd re-diadose any of the maltere In 7.6.13 end 7.6.14 above If the
documwtallon b avallabfe end the Conlredor has praviously reviawed the materta) and

«  '"^hfdualcanooruinueemployment-8. etWcal Superyfsten. ..
8.1.C<mtradoro shafl comply with the foitowtng clinical supervision requlremfints for

uniloensed counselore:
8.1.1.- All urtteB^ staff pruvfdtng treatment, education and/or recovery support

ff ® 8 S^p^fvlsor.
!l5 supervisor shar upervtse more than twelve urincensed staff unle^the Department has approved en allemalfve supervision plan.8.1.3. UnllcenMd oounsatora 8haOfecehreatlea8tona:hourof aupervWonforovervM
hours of diredcllani contact; -.8.1.4. ^er^^on shaQ be provided on en ImfMdual or group basb, or both.

a « r ?P8"?19"W"^8mployee'6need.eupcrtenceendddlllevel: . .o.t.5, .Supervblon shall bidude ioOowtng techniques; _
6.1.6.1. Revtaw of case records;
6.1.6^ Obseivatton of Inleradlons wtlh dlenta;
6.1.5.3. SWD developmeni; end
6.1.6.4. Review of case rnanagementadlvltiea: and6.1.a ^P®^«a shall malntfltn a log of Iha supervblon date, duration, conlenl and

who was supervbed by whom;
6.1.7. . indh^^s Iteensrt or certifted shall recelva stpervtebn in accordance wfth the-raquiremartt of theb lioansure.

'8. GDnical SeAdces.
VerdorNeme
RFA«1MDA&0t^U8ST r«,t^
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Exhibll ̂ 1 Operational Requirements

0.1. Each Conoectflf Shan have .and adhere to e cDnJcal care manual which Includes ooDdos
and procedures related to all cUnlcal cervices provided.

92. AD dinlcal cervloes provided shall:
9i1- Focus on (he clienfs strengths;
ta 5^ 'Govern to the dhffiftity of the clients t>elno served:•  62.3. Be dlerit end remUy centered; •• «.. .
92^. Be trauma Inlormed, which means des^ned to adinowtedge the tmpact of

violence end trauma on people's nvea ar^d the Impoftonce of eddresslnfl trauma
In trealmerd; and

Contracter shaO conduct a cflcnt ortentaUon. ehher
mdMdueUy Of by group, to IndodD Utt follmMng:9.3.1. Rules, policies, and proocduros of the Contractor, program, and fadHty;

,  8.32 Requlrementa for successfully oompieUng the program:
• 9.3.3. admlnlslratlve discharge policy and (he gmunte for admlnlsitotlve

dtscharge;
92.4. AA applicable 1^ regarding oonftdenOaDty. Including the llmlla of confWentlallly

and mandalory reporting requiremeflts; and
9.a5. RaquWng the dlant to sign a mcelp! that the oteniaUon was conducted.
92.6. Upon a citenfs admission to troatmehl. the Contreirtor shall conduct an

HfV/AIDS screening, to include:
0.3.7. The provision of InformeUon;
622. RisK assessment;
62.9. Intervention end risk reduction education, artd
9.3.10. Referral for testtog, if appropriate, wflhin 7 days of admlsston;

lO.TreatmemandRehabllllation. •
10.1. A l^C Of unDcertsed coimselcf under the supervtslon of a LADC shall develop and

maintain a wrftten treatment plan for each cUenrin ecoordanoe with TAP 21:
Addlctton CoumeTing Cpmpotencl« evaOable at
hllp://Btoroj3mh3agw/rsVscrtes?name»Technjca^Afisblance-PubncaUorw-TAPa.
BpageNumberol which eddresaas aD ASAM domains.

102. Treatment plans shall be developed as foOows;
102.1. WflNn 7 dayo followlno admission to any resktenUal pfogram; and
1022 No later than the third sesslcn of an ambulatory treatment pfogram

treatment plans shaO conlaln. at a minimum, the following elernents;
10.3.1. Goals. ob)edl\«s. and Intenrerdtons wrftlen In lemis thai are soedft •

measurabla, attainable, realistic and Umefy* '
treatment goals, and ob)ocDve8; '.  10.3.3. ^tfenVftes the cHanl's strengths and resflurces fcf achieving Qoah and obledlvee

In 10.3.1 above; •
10.3.4. I^flncs the strategy for providing services to meet those needs, ooafs totd

otgecOvea: • ,
10.3.6. tdemiRaa referral to outside Contractors tor the purpose of achieving a specllfc

goal Of obfedrvB wher> (he service cannot be delivered by the treatment
program;

f*^^®®*^«^^'tofe'l®'^fr«yng8pdcmclmervem(ons:and102.7. tndiidee spednuiion end description of the (ndlcatora to be used to the
tndivlduaf'a piogresa.

VendarNama
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Exhibit OpersUona! Requlremanta

10.3.S Documantatfon of partldpatkitn by tha dient In the t/oatmant planntng procass or
me reason why the client did not paitidpate; and

10.3.0. dlgnaturee of tha cOenl and the counselor esredng to the treatment plan, or if
fipptobte, documentation of ihodlenfe refusal to'slgn the tfoatment plan.10.4. Tre^ent plane bhall be updeted based on any changes In any American Sodety o1

Addiction Medldno Chierio (ASAM) domain and no less frequently than every 4
eoaalons or e'^ 4 weeka, whlche^ Is loss frequent.

10.5. Treatment plan updsties shall tnduds:
10.6.1. DocumentatiOT'of tho degree to which the dlenl b nwelVig treatment plan ooab •

ond obfecthms;
10.S.Z Modification of eidsttng goals or addition of naw goals based on dianges in the

cllenta functioning relatl^ to ASAM domains and treatman! goals and
objectives. '

10.S3. "The counsdor'a asaaasmeni of whether or not th© cQartt -needs to move to a
different la>«) of care teased on changes infuhcltonlng In any'ASAM domain and
docun^tetion of the reaaona for this asaessment

10.5.4. cllen! and the counselor agreetng to the updated treatment •
plah, or d ai)p!lcab1e. documantetton of the dient'a refuael-to aton the treabnent
plan.-

10.6. In addiOon to the indMduanaad treatment planning In tO.3 above. eD ContrAdom
- shell prmdde client educatkm on: - ■

10.6.1. Substance tse disorders: .
10.6.2. Retapsa prevention;
10.63. Infectious diseases aasoclated with injection drug use, Induding ̂  not limited

tq, HIV. hepatitis, end 16;
10j6.4. Sexually transmitted dbeeses;
103.5. Emottortal, pfTBlcal. and eevvtsi abuse;
10.6.6. Nlwttne use dbofder end cassation o^ons;

T^lmpad of dnrg and" aloohol use during pregnancy, risks to the fBtio; and (he
(rnportpnoe of (nformlng medceJ pfectitioners of drug and aioohol uso durfno
pregnancy .

10.7. Group education end counseling
10.7.1. The Contractor shall maintain en outline of each educatlonel end group Iherepy

session provided.
10.7.2. AO group oounsetlng sesstorts shaO be Omlted to 12 CQents or fewer per

counselor.

103. ^Progress notes
103.1. A progress note shaD be completed for each IndMdual, group, or famDy

trealment or education aesston. . *
10.8.2. Each progress ftote ahall oofttah the following componenb:

10.6.2.1.Data, (nciuding .self-report, obaonrebons, Intorventlona, cunent •
lasuea/streaGOfs. flmdlonal Impainnent. iniarperaonal behavior, mblivatlon,

P'OG'WSi M 0 relates to (he currenl Ireatmen! pJan;
10.63.2. Assessment, (nduding progreca, evaluatton- of (ntervention, end obstadoa

or barrlerB; and ' '
1033.3. Ptan, tndudir^ tasks to be complated behveen aesatons. cbjedlves for nfiort

_ ̂  ' • session, any recommended changes, end dete of next session; and
vendor Name
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10.9. RwWentia) prosrams aba!! maintain a daDy shMt change log wWch documents such
ihhgs as dtent behavior and slgftincant events that e Kubsequent shin should be
mode aware of.

11. Client Discharge end Transfer. .
11.1: A cnwt Shan be diseharged from a program for the following reasons:

SouIS'toMilSiflcSltorta'*'"^^' on dtanges In the cflem'e functioning
11.1.2. Prtigfam tarmliiatlon, Inciuding:

11.1.2.1. Admlnlstratlye discharge;
11.1.2.2. Non>comp}la/ice with the program;
II.U.S.TI^dlenl left the program before completion agatnsi adwtce of treatment

stafl; and

. 4 J ^ Inaccesdhte. euch as. the dtont has'been JaDed or hospltaOzed; and11.2. In ̂  oesM of client discharge or transfer, the ooimeelor shall completd a narrative
dttpherge dumrrary, Including, at a rrtlnlmum:

11.2.1. The dales of ̂ml59ior>artd discharge or transfer; '■11.2'.2. The dienfepsychosodal substance abuse history and legal hblory; •
II*??' A nummary of the cllenrs pmgress toward treatmert gode In all ASAM-'domalna:112.4. The reason for discharge or transfen
11.Z5. The dient e DSM 5 diagnosis end summary, .to (ndude other essassmeni testlna

completed during treatment;
11.2.6. A summary.of the oCenrs phyekaJ condition at the time of discharge or imnsfer11.2.7. A conilnulRg care p|an. tnduding all ASAM domains;
II J^yA^.ddafmlnaiton es to whether the dlenl would be eligible for fo^mlsslon to

trearmieni, ff oppQcable; and11.2.9. The dated s^nahire of the counselor compteting the summary.
11.3. The discharge summary shall be completed:11.3.1. No laler than 7'da^ fCflowtng a dient'e discharge or transfer from the prograrq;

or

11.32. For wtthdrawal management servloes. by the end of the next business day
followtng 8 cfienre d'scharge or transfer from the program.

11.4. When tranderring a cflani, cither ffem one level of cara to another within the same
.  certlllcd Contractor agency or to another treatment Cpntractor, the counselor shaD:

11.4.1. Ccrrrplete a progress rrote on the oDenfs treatment and pmgrass towards
treatment goals, to be Induded in the dienl's record; and

.. 1142. Update the diem assessment and treatment plan.
11 .e. V^en transferrtng a dlent (o another irealrnem Contractor, the cwrenf Contractor

fihaP fofwa/d copies of the fdloedng hfbrmatJon to the reoelv^g Cor\tractor, only after
a relaase of con fide ntiat ln,formatlon Is signed by the cllenl;

11.6.1. The discharge summary;
11.6.2. CQerd demographic WormaUon, Including the cflenfs'name. dale of iJWh,

a^rasa. telephone number; and the last 4 digits of Ws or her 6octal Security
number, end .

11.5.3. A -diagnostic 8ssessmer\t statemem ervf other assessmerd WcrmiBticn,
Indudlng:.

11.&3.1.Te test results;
11.622. A record of the dlenffl treaTnert Wstory; end

Vendor Name "*
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.1U.3.3.Documenta(tDn of any court'fnartdeted or egency>reoommended foOovHip
traeimcnii ' .

11.6". The, counselor shall meet wtth the dlent at the time of dbcharge or trensfof to
est^llsh 0 oortiinulng cars plan (het

•11.6.1. Irtdudee recommendations for continuing care In all ASAM domains;
11.6 Addresses the use of self-help groups Indudlng. %vhen Indtaated. fedniated odf-

help; end
11.6.3. Asdsts fhe client In making donted other agencies or services.

11.7. The counsdor shaO document tn the dlcnt record If end why the meeting In Section
11.6.above oouid not take place.-

11.8. A Contractor may admifilstmiivelydlschsrge 8 client home program only If: '
11.6.1. ThedtenfsbehaMeronprogrampmffllseslaabufifve. vtolerrt. crDiega!:'
11.8.2. The dlent Is norvcompllani with presorlpllon medications:

^  11 8.3. CRnlcd staff documents therapeullc reasons for dbcharge. which may Include
the dienrs continued use of llbit drugs or en unwflUhgnoss to fallow appropriate
dlnical intervenlions; or

11.8.4. The dienl vtolales program rules In a manner lhal b conahteni wHh the
Contrector'a progresaive dlsdpOne ̂ icy.

■  12. CHenl Record System..
^Z^: Each Contractor .shell have poIJctes and prooetfures to Implement a comprehcrclve

dlenl record eystem, In either paper form or eiectronlc form,, or bot^ that complies •
wtlh this section.

The dlent record of each dlent eerved shall oommunlcel© Information In a manner that la;
12.1.1. Orgardzod Into relaled sections idth entries m chronological order:
12.1.Z Easy to read and understarvl;
12.1.1 Complete, containing bO the parts; and
12.1.4. Uf^ti^date, Indudlng notes of most recent contacts.

12.2. The cOen! racofd shall fndu'de, el a minimum, (he foOowiru corroonents. organized
■ as foDoual " . '

12.2.1. First section, tmakaflnltal Information:
12.Z1.1. IdenUnqatlon data, Indudlng the dlerife:

12.2.1.1.1. Nanw;
12J.1.1.2.0ateofblrth;
12J. 1.14. Address;
12.Z1.1.4.Teiephom number; er>d
12.2.1.1.6. The last 4 digits of the dianfs Sodal Security nurrtbef;

12.2.1.Z TbedateofadndKlon;
12.2.1.3. If either of these have bean appdnled Ibrthe dlent, the name aid address

of: • '
12.2.1.3.1. Theguardlan; end
12.2.1.3.2. The representative payee;

12.2.1.4. The name, eddreas. end telephone number of the person lo contact m the
event of en emergency;

12.2.1.6, Contact infomation for the person or entity referring the cDenl for 86rv1oe&
as applicable;

•12.2.1.6. The name, jsddress, end tetephorre number of the primary health care
•Contractor;

Vondor Name
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127.17.T^e rtOTB.^dresa/biij telephone number of the behavforsl health care
comrector, tf appilciatile;

12.Z1.8.T^ address of the dienre public or prtvate health insurence
Contrectorta). or both;

12.2.1.0. The eftenl'a rtfgloua prolerence. If orry-
.  12.2.1.10. The cnertfe pemonel heatlh history;

12.2.1.11. The cJlent'e mental health htoiery;
12.2.1.12. Currentmedlcstions:
12.2.1.13 teoofds and reports prepared prior to the dIanVa airrent admission and

dotermmed by the counselor to bo relevant; arto
■  1i2.1.1f signed rec^ ofnctJflcelbn of dlenl rights;

12.2.2. Second section. Scrwnlng/Assessmenl/Evaluailofl:
127.2.1. Oocumentdtton of aO elements of aaeentng. assessment and evaluation

requlrad by Ejdilbll A. Sections 6 and 10.2;127.3. ThW section, Troalment Ranrdng;
127.3.1. The IndlvWual liBStment plan, updated at designated Intervalo In

ecoordanoe vrflh Sections 107-10.5 abpva; arid12.2.37. Signed and dated progress notes end reports from ail proofBrns Irtvol^
as fequtrcd by Section 10.8 above;

127.4. Fourth 6ecto^ Discharge Planning:
172.4.1.A narTBtlve discharge summary, as required by Sections 117 and 11.3

above;
127.5. Fifth section,-Releases of Informallon/Mbcellaneous:

InformaUon fonns compliant ̂  42 CFR. Pert 2-
12.2.67. Any oo^pondence pertinent to the cJlenl; ̂  '
J27.5.3. Any other rnformetion the Contmetor deems dgnlficanL

®  9ytem. then (ha sectfoRS tn
Section l2.3.above ahaO be tabbed eecttons.12.4. Ifthe Contrector utm^ an etocUonlcformal, theaecUons In Secdon 12.3above'ehaH

• nrtappV provided that 80 Wofmadon listed In Section ll.a above b hduded In the
electronic record.

^2-5- ^rds maintained by the Conlractor or fts ButHContraclore. hdudlng paper
12 6 transfers, ehan be aJrtctly conWentfal.12.6. Information shall be maintained wUhin a secure etofage system et oil

times as follows: • ̂  ^
12.6.1.V Paper records and external etedroftlc storage media shall be kept Jn lodted fJe

oabineb;
12.67. All dertwilc Tdes shaU be password protectod; and
176.3. ̂ »^wtJ3l notes or other rrtatertals that do not require stcraoe shdl be

.  snredoed Immedietely after use.
176.4. Contradors shall retain cBeni records after the dbcharge or tranefsr of the disht

as roSows:

176A1. For a minimum of 7 years fdr an Bdull; and
19 T i ^ ̂ y®8™ eflcf ago of majority for children. •

arrange far the continued management of aU cCanl raoonts. The doWng Contractor

VeRdv.Nama
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"'""«•'" »""«• »«•' '«<"- one 0, n»«,
12.8.1.

■  wfUr^e^ cuthortnd requesU tor copies of client reoonJs «muri lb

°  ̂Iw-oigan/raUon agreement wHh another Contrertof tofitora and manege reccnia.
13. MedPcatlon Se/vtoes.

a  P^WlCan samples, shall occur except by
13 9 AH ̂ !2 wtthln their scope of practice. •by 8 ctlont to program shaQ be In their origlna)

a 4 Jj display the followfno Information:13.2.1. Th8dIeni'or\ame:
• 13.2.2. The rnedlcatlon name and strength;
13.2.3. The prascrt^ dose;
13.2.4. -Tho'foute.of edmintstrBten;

■  13.2.6.. The freqiiency of edmlntstreUon; and
13.2.6. The date ordered.

»•«« a wrltlon

"'*■ Hlf21?™' e*«Pllon of hllniglycefln, ephpens, and rascue
13.f.1. All madlcalittis shall be keplln a storage area thai Is*
l  accessible only to authorized personnel;

' 13 a 1 *?■ Identlfrcfltfon of each dteniVmedlcattenfs)'
ftJ «"''Wenl to allow reading of.aD madicatfon labels;

13 A i i^^niain medlcallon at the proper lemperatura;^edu^ ttibstances. as defined by RSA aiB-B;!^, shall be kept In
oiSff ^ medJcBtion storage eroa and8Cccs8iWaortfytoButhorizedpersormet;8rtd*13.43. Wk^s. dnlmenls. patches, odarrts and poMdar forma of pmdueta.aheU

bo stored In a manner such that crosaoontamlnaUon with oral. opUc, ophinalmlc.
... ^ Bn<l parenteral products ehaU not ocair. ©pranaimic,

;  I"
niedlcaOons chsU be hsndlsd In ths fcllowlna manner

be aitoa«l to be
13.03. ore medlcBttoneh^ bo stored In accordance with Sectloni 3.4 above. .

VendorNamo
-  cona^er,.^



New Hampshtfo Department of Health end Human Services

Exhibit A>1 OpefBtlonal Reoulremente

dientuslnstheme^Jb^ end ̂ en In. eocordanoe ivtth the directions on the mctolJon
An ®'''®^®^*h'Qll08nsodpfactltlpn8f:

0  wapuon of nlUoglyccrtn. opl-
ftSn'h^^in^SlSH h fiS"* ^ Wllhoul eupervlGlon.

13.7.1. 8*off s^ wtf»d the cOent to take the corract dose of hb or her medication el
ine correct lime;

TOdlMton container but etiaD nol be pernillled to physteally
handle the medcatlon.Itself tn any manner;13.7.3. Staff^jmalnwUh the cDenl to observiihemtaklri the prescribed dose and
type 01 medlcabon;

^ ̂ U» document In an Individual dient m^bon log
Ihe lime the medication was taken;

Th^wiuie Of Certifiable Iniflats of the person aupa^lslng the taking of .said
medtcatfon; and

^®'®®®®'^'®'®'*y'*wdic8llQflrefu8edoromlaod.
13.9. Dpqn a cflenfa dischafge;

13.9.1. The cUcni medteallon log In Section 13.8 above shaU be Included h the cQenra '
•  .record; and

•''*■'■ ~1~ In clear, 'u^OTta^bte toguage end forni, both veibelly and In wrftinfl 08 follows;ie.1.1. AppiicBnts for eervtcas shaD be biformcd of Ihdr rtohts to evaiual/ons and
eccess to treatment;14.1.2. COents diafl ̂  edvtsed of their dgbis upon ent/y Wo any pregram end at least "

•  once a year after entry;
14.1.3. ImllaJ and a^ual fwuncalioris of dient righta In Sectton 14 above shaO be

doamwnted In the cflonre record; and

taflow ^ fiwvlce delivery system ahal) post notice oS the rtghts. as14^.1. The fiotloe Shan be posted oortinuDusly and conspicuously;
Wrtlc© shall be presented In clear, understandsble language end fbrm; and

Each P'^f^ reskfenoe dial! have on the premises complete coplee of
15.Fundamerrt^^!^'^*®.'^*'^®'*'*^^ ■

16. Personal Rights.
P??';i;^®™®PP'"'"'^?'®'®«™'o®«ordtenl5hthesorvIcodcnwfyey8t^

1«9 *!.y dignity and respect at aP Umes.S2^^^**®*^^®^"®®'"<8'®<^fi^flMoltalton(ndu(Ilno.ataiT^
■VoftdvNeme
RFA501M0A^01.SUaST
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Exhtbtt A>1 OperatlonoJ Requlremente > •

18.2.1. Pfoodom from any verbal, non-verbal, rnemal, physical, or eaxual abuse or
rwglecl;

16.2.2. Freedom from the Inleritlonal use of physical force except Ihe mhtrhum force
necasea^ to prevent harm to iha ciier)l or others; ar>d •

16.2.3. Reedom from porsoTxoi or financial exptodaUon
16.3. Clients shall have the right to prlvscy.

17. cneni Ccnfldentlallly
17.1. AO ContraODrs shall adhere to the conteenflalftyrequlremanlaln 42 CFR part 2.
17.2. jncesae-wttere a dlenl, ahomey, or other euthortzad p0sbn, after review of the

record, requeeb copies of the record, a program ehaU make such'-bbplBS avaOabte
free of charge for (he first 25 pages and not more than 2S certts per page (heresfter.

17.3. If a minor age 12 or older Is trosied for driig abuse without parental oortsant as
authorized by RSA 316.-912-8. the fofiowlng Shan apply:

17.3.1. The minor's signature elona Shan authorize a disdoeure; and
17.3.2.^ Any disclosure to the minor's parents or guardians shaD require e sigrted

authorization to reteasa.
18. CDant Grievances

16.1- aienta ehal) have the rtghi to complein about any matter, including any enaged
vtobtton of a light effordad by these rules or by any data or f^eral taw or fula.

102. Any person shell have Ih^ right to oomplaln of brtng e grievance on t^ahaJf of an
tndiddual dlanl or a group of cllenb.~ ,

18.3. The rulea governing procedures for protection of dient rights found at Ha-C TOO'shall
appiy to such oom^aintfi and grievances.

18. Treatment Rights. v • .
19.1. Eadi dJent shall have the right to edequate artd hvpnarte treatmem, Indudlng:

19.1.1. The right of access to treatment (nduding:
19.1.1.1. The right to evahiaiion to determine en apdlcanfa need for servtoea end to

determine whtd> pn^rame ere most sutted to provide U^a earvtoes needed;
19.1.1..2. The rtght to provtston of necessary services when those servtces ere

. evaBable, subbed to the edmjssten and eiyblljly poDcZas and stendards of
each program; and

19.12. The rtght to quality treatment Indudlng:
19.1.2.1. Services provided (n keeping wfih evtdenca-besed cUnleal and-profeeslonal

standards eppficabte to the persorts end programs provtding the treatment
end to the conditions for whidi (he cOant Is being treeted;

19.1;2. The right to rqcehre eervtoes In such & manner as to prbmota the dienfs fuS
partldpeUon in the community;

19.1.4. The rtght to receive ell aarvlces or treatment to whidi a p&son b entitled In
' ecoofdanoe wfih the lime frame set fbrth (n the cQonfs tndMdual treatment plan;

19.1.5. The right to ep (hdMdual treatrnent plan developed, reviewed end revbed In
ecctfdance with Sedktos 10.1 - 10.5 above which rtdrasses the diertt'a own
goals;

19.1.6. The rtght to receive treeiment end services contained In an Individual beatmont
plan dealgned to provide opporttftlDes for the cOmt to parttdpate to meaningful
aetlvllles In the communlOes to which (he cflerd fives and wortu;

Vendor Name -
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Substance use Olaerder Treatment end Recovery Support Services
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EjThlbH A^^ OperBtl9nal Requirernonta

19.1-7. The fight to eervlce arxd irestment In (he (east reet/1c((ve attemaUve or
envtronmord necessary to echtove (he purposes of (reatmerd fndudlrtg programs
which least resUtct

19.1.7.1. Freedom of movement; end
19.1.7.2. PertfdpaUon In the community. whHe providing the lavef of eupport needed

bythocUeni;
-  19.1.0. The (ight to be tnformed of aQ elgnlflcani rtsKe, benefte, elde effects end . . . .

altemethre trieatment and services end to give-consent to any traatrnent, ' '
placement or refarral foOowlng an Informed decblon such that

19.1.8.1. Whenever poaslble, the consent shall be given In writing; and
19.1.8.2. In ell other cases, evidence of consent phaU be documerded try the progrqm

and ahaf] be witnessed by at (east one person;'
19.1.9. The right to refuse to parildpate (n any form of experlmenl&r (resfmeni or

research;
-  19.1.10.The right io.be fully tnformed of one'a own diagnosis and prognosfs;

■  19.1.ll.ThertghttoWlunieryplacefniBntlAdludIngiherlghtto; -
19.1.11.1. Seek tfianges tn plecem8n.t servtoes or tmatn^ent at any time; and
19.1.11^. WRhd/aw from any form of Mtunta^ treatment or from the sendee

dellwy ayalem;
19.1.12.The right to servloes which promote Independence tnduding services directed

toward:''
19.1.12.1. Eflmlrtatlng, or reducing ea much as possible, the client's needa for

oonttnuad services end treatment; er^
.19.1.12.2. Promoting the aUIty of the clients to function at their highest capacity, e^

as Indeperrdenliy as possible;
19.1.13. The right to refuse medicailon end ̂ atrrient
18.1.ie.Tha right.to referrsl-for medical care and treatment Incfudmg. If needed.

Bssbtanoe In fmdlng auch caretn 8 dmely marmer,
19.1.15.Tha right to consuttadon and second opinion IndudinB:

19.1.15.1. At the cdenfa pwm ei^nae, the corwuitBtNe aervioes of:
19.1.15.1.1. .Private physldans;
19.1.15.1.2. Paychologbta; •
19.1.15.1.3.' Ucmsed drug and atbohol counselors; end
19.I.I.S.I.4. Other health practitioners^ and

19.1.15.2. (granting to kich health practBlonefs rea6or>able aooess to the dtent, as
requlrad by Section 19.1.15. In programs end anowing such prect/Uonefa
to make reoommendstlens to ^programa regarding ttio ebrvlcee and
treatmant provided by the programs;

19.1.16.The itght, upon r^uest,. to have one or more of the foQowIng present at any-
treatment meet^g requiring client parilcbaOon and (nformed decision-making:

19.1.16.1. Ouardian;
19.1.lez Representali^;
19.1..16.3. Attorney;
19.1.164. . Family member;

■ ■ 19.1.16.6. • 'Advocate; or .
19.1.16.6. Consuttant; and

Vendor Name ^
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Exhibit A'1 Operatlenal Requirements

19.1.17.Th8 rtght to freedom from rastreJnt lnctudir»9 the right to bo froe from eoduolon
end phyelcai. mechanicel or pharmacological restraint

19.2. No ireatrnent profesaior^aJ ahaO t)e requlrod to edmlrdeter treetment contrary to such
profeeslonal'e clinical judgment.

19.3. Progmme ahaH, vmenever posajWo. maximize the dechaon>fnaktng euthorlty of the

.  .; 1.9.4. tn furtheraixe of Section 19.3 above, the foIlouAng provisions ahaO eppfy to clients for '
whom 8 guardian has b^n appointed by a court of compeient juTlsdictioa'

19.4.1, The program shaD ensure thai tn Ota pouree of eeivloe provtsion, the guardian
ar^ aO peiBons Involvied fn the prm^slon of ser^ce ere made aware of the
Gdlenfe vtew^ preferences and aspirations;

19.4.2-, A guardian shall only meka dediiona that are within lha ecopo of the powem eel
foillj b^^ guardianship order Issued by the court;-

19.4.-3. Thb prt^em ehaQ.requesI a copy of the guardlartship order from the guardian
and the ordef ehoU be keptin the dlenfe reoord at (he program;■19.4.4. If any tssuee erise relaO^ to the provlslor) of earvtoes and supports v0)ch ere
outsUe the scope of the guardian'e dedslon-maXIng auihorfty as set forth tn (he
guardtanehlp order, the cnent'a choioe and preference retallve to those Issues .
shall prevail unless the guardian'e authortty Is expanded by the-court to tncfuda

•  (hose Issues;
19.43. A program shaO take such steps as are necessery to prevent a guardian ffbm

exceeding the dedslorHnakIng euthorlty granted by the court including:
19.4.5.1,. Revtewtng wtih the guardian the llmHs on his or her dedabn-making

authority; end
19.4.6.2. If necessary, bringing the maner to the attention of the court (hat eppdrtted

the guardian;
'10.4.6. The guardian sh^ act (n 6 menrver that furthers the best Interests of (he cOent'
19.4.7. tn dcttr>g tn the tresi. Interests of thp cflent. (he guardian ahaO take Into

considerBUon the views, preferences end aspirations of the cflent;
19A3.. The program ahall take such steps as ere necessary to prevent a guardian from

acting (n a manner that does not further the best tnleresb of the dient and. If
necessary, bring the matter to the sttenUon of (he oourt that appointed (he
guardian: and

19.43. In the et«nt that there Is a dispute balwaan the program end the guardian; (he
program shaU Inform (he guardian of his or her right (o bring the dispute to (he
attention of the probate court (hat appolrited the guardian.

20. Ternilnatlor) of Servtoes.
20.1. A cllant shaO be (enntnatad from e Contrador's servloe If the dlent

20.1.1. Endangere or threatens to endanger other dlents or staff, or engages In (Qegal
.  acpvfty on (he propMy of the program;

20.13. Is no longer bpneftling from the eefvloe(6) he or she to receiving:
20.1.3. Canned agree M<ih the program on a mutual^ acceptable ooume of treatment;
20.1 A. Refuses to pay for the eervtgee (hot he or she to receiving desp&e having the

finandal resourdas to do eo;-or
20.1.5. Refuses to apply for benefits that could oo^ tffe cost of the servtoes that he or

Bhe (5 reeeMng desplie (he fed that the dient Is or might be eOglbCa for euch
•  berwflts.

Vendor Name
RrA'201940AS-01-8UB8T ' Contactor
Page18of24



New Hampahlre Detriment of Health end Human Servleoe

EihUilt A»1 OperaUonal Requirements

20.2. A tmirtfwUpn from e donlmciof'e eervtees ehafl not occur unlasa the pfoaram has

201 verbal notice to the cfleni and dient'e QuanHan; If any. that20.2.1. GNo the effective date of termination;
reasons for termlnetlbo; and •

20 a A process pureuam to Hex: 200.
M a the record of a diem who hae been terminstad that:20.3.1. Thecnenthaebeenrfotmedofiheiffmff»iion:enrf • *': •

21. urant RIghta In Residential Programs.

^  '"Wenllal progmr^ .shall' also have the
VA'l' 3!l®'!?**'*®®®®'®*""'^T®'"^^i'"W'»0vlngenv(ronmefn;

1,4 with others, indudlno; •
ol'. ol-l!!® ®®®^ ®"® unopened end unansored conespondenoe-21.12.2. The rigl^io heve reaeonade access to telephories end to be eflowed to

maje and to receive reasonable numbere of tdephone caDs except that
resWe^aJ programs may require a dient to rdmburee them for the ccat of
any ceOs made by the cCent;

21.12.3. The fight to receive end to refuse to receke vtsltore except that resWentiaf
Wogr^ rnoy Impose reasonable resbfcltons on Ihe niqnber end time of

A t -n. ®'^®' ooeufD effective proviston of eervtcoa; and21.1.3. The righi to^agd In eodel and rdereallonal eotMUas Indudlng the prbvtslon of
'■•>4 4 .i ■ (yj'®PP®rtu"l^8 'pr diente to engage In euch adivlilcs;21.1.4. The fight to prtvecy. Indudlng the following:

21.1.4.1. The fight to cwftedes such as knoddng on ctosed doora befefe cnimino
■i4 4 ^ ^ ®" ensuring privacy for talephone calls end visits;21.1.42. The rtghl to opportunities for personal ffiteredton In a private settlno except
21.1.4.3. ̂  r^t to be free from searches of their persons af«l possasstons sxoapi

<»« 4 e ? eooordance with applicabie oonsiilutional end legal etandards:21.1.6. The right to Individual choice. Indudlng (he fOBowlng-
21.1.6.1. The rtghl to. keep and wear Iheb own dothes;
21.1.52. The fight to epaoa for personal posBOSStons;

■JM 'H* I?®''8^*^^P^<^'P'«a^malefl8ls Of their own choosing;
tA 4 r t •J/® epend their own money; and21.1.5£.The right not to work, and to be compensated for any worts performed,

except that .21.1.5.6.1. Cfrents may be requlrod to perform personal housekeeping ♦"'H .
v^n the dieni*8 -own Immediate Uving eisa and eqidtably share
housdceeping tasks wllhin the common ereas of the resident
wllhout compensation; and•  21.1.6.62. Qlents may perform vocational learning laska or work fequtred tor
Ihe ^ration or malntananoa of a resldenliaJ prbgmm. ff the work to
consJsten! with iheb IndMdual treatment ptons and (he cOant (s

•  tAAa ^ co'"P«'ttatod for wort pefformed; and21.1.8. be rebnbumed tor the toss of any money held to safeke^ng by the
vendor Hams
RFA.20ie«)Afr01-6UBST /*
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21J2.

21.3.

21.4.

21.6.

21.6.

ttr'S ® hBVtna poliete sovemlne ih.
CDents eheU bo Wormed of any house policies upon admission to the reeldenco.

OMtfon ° ^ posted orrd such polices shell bo In confonnfty with tWe
rovtowcd for complianoe with this soctton In •

connacSlon wfih quaCty assuranoe site visits.
Notwithstanding Section 21.1.4.3 above. Contractors may develop poQ^'^'d?3^
procedures that aOow searches for alcohol and QUcfl diugs be conducted:

21.6.1. Upon the dlent'e admission to the progrem; and
21.8.2. If probable cause exhts. Indoding such proof as:

^5' shovrtng presence of alcohol or lliegal drugs: or •
.  21.6.2.2. .Showing phyelcai signs of Intoxlcalton Of i^lhdfBwal.22. State and Federal Requlremenls

22.1. W there Is e^error orrtsalon. or conflict. In the requirements (Isted below; the
sp^we Federal, Stale, and local regulattons, rules end requirements stoO

•  requlremenls spedfied below are provided herein to Increase the
Contractors compflancb.

712. • The Oontrector agrees to the foDowlng state ertd/br federal requfremanis for Program
r^drements for spedallytrcatmeni lor pregnant and patoitlng womcn: ■21.2.1. The program treats the family as a urtitand, therefore, admits both

women and their children Into trealmant. K eppmp/lalo.
2l.2i. Tho program tresis the bmlly as a unit and. iherefore. iadmiia both wombn

and their children Into traatment, If appro^le.
21.2.3. The program provides or arranges for pitmav mcdtea] care for women

who aro rccdvtng substance abuw services, Induding prenatal care.
7\14. The pregr^ provides or arranges for cWId cere wHh the women are ■

receiving servfcee.

21 i6.

21.2.6.

21Z7.

2i.za

The program provides or arranges for primary pedlatrlc cot far the
women'e chadren. Including Immunizations.

The program provides or arranges for gonder-epeciflc substance abuse
Uealment and other therapeutic Interverrtions for women thai may address
issues a relalionsWps. sexual abuse, physical abuse, end parantir^.
The progrem provtdes or arrartges for Iherapeutlc lntftrventlons for children
In ̂ stody of women In Irealmont which may. amMg other things, addrese
the children's developmental needs end tfwlr issues of senjal abuse,
physfael abuse, and neglact.

The program provides or arrangas for sufTicJent case managemem and
trensportalten services fa ensure thai the women and their children have
ecoase to the servtoes described above.

Vendor Neme
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22.3. Anenge for means actMtles to assist the cUeni In ftrtdtng and engaging In a service,
which may tndude. In/t b not limited to helping the dient to locate en approprfata

- provtder, referring cflents to the needed service provider, sotting up eppotntments tor
dients with those protMers, and assisting the dlent with attending eppdntmertta
the service provider.

22.4. The Coniraclor agrees to the folbwtng state end foderoJ requirements for eO
prograiTis tn this Contract as fotlows:

. 22.4.1. Within 7 days of reaching 80% d capacity, the program rtottfles the state thai
80% cepad^ has been reached.

22.4.2. The program admits e^ Individual v^o requests and b li^ need of treatmml for
intravenous drug abuse not later than:

224-J.1.14 days after making the request: or
22,4^2.120 days If the program has no capadty to admit the IndMdual on the date

of the request,end. within 48 hours af^ the request, the program makes
htertm services evsOabto until the indMduai b admlRed to a substanoe
ebuse treatmOnt program

Q.4.3. The program offers Interim services that Ipdude. at a minimum, the fonowtng*. .
22^.3.1. Counseflrtg and aducetion about KIV and Tuberculo^ (TB). tha rtaU of

rveadle-shsflng, tha rtska of transmlssbn to sexual partners and infants, end
stops that can be taken to ensure that HIV and-TQ tranamis^n doea not
ocnr

22.4.3.2. Referrs) for HIV or TB treatmenl earvices. If neoeseary
22^.3.3. Indivtdu.al and/or group oobtsalihg on the effects of alcohol and. other dnig

use on the fetus for pregnant vromen arid referrals for prsnata] care for
pregnant worran .

22.4.4. The program has establbhad a waiting Ibt that Indudes a unique patient
•  • identifier for each tnjacdng drug.abuser seeking treatmenl. Ihduding patients

receiving tnterim ser^^s while swaUng admission.
22.4.5.'. The program has a mechanism that er>ables It to:

224.5.1. Mabtoln contact with Indlvtduab Qwaiibig Sdmlsslon
. <^.^.4.6.2.Admlt.or transfer waiting Ust cSenb at ths eartiesi posaOde ftme to an

appropriate tmtment program within a service area that is ressoruble to
thecUenL

22.4.5.3. The program takes dients awaMng treatment off the watting Gst only when
. one of the followtng cOrtolticins edst:
22.4£.3.1.' Such persons cervtot be located for admission Into ireatment

or • •

22.4.6.3J2. Such persons refuse treatment

224.6. The program carrfea out ectivttlea to encourage tndMduals in r^eed of trestmertt
aervtces td undergo treatmenl by using scientifically aourtd outreadi modela
euch as those outtihed bsiow or, If no such models are appQcabte tio the (ooal
situetlorv another approach whtch can reasonably be eifoecM to be an effective
outreach method.

22.4.7. The program has pfoeedurea for
22.4.7^1. Selecting, training, and supervising outreach woritofs.

Var^Nsme
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Humari Services
Substance use Disorder Treatment and Recovery^pport Services
RFA«3ai»^AS*01-SUB8T

Exhibit A-1 Operational Rodulrementa

' 22.4.7^ ContacUnQ. commurxlcaUng, end follawlrtg up with hIgNrisk' substance i
ebueere, their esaodates, end r^lghbodiood residents wtthin the constraints |
0^ Federal and state confldontbOty requirements. j

22.4.7.3. Promoting awareness among Irtjecting dfua ebusera about the relatlonahip ' I■betwmen Irdecttrvg drug ebute er^ communtcabla dleeaaee euch as HIV. I
22.4.7.4. Rerammendlng eteps that can be taken to ensure that HIV transmission |

dOM not occur.
22.4.b. The program dlrediy. or through enar^ements e4ih other pbblic or rton*profil

prtvsie enUtles, routinely makes avaUable the followtng 10 servtoes to each
Indlvbjual cBceMng boatmen! la substance abuse: -

22.4.6.1. Counsdlns the Individual w(lh ros^ct to TB.'
22.4.6.2.Testing to detenmlna. whether (he IndMdutf has-been Infected wUh

. myoobacteria TB to determine the appropitate form of traatmdnt for the |
lndi\4du8l. 1

22.4.B.3. Pfovtding for or relerrtng the individuals infected by myodbacterla TB j
appropdale medical evsluaOon and (reatmenl I

22.4.9. For d^ts denied admhskm to the program on (he basis of lack of capacity, (he
program refers such dients toother ptpvfderB.of TB servloes. i22.4.10.The progrem has IMplementad the Infection control procedures that am ' |
consistent wQh those established by the Department to prevent the transmbdon . |

- 6f TB and that address the foOowtng: I
22.4.10.1. Screenbig pstlenb and IdentfUcadon of those (ndivldu^s who ore at high |

risk of becomtng tnfeeted. !
22.4.10.2 Meeting all Stale reporting requtrements whDe adhering to Federal and I

State bonfldentiallty reqtdremente. Irtiuding 42 CFR part 2. i
22.4.10J. Cese management actMtfes to ertsure that (ndMduals receive euch

servtces.
22.4.10.4. The program reports eO Individuals with active TB es. required by State

law and'lrt acoordahce with Federal and State confldenllality requirements,
Induding 42 CFR part 2.

22.4.11.The program gives preferertce In admlsslen to pregnant women who seek or ere
referred for end vMuld benefit from Bledc Grant funded treatment services.
Further, the program gives preference to eOants In the followtng order

224.11.1. To pr^nant and Injecting drug'us^ ftrst
224.11.2. To other pregnant subsUra us^ eeoond.
22.4.11.3. To other InfocOrrg drug users third.
22.4.114. To ell other Individuals fourth.22.4.12The program, refers all pragnsnl women to (he Slate when the program ^es

Insuffldent capadty to provide services to any such pregnant wom^ who seek
the oenrtoes of the program.

22.4.13.The program mato available Interim eervtoes vMiIn 46 hours to pregneni
women who cartnoi be admitted because of lack of capacity.

224.1.4.Th0 program makes oondnulng education In baetment sorvloes available- to
employees who provide the sen^s.,

22.4.16. The pt^ram has In effect a systam to protect patient records from Inappropriate
disdosuie. end ̂ e system:

Vender Name
RFA-201B-BOASO1-8UBST Ccntactor tnlBsb:
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Nfw Kempshlre Depaitment of Health end Human Services
Substance use Disorder Treatment end Recovery Support Servtces
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Exhibit A*1 Openttional Requlremsnte

22.4.15,1. Is In cempllanoe wtlh eO Federal and Stele oonfldentiaDty reeuironente,
(hc(udinQ42CFRpart2.

224.15.2. Indudee provisions (or employee educaUon on* the confidentiality
requirements and the fact dtsdpltnary ectlon may occur upon
InapprDprfate disclosure.

22.4.16.The program does not upend.8APT Block Grant funds to provtdo Inpetltfit
hospital substance abuse aervtces. except In casee >^en each of the foOowtr^
conditlonstsmei:- ■ ■ ,

22.4.16.1. The IntfMdual cannot be etfecdvely treated tn a oommunlty4>8sed, rron*
hosplta). residential progrem.

22.4.16.2.. The daDy rate of payment .provided to the f^pital for providing the
esrvice does r«t exceed Ihe comparable daDy rate provided by a
comTnun}ty>based, norvhosplta}, residential program.

' 22.4.18.5. A physldan makes a determination thai'(he following condltiona have
been met:
22.4.16.3.1. The primary diagnosis of the tndlylduBl Is aubstanca ebuse

and the physldan centfies that fad.

22.4.16.3.2. The IndMdual cannot be safely treated In a communlly-
based, norvhespbal. resldenUa) program.

22.4.16.3.3. The service can be reasonably expected to ^prove tto
person's condition oflevel of functioning, -

22.4.16.3.4. The hosplial-bBsed eubstenoe abuse program foUows
national standards of substance abuse prcfesatoRSl practioe.

2Z4.16.3.5. The service ts provided ordy to the extent that It ts medically
necessary (e.g., only for those days that the palierU cannot bo
safely treated in community-bBed. non-hospital, restdentlal
program.)

22.4.17.Tha program dobs not expend Substance Abuse Preventton and Treatment
(SAPT) Block Orani funds to purchase or l/nprove land; puntisse, construct- or
permanently tmprova (other than mlnor-remodeUng) any bunding or other fidnty:'
or purchesemajor madlcel equipment.

22.4.16.Th6 program does nA expend 8APT Block Grant funds to eallsfy -ertd
requtngment for the e^qrendSure of non-Federal funds as a condition for the
rec^t of Federal funds.

22.4.1drThe'^r8rn .doe8 not expend SAPT Block Grant funds to provide ftnandia]
ssslstance to any entity o^er than e public ornonproflt prhrate entity..

22.4.20.The program does hot erqsend.SAPT Block Grant funds to make paytnsnia to
tntertdad recipients of heehh eer4ces.

22.4^1.The program does rurt expmd'&^ipT Block Grant funds to provide (ndl^uals
.  with hypodermic needles or syrtngfev^

v.. 22.4.22.The program does not expend SAPt Block Grant funds to provide treatment
sarvloes tn penal or eorrecUons tnsljtutlons of the State.

VcndorHeme

ConlBdor



•  . I ^

New Hampshire depertmant of Health and Human Services '
•Substance use Disorder Treatment end Recovery Support Servlcee
RFAf20ie-BOAS-01-SUB8T

EsMbtt A-t OpersOonel Requirements

22.4.23.The prngram uses the Stock Grant as Ihe.'paymont of lest resorf for servJoes for
pregnant women and women with dependent chUdren. TB eervicea arvj HIV
sendees end, Iherofore. mak« every reasonable effort to do (he (oDowtng:

2Z4,23.1. Collect reimbursement for the costa of provtdlnQ auch eervlces to persons
emitted to insurance berteflte under (he Social Securfly Act hd^dlr^.
progrems under tUle XVtll end blie' XIX^ any Stata oompensatton program
any other pubOc aaslslance progrsm for medical oj^eea, any gram
program, any prtvata heallh Insurenoc. or any olher banaflt program.

224^,2. Secure from psUartta of ellenls payments for aervlces tn accordance wtth
. (helrebintytopay.

22.4^4.Tbe Contractor shall ocmpiy with eO reisvant state arvl fedml laws such ae but
not limited la

224.24.1. The Contractor shall, upon (he direclton of the State, ptovldd court-
ofdcfed ̂ valuation and a ending fee scale (In Exhibit B) shall apply and
submlsslbn of (he court-ordered evaluation and shall, upon tho direction of

, the State, offer treatment to those IndMduais.
224^4.2 The Conlra^r shsll comply wtth the legal requirements governing hi/rhan

subjecfe research when consldartng rasaardt. Indudlng resaarch
■  . condircted by studeni Interns, using Individuals served by thb oontred as
.  . subjacto. Cor^ctOfB must Inform and rec^ve the Department's oppfoval

prtor to InlUalmg any research InvoMng subjects or psrtldpanta faZated to
Ihla oortrect. The Oepartmeni reserves the right, at Its sole discretion, to
rejed any such human subject research requests.

22.4.24.3. Contrectors shall comply with (ha Oapartmenfe Sentinel Event Reportlna
Policy. nt

Vendor Name



New H&mpsMro Deportment or Heabh end Hum.en Services
SubstBACO Uee Dtoorder Treatment and Recovery Support Sorylcoe

EkWbltB

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limttatlon.
^ Slock 1.8, of the Genera) Provtsionfi, for the servtcee provided by the Contrador
pursuant to ili^lt A. Scope of ServtcjBS.

•  Z ' Thts Agreement is funded by:
2.1. New Hampshire Genera] Funds;

2.2. Governor's Commtsslcn - on Alcoh^ and Drug Abuse Prevention,
•  Treatment, and Recovery Funds; i

2.3. Federal Funds from the United States Department of Health and
Human Servfces, the Substance Abuse and IMental Health Services

Admintstratlon. Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatrherrt • Slock

Grant (CFDAm059): and

2.4. The Cantractor agrees to provide the sen/tces In -Exhibit A. Scope of
Services In compflance with the federal funding requirem^ts.

■ 3. Non Reimbursement for Services

3.1. .The State wIQ not relmbur^ the Contractor for services provided
/'through this contrect when a client has or may have en altematlva
payer for serviced described the Ejdilbll A, Scope of Work, such as but

■ not limited to:

3.1.1. Services covered by any New Hampshire Mediceld programs
for dlenls who are eOglbie for New Hampshire Medicald

3.1.2.. . ̂rvlces covered by Medicare for clients who are eltglble for
Medicare

!  . 3.1.3: Services covercto by the client's private Insurerfs) at a rale
I  ' greater than the Contract Rate In Eidtlbit 8-1 Servtoe Fee
I  Table set by the DepartmenL
j  3.2. Notwithstanding Section 3.1 above, the Contractor may seek
I  reimbursement from the State for sendees provided under this contract

when a dlent needs a servtoe (hat Is not covered by the payers Usted In
Section 3.1. '

4. The Contractor shall bill and seek raimbureemenl for actual services delNefed by
fee,for services In Exhibit S-1 Sen/toe Fee table, unless otherwise stated.
4.1. The Contractor agrees the tees for servtces ere ell-(nduslva contr^

rates .to deliver (he sendees (except for Clinical Evaluapon which Is an

Kutfroa StfUB

RM^tMCMsevsuasToa poe*tdT
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Nnr Hampshire Deparfnianl of Health end Human aervlcoe
Subetaneo Use Disorder Troat/nent end Rccovory Support Services

Eihiblt B

BCt)v!ty lha! Is billed for separetely) and are the maidmum allowable
cherpe h calculating the amourrt to charge the Dapartment for aervlces
defhrered as part of thb'Agreement (See Section S below).

5. Caiculfltlng iho Amount to Charge the Department Applicable to An Servleee In
Exhibit B>1 Service Fee Table.
5.1. • The Cohtfpctpr ishall:

6.1.1. Directly bill and receive peymeni for eervtoee and/or
transportation provided under this contract from public and

private Insurance plans, the dierrts, end the Department

6.1.2. Assure a billing and payment ayslem that enables expedited
prooesstng to the Neatest degree posalble In order to', not
delay a cllent'a admittance Into the program and to
Immediately refund any overpaymenlfi.

5.1.3. Maintain an accurate eccounttng and records for all servlcds
billed, payments raoeVed end overpayments frf any) refunded

5.2. The Contractor shall determine end charge accordingly for servloes
-  provided to an ellglbte clleni under thb contract as follows: ■

6.2.1. First: Charge the clienl's private Insurance up to the Contract
Rale, In Exhlbtl B-1, when the Irisurers' rates meet or ere

tower than the Contract Rate In E^blt B-1.

5^.2. Secoftd: Char^ the dient according to Exhibll-B, Section 7.
Sliding Fee Scale, when the Contactor determines or
anticipates that lha private Insurer win not remit payment for
the run amount of the Contract Rate In Exhibit B-1.

5.2.3. Third; If. any portion of the Contract Rate h Edilbit 0-1
remains unpaid, after the Contractor charges the cQenrs
Insurer (If applicable] and the client, the Contractor'shall
charge the Department the balance (the Contract Rate In
Exhibit B-1. Service Fee Table less the amount paid by prtvate
Insurer and the amount paid by the dient).

5.3. The Contractor agrees the amount charged to the dient ahaO not
exceed the Contract Rate In Exhibit B-1. Servloe Fee Table muIUplled
by the correspondlrig percentage stated In Exhibit 8, Section 7- Sliding
Fee Scale for the diente applicable Income level.

firtbdB vtofafWhh
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Substenco Um Otoonfcr Tmstmont and Recovery Support Servfcet

bWUta

5>. The Contractor wiD assist dients who ere unablo to secure flnertdal
resources necessary for Initial entry into the program t)y deyetoplng
payment plans.

5.5. The Contractor shall not deny, delay or dlscorrtinue services for enroUed
cltents who do not pay their fees In Section 6.22 above. untD after
worfdng w^th the client es In Section 5.4 above, and only when the dient
feUs to pay their fees within thirty (30) (fays after being Inforrned (n
writing and couns^ed regarding financial re^nslbQity pcisslble
sanctionsIndudingdischargefremtreatment. •

5.6. The Contractor wHI provide to dlents. upon recjuast, copies of their
flrtanda) acoounts.

5.7. The Contractor shall not charge the combination of the public or private
■insurer, the client and the Department an amount greater than the
Contract Rale In Exhibit B-l, except for

,  5.7.1; Lxw^lntenslty Residential Treatment as defined as ASAM
Criteria, lavel 3.1 (See Section 6 below).

5.6. In the event of an overpayment wherein the domblnatton of aQ
^  payments received by the Contractor for a given service (except In

EiMblt B, Section 5.7.1) exceeds the Conirect Rate stated In Exhibit B-
1. ServiciB Fee Table, the Contractor shall refund .the parties In the

' re>«rse order, unless- the overpayment was due to Insurer, client or
Departmental error.

S.fl. In tostanoes of payer error, the Conlractor shaD refund lha party
ened, and adjust the charges to the other parties, according to a correct
appllcatlon of the Sliding Fee Schedule.

5.10. In the event of ove^ymenl as a result of bming the Departmant under
this contrad when a third party payer would have covered-the service. * '
the Contractor must repay the state tn an amount and within a

■  tfmeframe agreed upon between the Contractor and the DepBitrTwm
upon Idsnttfying the error.

6. Charging the Client tor Room and Board for Low-Intensity ResWarrtlal Treatment
6.1. The Contractor may charge the dIent fees for room and board. In

addltton to:

6.1.1. The dienfs portion of the Conlrad Rate In Exhibit B-1 using
the sOding fee scale

w^»iMD*3««uaffTes p«e»scif om
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GutataftM (J w Diabrder Trestmont And Roeovciy Support GorvlcM

EjihlbU B

6.2.

-6.1.2. The Charges to the Department

The Contractor may charge Itw client for Room and Board, Inclustve of
lodging and meals orfered by the program eccording to the Tetile A
below:

Table A

If the percentage of
CDem's income of the

Federal Poverty Lavet
fFPU Is:

Then the Contractor
moy charge the

client Up to the
following amount
for room and board

per week:

0%-138% 80
139%-149% $8 :
150% 099% $12
200%-249% $25
260%-299% • $40

300%-349% 557
'  350%-399% $77

6.3/

6.4.

The Contractor shall hpkJ 50% of the amount charged to the dlOnt that-
will be returrtsd to the client at the time of discharge.

The Contractor shall maintain records to account for the dlenfa

Gontrtbutton to room and b^rd.

7. Sliding Fee Scple
7.1. The Contractor shall apply the sliding fee scale tn aoccrdanoe with

Exhibit B Secdon 6 above.

7.2. The Contractor shaD adhere to Oie sliding fee scale ̂  foUows:

Percentage of Client's
Percentageof
Contract Rate In

Income of the Federal '  Exhibit 8-1 to
Poverty Level fFPU Chame the CBent

.o%-i3e% 0%
139%-149% 8%
160%-198% 12%
200% • 249% 25%
260% • 299% 40%

300%-349% 67%

350%. 399% 77% -

nFA.aot»eQAd«t«j98r.A8
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Exhibit B

7.3. ' The Contractor ehall not deny a minor c^d (under the age of 16)
aenrtces because of the parent's unwUlingnees to pay the fee or the
minor chltd's decision to receive canffdentfat services pursuant to RSA
31M:12-8.

6. Submflting Charges for Payment
6.1. The Contractor shail submit biOIng through the Website Information

Technology Systsm (WITS) for services Gsted In-Exhibit B-1 Servtoe

Fee Table. The Contractor sl^il: .

6-1-1. Enter encpunternote(6) Into WITS no later than three (3) days
after the date the eervlce was provided to the dleni

8.1.2. Review the encounter notes no later than twenty (20) days
fbtlowlng the last day of the billing month, and rtotlfy the

' Oepiartment that encounter notes are ready for review.

6.1.3. Correct'errors. If any, In the encounter notes as Identified by
the Department no later than sewn (7) days after being
notified of the errors and notify the Department the notes have
treen-corrected arrd are ready for reytew.

6.1.4. Batch and transmit the endounter notes upon Department
approvel (or the billing rnonth.

8.1.5. Submit separate batches for eech bnHngrrtonth.

6.2.. The Contractor agrees that .billing eubmitt^ for review after sixty (60)
■  daye of the .Last day of the bIDing month may be subject to ncrvpayntenl

6.3. • To the eident possible, the Contractor ahall bdl for eervloes provided
• under this contract through wrT& For any services that are unable to

be bDied through WITS, the contractor shall work with the Depamranl
to develop an alternative process for submitting Invoices.

9. When the contrect price Dmilatlon Is reached the program shall continue to
operate at fuD capa^ at no charge to the Department forThe duration of (he
' contract perfod.

10. Funds in this contract may not be used to replace .funding for a program already
furtded from another source.

11. The Contractor will keep detailed records of Iheir actlvlties related to Department
funded programs and servloes.

Keedrwt eme
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12. N^lhstandlng anything to the corrtmry heretn, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, In wtwie or In pert. In the event of
nor>^oompJlance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the
services provided, or If the said services or products have not been satistaetorfly
oompbtad In accordance with the terms ahd conditions of this agreement.

p  J

13. Cwbactor wlD have forty-five (d5) days from the end of the contract period to
Bubrr^ to the Department final Invoices for payment. Any adjustments made to a
prfor Invoice wlQ need to te ecoompanled by supporting.documeritatton.

14. ■ Umllatlons and radliictlons of federal Substance'Abuse PrevanUon and
Trealrrwit (SAPT) Block Grant funds:
14.1. The Contractor agrees to use the SAPT funds as the payment of last

resort

14^. The Contractor agrees to the following fuAdIng restrictions on SAPT
Block Grant expenditures to:

14.2.f. Make cash payments to intended recipients of substance
abuse services. ' '.

14.2.2.. Expendihore thanthe amountof Block Grant fundsexpended
In Federal Fiscal Year 1981 tor Ireatmeni services provided In
penal or correctbnal Institutions of the Slate.

142.3. Use any federal funds provided under this contract for'the
purpose of conducting testing for (he etiologlc agent for
Human Immunodeficiency Vbus (HIV) unless such testing Is

. accompanied by approprlata'pra and post-test counseling.
• 14.2.4. Use any federal funds provided under this contract for the

purpose of conducting any form of needle exchange, free
needle programs or the distrtbutlon of bleach for the deantng
of needles for Intraverious drug abusers.

14.3. The Contractor agrees to the Charitable 'Choice federal statutory
prcwislons es-foDows:

Fedaral Charltabb Choice statutory provlslorts ensure thai
religious organlutions are able to equally compete for Federal
substance abuse funding administered by SAMHSA. without

-  Impairing the religlaus character of such organizations end
wlthoul diminishing the religious' freedom of SAMHSA
benefidarles (see 42 USC 300x-B5 and '42 CFR Part 54 and
Part 54a, 45 CFR Part 98, Charttat)Ie Choice Provisions and
Regutations). Charitable Choice' statutory provtstona of the

eaaat
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Public HeaJlh Swvfce Act enacted by Congress fn 2000 ere
appl/cabie to the SAPT Block Grant progr^. No funds
provided directly from SAMHSA or the relevant State or local
government to organhcations partJctpallng tri applicable
progrems may be experided for Inherently religious adlvlHes,
such as worehip, religious ihstfuctlon, or proselytizatton. If an
organization conducts'such octNttlas; It must offer them '
separately, In time or location, tyom the programs or services
for vi^hlch It receives funds dlrectty from SAMHSA or the
retevent State, or local government under any applicable "
program, and partldpatton must be voluntary for the program
benefidarias.

areee' v«towhfi
Pe».JflfF d,b.
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Service Fee Table

^ ̂  Table A am the mealmum eflowable charge uaed In the Methodsfor Charging for Services un^. this Gontrecl In Exhibit 0

Table A

Sorvtce

Controct Rate:
Maxlrmitn Allowabto

Charae. Unit .

Clinical Evaluation $275^00 Per evaluation

IndlvUual Outoattent 522.00 15 min

OrouD OutBsSent S6.60 tSmtn

(ntanaiva OutoeUent $104.00

Par day. only on those
days ivhen the cOani

attends IntfMduai end/or
group counsdlng
eesodatadwiih.tho •
pfomain.

LowMmensHy Re'sldenUal for
Adullsonly for oflnlca) eervtees
and room end'board $119.00 Per day 1

HcaSrad eNue-i
PCQvidt oTir
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SPEOAL PROViatOMa

Coniretton Ob^gefione: The ConVBCtsr covenants end eorees (het eD funds mecfved by (he Camrado
undo the Contrad.ehag be ueed.onty as poyment to iho Ccmroctor for aervtcbs pnMded to diglbto
bidMduale end, (n (he funherenoe of (he daresaid covenenb. the Conirector hereby oovenenu end
e^eesesfoOowe:'

1. CempQenco wHh Fedofsl ortd State Lows: tf tha Contractor to pemUlted to dotsnnlne the cDgrbUQy
of IndMdueb staih dlglbSty determtnatton then be mede to eccordeneo wOh eppHcetde fedeml end

■ etote brws. regsdetto^ orders, guideOnes. policies end procedures.'

2. Tims errf Wanner of Dctermlnetipnt .Sljlbinty dolarmlrQttorts iheJl'be made on forms provided by
the Oepahmeni for (hel purpose end shefl bo tntde and remede et such times es ere prssbtbed by
(hs Oepertmerrt. .

o

3. Documentation: In addUon to th« detamthotlon fonna required by Ste OepartrrKint, the Contractor
tfiaO malnteln e data nie on eech redptenl of services'hereunder, which fUe sheO hvtudo eO
(nformation neeeesery to support ert ellQlbinty determination end such oiher trrfbtmeUon as the
Oepertmeni lequaits. The Cwtracttv shell furnish the Oepartrrten! wRh an forms and dxumentaUon
regarding eDgtbOily determlnstloru .that (he DepaitTient may request or reqube.

d. ■ Fab Hearfrtgs: The Conirector understands that oD appficerUa for asrvlcos hereurtdo, as wall as
MMduab dedarc^ fnoflBlblB have a right to a fab hearing regsrdlng that dotefmlnsten. Tha

-Conbector hereby ouvenards end agrees.lhst bD eppbcanb earvfcca sheO bq permitted to fZI out
en eppEcallan form end that each eppQcant or re-ippncen! ehsD be tntotmed of his/har righi to o (ab

-  hiesrtngtoBOGordarKewdhDaperlmemrDgulstforB.

6, Orstultfos or Klctfoooke: Ihe Contreetof agtoos that II be breach of (Ns Contract to accept or
make a ̂yqnent. gmtuDy or offer of empfoyment on behalf of Ihe Contreder, eny Gub^ohtmctor or
' the Oate P) order to Inftuance the performenoa of the Scope of WoA detailed In' giKblt A of thb ■
CpntracL TheSiatemay tenrtfnatd Ptb Coniract end eny eub<!di(rBct or sub<greameni If It b
dotermb^ that paytnente, gr&tulibs or offers of empdoymeni of enyldnd were offsfed or rtraelved by
any offidalsi, ofncero, employees or eganb of ihs Contractor or SutKCantrector. -

6. ftetroacthraPaymerrta^NohdthstandlngonythtngtDlhooentrsryoontaln^lntheConlrBctertnGny
ftffyr document, cortlrad or understanding^ It b apressly understood and egmed by,Ihe parties
hereto, that np paymenb wO) be made hereunder to rdmbum tho Controdor fv co^ tncurrod for
any.^rpose or for any servtaes pfovtded tp any IndMdual prior to the Effedlve Date of the Conbed
end no paymerUs shall bo made for bipenses Inuirred t>y the Contractor for any services provided
prter to the date on whhh the Individual epdlei for servfccs or (escepl as othenrrtse provided by tK#
ferial regdeSons) p/tor to e detsrmlruiODn thsi tho (ndvldue) b eligible (pr such aervtose.

Coi^iUon'o of Purchase: Notwllhstnndlng oriylhlng to the oororery oontalheid ̂  the Controd, npMng
hevetn pordalned ehaO be deemed to obOgele or reqube the D^to/tmanl to purchase eervtass
hereunder at e rate which rebnbmss tha Cont/ector In of the Conbactors oosb, et a rate
tofdch eioeeds toe amounb reaaortabis artd necessary to assure the qualjly of sudi servtoe, or el e
rote which ecoeads the rale charged by the Cordractor to ineltalblB IndMduale v otho Odrd party '
hnAre tor such servtoe. If el ariy Qmo during toe torm of this Conlraet or after receipt of Ihe Rnaf
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department ohaS determine that the Controctpr has used '
payments hereunder to ralmburse Hems of aiqienso other gian such eosta, or has rocetvod peymani'
to etoaoeof such oosb or In ooess of such rotes charged by the Contractor to Inei^We InfivldUBb
or other (hbd party lUnders, the Department may deel to:
7.t, RertogoOBfo the rates for payment hereunder. in wtdeh event new rates shsO be ededhhed; '
7X Dtdud from eny future peymant to the Centredorlhe emeuni of eny prtof retmbuisemerrt to

exeats of oopts;

ertftoc->So«iBiPiD«htoRi CgieM&Ttjatt
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Now Hamp^hlro Dep.ofi^i^jgyteoUh end Human Sorvlcos

7.3. Demand repeyment of (he excess payment by the Contmctor In which event (allure to make
such repayment ahaO eonstllute an Event of Defaull'lmeunder. When the (^ntmctor (s
pe/mHl^ to determine the eOglblOty of tndlvlduah for een/tcea, the -Contractor B0fecs to
rctinburae the Oepehment for ef] furvJs paid try the Dcpertmorrt to the Contrsetor for seNteea

I  proved to any indMduaJ who la found by the Department to bo Ineligible for auch aervfoes ot
I  any Umedurtng the pertod of rotorrtlon of records esfobTished heroin.

RECt^S: MAlhTTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT, OISCLOisURE AND OONFIDENTIALrrr:
b. Matntonartea of Reccirda: In oddltlon to the eBsIbllily records speclAed above, the Contmebr

oovensnts end agroos lo.malntein the fotloyrtng reoorda durtng tho Contract Perted:
6.1. Flfical Records: booka. reccrda, documortsend other data ovtcfoncfog end reOecdng all costs

end other expenses tncuned by the Contrador in the performanoe of the Contra^ end eO
focoma reoeh^ or oeUected by the Conifsctor dprfog the Contract Period, said raeorda to be
m^tained In ecoordanco with aocounllng procedures and praetioes whtch-aufTrdcnUy and
property reflect afleuchoosts end er^roes, and whleh em acceptable to the Oepsrtmoitt. end

-  to tnchjde. without DmltaUofl,fl9led0erv. booka. reeordAer)dortgtna}ov(dbnce of costs auch as
purchase raqutsitlora ar^ orders, vouchers, requtsliions for maiertaU. btventorin. v^uetfons of
trvfctnd contifoutJorOi labor Umo.cards. payraOa, and other records requested or requbaid.^.the?
Oepartmeftl

^2. SttilsUcel Records: SlaUsflcal, enreUment. atlendanoe or vtstJ records for eeeh redplent M
8er^rtce^ durtrtg the Contract ffortod, wh'ch records ahaO Include aH roconis of application and
eTiglblQty (bchidb^ eO forms required to determine cC(^i&y for eadt tud\ ladptanl), records
regartfing (he provision of aervlMS and aO Involoes aubmBiad to the Department to obtain
paymerrt for such aervfoes. ' '

6.3^ M^cal Recorda: Where epproprtete and as prescribed by the Departoontregutallono. the- ■ ■
Contredpr shall nrtaln modica) records on ea^ petlorttfradplent of aervicee.

6. Audit: Contractor shpU submit en annual audD to the Department within 60 days after the dose of.the
agency ftscs) year. It ts reoonvnended that iho report be prepared In occordonce wflh the provtslon of
Office of Mansgemerd end Budgei Ctrcular A>1 ais. "Audits of States, Local Govemmanls.-and Nan
Profll Organizattona* ond the provisions of Standards for AudS-of Goverrvnenlaf OrganlaUons,
Programs, AdMUes and Functions, baued by Ihe t;s Genefd Aocounilrig OfKce (GAO standards) oa
Ptey pertafo b Anondal cempfiance oudlta.
6.1. AudUondRe^w. OurfogihetarmofthbContredendlheperlodCorretantlonhereuAder. (he

Oepartnent. the Unftod States Oepartrnem of Health end Human Servfoes, and any of their
doslgnatad representatives shall have eeeess to a8 reports and records rrutlntalned pursuant to
(he Cdntmd for purposes of ou^ exandnatton. excerpts end transcripts.

'  6.Z ^dllLlabfmiesrlnaiMltlonioaAdnolinBnywaytnilmjtaifonofcbUgaBQnsoftheConbaet.lils
understood end agreed by the Contmctor thai the Ccnbacior shad) be heU QaUe for any state
or fpdaral audn exMpBons and ahal) return to the Department, bO payvnonle made tmdef the
Contract to whttfi exception hps been taken or which have been dtsaUowed because of auth an
ezeepSon.

10. Confldanttallly of Records: AD (rdormatloA. reports, end recordi malntatoed hereunder or ■
In'cormDon.wflh the performance'of Ihe services €^-(hs Contrecl shall be oonfldanUal end ahtf rvot

' ■ be disclosed by the Cofttredof. provided however, that pursuant to state laws and dm mgdatJons of
■ (he Oepaitmanl rogaftCng the use end dfocfosuie of such Information, disdosurt may be mado to
piitfic offldats requlrtng auch Informetion In connaclian with iheb offt^ duties arvl 1v purposes
(firectiy connected to Ihe admln}sbat|bn of the aervfoes and the Cordracb end provided ftathar, thai
foe use or.dbdosuie by any party of any Irrformatton oorKerrlng.a redpient for arty purpeoo not
dtreedy-Gonnected wttii ihe adndrtiatrathm of the Oepa/lrrtenl or the Corttractor's responsIblOflee wflh
respect to pu^ased aervfoes hereunder Is prohibit^ except on wrtBen consent of the rec^^^ Ms
eODmeyorguardlarv
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. NotwOhstartdJng enyV\{ng to the contfeiy contained hweln Iho oovenante end condfllone contained tn
the Parooroph ehsll eurvKe the tefwheflon of the Contred for any reason whatsoever.

11. Roportt: FUcal and Stetlsteel: The Conlreotor agroei to submli (he foftowtno ropoits at the roOowtno
tlmeBirrequaetodbyiheDepartm^'
11.1. WerteRnancialRoporlr-WnaenWa/tmnrwiciaJ reports contaWnfl a detailed dawlpOon of

fiU onta and oorvoUowahia expenses Incuned by ihe Comrador to the data ofihe repcri end '
mlArdng evctt other InformeUon as sheO bo deemed aaUtfeqory by tha Departmem to
fuil^tho reto of payment hofounder. Such Pb^ancfel Reporis.Khsli be eubmRad en the torm
dealsnalod by (he Department or deemed soUsfactery by (he Doparimen).11.2. ftna) repon ehaO be lubrntttod wi!h!r» tWrly f30) days after the ereJ of die torm
of thts Conbaa The Final Report shall be In o temi aeilsfactojy to the Departmott and shtf
contain o e^rnary atalamont of progr^ toward seals ar^ ot^ctfves stated In (he PwTi-»<fal
end other Information roqutrod by the Oepartmerd.

iZ Comptatlen ofServiqea: DisaOowenceof Costs: (ipon the purchase by (he Oopartmeniorthe'
mttwum number of unQs prorUed for In (he Contract end upon payment of the prtoo OinlJetJon
' horaundcf, (he Contran end aO the obOgaUoRs of the paitiss hciaonddr (except such obOgettons as«
by the terms of the Conbect ere to be performed after the end of t^ term of this Conbaci andter
sdr>^iM the lennlnatlcn of the Contract) chpO lermlhete. provided however, that If. i^on ravtew of the
FlnalExpendOuroReporltheOepertmentshalldlsanowanyexpensoectabnedbytheConbBCtQres■ oosta herounder the Oep^'ertl chaS reUh (he dghl. el its dlserotian. to deduct the onounl'cf atjch
expenses as ore dlsaflowed or to recover eudi sums Cram tho Contractor.

11 Credits: AD doaanentD,nolloes, press releoses. research reports end other matertats prepared
during or resuliing from the perfD.rmanoo of the servtow of tha Contracf Shall Indudo the foOowfrn
atatument .

13.1. The.prapamUon of this (rdplort, document etc.) was financed under e Conbect wflh tho Slate
of New HempsNre, Oepartmenl of HepUh end Human Services, with funds provided In pert . '
by the state of N^ Hampshire andtor auch other fumllng aouroos as word ovoSabte or

' requtre^. e.p.. the ifnBod States Oepsitmend of Heaflh and Hurran Sofvloes.

14., Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: AD,metartab (wrftten. vMeo. audio) produced or
^x^tased undpr tha con^cl shall have prW opproval from OHHS before prtnDng, production,
^ttvUon or use. The DHHS wlD reiah eopyrtght owTWShlp for ony end aO original mglartalsprofroed. Including, but not (tmHed to. bro^rea, resource dbectortes, protocols or guldeOnoe..
posters; or reporto. Contractor thafl not reproduco ony materi^ produced under (he doritrect wUhagi'
pttar wrOan approval ftom OHHS.

15. Oporallon of FacDUiee: Compnance w((h Ume end RegulaSona: In the operation of any fepOtfas
fw pro^Hg services, Ihe Ccntrector shafl obmply'wlth ell laws, ordere and regudaOons of federal
ptate, county and rmmldpel puthoftttss and wllh any dbection of any PubSc Otncer or offleas
pOTWl to tswo wtdeh AeS bnpose pn order or duty upon the contractor wQh respect to the
pperaUcn of (he facQity or ttie provbton of Ihe serviceset sudt feeffity. If any govemmarttal OoenM or
pormll shaD be roqubed Cor (he operation of tho said facilBy or tho perfomahce of tho said savtees,
tha Oontmtor wOl procure taid Dcense or permB, erri wfD at aO tfmaa oorhply wUh tho terrrs and
ondltlorts of each cuch'Ooertso or permIL In comecUon wtih the (bregobig raqulramwts. Ora
Conbector. ttoraby covarumts and ogrees that, durbtg the term of (his Conboct (he fecOiles shell

rules, prdors. regulsUons, and requlremante of the State Officoorttv Flro Marihti vj6
tha local fee protection ogeney, and shoO be in o^orrnsnce wtlh (ooal-bufldbtg and tenbig oodoa. by*
laws artd reguiatlerts.

16. GqxqI anptoyiTMnt Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor wDl provide on Equal Emptpymant
Oppytmlty Plan (EEOP) to the Offtce for Clvd Blgms. Cffloe of JusQco Piograms (OCR). If ft has
recetved a fbrglo award of 1500,000 or more, (f the redptont receives 625.000 or more artf has SO or

trfttfiC-SowtyAwitiitne

FCPIXOIS



New MsjT^ehtre DopArtrrwnt of Hsallh and Human Services
'Ejdilblt C

S3 !2£!! 225?? ® cufre^ EEOP on me end eubmn an EEOP CwtWceUon form to iho'W. ee#1rf|rfno ̂  be EGOP b on (Do. Pa mdptants recoMno l«a then S25.000. or public oramoes

^ 'eclplert will provide onBTOP Cert^Don F^nn to me OCR oertfVng It is not required to submit or melmain en EEOP. Non-
.  organliailtms. Indian Tribes, end medlcd end edueeUonei insirtuttow ore exampf ftom the

^  ® ceWricoiion form to the OCR to dabn the enempUon.EEOP CerUflcauon Forms are evaltoble of: btlp:/nwvw4!]p.usdoF/about/ocr/pdVoer1^r.

17. Unritcd EnpUph ProftoenQy (ifP); As elartCed by Eseeultvo Order 13186. Impmvtno Access to
■Citrw^ tor pyeons wBh LhnUed Ensltsh PrdWancy. end resulOns egency puid&nce, national o/loln

the bails of QmlM EnoDsh praftdency (LEP). To onwrocmpOanoe ̂  Iho Omnlbva CrtmeCopbolandSala Strvela Act of 1688 end 71 da VI of iha OvO
RlflWe AH of 1984, Conbaetors muit take reasonable steps to ensure (hat LEP persons have
ffloanlngfd acce» to Its programs.

IB. Pflol Program for Enhancement of Coniracter Employee WMsileblower Prbteellw: The
e^ctt thai exceed (he Stmporfed AcquWlion Threshdd as daTmed In 48

. CFR 2.101 (currvitfy, $150,000)

CONTRACTok EMPLOVEE WK>ni£BU)W9t Rl6HT8 AMD REOUmEUErrr TO tNFORW BuPlOrGEO OP '
WKanfeiweR fb0HT8 (SEP 2Dijj

(a) TWs conbaet and employees worthg on mb conlraci wO bo subject to the whlsOoblowa rtgWs

^ National Defense AuthortiaUon Act (or'Ftscal Veer 2013 (Pub. LM2®238) find FAR 3.608i

(b) The Contractor sKetl Worm Its empl<^es In wrlUng, In the pradomlnenl tanguoga of the wortrforeo.
®hd protactbAs uAda4i u.ac. 4712. es desofbad In aectfon

3.908 of (ha Federe) AcqublUon Regt^lon.
(c) The Contractor thaO Insert the si^stonoa of Orb deuse. hdudhg ihb peraoraph (cl In eO
suboontrocts Over the dmpBflad floqulsBtan ihrashold.

18. 8ubeonbMtora:'DNHSrecogntzes (hat theContractof may choose to use subconbactori wflh
gra^f wrtbe to peffonh certebi health cere laMces or functions for effidoncy a oonventenco
bto the Cortractor thaO retain (he reaponslbmiy and eeeountabQiiy for the hnKilonfei Prter to

■  Corttredor shM evaluate ihe subcontrad^s ahOity to perform iho dalMstad'MWfhpD^'through o iAt9ten ogreeinenl thol epodtas aclMtJcs end repertnompomiblDUes of (he subcontractor and provtoas fa ravoUng Cho ddagaSon a Impoalrn aencdons If
tfiMjAwrtractofe performanca la pof odequate. Eubcontractoa era urbfett to Iho eeme oenbadifli
caswns 68 the Contractor end the Cortracfbr b rasponslble to ensure eubmntiactor compSanoe
win (hose oondSons.V|^ Oto Corbacior detegaies a function (o a subcontrador, the Contrador shall do the fdtewlnff
19.1. Ev^a the prespectivB suboontreetori ablBty to perfarm.iheoctMflai. before deteooBra

the nmctton19.2. Havee wrftten egraement vdih the suboontractor'lhai ipecfnea aoUvtltes ond reportlfio
WmsIbWtes ond how landions/mvoeatlon wflJ be meneged K the luboofdractor-f •
perttmnenoe Is not edeQueta ' •

■19.3.- Uonftor the eubcontractofe pertormsnoDcn en ongofng batb. ■

CMMC-apsMPieiiem Ceie*wW*3.^^^(^
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19.4: *ProvUe to DKH8 on annual schedule WinffylnB aO eubcontniclom, deleoatad functfona end'
. HMponsiblUea. and when the eubconUactar'e ̂ onnaRco wUl be reviewed

19.6. OHMS ahal). elite tficrttifin. fwlew and approve d) eubeontTBcts.

If ihe Contmetof IdafttMee deHdencies or oreae for Improvement ore idenUfied. the Centrador ehaS
take correcdvd aeUon.

OEPtNmONS

Aa load In (he Contract (he (olbMhg temis efiofl hsve (he foQoweig meenlnge;

COSTO: ShoO tnean dioeo dlrecl end Indirect Rona of ejtpansa determlnod by the Deps/tment to bo
eOtwratde.end relmburaabla h acoordanoe wUh oosi and aoeounUns pdndpfee eatabVthod tn aceordance
wfth stale and federal laws, regudatlons, n/lo9 and ordero.'

^ • .. .

OEPARtMENT: NH Oepartmenl of Heallh end Human Sarvlcea.

FINANCtAL MANA0B\4E>rr OUIDEUNES: 8ha9 mean thai section of the Conboctor Manual which b
enflOed Thandal Uanagemonl Guidefines' and which contains the raguIaUons oovenUng (he Hnanetal
ecthitSea 6t conirsctor agendas which have cent/acted wtdt lha State of NH to rocelvo hmds.

PROPOSAL' If eppOcabia, ahaO mean dia document aubmffied by (he Contractor on a ftjnn or forms
reoubod by thfrOapaftmeni and oomahtng a deacripdoh of (f« Santoes to be provtded to dDolbte
tndlvtdUBts by Iho Contractor tn eeoordanca with the lanns and cortdUlona of (ha Contract and setUng forth

• the total cost and souroes of ravanue for each aarvteo to bo provided under Contract

UNIT: For each sandca that (ha Contractor to to provide (q eligQtle todhfouato heroundar. shaQ mean that
partod of time or that spedflad BcU>4ty determined by the Depertmont end specinad'ih Exhibit B of the
Contract

FEDERAL/STATE lAW: Wherever lederal or state tows, regidations, rules, orders, and poQdet. etc. era
refoitod to tn (he Contract, the said refercnoo shall be deemed to mean aO such laws, cagdaOvis, etc as
(hay may be amended'or re^d from the time to ttnie.

COHfKACTOR MANUAL: Sltafl mean (hat document prepared by (he NH Oepartmanlcf AdmMstTGttve
Servtees oontatoing a oompHalton of aO regulallorto promufgated pursuant to tha New Hampsldra
Adndnbtrathre Racs^res Act NH RSA Ch S41-A, forOta purpose of imptamefiiing Stole of NH and
Cedaral/cgulations promulgeled (hsreundar.

SUPPLANTINO OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor suarentoes that fonds provfdod under this
Cortfiad «4fl rtet supplant any exhtlno foderal funds bvabatfo for these servloet.

own
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Exhibit C-1
/

REVIStONS 70 CCWERAL PWQVtfilQWa

1. Su^eraprsph a of (h» Genere] Provlsbns of Ihb contract. CondHtenol Nstura of Acrsemanl b
repboed as foUowv: 'w

4. CONOmONAL NATURE OF AQRGEMENT.
NoNiUhstarxflnp any provHIon of this Acfeament to ihe ebnimfy, all oHioeflwi of (ha fitalo-
horewttfor. indudinc wUhoul litnlteBon. the eomtnuanoe-of payments. In vi4nb « in part,
under this Acreemeni are oonttnpent upon oontlnued approprtoQvi or syeltabffity of lUnda

■  euhMqueni changee to (ha approprtaOoh or avaUahlllty of funds affected by
^  tegtsUUve or exeeutfvD octfan that .roduoos; elbnhales, v cfharyrtse

modfflas the appropriation or evaSabOty of funding for thb Agroemeni artd the c!
S^CM protdded In Eihltfl A, Scope of Sendees. In wtioto or In perl In no ovont ahaD the
5^ be fiablo for any paynrento hereuhder In excess of epproprlatad or svaflaUe funda. In
• ̂ e event of a reduction; larmbollon Of modllleatton of oppropitated or ovaSaUe funds, the
State ehsfl have the right to withhold paymart uniH euch hmds become avaOable. If oyer. The
State. ahaD the rigtil to reduce, lermlnata or modify aervlces undor dtb Agreement

.  . Immedhtdy upon gMng the Contractor riotice of such roductlon. terminalion or modHeetlm.
The State ehafl not be.requlred to transfer Arnds from any ether source or aceouni Into the
Accountfe) UentWed h WocA 1.8 of the Oaneml ProvWdns. Account Number, or any other
ocoQunt. In die even! furtds are mduoed or unavaDatf a

i ^bparagraph 10 of the Oeneral Provtslons of this oontrect, TcrminatJon. b amended by cddbw the
■  fcOoivIng language:

10;t The Stab may icnmlneto the Agreemerrl at any time fbr any rabson. at the sole dbootlon of
the Sata. 30 daya alter gMng tha Contractor written nrtloe that the Slate b exodsho Its
option b tdfmlnate the /^eemant.

.10^ In tha event of aedy termtfwtlon. the Contractor ahaD, wtihh 15 daye of .notice of early
.  termtnetion. develop and submit b the Slate a Transition Plan for services under V)o
^eement InducQng but not limited to, IdarrtlAteg the preseni and Wiffe needs of clbrtto
roceMrtg services under (he Agreement snd estabtbhas a pmeeas to meet ihosa needs.

10.3 ̂  Contrector shatt MJy coopemo with the Sttte and shall prompfly provlda deblad '
Wormatton to support the Translifon Pton fndudhg, but not fimficd to, any Intamalton or
dab rsQuastad ̂  the Sbte relabd to iha termlnaDon of Ihe Agreemant eind TrarB&ion Ban
and thaO provide ongoing oomrrunlcalim and revtstorts of the TrensJBon Plan to the Atfh' aa
m^ietted.

10.4 In tte evert that aervloes under tte hgrecmerl, Indwflng but not Umlfed to diote reeelvlrM
■ tentees urtder Ihe Agreement ®a trendUonod to havlr^ services delivered by another enHiy
Inking oontraeted provlderB or Ihe Stab, the CortrBctor shall provlda a procns for '
ufdabnuptad danvery of aarvlcetin the TranslOon Plaa

•  ® TJ® Contractor shall ettablbh a method ef notlA^ng cOenb end other afrocted tndMduatoabout the t/ansm^ The Contractor shaO-lrKlude foe propcaed commurdceUcrts-ln fia
TraniDlBA Ran submUted to the Stab as described above.

L  fteruwat: Department mervos the rtghi to extend tha Conbact for up to two 0) edtftUml
•  wpfoct to tha oontlnuad evafleblDly of fonda satbtoctory performaAoe of aervlces ond
approval by the Qovemor and Executive Council

CMttC-t*R>UfiDn»«»6unteaPRMbfera
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ExMblt D

.  . PBRTigPATIQW RFOAWOINQ PRUQ-FREE wor^f^PLACe REQUIREWg»fTy
U of the Oensral Provtelons agrea to eompty wlih the prmtrions of

S^m 5161-6160 of (ho Druo^rtG Wodiptooe Ad of 1698 (Pub. L 100-00. TWo V. SubUOe D- 41
111^1 S 51^' ̂  to hove (ha Contmdci'e repmcntollvo. od IdenUTied In SecOoni1 -11 end 1.12 0# (he Oenere} Provhlons execute (he foOowlnB Certlflcatton:

alternative (. FOR 0RAMTEE8 OTHER THAN INDJVUnJALE

laOEPARTMEHTOF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - COKTRACTORS
US OEPARTWENT op EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT Of. AflWCULTURH - CONTRACTORS

by Che rogufottons bnptomenQng 6ec6ofu.B19V-6l60 of (he Orua^ree
Wajpteeo Ad 0# 1M8 (Pub. L 10^690. Ttde V. SvbjlUo 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 ot eeq.). The January 31amended end pubilihod as Pvt ft of (ha May 25.19B0 Federal RoddBf (^oes

L5 opftlflcalton by'Qramaes (and by Weranco, eub-grentees end eub-wrtractora), to ewart, (hd (hoy wffl malnieh a dru^rae MobidM. Secflan 3017.630(c) of the
mguatlOT prawttoe (hot a grantee (and by Wefenoa, su^rantaee and sub-contraetBra) that b a Stoto .
-fflay eled to make one oertlficeUon te the Oepartmeni tn oactt federa) flacd year In lieu of oarttloataa fof
eadt grard durtng (he toderal fUeal year covered by (he certlCcation. TrwcerUflcataeetoutbetowbo
nroW reprwCTtrtan of fact .open wWdi reOanoa b ptaoed Htian the agency ewrdj the grant Feba
wWteUM w vtoBiltm d (ha certflltrton ahsO be ground* to auapenslcn of payments, auspcmlon'to
.farming of granta, or govemmwl wide suapanslon or dabarawrtl. Contradora uilna this torn ehovtd '

,  tend n to:

Commbdoner
NH Depa/tment of Health end Human Servlecs
129 Rapsonl SCroot.
Concord. NH03301-660S

1. fto grantee oedifiea (hat h«(D or wQ-oonOnue to provfde a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. PUMihtogaatotemamnotlfytngemptoyealhetthakmtowfuJrnarwfcctufo.dliblbution

■  db^Khg. poisessten or use of a conboOed substance b prohlbflad In iho ̂ ntee'a '
:  and apDdfying the adlons thai wO be taken egalnsi employees for vtdatten of auch •

prnhlbblon:
U. EstobOBhtog an ongobtg dru^rae mvaroness pregmm to Inlorm emptoyees about

1.2.1. Ttw.dangers of drug abuse In (he woriptfice;
UJ. The gnu^'o policy of matntatnlng a drug-tree nortiplBco;
1^. Ahy evaHabia drug counseling. rehabWalton, and enipioyeeasals1anoepfogrBma:of*J
1.2.4. The pwaJIki thai may be Imposed upon emptoyoea for drug abuse vldaltoia

occurrbig In iha Mrkplaao:
■  " ® toRUlKimafit that each employee to be engaged tn the pertortnanoe of the gram bagNen a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. NotMylng the employee In the ototement required by paragraph (a) thai, as 0 condBlori ef
cmpfcQffpanl under (ha grertL the emptoyee wf9
1A.1. Abide by the terms of (ho so(afflant; and
1AJ. No(ffythaomployeflnwrlUAgflfMsofhercflm^cOontDrew(ototJono1ecrtmlnaldr\o

stotulo oecurrlno tn (ho workpiace no htar than frve calendar days after cud)
canvictton;

1.5. Nd/fying (he agertcy In witlng.wfihh ten calondardeye after recatvhg notice under
wbpamgmph 1.4^fiom'en efnptoiraeeretharwtsoreceNtog actual noticed such oonvtcBoa
B^oyere d oomdcted employees muil pfovtde notice, Indudbg posUton liae. to every grantotfteef on whose grord edMty Ihe oonHcicd emptoyee was working, unless (ha Fbdard agency

Eidte D - Ceifleiton lepwfltes pmg Sne
watpboB Rsguywnwo
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New Hempehbe Deperimenl of Heslth end Human Services
ExhlbUO

has detlgneted a centre! pQtnt foi the recdpt of such AoUoea. Notice ehaO IncMe dte
. Uentfflcatlon number^s) of each effected Qren^

1.6. Tektr^ one of the foQowtrig ectbns, wlthbi 30 calendar days of recehrtng notfca under
eubpamgraph 1,4.2. with respect b any erhptoyae wtM Is to eenvlcted1.6.1. T^nfl appfoprtete pemonnd aeflon aflahsi such en empteyoe. up to and hcludlf^

ternihsUcn, consistent witfi the reqvrlromenbi of the RehabtOtudm Act of 1973, es
emended: or

1.6.2. Requinnp such emptoyee to parUdpate sattsfectoftly In a druB abuse ossbtanoe or
reheblDleSo'n pfOQmni eppro^d (br such puipOMe by o Fodend, Stats, or health
low enforcement or other epproprtate asency;

1.7. MdUnp 0 good faith efton to oominue to maMeIn e dnip-fme worhploce ttooush
ImpbmenteOon of paregiephs 1.1.1.2,13.1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

Z. -The omntoe may hsa/i to me space pmvtded below the slte(s) for tte perfonnawe of woA done In
connection wQh the specffie granL

Place of f^rftormance (street address, city, oottoty, state, zip coda) Oist eadi tocation)

Chocfc a ff there are worliplacos on file that arc not Identified here.

ContrscbrNenle:,-

Name:

EtfOQO-CcnaoflanfvarAipCMvgFnt . CorwaanMtoi an^
WDdpbei ftoqubtnertB

OMOOivn) PseiSefZ Of»'^0/y



Now HompsMroDoputmern of Health and Human Servlcae
ExMUtE

• CCTTIFICATIOWWEQARPIHQ

in Saflon 13 of tho Oonon) Pn>vbtora asreos to comply with (ha pmvt^ of-

??i iTr OuIdsnoB to Now Rost/ktlons on Lobb>tn8. end
ill 4 if ayw to have the CcnVoclor'e reprosentBtlvo. e< Idanlirad h Sedlona 1.11end. 1.12 ctftho Oeno/tf Pr^tatona oxecuta lha foUo^g Cartincotlan:

fS S'' ■ C0NTTWCT0R8tiS OSPARTMEl^ OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US OEPAirOKENT OP AORICULTURE . CONTRACTORS

Pregrsm* (tndlcato oppQoaUo pfogram covered):
•Tttitporafy Aisfatanoe to Naody Famfnoa under TKte IVV^
*Chad SuppoH Enforcement Pr^mm unto TlSe fV-0
•Sodal Sondoea Bloek Qrani Prcgrem undw THJe W ^
*Modica)d fTDgram under TTlto MX
Xommuni^ Servfcse BlocX Grant under Tlflo VI
fChfldCarcOevatopmantBlodiQrerdu^TIUolV -

The undenlgnod cortinaa. to the tost of hb or her knowledge and beflef, that

1. NoFaderoJepprcpftatodfiptdahavotoonpeidorwCitopakjbyofOflbehalfofthountoaJafttdLto
a^perion for Inflwndng or ellemptlng to InOuertoo en ©mcer or en^oyo'e of any aoency. a Member
of Cor^i, w ofPocr or empjoyae of Congreoi. or en entptoyoe of o Mombcr of Congmaa to

wWi (he aa^ng of any Federal oontocl. conUnuaOon. renewal, amendmarn, or.

" sis&r"'

^  aPPWO^ItH tmx» ta«, bwn wk) Of wa tw paid a any wnKin toftofluonang or ottempttog to (nfiuenoo en cflteor or amploikia of any eooncy, o Mamber of CervvesA
««P*oyDe of 0 Member of Congraaa In cenrtocSon with thh

•  y gWtratNo agrroment fend by apodnc menUon etaHrentee or tub,to undersignadahafl complete end submn Standard Form 114.. (Dlufoiuro to
Report Ubbyng. h eooofdaneo wtlh lb totuvdiona. attached and IdentiHed ee Standard Ejdiail E-l)

3. TtoiatderalgnadahaDrequtro tol to language of ihlacerb'lteeOon be todbdad to the award
docMmeni for •^b^awerda at aO tiara (todwtftog sitoorrtmct^ sub-^anb. and oonboda under aronb
toani, end cooparsUve agrcomena) and that ell aub^plenb ihaO oeMfy and d^Ktoso aocedtogly!

certflttSOT b a mafctaJ ropreaenteSon of fad upon wMch roUanoe waa'pbcod when Ihb trensaoQon
waa made y entered Into. SitorrtaatenofthfscertincallontoapreraihJio tomaWnooraMerbmtolothIa

to fUa to requiredeertm^ ihaD bo udtfect to oeMI penalty of not teaa than Si04)00 and not mom tten S100.0CO for
eatn turn raiuro.

Ccrvlroctor Kama:

-i* P^rUJ.

e«MMe-c««kitoiite^taei'aabme cwwacteriBnai



Now HomptMre Oepfirtment of HoaJm ond Hvmsn Gorvlcee
Exhibit F

CPrnFICATtON RECANDlXePeBAWMEMT. fiUfiPPMBtnii
AND OTHER ReSpQWSIBILJTTY

2" Sodlon 1.3 of Iho Oonaral FYmditofls agrooo (o oomply with tho provUbno ofEsttu^ OfftM ott^ Prostdent. Exocutive Ordof 13549 end 45 CFR Port 76 rcgardtng Oebonwn.
6uspensi0f\ and Ottw RoiponslbBity Mattora, and further agreof to have tho Contractors

'SrtjSTlSr*'" J" Soctlofio 1.11 and 1.12 of tho Oaneral Provtatons cxecuie tha foOowtnfl.
INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

c^whmlalro (Ms proposal (contrad). Iho protpectNo prtnwy partlolpanS Is provfdirai ths
cenoieauon sat oyt below. . . ^ .

Z The tyMByof a p«w to provitia (ha certinaibA required baton wQ not nccasaaifly result in dental
wAart^tlMbtfttoovefedtmnaadJoft. If oeceisfliy. the prospecUvepartk^enlahdl submit en
pxplenadonofwhyflannolpro'iddathooartinceUon- Tire certfOcatton or oxpfaneUon wfll bewtsld^ tn connection wfih iho nh Oapsrtmem of Heallh and Human Servtcas* OJHHS)
dettmun^n whather to antar Into tWs tninaacOon. Ho^er, faOure of (he prospocflva prtmary

explanstlonshaadlsQuaS/yiudiperaonfrompertkbationln'
' tnfs transaction.

3. In this clause U a metartal representatlan of fad upon wftfch relianoe was
OH^ detemdnod to enter Into this transortJon. (f li b lator detarmbted that tho proapectNc

Pft^paTfldp«ntlwowtftglyrBnderedonein»n#ws.oefWic«Oon.lnBddiaontootheffenodIe3 'avafiabia to «a Federal Oovernment. OHMS may tamdnete thb transaction for cause or dcfaulL

4. ^a pTMpedrva primary parldpani ̂ oil provide Immadlato wruten notice to tho OHHS aaoney to

15? (corflrad)U submffied If at anytime tho protpeeOve prtmary participant teamsTO lb MrtlDcatton was erroneous whan aubmttiad or has become cmmeous by reason of chanced
ctrcumstancefi. * ^ .

6. JtotW[M•coueradlran4ac1^o^'*deber^cd.•buspendod.•^nei^afblo.•^owertiercovef«
transadw. *p8itWp8m."*pefacn/'pi1merycoyeradlransact!oa'*prtne#paL"»oooial*Bnd
NpbinlafOy ̂ udod,* as used In this dausa, hare the meaninos sal out In the OefWUom and
Corerago sedtans of ihs rules tmptemertlnp £jacu\t^ Order t2$49'. 45 CFR Part 76. See (ha
attached daftnfiionp.

/

6; The proapetfvB prlmapf pertMpanl agrees by sttanltUnp thb proposal tcontradl that, eteutd the
proposed corered trertsactlon be entered Into, ll ihaO riot kno^ngly enter Into any'lower Uaf covered
twoadto with a person who b debarred, suspended, doclarad henglblo. or vduniarOy exduded
ffom partldpallw) In thb oovwd Uansadton. unlBSf authorlied by OHHS.

2? pa^dpant further agroos by submitUng Ihb pnyoselthai li wO) IndUda thodausauM Certifcatlon RegardlngOebarinoni Suspension, IncC^fhlDty and Vduntpfy&dualof>»
IWMWCovered TrBnedfons.'pRnrMed by OHHS, wtthoul roodincalion, in aO tower ttv.covood
trensactroAs and tn aO aoCdtatioAs for lower ifw covered transadlona.

^ ̂ ^®^^®''*^®®®^'®^^*®®*^""*a7i''yip®hec«rtine«tlonaf5pfeapocUrepqrtlcipahtlno .tower tto corered tramadion TO Q b not debarred, suspended. InoOofbe; v inretuntaiOy
nw (ho cmrored transadlon, pntass H knows thai (he oartineaQon ta errenaoua A partldpaM may
aetfdothemothodendfraquoncybywhlchltdoiermtnastheeDglbllltyoflbpftncipala Eadrparticipant may. but b net reqiM to, check tho Nonprocuremem Ust (of f^ripii parties).

8. JJ^ttmt^hthoforagoingshdlbacoratnjedlDrequlreestalinshfflantdaeysl^
.  inordof to fonder In good f^fih the certification required by ftbcbirsa. The know!edge end

EjMflP-CwOac8to»fb8«NlnflOatartD«4Surewtoon CBrooctarW^ dUT*
kndOteerRnpaweSbfNttw Ty ✓,/

PeooldJ (Nte



New Hetn^shlre Oepertmenl of HoalUi and Humen Soivfcea

Extiibll r

.  tnfoflne!(onofepartlctpvU.(8no)raqu{red(oaYoeedeisiwMch)Dnotm8llypoesa3sedby6pnidenf
-  person tn the ordlAsry courw of buslnau daeDnoe.

10. Exoepa Ibr trBneacOofO euthodxad under, peregreph 6 of these tnsOudiDns, (f a pertUpard In o
covered IrunsaoUon knowingly entsre Into e tower tier co^red Peneectian vrilh o person who Is
euspei^ed. debe/red. trteOtftrte, or \^untB/Oy eicludad from participation In this transaction, tn-
ftddlCtft to other remedies ovsQabto to the Pederet govemmenl 0HK8 mey lorrnmste Ms twisacdtfi
foreauseordoleuti

PfllMWtY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. Tlv pmspeclhre phmery psrttdpanl oertiRes to the best of Rs Imowtodge end beilcrf. thai it end Rs

pRndpals:. •
11.1. em noi pmsmdy debsrred, etopended, pnposed (or debarmeni, dedsred trteOglble^ or

votunterlly et^uded from c^rered (rsrnedlora by arty Fedsrel departmem or agsrtcy,
11 hevs net wDhki o three yecr period preoedZng Ih's proposel (oontract) tmpn convicted of or had

a cM) bid^ment rendered agefnsi Uutm (oi coriRmhston of freud'or e cdmlnat offerae In
connedlen with oMdilng, enempiting lo obtah. or performing a pubOc (Fodersl. Stale or (ocal)
bsnsacdon'or e eorrtmct under s public tmnsadion; vIdeUon of Federal or State antitrust
ctfitt/tae er qommlsslon of ernbeaztemeni, (heft, forgery, bribery, faistQcallon or destnrdrtm of
recordA moldrrg (ebe slalemants, or receMng sloten propeity;

M.S. are not prosen^ Indicted for othervrhe crtnbteDy orcNttiy chsrgM by a govdrnmental arifly
(Federd. Statd or local)'wRh-commlsston of any of (he offenses enumerated In paragraph (ijfb)
of (hb carmpatlon: and.

11.4. have not wllhin a (hrea>year period preceding this appUcatlon/proposet had one or more public
Iransactiorts (Federal, ̂ te or local) tormhatad for causa or defoull

. 11 Where the ptospeeUve primery pemdpaht b unable {o certify to any iof the ststonvnts In ihb
OBTtillcellori, su^ prospecDve partldpard shsD eOach an exftenstton-to thb propoaa) (ooptracQ.

LOWER TIER COVERED.TRAf^CTlONS
11 By Blgdng end submltllr>g thb lower Dor propose) (cofttrecO.- (ho preapeclNe lowtr Oor parttdpam, as.

defined In 45 CFR Pert 75. carHSes to the best of Rs Imowledgs and beOef that It end (b principals:
15.1. are nd presently d^a/red. nspended. proposed for debahnani. dedored.lndlglbto. or

vduntsrby exduided from parUcfpaUon In Ms bansodlon by any federal depertneni or agency.
■  13.2. «rf>ere(heprospec1hm'loiwderpartldp«ntbunebtotooertifytoenyoflha'above,suGh

prospecdve pa^ipant ihaO eSadt ̂  dxdBnatlon to thb proposal (cqntrad).

14. The prospective tower Oer parltdpant further egmaa by eubmfltlng thb propose] (contract) that b wlB'
Induda thb clause entSed "Cenrikatian Rogardbg Oebarmenl. Suspension. Inel/glbOlty, end
Vdimtary Cidusion • Lower Tier Covered Transacfiani/ wllhout modification In ell tower tier oovered

'  traruecOofts end In an eoQdtations forlower tier covomd transactiorts. -

Contrador Name; /54SiS6/7K>r
i

Da® « Nonta;

EaoftF-CertiBcsOoARioirtoigOtSsflBs^SuipCMlsn CartriWBflaflMa
AndoewfiiiiiiiiifiiTiijfisiom a r/

.«wnoono»o Pogsldt n«w j P



NewHsmpshJre Dopartiasnt of Hnllh and Human 8ory(c«8
ExMbiiO

ssS5ssaK^ri3,sxtK''~-''~"'-"'-'™->»^
5S"*'®' ®™' Act of 1WB (42 v.s:c. Scdion aread) wwcn omMbtts

"IS ̂  (featmlftotJnB. aDher tn emptoymenl pmcCcoi or In
if f ?■ 0' «»■ cdor. fcfiatan. nallona) ort^h. and sex. The Adreqiiree certain roclpianis to produce an Equai.Empioyment OpportunHy Plan;

^ ̂  Act Hed^ts of federel funding under (ids
f  *" «'"P'®y™0"* prtOicee or in tho deUvery of sendees orT^.AC.ncM,.E'^u.

'"'nI'i!h£^n'^iS!!?iiy if profilWls redplents of federal financialaubtanee (torn dbcrimlnatfatg on the basis of race, entor. or nsUonal or^n In ony program or ectMry);
(29U.S^Seetton 7M). whichpntilbfiafodptenti of F^eraJflnanda]
^ ̂ dbsbCty. In regard to employmerd and (he OeRrefy-ofservices Of benafils. In ony program or ectMiy: ^w^cfrw

aoSllSJJJfl,!!! 11 oppcrtunliy for portons wtth dsabllhles In cmpteymanl. State and Iccelgovommertl services, pubQc eccommodaltons, commorctoJ fdcatlM, ertd fronsporta^;
dbSt^SSSfn?^^ ?® ^"2.1605-68). which piohtbltscocnnwatlon on tho basis of so h federalfy esabtad educetbn programs:
. Ito^Olii^inlon Art of 1B7S (42 U.8.C. Stcdoo. afOMT), wWcft pnMtilto OlKitminrtiQo m the
«h?k.^rt ?iSKLJ!'

^  RoguWons - OJJDP Grant PrograinsX* 28 C.F.a pi. 42SifpiSlStl w RguieOoha - Nondlscrtnlnatton; Erpul Emptoyment Opportunity: PoWospr«ecdan of tho lawsTor faith-based and corranunHy
provlda hrndamemal prindptes eitf poflcy-maUnpcftbiia tor partnerships wflh (alth^used end neighborhood organteattor£ Po«y™ina

RogidstJonj - Equal Troabnenl far.FaJahBased
If S.C. 04712 end Tho NaUon8JDofer«eAirthorti8tion '

WhbOebtower Pratedlons. which protaeu employeea againstroprtaei for certain whbtio UtMtng aclMtes In oonnecaan wlih federe) grama andwfrBcto.
"^^0* roprosemalton of fed upon whidh reflanco b placed whan (ha

cfAi^iMUon or vtotsUon of (he corthtoaSon shofl tra grounds tor
deSnSS ler^tlon of grants, or goworrvnant hMs susponabn or



New Mampehtra Oepaitment of Heahh and Human Services
■  EaKbHO

(n^mteFdde/BlorStfile court or Federal or BttlertmWstrBttwooBoncy makes eftndlna of
oiso^aljon after e dua proeesa hoajing on the gnunte of race, oolor, reli|lor>, naOona) offgJn, or sa
jaMo^plpit of fui^. the rcelplefn ̂ 0 a copy of iho finding to (he OWea far CMl Rights, to
ineflpglcBbla contracting agency or dMslon wtWn the Department ofHaallh and Kumen Servtoes and
to the Dapotmard of Health end Human Servtoei OIHce of the Ombudsman.

The Oontrector Idonuned fn Section t.3 of the Genaml ProvhIoRs agrees by efgrwture of the Controctor^ •
reprgsemalNe as Identmed.ln Seedons t.ll eno.^ll of the Qefwral Prbvlsbni. To exocute lha fcitbvMlno
oertnicailon: ■ -r.- ■

I. ^signing and eubmittlng tWs proposal (Qorrtrad) lha Contractor agrees to oompty with the provisions
Indicated above.

Cisntractor Name,  r"-xyui.

Name: ^
.TWe:

£jMbfiO

OPO— ^ - CortrtarWBd..
com

•tewnnt P«a«2ert gets



Nmr H«np«hlro Pepartment of Hoallh and Human Services
ExhlUtH

CEHTTPlCATfOH REOARmWQ EWyiROMMBITAL TOBACCO SMOKP

P(^c Low 10^227, Part C - EnvbonmoidoS Tobacco Smoke, aho kno«un at tho Prp-CWWmn Ad of 1984
(AcO, requm Ihat emoUng nctf be pcrmlQod In any portion of any. Indoor facflUy ownad or or
cofltrortod for by an ontOy and used rooflneJy or rogularfy for ibo pmvtston of heaUh. day caw, educoiloa
orD^ry aervtoea to cbaoren under Oi© oga of 16. tf.iha eorvlces oro funded by Federal programs cfthar
dbealy or Otftargb State or locel goverrvnentfl. by Fedard grani. contrad, toon, or loan guarentao. The

®PP'y to children's eervlou provided b privata rveldonces. fsdOiies funded sdoly by
, Medteore or Medloald fimde. end portions of fedllBos used for Inpatlant drug or atoohdl trectmehL FaDuw

provisions of Ihe low moy ratdl h the bnpoaUlon of e cM moootwy eenoby 6f ua to
I1P00 per day ondfor oie fmposlUon of an ttmlntetriBve compUa/ioe order on We rDsponslbie entity.

T7>e ContTBdor idantBtod In Saction 1.3 of tho Qcnarel Prodstons ̂ ees, by ctonature of die Cryitroet{y*B
.re^miaiNe be Monllfled In Section Mland 1.12 of the OcneraJ Prevtom. to execute the fbOoMfne
CbtWtmofM

/

wbmtflj^ (hie conbacl. the OOnbector egrces to make reaeorabto effbrta locorroly
with all epfflcablo protons of PubOc Law 18W27. Pan C, tmown as the Pf^hBdren Art of 1884.

Contractw Name:

BtfCe H - Csiflcsdfln Rig wdng
Efsdaoowed reteoto Snoxs

PWtldi . .

OvOsdSDr Mbb



Now KampsMro Ooportmont of Noolth end.Human 8ervicoo

EihlblH

HEAUTM INSURANCE PORTABILlf?^
.  RHSINESS ASSOCIATE A0R6EMEMT

TTio Contrsdor Montfled In Section 1.3 of the Oenefal Provfsbns of the Aoreemeni egrees (o
ooinpfy wUh the Health Insurance Portattlily end AocountebDfty ACL, Public Law 104-191 end
wtth tne Standards for Privacy and Securfiy of Individu^ Idenunablo Haalth inforniallon, 45
CFB Parts 160 and 1S4 applicable to business eseodates. Aa defined herein. "Business
Aeeoclete* shall meen the Contractor and subcontractors end agents of the Conirectw (hat
receive, ise or havo aooosa to protpcted health Infermanofi under thb Agreeirieni end "Covered
Errttt/ shea mean the State of New HampsN're, Depeitment of Health and Human SerVcea.

(1) PgfinlitonB.

a. "Prngh* shall have (ha same maanlng as the term "Breach* In sectton 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

* /

b... ̂ tness AasociatB* has the n^eanbig given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45, Coda
6f F^eref Regulations.

c. has the meaning gtveh such term In sedlion 160.103 of Title 45.. •
Coda of Federal Regulaliaru. * ' '

"OesienatBd Redord Set* ehaJl thp seme moaning ei Ihp term 'designated record eef
In 45 CFR Section 164.501. •.

'e. "DBta^qoreaflHon* shell hiave the same meaning as the terni "data eggregation* In 46 CFR
Section 104.501.

f  "Health Cara OoefBUona" sIvU have the same maaning as the term 'heallh care oparetiors*
-  In 46 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HfTECH Ad* means Ihe Heallh Information Technology foe Eoonorrdc end Clinical Health
Act. TltlaXIII, Subtitle 0, Pan 1 5 2 of the American Raoivery end Relrwestment Act of
2009. •

h. HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portsblllty and Accountability Act of 1998; Public Lew
104-191 and the Standarda for Privacy and Security of indlvtduaSy identifiable Health'
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160.162 end 164 arid amandnynte thereto. '

L  IndMduar shaO have the same meaning as the term 'Indlvlduar In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall bvlude a person who quaJIflos as e,personal representative In accordanoe wtth 49
CFR Section 164.501(g).

"Prlvacv Rula* shaQ mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Idenuflable Health
Interroatlon 8145 CFR Parts 180 and 164. promuJgeted under HlPAAbylhe United States
Department of Health and Kuinan Services.

k. *Rwtciv(ad Health infprpiatioft' ahall have the same rheaning as the term 'protected health
blformadoh* In 45 CFR Section 160.103, Qmlted to (he.informBtlan crtttodorrtoeivedlry
Bu3ln6S8As8od8te.ffDmofonboh8]rofCbvered.Entity. • .

aflOW ErfttCI tamaatOA
HMrtrtbvMnncihaitoUByAcf . -
Buihan AcMdca ^
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L  'Required bvUw' shall have the same meaning as the tenn 'required by laW In 45 CFR
•  8ectIon164.103.

m. 'Segetafy*ehall mean'the Seereta/y of the t>e^mertt of Health end'Human Services or
hl8/hef des^naa

rv *Saajrttv Rute' ehall mean (he Security Starvlards for (he Protection of Eleetronic Protoctad
Health IrrformeUon at 45 CFR Part 164, Suhpert C. and emendments thereto.

0- 'Uftflecurad Proteeied Heafth InfonmaOoff rrieans.protectad h^Ilh Infomiation thai Is not
eacurad hy a lechr^ogy standard that renders prolettsd health InfomtaUon unusabla.
unreadable, or InidKlpherabte tounauthprtsed IntSviduals end la developed or endorsed by
a standards developing orBanizaUon thd Is accredited by the XmeHcan National Standards
Institute.

p. fitiiflLBsfititittllfi-AD temis not otherwise de^edherdn shall have the meaning
establlshod under 46 C.f;r. Parts 1190.1S2 and 164. as emoiided from lime to Qme. end the
HITECH

Ad.

1

(2) BuBlneaa Aasociate Uaa agrf Plpcloaufp ot Proteeied Heanh Informatltm.

a. Business Associate shaQ not use, disclose, malntalh or irensmit Protected Health
InformaUon (PHI) except es reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibll A of the Agreemehi; Further, Business Associate, Including but not limited to all

• -its directors, offioere, employee and agenU. shall not use, disdose. melntaln or trensmll
' PHI in any manner that would qpnsUtutp a WolaUon of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b! Business Associate may use or tfladose PHI:
I. For the proper management and admlnistraUon of (he Business Associate; ■
II. As required by law, pursuant (6 the terms set forth b> peragreph d. betow; or
III. For data agsregBllon purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entlly.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disdose PHI to a
third party, Business Assodate must obtain, prior to maUng any such (DsiddsurB, (1)
reasonable assuranoes from the third party that such PHI «10 be held oonfldentiaUy and
lAed or further dlsdosed only as required by law or for the purpose (or wtilch il was
dbdosed to the thbd party; end (D) en agre&neni from such third party to notify Business
Assodate, In eocordanoe wQh the HIPAA Privacy,"Beauty, and Breach NoUflestton
Rutes of any breaches of (he oonfldentianty of the PHI. to the exterd It has obtained
loiowtedge of such breach.

d. The Business Assodate shall not, unloss such dl^osure b reasonably necasaary to
- pfoHde servtoes untfer ExhRrii A of (he Agreement,' disdose .eny PHI In response to a
request for disclosure on the basb ihat'il b required by law, withouf first notifying
Covered EnDty so (hat Covered Entity has an opportunity to oblect to the dbdosuro and
to seek approprtete rellet If Covered EnUty objects to such dlcdasure. the Business.

•  aeeai .
HctfX (nnnaci ̂weSXy Ad
Bvibwo AnoetiW AencmBte
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Amo^o Shall reffaln from disclosing ih® PHI unto Covered Enl/ly has exhausied aO

e. ['*'1® Eniity ndtfiefl the Business Associate that Covered Entlly has agreed to
iw hound by addJlmnel restrictions over end above those uses or disctauiesor security
.aaf^wrto of PHI pumuant to the Privacy and Security Ruta. the Business Associate

addlUonal restricUona and shaO not disclose PW In violation of
«uch addlttooa) restrictfona and aholl ablda by any addK/onal eecurity aafeguarda^

P) ■flMhtatlona and Activities of Buslnasa Ajaaeehte.

^ ^ Bu^ess Associate shall notify the Covered Entiys Pilvacy OlDoer immediatelyJTOjJ^uslnw Associate becomes aware o# any use or disciosuro of prot^ed
hMlth rot provided tor by the Agreement Indudlng breaches of unsecured
E2S!: eny wcumy Incwen! that may have an Impart on theprotected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b . The Bu^ess A^date shell Immedlotely perform o .risk assessment wt*n II becomes
av^of eny of the above situations. The risk assessment shaO IndwJe, but r«t be
nrmled to.

0 The nature and extent of the poiected health infonnalion Invofvod Indudlng the
types ofldenllOers and the likelihood of ra^ndRcaOon;. '.  0 ^0 unauthorized person used (he proleded heallh Information or to whom the •
disdosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health Infcjtmatlon was actually ecgulred or viewed
0 pe extent to which the risk to the protected heallh Information has been

rfrltlgated.

The B^^Assocfate shall comptde the risk assessmem wtiWn 48 hours of the
breached Immadletely report the findings of the risk assessment "In writing to thecovered CTtJity. • .

"  JwB^essAssodateshallcomplywithanMdionsofthePrtvw. Security, andBreach NoOflcation Rule.

I. • Btotneso Aisodata shaD make avalla^ all of Its Inlemaj pqltdes and prooodufes. books
to the use and disdosure of PHkeoelved from, or created orfeceived by the Business Assodate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secrelary ftor

puww^ dalennlnlng Covered Enlftys oompllSRoe wtth HIPAA end the Prtvacy end
Security, ̂ ito.

BuslnoM {^late ahaO r^uirs all of Its business associates that receive, use or have
■ aocCTS to PHI under the Agreernem. to ag^ Iri wrttlng to adhere to the aame
metjtons conditions on the use a/ti disdosure of PHI contained, herein, Inrtudlna'

The Covered Entity "ShaD be a dlrea third party benefiday of the Contrector's buslnesa assocbte
agreements wtth Contrertorie Intended budness assodales. who w(D be recaMng PHI

aefisr CowtctvMsei
HMiaiBsirmaPonxbSiyAci • ' ^

vai4



How Hampohlfo DopartnwntefHealth and Human Services

EiMbfl I

vzbi«

pureuant to IWs Agfoomenl. with rtghb of.cnforoefncnl and Indcmnlficationfrom such
busheaa assodalas who shall be go^cd by standard Paragraph #t3 of lha stsrulard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreemem for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Infenhation.

WWn Ove (5)business days of receipt of a wrtlten request from Covered Entfty.
Suanosa Associate shall rrwke ovaBaWe during normal business hours at Its offices ali
reMrts, tooka^egreements. policies ertd proceduree relaUng to the use end dEsdosure-
d PHI to the Covered EnUty. for purposes of enabling' Covered Enllly to determine
Buslnese Aeaodete'o oomprionce with the terms of the AoroomenL

Wrfn ten (10) business days bfreceMng a wrHien request from Covered Entity, •Business Aasodale shaD provide occess to PHI In a Deslgnatad Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to en IndWdual tn order to rheet tha
requlremcnla under 45 CFR Section 164.624.

WHhW ten (10) business days of receMng a wrttten request from Covered Enflty for an
amcndfiwl of PW or a record about an Individual cohtalrtw In a Designated Record
Set, the Busb^ Aasodata shall mbka such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendrnenl end Incorporetc any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to tutfill tts
DbO^tlaru under 45 CFR Section 164.526-.

Business AModete shaU document such dlsdosures of PHI end lofonnatton related to
such dlsdosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an acoountlng of disclosures of PHI In aecordenoe wHh 45 CFR Section
164.526. ■

Within tan (10) business days of reoelvfng a wriUan request from Covered Entity fbr a
requasrfor an accounting of dlsdosures of PHI. Business Associate shell fnaka avaOable
to Covered Entity such Infbrmalton as Covered Entity may require to fulIlD its obligations
to provide en eocountlng of dlsdosures wllh respecl to PHI In eooorttanoe wlth.4S CFR
Section 164.636.'

In the event eny Indtvldue! requests eccess to, amerufment of, or accountlrtg of PHI
dlredty^ from the Business Assoclste. the Business Assoddte shaD within two (2)
business days forward such request (p Coverpd Entity. Covered Entity shaD have tha
responsWllty of responding to forwarded requests. Howevbr, If forwarding the
Indlvkluara.reqMefll to Covered EnOty would cquse Coycred Entity or the Business
Aasodate to ̂ tate HIPAA end the Pityocy end Security Rule', the Business Associate
shall Instead respond, to the (ndMduare request as iraquM by such law ar\d nobly
Covered EnUty of such response as soon as practicebte.

Within ten (10) business daye of termination of (ha Agreamont, for any reason, the
Business Assodate shall return or defitroy. es spedOed by Covered Entity, el! PHI
mcelved from, or created or reoelve.d by (he Busfness Asaodote In connection w(th the

. Apeemant. and shan not retain any eo^es or ̂ ch-up tapes of such PHI. If refum or
des^dicn b nc4 feaslbte. or dbposiOon of ihe P.HI h^ been otharwise eareod to In
TO Agreement Business Aesoctata shall conUruia td ejdbnd the protactlons of the
Agreement, to auch PMl and Dmft torthcr uses end dlsdosur^ of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or deslwctton lufeaslble! for soldng as Business

BMMI CcftSitoWaiO
NMnMn«ffine*naiiita(y/wt —
ftaftwo AsaodM ^ ^
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Associate malntehs such PHI. If Covered Entity, tn Ks sole dIscreUcfn,(requires Diet the
Business Assoclste destroy any or ell PM. the Business Assodste sh&n certify to
Cowered Entity that the PHI has been defrayed.

(4) PbnaaUena ot Covered EnPtv

e. Covered Entity shall notify Business Asndale of any chanQos or I(m(tBtion(s} (n Us
Notice of Prfvaey Practices provided to Individuals In accordance with 46 CFR Section
164.620, to the extent that such chanqe or limllBtbn may affect Bustneos Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Enihy shall promptly noU^ Business Assodate of any changes tn. or revocebon
of permtsslon provided to Covered Entity by IndMdualls wfftose PHI mey be used or
dlsdosM by Wetness Assodate under Oils Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.508 or 45 CFR Section 164.608.

c  Covered entity eheil promptly notify Buelnose Assodate of any reetrictions on the use or
dbciosure of PH) that Covered Entity has egreed to In ecoordance with 45 CFR 164;.622.
to (he extent that such reatrfctlon may effect Business Aissodate's use or disdosure of

.  PHI.

(5) Termlnotlon farCeiae

In additbh to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-07) of (his-
Agreement the Covered Entity may tmmadlately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Endt/s knowledge of a breach by Buslnsss Assodate of the Business Assodate
Agreement set forth herein as Ej^iblt I. The Covered Entity may either Immediately
terminate Die Agreement or provide en oppor^ntty (br Bustnese Associate to cure the
aDeged breech wHhIn a ttmeframe apeciAod by Covered Entity, (f Cov^d EntHy
detenjikies that neither (armlnatlon nor cure la faasibte. Covered Entity shall rej^ the
vtolatlon to the Secretary. ■

(8) WttcelbmoQua

a. Paflnttlons end Raoutatonr References. AD terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shaO have (he same meaning as those terms In the Privacy end Seourtty Rule, amended
from lime to Uma. A reference In (he A^ement, as emerged to Include this Exhtblt I, to
a Section tn the Privacy end Security Ride means the Section as tn effect or as
emended. ^

b. Arngfidment. sCovered Entity end Businese Associate egree to take ouch action es is
neceseaiy to amend the Agreement, frtmi Itme to time as Is necesse^ for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requiremerUs of HiP/^ the-^acy end
Security Rule, and eppQcabIa fedoret end state law,

c. Data Ownsfshio. The Business Associate aclmcwledges that It has no ownership ilghtB
wIDi respect to the PHI provided by or created on. behalf of Covered Entity:

d. InteTpretaiten. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement ehafl ba resoMid
tp permit Covared Entity to oompfy wUh HtPAA, Die Privacy and Security Rule. '

■i/KU etfAAl OwCMttif T-/^
HcaBi SiMveo^^^SlhrAcJ
Bittinmi AnocUtD
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e. SeoraoaHon. If any term or condition o; this Exhtbll I or the eppticallbn thereof eo^ny
per6on(8] or drcumstance la held Invalid, such invalidity ehaO rtot effect other terms or
condlllona which cen be fliven effect yrtthout Ihe.lnvatid term or condltiort: to thb end the
terms and condltlons.cf this Exhibit 1 sre decfared severeble.

SuTvfvai. Provisions (n (his Exhibit t reganflne the use end disclosure of PHI. return or
dcetrucbon of PHI, exterwiona of the protoctlors of the Agrecmont in eecUor> (3) I; (he
detbnee end Indemnlflcellofl provisions of section (3) o end Paregreph 13 of the
ctandsrd terms end oondiUons (P'37), ahaU eurvfve the termlnetlwi of the Agreement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, (he parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Dopartrnem of Health end hh/man Servtcss

The State Na.me jof the ContrBctor

Slgnaluraof ALthortzed Repreeentatfv

Name of AuthoBced Repfej^ntatlve Name of Authorize ReoresenietlName of Authorized RepresenteU

Tine of AuOwrtzed Reproeentetfve

Date

Signaturo of ̂dthbrtzed Representative

(3tme
ve '

Title of Authorized RepresentetNe

Data

«914 LMtftI
HmU) bmmcB PvutOty Ad
OMlntti AicocUts Aerttncnt

PspSero .
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CEHTinCATTOH REOAROtNa- THE FEPERAL FUNDING ACCOU>rrABrUTV AND TWAMaPARgWCY
ACTfFFATAlCOI^ppAMei:

The Federal Fundha Aooountobttiy end Trewperency Ad (FFATA) requlraj prime awsfdeee otJrdMduei
Federe) pranti equal (dot prnieMhon $26,000,end awarded on or oftcrOdeber 1,2010. to report on
dae reteted to onculNe compenoation and asiodaiod ArdHier oub^ranti of (25,000 or mora. If (ha
tnttta] award b below CS.OOO but outnequenl grant modSlcallans result In e lotot award equal to or over

. $25.000. the award b oubjeet to the FFATA reporttnB requlrementa. es of the date of the awartl
.  fn eocordanoe uAlh 2 CFW Pert 170 (Reporting Subawverd end Execufivo Compensation fntBrmaOon). the
Department of Hoohh end Humcn Benribea (OHKS) must report the foOo«^ng tnformatlan for eny
eubaward or oontrect award evbtect to the FFATA reporting roq'utramenb:
1, Nome of entity
Z Amountofawwd
. 3. Finding agency .
4. NAICS code for oontracla/CFDA program number for grants

'  5.. Program sovroe ' '
. 6. Award UfledascriptM) of the purpose of the funiSng action

7. locadortottheendiy
6. Pilnclpiepboeofperforrnartea
B. - Umqua mffltDer ef Oie enSiytDUNS 0)
10. Tetf compensation and rumes cMhe top five fttecutVea If:

10.1. Mora (hen BOS of annual gross rmmAuea are from the Federal QDvamraenl, and those
ravemies ore graatereton $2SM annuoDyend

.  10.1 Ccmpensedonlnformattonb not i^niady available through reporting to the SEC.

•Pmna gram rodptenti must FFATA required data by the end of the monlh. plus 30 days, In which
-  8te award or award amendment b mode.

IheConlracforlderTffliadlnSecdon 1.3 of Ihe General Provtslens agraas to comply with the praybtons of
Tha FaderoJ Funding AocouhtaUUty end Transpohmcy Act, Public Lew. 10B*2^ and Public Law 1 lO-^&I.
and 2 CFR Pert 170 (Ropartlng Subaward end, Executhra Comperaatton InrarmeCoh), and further egraep
IP horra (ha Conrsctor'e represantstfve. ae Idanimed (n Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of tha General Provlsldhs
eaoute the'lsfloivthg CertffleaUoh:-
Tho below nonted Conpaetor ogfaas to provide needed Intormebon at outCned above to the NH
Deperbnanl of Hsafih end Human Sarvloas end to comply wfth eO oppnahle proviolorts of ̂  Federd

-  FbiendaJAocDimtBb&lty and Transparency Act

CofilTBctof Name: -35>fe

me

Ttdec

EjMWi-CaCac«iionRacoAia(nePtatrd%W(ne Cer»»dBfbi8A_^:S^
.  1 OaaurOBliSly AM Trwuponqr Ao (FFATA) Caaptim

pvicfa tmj£{fjX
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FORMA

As tho Cdntraqtor idsnttfted tn SeeOon 1.3 0/ (he Oenera! Provisions, I oortlfy (hat (he fospontes to (he
betoWUstod quetflons em tnifi er)d eocurelfl.

I. The DUNS number for wufemihrh: /(,/^Offfi/n ̂ 3
2. tn your business or orgentepllon'i proccdino compieiod rbcel yoar. did your business or ofQanlzallon

rooetve (1) 60 porcont 0/ mom of your'annue) procs rovenue tn U.S. foderel controets, subcontrecta,
bans, grents. sub^'snts, ondtor cooperative ooreemcnts: and (2)'$26,000,000 or mcvo in ormuet
prpss rovertues from U.S. federal oontmcts, subconbocss, loans, grent^ eub^nta. orvHor
cooperstive ogroementa?

NO Yes

n OiB answer 10 02 ebcvo ts NO, Slop hero

tf (he answer to 02 ebovo is YES, ploasa enswar (ha ftdbwfng: ■

X Docs ihe public tiavo 6ce^ bbiforfnotfon eboul the oornpenseBon ot.the executives In your-
bustnosfi or erganJuOon through pertodtc repots Red under section 13(a) or 1S(d] ofthe SecuitUes
ExBh&ngo Act of 1934 {16 U.8.C.7em(a). 7fto(d)} or section 6104 of the tntemal Revenue Code of
1066?

NO YB

'■ It ths-BnswDrtb.d3 above is VC8, stop hero

irths onswer to tn above Is NO, blsftso antwct (he fDOowtng;

4., The r\emsa and oompeT\ssUDn of iho five most highly oomperuatad cffloers in >eur business or
' organliationereesfodows:

Nome:.

Nsm.e:.

Name:.

Name;.

Name;.

Amount.

Amauni:.

Amount,

Mnount.

Amount

CMWOntDlI

Cinte J - CMacaOan Rtsartng Oia FadwW Andnp
Aceeesasey And rrvosmncy Ad (FFATA) CetspltneD

PipsSdl
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ExhIbltK.. . '

DHHS Information Security Rec^ulrements

A. Daflftfttons

The foOowtng terms may be roftected end baye the described in ihto document:

*" 0' control,-compromise, unsulhortaed disclosureuiuuthorusd fioQutsfUon, unauthorized access, or anv aimnaf tArm *1
pemons othcf than auihortzed users and for an other than

'  purpose have access or potential access to oareonanv- ktenUfljihib
electiontc. With regard to Protected Health

d^rnTO^®" Standards and Techndogy,' U.S. Departmem

^  ■Conftfenual Data- means aD conAdential tafbrmalion
■  "o "!•"<''<>' tu* as aD madleoi. heallh. fhandaJ, publicWoimalion Including uillbout llmDatlon, Sutntanca
&J»bbirn^lSr

m'iI.u""®''?!®'" "n'on^allon ovmod or managed by
flZcm 1.^ .T. ■._ "" Perfw-nlng conlm^l5 ^ cdMion, disdosure, protacden. artd (fispostOon Is omremed bvstate wtederal taw or regulalloft, Thb InformaUon tndudas but Is nmoLS

InformaUon (PHI). Personal Iftformalton (pi). Pe^al RnandalInfofmato ^), Fedefal Ta* InformaUon (FTI), Sodal Securtly t^mbars fSSNlPayment Card Industry pa), and or cthar eensilNe and confldantfal informalfon.
any person or enUiy (e.g.. conlrector". oonlredor's emptoyeo

tlowrttlream user, etc) thai reeeNosDHH3 data or derirative data (n aocordartco with the terms of this Contract

Ad.of ,988 and Ota-
&

e. U«t polentlaliy violates an ej^idl or Implied securily poUcy
**■ »««e®s'"0 to 08fnunsuthorizedacwStooamatern S dtsrt^on or denial of service, the unauthorized use-ofa system fbr the proceostng or storage of data; and cttarwes to avMam hfint—i.,

hnowtedoe. Instnjdten a
^  mlsplamment tess; <* mteplaecment of hardcopy documents, and mlsfoutlng.ot physical or dectrorUc

V4.ua uptfaiOiM.3»lS PrfJMir -
- OK^toioen ■
8«a»t|yAnia«RNrti , m
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

maQ, el of \rtihlch may have the potential to put (he data et rtsk of unauihorired
Bocesa, uie, disclosure. modlTteatlen or destruction. ■

7. "Open Wireless Network* means any networti or segment of e networti that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Oepartment of Information
Teehncloqy or delegate ais a protected network (design^, tested, ertd
eppruv^, by means of the State, to transmit), win be considered en open
hetvnrV and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI; PR.
PHI or confidential OHHS data.

6. 'Pereona! Infomieilon" (or Ti") means Infomtailon which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's Identity, such as their nsme. social securtty number,^rsonel-
Informalbn as disflnod In New Hampshire RSA 359^:19, biometric records, etc..
alone, or when oorhbined with other personal or MenUrytng InformBtion wHch |s linked
or [hkable to a apecHic lndl«4dual. such as date and ̂ ce of birth, mothers maiden'
name. etc.

a 'Privacy Rule' shell mean the Standards for Privacy of Indivlduany IdentlGabte Health
Infbmistion at 45 C.F.R, Parts 160 artd ICd.prbmulgaled under HIPAA by IheUnlied
States Deparbnent of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Heallh Information" (or THri} has the seme meaning as provided In the
:  deflnUlon of 'Prpteded Heallh Infonnallon* (n the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R, 6
ieai03. . . ®

It. "Security Rule'.shaO mean the Security Standards for the Prote^on xfi Electronic
.Rdtected Health Infcrmetlon et 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpari 0. end amendmanla
thereto.

11 V^cured Protected Heallh Information' means Protected Health Information (hat Is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Infermaikm
unusable, unreadable, or tndedpherBble to unauthorized Individuals end ta
davetoped or endorsed^by a standards developing orgardzaiion that ia accredited by
the American National Standards iridiiliriis:

I RESPONSIBIIJTIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A Burinosa'Uae and Disclosure of Confidenthl Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, dlsdose.^melntaln or trarttmii Confidential Irrformatlon
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under thb.Contract. Further. Contractor,
indhitfng but not limited tp an ita tfrectors, olTioare. employeea artd agents, must rtbt
use. disdoee, mslnleln or transmit M In any rrwnner that would constitute a violation
of tftt Privacy and Security Rule. •

2. The Contractor must r»i dlsdose any Cortfldentia] Informatiort in response to a
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request (or disdasure on the batb that It Is required by bw. In response (o a
subpoena, eto., without ftrGi noiUytng OHHS so.that OHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. tr OHHS notifies the Contrectof that DHHS has asreed to be bound by additional
restrtdlons 'over and eboue those uses or disdoeuree.cr eecudty eafeguaflts of PHI
purquenl to the Prtv^ and Seourfly Rule, the'Contractor must be bound by.ouch
.additionsl rest/tctiorQ end most not dbcbse PH) In vtoialhui of euch edditiona)
resirtctians and musi ̂ Ide tiy any eddlUonal securfiy safeguards.

4. Tho Contrector agrees that OHHS Data or deitvahre there from dbetosed to an End
User must onJy be used pursuant to the terms of (hb Contmcl

5. The Controctor agrees OHHS Data obtatnied under this Conlrecl may not be used for
any other purposes thet are not Irullated In (hb Conlrecl

.  6. The Contractor agrees tp grant eocess to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHVtS (or tho purpose of Inspecting to confirm oompllence with the terms of thb
Contred

D, METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA '

■  1. Appllcallon Ertcryption. If End User, b Iransmllllrtg OHHS data oontatrilrrg
Confldentlel Data be^Me^ applications, the Contractor ettesta the appUcstlons hpve
been evaluated by an expert hnowledgeable In cyber security and that aeld
appllcatibn'e encrypttoo capabilities ensure eecura transmteslon via the Intemel.

Z Computer Dbke end PortaWe Storsge Oevtoes. End tJser may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, eiich as e thumb drVe. as e method of trarBmltb'ng OHHS
data.

3. ErKiypted Email. End Usar may only employ enveU to trsnsmli ConftdenOa) Data If
emaD Is encnroted and being sent to end beirtg received by erheO addreeees of
pefaorts authorized to receive such Information.

4. Enoypted Web Site. If Ervl User Is employing Iho Web to IrBfwmll ConftdeniJal
Data, the secure eocket iayera (SSL) must be used arid the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmlDed via e Web site.

.S. File Hosting Services, else known es FDe Shartng Sites. End User may not upe file
hosting servfcas, such es Dropbox or Google Qcud Storege, to trahsmU
Confidential Oats.

6. Orouftd Mas Genrloe. End User may only transmit Confidential Data vie oert/rtedgrourul
maQ within the conthenta! U^. and when sent to a named Indlvtdusi.

7. Loptcps and PDA. If End User to ompfoytng portable devices to transmit
Confldentlel Data said devices must be encrypts and paasword*pfote^Bd.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End Oeer may not tranemll Cordldenllel Oats via an open
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wtreleSa networtL End User must employ e ̂ eJ prheta network (VPN) when
•  remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

S. Remote User Communlcatloo. If End User Is employing remote oommunlcBllcr> to
eocese or trensmit Confidential Dale, a vIrtuSi pHvete notwofk (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobDe devtca(a) or laptop from which Information wID be
transmm.ed or ecoessed.

10. SSH Re Tran^r Proloool (SFTP), also known as Secure file Transtbr Protocol If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Ccnfldentlal Data. End User -wOl
structure.the.Foider and access. phvOegss to prevent Inspproprfale dlsdosure of
tHformattoa SFTP folders and sqb-fofdera used for tmnsmitting Confldentta) Data wO
be coded for 24^our auto-defeOon cyde Ci.e. Ccnfidentia) Data will be.delated every 24'
hoursX

tt. Wireless Devices. If End User b trarTsmltting CkmfldenUat Data vta-wireless dodoes, all
data must tie encrypted to pret^ent tnapproprtate disdbsure of InformatlarL

la RETENTION AND DISPOSmON OF IQENRFIABLE RECORDS

The Conirector wID onfy retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contra^ After such t^. the Contractor wQ have 30 days to destroy (he date end any
dertvatiye In whatever form 11 may exbt. unless, otherwise required by law or permitted

■  under this Contract. To this end. the parses must

A. Retention

' 1. The Contracttff aSf^^ 'O .^i. qpJ store, transfer or process collected- in
V oonnedion with tho -services rertdered under this Contract outside of the United
. Stetea. This physical tocaUon requlremient shaO also apply in the imptementaiion of
doud oomputirig. doud sarvtos or ctoud storage capabOlti&s, and indudes backup

. data end Disaster Reco^ry (ocatlona

2. The Contrador agrees, to ensure proper security monllortng cspabinVes ere In
plaoa to deted potential security events that can br^ct. State of NH systems

.  . and/or DepartrnenlconfldentJat Information for oont/acCorpjpvfdedsystvns.

3. The Contractor egrets to provide-security ewarertess end educaOon (or Its End
Users tn support of protecting Department cortfldsnba) Infomutlon.

4. ' The Contractor agrees to retain ell-electronlc end hard copies of Corrfidentlal Oats
In a secure location and IdentNiad In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees ConfldenUal Data stored in .a Cloud must be tn a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant oduddn and comply with ei) appiieabis and
regulatlona regandtng the phvacy.end security. All servers and devices must have
orrrentlyeupported erul hardened operating aystems. the latest anll-vtrai..8nO-
hacfcar. antKspam, aniKpyware, and antJ-moNore utDiUes. The envtronment, es a
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whoto. must have oggreastve (mruston^etedion and (irewati protedJoh.

®' ^ J?"?® 1: eoowratlon wW, th, stale'.delecdon otf any aocurfty vwnerabHlty of the hoailnp
Infrestjucture.

8. OlsposlUon

1. If Con^dof will maintain any Confidenltal Infarmalllyi on (is systems (or Da ""
eulwxmtractof systcmsj, the Contreaor M malntatn a dooimenlo^pmc^ for

cbntract terminaUon: and wfljobtoln ̂ tfon oertinceUon for any .Stale of New Hampshire deta destroyed by the
" a part of onflolng, em^pency. and or d^'r

W  "®®" e'oclronic media containing aate ofNew H^pshtro data ehaO be renderdd unrecoverable via a secure wipe ̂ mm
with^ustryoccoptad etanderds for eecum dtietbn artd madia

■  or dhcnvbe physJOafty destroying the rhedla (for examefo •
2?2S Special PubDcallon 60(^. Rev i, GuidelinesNe^ IrtsUtde of Standards and Techfwtogy. U. 8.
topa/ynertl of <^mn^. The Contrector wB document and cetWy In wrtUng at

1^1® 1 tostnrctlQn, and win prtivWe wfltten eertmeaUon.to the-Depar^eniW  The wrtKen oe'rllflcatton wtD include all details necesaarv to ^
destroyed end validated. Where epplicable.

r^ulrt^ and..pirofo5slcnQL6tafldBrd8 for retention requiremerTts wDI be tolrrUv
evatu^d by the state and Cwilractor prior to destnrctton. *

^  terrnlnalion of thisCwrtrooCo^ctor agree,s to dretrey aO hard »ples of Confidential Data ustng a
eotijre method auch as shredding. -

0' terminatioii of IWs 'agrees to completely destroy all olectronic Confidential Data
by means of data erersure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR BECURfTY

'■ "!? <» PWiBcl Department
afMrtraetedeavbeT """ssorl. arid/wstored in the deOnery '

^  T'"*"", prooadures ■ Id prdtact Oepatlmenl ■
•  Wymallon Ihrouahout the Infarmallen Hfecyde. wtiere ai)Klcalil«. rimm'

SccBXy R«9ut«mvo , ✓ /.,j£(^fX
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3. The Contractor maintain opproprteta euthenlicotloft' end controto to
contractor systems that collect, irarunM, or store Oepertment confldentia} tnlormation
vAere epptleeble.

4. The Comractof wai ensure proper security mortitortnp cepabifliles are If* place to
delect potantlsl oecurtV everxte e*al can Impact State of' NH systems and/or
Oepartmant conlMcrrtlaJ.lrtformaiJon for contractor provided systerns.

& The Contractor .wOl provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users In support of protecting Ospartment confWantlal Wcrmetion.

6. ff the Contrartor wSl be 6u^<ontredIng any com ttintilons of the engagement
supportng the sevtees for State of Now Hampshire, the Contractor will fnalniflin a
program of an Internal process or processes that defines spectfle security
expectations, and monitoring oompIlBnce to security reqi/trerfjenfs thai at e mWmum
rrtaich those for the Contractor, lndudir*g breach r*6liric^ion rcgulremarts.'

7. The Contractor wB) worfc with (he Department to sign end comply with all eppUcaUa
State of New MarnpsWro and Department system access end.euthorlialJon poildes

. end procedures, systems access forms, and computer uw agreements es'part of
obtaining and rnaintalrtng aoMss to any Department system^a). Aereemanls Wfll be
completed and signed by (he Contractor end any applicable sub-cordrBCtora prior to
system aoosM being authorized.

.6. If the Depaitmeni determines the Contractor is a Bustnsss Aasoclale purausni to 46
CFR 160.103. the Contractor MO emouto a WPAA Bustness Assocbte Ag/ttmeit
(BAA) w4ih the Department end Is responsible fbr maJntaWnjo compliance wUh the
agreement..

a The Contractar wID worx wtih the Department at its raquesi to cempleta e Systmi
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey (a to enable the Oepartnient and
Coniracfer to mgnflor for any changes In rtste. threats, and vutncfabilrties that may
occur over the life of the Contrector engagement The survey will be completed
^uaDy. or an alternate time frame at the Depaitmenta dbcrotlon with agreement by
the Contredor, or the Oepartmem mey request the eurvey be completed when the
scope of the ehgagerncnt between ihe Department and tfw Conbector danges. •

10. The Contractor wQ) not store, knowingly or unXnowtngly. any State' of New Harfipshiro
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States imlesa
pilw eyess vmuen cortsent - Is* cbtalrvd from the trtformailon Security Offloe
leadership member wllhln the Department.

11. Date Sewflty Breech UabHily. In the owsnt of any eacurtty breach Corttracte dial!
make efforts to tn>mstlgete the ceiAes of the breach, promptly take measures to
peywt future breed* and rrtWmlie any damage or loss resSiIng from breach.
The State aheO recover from the Contrc^r all costs of response and reoovery from

Scot^ rwvo«tn«Ae
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mit' monltorlnfl services, malJlna costs endwebsfte and telephone call center servlcea necessary due to

®" oppilcabte statutes end regulaiiona regartflM the
M  Information, end must In bD other rospectarwin^ the privacy and oaarmy of Pi and PHI et a lovel end ecope that b ntfS

faS n2*nl!i!?nT^S5fE r^ulremcrqB appOcsbla to federto agencies. Inctodlftg,M not Ihnllad to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1074 iTs.C. g OHHS

13. ^ establish and mahitoln approprfbte edminlstraUva. technical, and
phy™ eafeguey^ to protect the confidant/elity of ihe ConfidertUid Date and to
prevent unaut^bad use or adoesa to Q. The eafeguarde must provfda a tevel end

®  ̂ ll>e tevel and .ecopo of oecuhty raquifemenle
;  ̂ New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.

Rooufcea/Proofemenl 0 https/Avww.nh.govfdolt/vendoritndachtrh
for the Oapa^ent of Information Techngtogy poJides. guldaOnas. standanfe; and
procurement mformatlon raiaftng to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and Inddent
rw^nse process. The Contractor wlU notify the State's Privacy omcar. and
eddl^nal ̂  addresses prcMdad In this section, of any eeeurflyPraarft wtlWn two
(2J noure Of the time that the Contractor (earns of Qa occurrence. Thb tndudee 0
conWe^al .Informaltan ^ach, computer seourtty Incident, or expected breach
'  ® Includes any State of New Hampshire ayetems iM oonned to the

State of htow Hampshtrenetwodc.

15. Corrtfactof muat restrict access to the ConfldenUaJ Data obtatoed imder thb
to ohV those airthortied End Users v^io need such OHHS Data to

perform their official duties In connection with purposes Mentlfted In (hb Contract.

IS. The Contractor must ensure that aO End tJsera:
a. comply wllli such safMuarda as referenced In Section IV A. ebova

trnplcmentad to protect Confidential Information thai la fumfshad by OHHS
under thb Contract horn (bsi, theft or Inedverlerc dbdosuro.

b. aafeguard thb tnformaiion at al( times.

c wure that laptops and other dectrortc devfcea/macOa containing PHI, PI or
PFl ere encrypted end paasword.prctected.

d. eend emails containing Confidential InformaUon only If enccvotsd and bdng
sem to end befr^ received by email addreasea <rf persons authertzed to
fAfiftk/* dUir^raoafve such (rrtormauon.
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0. llmlldlscteuraoftheConfklenljaJInformaUoniolheciriBnipermntBdbylaw. *

' Confidential InformoUon received under thia ContfBd and indMdudVwnUftofe data derived from DHH8 Data, must be etored In air area Uut le
'  pnywcaljr errd technotoglcaOy eocure from aceou by unautbortzed persons

M norvduly houhi (ofl., dop. toeta, csnd key..

fl. 0^ BUlhortod End Uwre may transmll the Confidential Data, IndudiM any
de^^ Gles containing pemonoDy idcntlfiabJa Informatlw. and In all mm.
eym dala nttsl be. ancrypled at afl Umae when In Imfttii, at real, or when
Giorod on poitsble media as required In sadlon IVabove. ■

K In ̂  other InslartcaB ConfldeniiaJ Oats must ̂  malnlalned, used and
dJsdosed usl^ appropriate aafegWds. as determined by a rlsK-basad
wsessmenl of the drcumstancca Invdved.

.  t understand that their user credentials (uaar nbme and password) mual not be
6h»ed edlh anyone. End Users wU keep tholr eredenllel tnformatJon secura
Thistles to aedentlals used to access the elta directly or Indirectly threuoh
a third party eppllcailqn. * »

oversight and compnonce of lhair End Users. 0HH3-

uS IK! .5. ''^•P«t«n8 .to monitor' compQance wlih this
requirements provided In herein. HIPAA,

Federal.regutattens until auch tfrne.thc ConGdential Data
Is disposed ofln ecoordance with this ConlFBct. «-oiiuaiui«i

V. LOSSREPORTINO

■  ■ rnus! notify the State's Prtvatv Omoef. Infcrniaflon Socurtly iOfRco and
n!S?22 of arv Seewfly Inddenia end ereachea within two (2) hours of the
Cme that the Contrectof teams of ihdf occurrertce. •

further nai^la and report Inddants and Breschea InvoMng PHI tn
eowance wfth^ agcncye documented inddent Handling end Breach Notincetlon

5S 431.300 . 308. In addltton to, and
compUanoe with all appUeaUe obGgaiions end procedures.

CofttrecJor'a procedures musi also address how tha Contractor wUt
1. Idantlfy Incidents:

Z OetefmtnetfperaonaDyldentinabtelitformatlonlslnyotvedjnlnddef^ts:
3. Report suspected or confirmed Inddants aa required In this Exhibit or P-37:

■  *' of InoldsntBand detemune rtsk-bcsod responses to Incddenta: end

Saowoy nree«i)0«»
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6. Oelermlfto vvtiolher Breach notlficBtJon b roqulrad, and. ff eo. tdentiiy epproprlate
Breach no^flcatlon methods. Umbfl, aource. and contenb (fom emonq dlffewrt
cpUona. and bear corts essoctatad vwtth the Breach noUca as well as any mWecfUon
meesures.

Inddenta end/or Breaches that ImpUcata PJ must be addressed end reported as
appllcflbte. tn accoRlanoe wHh NH RSA 3SBC:20. -

VI PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHScqrrtact for Data Management or Data Exchange Issues:

OHHSIntorTnallonSecuntyOffice0dhhs.nh.goy
B. DHHS contacts tor Privacy bsuso:

DHHSPrivacyOfftoarQdMb.rth.gov
C. OHHS contact for tnfcrmatlon Security issues:

■ DHHSlnterma1lonSecurttyOffice0dhhs.nti.9ov j
D. DHHS ooritad for Breech nstlflcatlona:

DHHSInrormBlionSecunty6fnce0dhhs.nh.oov
OHHSPnvsCy.C^fncarQdhhs.nh.gov

i
'v4.Ud«dMMauO(« • EMMK eMOmUOA CTr^ • •
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